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Letter from
the Chief

Executive

D ear reader

Twenty twenty-one was the second year of the Covid-19
pandemic and was notable for the mass vaccination programmes
that successfully broke the final waves of the virus. It was also the
year in which major economic sectors like industry were gradually
able to start returning to previous levels of activity.

This return to normality was reflected in the work of European
institutions, in particular the European Commission, with an
accelerated commitment to the transition towards renewable
energies and gases. We therefore have to take advantage of
our potential - which is indeed one of the greatest in Europe
- in biomethane production in the short term and green
hydrogen in the medium term. Redexis continues to position
itself as one of the key players in this energy transition.
Our experience in developing, operating and maintaining
infrastructures means that we supply energy to thousands of
homes and companies, safely and continuously, every single
day.

The year was an important one for the energy industry, as we
saw the ongoing shaping of the broad outlines of the energy
policy to achieve a long-term emission-neutral economy,
in which gas and electricity play supplementary roles.
The development of our natural gas networks has and will
continue to contribute to reducing emissions.

In terms of renewable gases, biomethane is now a reality and
there are dozens of renewable gas generation projects being
designed and built which will enable these gases to make a
definitive contribution to the energy mix, reduce emissions
and meet the objectives of the circular economy through
the use of waste. In the medium term, green hydrogen as an
energy carrier will form a critical part of the integrated energy
generation, storage and distribution system and the solution
for many industrial customers in rising to the challenge of
carbon emission neutrality.

Redexis has continued to invest in the development of energy
infrastructures to provide communities with clean and
efficient energy that supports development and well-being.
In 2021, we deployed 1.6% more networks and now have
11,905km of transportation and distribution infrastructure
networks. Redexis ended 2021 with our network providing
761,607 network supply points - 3.9% more than in 2020 and
serving 980 towns and districts in 40 provinces.

We transported 36,546 GWh through our grids - 0.8% more
than in 2020. Redexis continued to grow across all market
segments, in terms both of our customer base and volumes.
This included stronger order intake in the industrial and
tertiary sector than 2020, despite Covid-related constraints
on movement that were still in place for gas installation
works. Demand in the residential sector also grew - by 4.5%
compared to 2020. Meanwhile our industrial and tertiary
business saw demand grow to 12,854 GWh of distributed gas
- 7% more than the previous year.

Redexis also continued to grow in the LPG business - both
organically and through the purchase from Nedgia of 14,450
LPG points in seven towns and districts in which we already
operated as well as 58 new ones, thus significantly increasing
our geographic footprint.

During the year, Redexis demonstrated that its business
modelis robust and resilient, increasing revenues to€261.9m,
8.4% higher than the previous year, and increasing EBITDA
by 5.8% to €179.4m. Both figures reflect the progressive
recovery of business activity in terms of volumes of gas
transported and growth in the number of connected users.

Investments made by Redexisin 2021 exceeded €96m, mainly
focused on expanded natural gas distribution networks
and new user connections, as well as the development of
sustainable transport and travel through the deployment
of infrastructure for gas vehicles, with over €1.3bn of
investment in the last ten years. This investment capacity is
made possible thanks to the confidence of our shareholders
and the financial community. The company also received
confirmation of its Standard & Poor's investment grade credit
rating.

In terms of the sustainable transport-related business,
Redexis continued to make progress in deploying refuelling
stations for natural gas vehicles (NGVs) and in 2021 had 25
gas stations in service - twice as many as in 2020. These are
aimed at public service fleets and long-distance professional
transportation, as part of the agreement reached with Cepsa.

As key players in energy transition, we continued to promote
renewable gases, with a particular emphasis on biomethane
and hydrogen, both of which are key to the decarbonisation of
the energy system. Redexis continued to make progress in the
future deployment of what will be Spain's first hydro-product, as
part of the European "Green Hysland" project. This infrastructure



will enable the transmission of renewable hydrogen from the
Lloseta production plant to homes, businesses and industries
on the island of Mallorca. Administrative processing of the
Green Hysland project began in 2021, with both the Balearic
Islands government and the Ministry for Ecological Transition
and Demographic Challenge for the construction of the
hydro-product and the H2 injection post on the SANSON
transmission pipeline at the Cas Tresorer valve position.

In April 2021, we also signed a collaboration agreement with
Air Liquide to develop a project around the hydrogen-based
transport and travel value chain in Spain, under which we
agreed to work on analysing the deployment of a network of
up to 100 hydrogen refuelling stations in Spain by 2030, most
of which would be for heavy transportation. In September
2021, an addendum to the agreement was signed to focus on
the joint development of the Redexis Gas Servicios DESIRE
H2 project. This joint project enabled the DESIRE H2 project
to progress under the IPCEI mechanism. The DESIRE H2
project has now been transferred to the CEEAG mechanism.

A biomethane injection contract was signed with Galivi Solar
in Lorca, Murcia in February 2021. Work also began on the

"Redexis plays an essential role in energy
transition, bringing improved well-being to
the areas in which we operate"

administrative processing project, which enabled us to start
the processing process in October 2021. Redexis will inject
biomethane produced at Galivi Solar's waste treatment
plant in Lorca into its gas infrastructure in the Murcia region.
Redexis will build an injection post, pipeline and grid
connection point to be able to inject up to 40 gigawatt hours
(GWh) of biomethane into the gas grid per year. This will
mean a saving in emissions of around 7,820 tonnes of CO,
equivalent (tn-eq CO,).

Redexis also experienced strong growth in the solar PV self-
consumption market in 2021, with 3.3MWp of new solar PV
capacity being connected. In the last quarter of 2021, Redexis
jointly announced with Cepsa the launch of the first global
photovoltaic energy network in service stations, including

Letter from the chief executive

theinstallation of photovoltaic panels across Cepsa's network
of petrol stations in Spain and Portugal. Redexis installed
photovoltaic facilities at 112 service stations in 2021.

Redexis plays an essential role in energy transition, bringing
improved well-being to the areas in which we operate. As part
of our commitment to local communities, disadvantaged
groups and those at risk of social exclusion, in 2020 we began
carrying out activities through the Redexis Foundation. The
foundation aims to promote technological innovation and
the development of social, charitable, welfare, educational
or cultural works, running sponsorship initiatives in line with
the needs of the communities in which it operates, and also
support the use of clean energy and care for the environment,
and to serve as an active agent in energy transition.

Our ESG commitments and activities have been assessed by
the international agencies GRESB and Vigeo Eiris. For the third
consecutive year, global sustainability index GRESB awarded
Redexis the highest rating (five stars), scoring 91 points out
of a possible 100 and becoming a leader in the industry.
Moody's ESG Solutions, formerly Vigeo Eiris, awarded Redexis
the highest rating of "Advanced" under its sustainability and
CSR rating, increasing from 57 to 62 points in carrying out
socially and environmentally responsible initiatives.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the magnificent
Redexis team for their effort, dedication and efficiency at
every step of the way. It is thanks to them all that we have
succeeded in making Redexis the great company that it is
today. Building on our progress in 2021, we are reinforcing
our role as a major player in developing the industry and we
look to the future with optimism.

Fidel Lopez Soria
Chief executive of Redexis
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Redexis

Redexis in figures:

Review
A NETWORK COVERING 11,905KM
of the

ﬁ n a n Cia I WITH A DISTRIBUTION

TRANSMISSION NETWORK OF

year 1.645., 10,260

WE REMAIN COMMITTED TO COMMITMENT TO GROWTH

761,607 1073 11,905 36,546

SUPPLY POINTS AUTHORISED TOWNS AND KM OF OWN NETWORKS GWh DISTRIBUTED ENERGY
DISTRICTS IN SERVICE
+4.1% + 16.8% +4.5% + 3.2%
TACC 4 YEARS TACC4 YEARS TACC 4 YEARS TACC 4 YEARS
THROUGHOUT SPAIN

Operating in:

1 1COMMUNITIES 40PROVINCES

Redexis is the leading natural gas
distributor in Aragon, the Balearic

Islands and Murcia




Review of the financial year

WITH A RESILIENT AND SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS MODEL

+261 09M EUROS +1 79.4M EUROS +96‘8M E.es

REVENUE EBITDA OF INVESTMENT

+3.1% +2.6% 127.2/1cur05
TACC 4 YEARS TACC 4 YEARS AVERAGE 4 YEARS
WITH THE EXPERIENCE OF OUR EMPLOYEES,
337 3,000 99% 1.20
DIRECT PROFESSIONALS PEOPLE DIRECTLY EMPLOYEES WITH ACCIDENT FREQUENCY RATE

(own and subcontracted staff)
A FIXED CONTRACT

WITH THE ENVIRONMENT AND SOCIETY

'

Fundacion *= ™

Redexis *

% % K %k 2021 ROBUST LEVEL
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Milestones
for

the year

JANUARY FEBRUARY

® We promote research into ®|nauguration of the Calvia gas station
technologies for transporting and to supply the Moventis fleet in the
supplying renewable hydrogen Balearic Islands.
from the sea as part of the OceanH2 * We sign an agreement with ABEI
project. Energy to study the deployment of

hydrogen supply infrastructures.

® We launch the Galivi Solar project,
consisting of injecting biomethane
from the production plant to the
natural gas infrastructure in Lorca
(Murcia).

-

® We implement the Vortex System k

at the Sigtienza LNG plant - a
pioneering energy-saving project.

(- )

® We publish our first Non-Financial
Information Statement (NFIS).

*\We progress expansion of natural
gas vehicles in Spain with a new
refuelling station in Trujillo.

\_ Y, (

® We are authorised to build the first
hydro-product in Spain as part of
the Green Hysland project.

s
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Z
O
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s
L
=
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APRIL
( )
. J

® We start supplying natural gas in
Huércal, Almeria.

® Redexis, the Aragon Hydrogen
Foundation and Nabladot promote
the "ComputaMeh" project to
study how fluids composed of
different mixtures of natural gas
and hydrogen would behave
when moving through existing
transportation networks.

® We improve Panorama Group's
sustainability by installing 564
photovoltaic panels on its factory
roof.

( )

\. J

® \We maintain our ESG level at
"Robust’, increasing our score,
according to Vigeo Eiris's rating.

MAY

® Borja Polo is appointed as new
chief financial officer (CFO).

® \We extend our infrastructure to
connect Guadix to the natural
gas network.

® We start supplying piped gas in
the towns and districts of Ariza
(Zaragoza) and Belver de Cinca
(Huesca).

( N
G /
JUNE

® We achieved ISO 50001:2018
re-certification for our Energy
Efficiency Management System.

® \We become more sustainable
thanks to the installation of
photovoltaic self-consumption in
our offices in Palma.

® We launch a new "State of Savings"
campaign for supply companies.

® We deploy new natural gas
infrastructures at the Oleoenergia
plantin Jaen.

® We launch a new NGV reporting
station in Castillejo de Iniesta
(Cuenca), as part of our agreement
with Cepsa.

® Redexis Foundation publishes its
2020 Annual Report.

Review of the financial year

® Redexis Foundation launches
the First Aid Line to support
energy efficiency improvement
projects for associations aimed
at improving the quality of life of
vulnerable groups.

( )
\_ J
JULY

® We become a new partner-
associate of Agremia, the
Association of Companies in the
Installations and Energy Sector.

® We join the GetHyGA initiative
for the deployment of hydrogen
projects in Aragon.

® We sponsor the Merida Sports
Association women's football
team.

® We join the Murcia Region Green
Hydrogen Valley Platform.
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2021 MILESTONES

o

AUGUST

® Redexis Foundation - official partner
in the 60th Edition of Cante de las
Minas.

® We achieve ISO 45001 and ISO
14001 re-certification for our Energy
Efficiency Management System.

® We build the infrastructure to supply
natural gas to the fleet of 100 buses
of EMT in Palma.

( )
\_ J/
SEPTEMBER

® With Cepsa, we further expand NGV,
opening our fifth gas station in
Getafe (Madrid).

® We start supplying renewable gas
to Zaragoza Transport Consortium's
metropolitan bus line.

\

- .

® We start supplying piped gas in
Serén (Almeria).

® We sponsor the UCAM Murcia
basketball club.

® Redexis Foundation awards grants
to improve energy efficiency and
quality of life to five non-profit
associations.

OCTOBER

® Redexis Foundation makes a financial
donation to the Island Council of La
Palma in support of those affected by
the volcano eruption.

( )

\_ J

® We support women's sport as a new
sponsor of Sala Zaragoza.

® GRESB 2021 ranks us as world leaders
in sustainability.

® Ursula Von Der Leyen calls the "Green
Hysland" project (in which we are
involved) an EU leader.




NOVEMBER

® We join "Ready4H2" together with
other European distributors to
promote hydrogen through the gas
networks.

~\

J

® The Redexis gas
station that supplies the TIB fleet in
Calvia opens to the public.

® We sign an agreement with Son
Servera Town Council to supply
natural gas to municipal facilities.

® We connect Ibiza's Paseo Maritimo to
the natural gas network.

® Redexis becomes the new sponsor of
Almeria's Cuevas Football Club.

DECEMBER

® Together with Cepsa, we launch
the first global photovoltaic energy
network in service stations.

® We sign a partnership with Air
Liquide to deploy up to 100
hydropower plants by 2030.

® Redexis appoints Fidel Lopez Soria
as new chief executive.

( )

\. J

® We start supplying piped gas in Biar
(Alicante), Alberic (Valencia) and
Tavernes de la Valldigna (Valencia).

® We sign an agreement with
Cepsa Group and Redexis for the
purchase and transmission of LPG
networks and facilities serving
around 2295 supply points.

® We complete an agreement with
Nedgia Group for the purchase and
transmission of LPG networks and
facilities serving around 14,450
supply points.

Review of the financial year
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A SOLID TRACK RECORD

112

Our
story

19TH CENTURY 1927

* The company's first gas e [ncorporation
factory in Zaragoza. of Gas de

Zaragoza

e Société pour Léclairage as a part of
des Villes de Biarritz et Eléctricas
Saragosse acquires the Reunidas de
factory and other assets. Zaragoza.

2001 2014

e Incorporation of Endesa
Gas Transportista and
Transportista Regional
del Gas, which started the
transportation activity.

+ 300,000 supply points
+ 3,000 km of network

2015

e Corporate reorganisation.

1985

¢ Gas Huesca is set up.

* Endesa acquires
Eléctricas Reunidas
de Zaragoza
and its respective
shareholdings.

1989

100,000

supply points

1993

* Merger of Distribuidora
de Gas de Zaragoza
and Gas Huesca creating
Gas Aragon.

1997

¢ Endesa Gas is set
up, consisting of
various distribution
companies.

¢ Acquisition of Redexis Gas Murcia and other
additional distribution assets from EDP.

¢ First bond issue (€650m, maturing in 2021).

+ 396,500 supply points
2007 + 5,800 km of network

* New bond issue

2010

¢ Two investment funds managed
by Goldman Sachs acquire 80%
of the capital of Endesa Gas
T&D's asset holding company.

+ 364,000 supply

points

+ 4,700 km of network

e Successful integration of
Redexis Gas Murcia and
other distribution assets.

* Purchase of 71,500 LPG
points from Repsol.

2016

(€250m,maturing in 2027).

¢ Agreement of a loan with
the EIB (€160m, maturing
in 2036).

¢ Signing of the first
Collective Bargaining
Agreement.

¢ Integration of 71,500 LPG points acquired from Repsol in 2015.
e Acquisition and integration of 3,400 additional LPG points

from Repsol.

¢ Purchase of 4,700 LPG points from Cepsa.



2017

® European pension
funds USS and ATP
agree to increase their
stake in Redexis Gas to
49.9%.

* New bond issue
(€250m).

e Bank financing
agreement for €300m.

2018

* New shareholder

structure: ATP 33.3%, USS

33.3% and GT Fund and
CNIC jointly 33.3%.

e Agreement of a loan with
the EIB (€125m, with a
20-year maturity).

¢ A milestonein job

creation, increasing
the number of direct
employees by 5.6%.

¢ Development of

artificial intelligence
tools.

¢ Boosting the
development of
renewable gases like

hydrogen or biomethane.

e Signing of the second
Collective Bargaining
Agreement.

¢ Development of new

artificial intelligence tools.

+ 680,500 supply points
+ 1 0,400 km network

2019

e Promotion of
photovoltaic solar
energy projects.

e Development of
hydrogen and
biomethane projects.

* Collaboration
agreements with FEBT,
Cepsa and Seat to
promote natural gas
vehicles.

e Signing of the second
Equality Plan.

* Sector leader in
GRESB's Infrastructure
Sustainability Index.

¢ Development of
innovation and
digitalisation projects.

e Commitment to and
fulfilment of Agenda

2030's Energy Transition.

+ 71 4.668 supply points
+ 1 1,1 40 km network

¢ The Redexis
Foundation is created.

e European Union Clean
Hydrogen Alliance.

e Highest rating in the
GRESB 2020 index:
82/100.

e Agreement with Cepsa
to purchase 11,366 LPG
points.

* Redexis Gas, S.A.
changes its name to
Redexis, S.A.

e Highest rating in the
GRESB 2021index,
91/100.

¢ 25 natural gas
vehicle refuelling

Review of the financial year

* LNG plants brought
into the world of virtual
reality.

e Deployment of 14
natural gas vehicle
refuelling stations.

* Deployment of
distributed solar
generation
installations in the
tertiary and industrial
sector.

e Acquisition of LPG
installations from
Cepsa and Nedgia
groups.

e Launch of the
first photovoltaic
energy network
at Cepsa service

stations are stations.
reached. e Vigeo Eiris ESG
e Launch of rating "Robust".

renewable gas
projects, including
Galivi (biomethane)
and Green Hysland
(green hydrogen).

Redexis *
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Key

Figures
s
KEY OPERATIONAL
ﬁ g ures Supply points (thousands) Towns and districts
761 1073
733 963 ® 93  authorised
D 99
864 980 inservice
2020 2021 2020 2021
Length of network (km) Distributed energy (GWh)
11,715 11,905 36,546
) 36,260
® 1,645 transportation
D 1,643
10,073 10,260 of distribution
2020 2021 2020 2021
s
KEY FINANCIAL
figures
Revenues (€m) EBITDA(€m) Investment (€m)
241.7 | 261.9
179.4 120.6

169.5 96’8

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021




Review of the financial year

KEY NON-FINANCIAL
figures

Total consumption
of energy (GWh)2

17.4 19.9

2020 2021

Directly employed

0 440

97 251 96 241

337

2020 2021

Carbon footprint (tCO,) >*

37,533.15 189.36
36,725.95
0
2020 2021 2020 2021
Frequency Rate
Combined Accidents
0.93 1.20
2020 2021

MNumber of accidents per million hours worked, for employees and contract staff.
@Total consumption includes offices, LNG plants, transportation positions and vehicle fleet.
® Carbon footprint includes offices, LNG plants, transportation positions, vehicle fleet and diffuse emissions.

“The new industry methodology for events when calculating methane emissions from distribution facilities is applied

under scope 1 for the 2018 carbon footprint.
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About
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® Qur Mission and Vision
® QOur stakeholders
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About
us

engaged in the regulated activities of natural gas

distribution and transportation, along with the
distribution and supply of LPG piped to homes, businesses,
industry and the transport industry. Its core business is the
transportation and distribution of gas to the supply companies
that sell it on to customers. Redexis develops and operates
infrastructures to transport natural gas from Spain's backbone
transmission networks in Spain to consumption points in
homes, businesses, industries and service stations.

Redexis is a group of energy infrastructure companies

The transmission and distribution of natural gas and LPG is done
under a system of administrative authorisations and regulated
by Spain's Ministry of Energy Transition and CNMC (National
Commission for Markets and Competition), which define
the industry's technical, administrative and economic rules.
Regulated gas activities operate under a stable and transparent
regulatory framework that encourages market development.

"Redexis operates in regions and markets where
gas penetration is lower than the national
average and that of other European countries"

Since its inception, Redexis' strategy has been aligned with
energy policy guidelines and has contributed to the deployment
of gas in Spain, facilitating access to clean, convenient and
efficient energy, having invested over €1.5bn since 2010.
In addition, Redexis Group, through its subsidiary Redexis
Servicios, is developing new business opportunities linked

About us

Redexis *

to the energy transition, in the areas of natural gas refuelling
infrastructure for vehicles, infrastructure for renewable energy
sources, energy efficiency solutions and fibre infrastructures.

With over 761,000 supply points and a distributed energy
volume of more than 36TWh, the company facilitates access
to a sustainable and efficient energy source, natural gas and
LPG, serving 980 towns and districts in 40 provinces and 11
autonomous communities, via almost 12,000km of its own
energy infrastructures. In addition, the company operates a
network of 25 gas stations in service nationwide, providing
access to a competitive, low-emission transportation
alternative.

91% of Redexis' activity is regulated and is oriented towards
providing an optimal, safe and efficient service, placing the
end user at the centre of all decisions. It does so by designing,
constructing, maintaining and improving transportation and
distribution infrastructures to ensure the supply of natural gas.

The company is headquartered in Madrid and has 17 locations
throughout Spain. It has a young and dynamic team of 337 full-
time employees, whose experience makes Redexis a leader in
its industry.

As an integral part of its strategy and fight for human rights,
Redexis is signed up to the United Nations Global Compact
initiative. We are also committed to working in line with the
2015-30 Sustainable Development Goals adopted by the UN in
September 2015.
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Redexis

Our
Mission and Vision

MISSION

To be an end-to-end energy infrastructure company, maxim-
ising growth and efficiency, and making a decisive contribu-
tion to sustainable development by being environmentally
responsible and generating value for our stakeholders.

"Redexis is committed to energy transition
and promotes the development of
sustainable infrastructures, through
excellent management of its networks"

©

To be aleading energy
infrastructure company, firmly
committed to its users, employees
and shareholders and admired
for its ability to excel and create
value in the communities in which
it operates.



About us

Q O ﬂ "Developing a climate

Our @ of trust among our
stakeholders ~O stakeholders is a priority
& for Redexis"

PARTNERS AND EMPLOYEES
SUPPLIERS

OO0
R0

PUBLIC AUTHORITIES AND FINANCIAL
REGULATORY BODIES % COMMUNITY

SOCIETY I

Redexis *
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Structure and
corporate

governance

® Board of Directors
® Management Committee
® Our commitment to...
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Structure and
corporate

governance

nies, owned equally by two pension funds: Universities
Superannuation Scheme (USS) and Arbejdsmarke-
dets Tillaespension (ATP), and the infrastructure funds Guoxin

H eadquartered in Madrid, Redexis is a group of compa-

Structure and corporate governance

(CNIQ), which participate jointly. ATP and USS are two Euro-
pean pension funds that make significant long-term invest-
ments in leading infrastructure companies. GT Fund and CNIC
are long-term financial investors with a mandate to invest in

Guotong Fund LLP (GT Fund) and CNIC Corporation Limited world-class infrastructure assets.

SHARE CAPITAL

Uss: 33.33%

' ATP: 33.334

o

Redexis

CNIC and GT Fund: 33.33%

GROUP STRUCTURE ' ° %
. - f = Redexis S.A.

r. T ™

Redexis Infrae-
structuras, S.L.U.

Redexis Gas Ser-
vicios, S.L.U.

100%

Redexis Gas
Murcia, S.A.

99.98%

Redexis GLP, S.L.U\

100%

100%

“1n May 2021, the company changed its corporate name from Redexis Gas, S.A. to Redexis, S.A.
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Board of Directors

O
M

Mr Gavin Bruce Merchant
July 24,2017
Nominee director
(proposed by USS) Director

Mr Stephen

O
M

Mr Fidel Lopez Soria
December 21, 2021
Executive

Chief Executive

O
M

Mr Li Bo
July 14, 2021
Nominee director
(proposed by Guotong)
Director

O
M

Mr Niels Konstantin Jensen
May 23,2019
Nominee director
(proposed by ATP)
Director

M

April 11,2019
Nominee director
(proposed by USS) Director

@)
M

Mr Ignacio Pereiia
Pinedo
March 19,2013
Non-board member secretary

®)

Alan John Deeley'

O
M

Mr Fernando
Bergasa Caceres?
May 20, 2021
Non-Executive
Chairman

O
M

Mr Liu Yuan
September 16, 2021
Nominee director

(proposed by Guotong)
Director

O
M

Mr Sorem Alverde Holm
May 20, 2021
Nominee director
(proposed by ATP)
Director

Management Committee

® Mr Fidel Lopez Soria, Chief Executive

® Mr Ignacio Pereiia Pinedo, Secretary General and Secretary of the
Board of Directors

® Mr Borja Polo, CFO, Director of Strategy and Business Development
® Mr Javier Crespo, Director of Operations

® Mr Diego Sanchez, Director of Engineering, Bids and Execution

® Mr Miguel Mayrata, Director of Business Diversification

® Mr Javier Migoya, Director of Expansion

® Ms Susana Lorenzo, Director of Corporate Resources

® Ms Estefania Somoza, Director of Corporate Communications, IR and
Custainability

® Ms Mireya Martinez, Director of Internal Audit

The Board held twelve meetings during the financial
year 2021. Here, we note the commitment of the
members of the Board of Directors to exercising their

Redexis' chief executive, Fidel Lopez Soria, was appointed on
1st January 2022.

« He holds a degree in mining engineering from the Polytechnic
University of Madrid and Mines Paris, and an MBA from MIT
Sloan School of Management.

- He was part of Ferrovial Group from 2007, working in the
services and airports divisions.

- At Ferrovial Services, he was chief executive of
Broadspectrum, development director of the division
and member of the boards of Amey, Tube Lines and
Swissport. He was a director of HAH and AGS at Ferrovial
Airports, commercial director of Heathrow and director of BAA
Airports. Mr Fidel Lopez Soria previously held several positions
at Enel and was a consultant at McKinsey & Company.

duties, highlighting the high level of participation and
attendance at Board meetings (88.5% in financial year 2021).

M Mr Stephen Alan John Deeley resigned as a Director on 24 May 2022. On the same date, Ms Georgina Dellacha was appointed to the board as nominee

Director, proposed by USS.

@0n 24 May 2022, Mr Fidel Lopez Soria was appointed as Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors.
®0n 31 May 2022, Mr Fernando Bergasa resigned as Director and Chairman of the Board of Directors.
* Ms Cristina Avila Garcia tendered her resignation as Director of the company on 16 December 2021, effective 31 December 2021.
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Structure and corporate governance

Existing committees

In 2018, the Appointments and Remuneration Committee and Audit & Risk Committee were set up under the Board of Directors.

Appointments and Remuneration Committee

Though not legally obliged to do so, the Board of
Directors agreed to set up the Appointments and
Remuneration Committee on 25 October 2018. It has
three members:

« Mr Niels Konstantin Jensen
» Mr Steve Deeley
«MrLiBo

Mr Niels Konstantin Jensen was appointed chairman
of this committee and Mr Ignacio Perefa Pinedo was
appointed as secretary. Members of the committee
serve for a term of 3 years and are eligible for re-
election. In financial year 2021, the Appointments and
Remuneration Committee met seven times.

Redexis S. A.

Redexis, S.A. ("Redexis") is an end-to-end energy
infrastructure company engaged in the development and
operation of natural gas transportation and distribution
networks, the distribution and sale of liquefied petroleum gas
and the promotion of renewable natural gas and hydrogen
applications.

In May 2021, the General Shareholder Meeting approved
the change of the company's name from Redexis Gas, S.A.
to Redexis, S.A., with its registered office at Calle Mahonia 2,
28043 Madrid. Redexis develops and operates networks to

Audit & Risk Committee

The Board of Directors agreed to set up the Audit &
Risk Committee on 25 October 2018 on a voluntary
basis, as there is no legal obligation to do so. It has
three members:

« Mr Soren Alverde Holm
» Mr Steve Deeley

o Mr Liu Yuan

Mr Steve Deeley was appointed chairman of this
committee and Mr Ignacio Perefia Pinedo was
appointed as its secretary. Members of the committee
serve for a term of 3 years and are eligible for re-
election. In the financial year 2021 the Audit & Risk
Committee held one meeting.

deliver energy needed in homes, businesses and industries,
ensuring the highest safety and quality conditions at all
times. The company has a solid plan to continue expanding
and offering energy solutions across the country, involving
almost €1.5bn invested since 2010. Today, Redexis is Spain's
second largest natural gas transportation operator, the third
largest distributor and the second largest in LPG, with a
presence in 14 autonomous communities and 40 provinces,
and 980 towns and districts. It has a total of 761,607* supply
points throughout Spain. (¥)

*Including the 14,450 and 2,295 supply points acquired in December 2021 from Nedgia Group and Cepsa Group, respectively which, as at the date of this
report, are yet due to be integrated. It also includes 4,691 supply points from the purchase made in December 2020 from Repsol, which at year-end are also

pending integration.
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Redexis GLP, S.L.U.

The aim and main activity of REDEXIS GLP, S.L.U.
("Redexis LPG") involves activities relating to the sale and retail

Redexis Gas Servicios, S.L.U.

The aim and main activity of REDEXIS GAS SERVICIOS, S.L.U.
("Redexis Servicios") consists of:

« Holding, purchasing, subscribing, exchanging, selling,
managing and, in general, any business involving domestic
or foreign bearer securities, mainly in relation to energy
companies, and for the purpose of directing, administering
and managing these entities. It excludes activities that
are expressly reserved under law to collective investment
undertakings, those expressly reserved under the Securities
Market Act to Securities and Stock Exchange Agencies and
Companies, and activities that are deemed to be regulated
under the Hydrocarbons Industry Act, as well as the sale and
production of natural gas.

« Management, consultancy and provision of business, IT,
accounting, labour, administrative, strategic, commercial,
industrial, technical, organisational and planning services
related to the infrastructure sector and, in particular, the

Redexis Infraestructuras, S.L.U.

The aim and main activity of REDEXIS INFRAESTRUCTURAS,
S.L.U. ("Redexis Infraestructuras") is mainly in the area of natural
gas transportation as well as related and ancillary activities. It

Redexis Gas Murcia, S.A.

The object and main activity of REDEXIS GAS MURCIA, S.A.
("Redexis Murcia") consists of the distribution and secondary
transportation of natural gas in the Murcia region. Redexis holds

supply of liquefied petroleum gases. Redexis LPG is wholly
owned by Redexis.

energy industry, including inspections and maintenance

of installations, quality control, emergency service and
management in relation to energy uses, transportation,
installations and utilisation, as well as research and
development in all types of processes related to energy use
and saving.

« Planning, study, design, execution, assembly and operation of
infrastructures.

« The purchase, transfer and financing of capital goods related
to the above activities, as well as the maintenance and repair
of such goods.

« Research, development and operation of industrial safety
systems, both industrial and domestic.

« Telecommunications operator.

Redexis Servicios is wholly owned by Redexis.

is also the owner of Redexis' primary transportation pipelines.
Redexis Infraestructuras is wholly owned by Redexis.

99,98% of Redexis Murcia share capital, with the remaining
0,02% held by minority shareholders.



Our commitment to...

... Human rights

Redexis' Code of Ethics, which reflects the company's
commitment to the principles of business ethics and
transparencyinallareasofactivity, establishesasetof principles
and guidelines for conduct aimed at guaranteeing the ethical
and responsible behaviour of all Redexis professionals in their
work. This Code of Ethics has been approved by the Board of
Directors.

The code aims to determine the values and best practices that
should govern business conduct as a whole, as well as the
conduct of all those directly and indirectly linked to Redexis in
performing their duties and in their professional relationships.
One of the fundamental pillars of Redexis' corporate culture
is transparency and integrity in everything it does. For this
reason, various internal rules have been approved in terms
of implementing the Code of Ethics and conveying the
importance of these values to its employees:

» GOB Guideline 02: Reporting of alleged irregularities.

« GOB Guideline 06: Institutional services.

» GOB Guideline 07: Relations with members of public
authorities.

» GOB Guideline 09: Collaboration agreements with public
sector bodies.

» GOB Guideline 12: Meetings with public bodies and
authorities.

» GOB Guideline 13: Protocol for prevention and action in
situations of harassment.

« GOB Guideline 08: Prevention of money laundering, terrorist
financing, bribery and corruption.

« EXP Guideline 01: Verification of compliance with tax and
social security obligations.

Redexis has a Human Rights Policy, through which it is
committed to respecting those rights at every stage. This is
a fundamental part of its responsibility. The company seeks
to ensure the protection of human rights through its policy,
both among employees and other stakeholders. It is based
on the UN Declaration of Human Rights and is committed
to the various human rights regulations in force, which form
part of the policy:

Structure and corporate governance

M,

00/AO0
1R

« The United Nations Universal Declaration of Human Rights.
« The United Nations Global Compact.

« The United Nations International Covenant on Economic,
Social and Cultural Rights.

« The United Nations International Covenant on Civil and
Political Rights.

« The Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises.

« The fundamental conventions of the International Labour
Organisation.

« The United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child.

» The United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons
with Disabilities.

« The United Nations Convention on the Elimination of
Discrimination against Women.

« The Global Network Initiative's principles on freedom of
expression and privacy.

« The Agenda 2030 for Sustainable Development.

Redexis' commitment to human rights is reflected in all its
business activities, with the aim of generating a positive
impact and sustainable growth in the areas and territories in
which it operates.
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Redexis also has a procedure for approving, monitoring and
evaluating suppliers. This aims to ensure that any third party
supplying goods or services to Redexis is suitably qualified
in accordance with Redexis' standards of transparency and
business ethics, health & safety, quality and the environment.
In 2018, as part of Redexis' commitment to transparency and
diligence, the Appointments and Remuneration Committee
and Audit & Risk Committee were set up under the Board of
Directors, although there was no legal requirement to do so.

Redexis also complies with all legislation and regulations
in force in Spain in the area of human rights. Redexis has
been a member of the United Nations Global Compact since
2014, thus committing to support this international project
through its activities. The company is actively involved in
events, webinars and initiatives promoted by this association.

Redexis has an internal and external complaints channel
through which complaints and reports can be made in
relation to alleged irregularities. To this end, if necessary,
the appropriate disciplinary measures may be taken and
transferred to the appropriate public bodies for the purpose
of investigating the facts if they are particularly relevant.
In 2021, no complaints were received - either through the
internal or external channels.

Furthermore, as a preventive measure, whenever an
internal regulation is approved, the whole company is
informed through internal communications, highlighting
the obligation to comply with it. All internal regulations are
available to employees on the intranet. In addition, for any
questions or queries regarding these rules, employees may
contact the legal department.

... The fight against corruption and bribery

The company aims to continue to make progress and take
all necessary actions in the area of good governance. To this
end, the necessary internal rules and procedures have been
approved in order to implement these actions.

Redexis has a Code of Ethics based around one of its
strategic objectives: the strengthening of corporate social
responsibility (CSR) within the company's corporate culture.
This Code of Ethics reflects the company's commitment
to the principles of business ethics and transparency in
all areas of activity, establishing a set of principles and
guidelines for conduct aimed at ensuring the ethical and
responsible behaviour of all Redexis professionals in their
work. This Code determines the values and best practices
that should govern business conduct and the behaviour
of everyone directly or indirectly linked to Redexis.
The Code of Ethics also reflects the company's commitment
to the principles of business ethics and transparency across
all areas of activity, establishing a set of principles and
guidelines for conduct aimed at ensuring the ethical and

responsible behaviour of all Redexis professionals in their
work.

One of the fundamental pillars of Redexis' corporate culture is
transparency and integrity in everything it does. For this reason,
various internal guidelines have been approved in order to
convey the importance of these values to its employees - in
particular:

+ GOB Guideline 08 on the prevention of money laundering,
terrorist financing, bribery and corruption.

» GOB Guideline 02 on the procedure for reporting alleged
irregularities.

+ GOB Guideline 06 regarding institutional services.

» GOB Guideline 07 regarding relations with members of
Public Administrations.

+ GOB Guideline 10 regarding the Prevention of Market Abuse
Situations.




Among these guidelines, we highlight the one relating to
"Prevention of Money Laundering, Terrorist Financing, Bribery
and Corruption Regulations", the general purpose of which
is to develop a framework of action for Redexis companies
within the general area of crime prevention and, in particular,
to prevent potential risks in terms of bribery and corruption
in business conducted through third parties. No corruption
cases were reported in 2021.

Redexis also approved a risk management and control policy,
with the aim of establishing the basic principles and the
general framework of action for managing the risks Redexis
faces, guiding and directing the set of strategic, organisational
and operational actions, which allow the Board of Directors

Structure and corporate governance

to encourage the fulfilment of the organisation's objectives
as part of a framework of rigour and excellence oriented
towards safety and service in conducting its activities.

'Redexis Campus' offered staff a number of courses oninternal
regulations, creating content to enable them to continue
advancing in their professional development. Among the
courses offered to employees, we highlight those relating to
the Code of Conduct and the procedure for reporting alleged
irregularities. Communication and transparency are part of
the company's strategy to achieve its corporate governance
objectives. All employees are informed when various internal
rules are approved and are given continuous access to them
via the Redexis intranet.

27|



o -

Redexis *

Risks and
opportunities

® Materiality analysis and matrix

128



Risks and opportunities

Risks and

opportunities

Management (ERM) system, which aims to provide an any negative impacts. The system is based on international

Redexis manages risks through its Enterprise Risk company, taking advantage of opportunities and minimising
overall reliable overview of all risks that may affect the  COSO standards and ISO 31000.

- SARSTRNINSN® INTERNALAUDIT& — — — — -
RISK COMMITTEE |

| RISKS COMMITTEE |

‘ RISK FACTORS RISK APPETITE ‘

Reporting

| ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT (ERM) ‘

Identification and assessment (impact/probability) of
‘ risks (ex-ante assessment) ‘

CONTROLS Risk policies(ex-ante evaluation)

- — — — — — - RESIDUALRISK - — — — — — -

On 20 February 2020, the Board of Directors approved the Risk  in safety and service across all its activities. To help ensure this
Control and Management Policy, the objective of which is to commitment is upheld, the Board of Directors of Redexis and
establish the basic principles and a general risk management the Audit & Risk Committee work with the Internal Audit and
framework to enhance compliance with the organisation's Risks Department, which coordinates the activities included in
objectives, as part of its commitment to rigour and excellence  risk management.
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On 13 October 2021, the management team approved
the Risks Management Manual, which sets out in detail

the framework, responsibilities and operation of the risk
management process.

RISK ASSESSMENT PROCESSES:

2.RISK
assessment

1. IDENTIFICATION
of risks

This process has a preventive focus that is centred on identifying
and mitigating risks associated with the activity itself, as well
as looking for opportunities, involving all departments and
stakeholders involved across the business's life cycle. This
process is overseen by the Audit & Risk Committee.

The main functions of the Audit & Risk Committee are to:

« Review and evaluate policies and practices with respect to
risk management and internal control.

« Monitor the effectiveness of internal control and risk
management systems.

« Review the company's capacity to identify and manage new
types of risk.

« Monitor the effectiveness of the company's risk management
system and internal controls.

« Ensure that the Board receives regular reports.

« Monitor compliance with applicable external legal and
regulatory requirements, the Code of Ethics, and other
company risk management and internal control policies.

130

3. RESPONSE

strategies

5. COORDINATION
and reporting

4. MONITORING
activities

Redexis classifies risks into five main categories:

« STRATEGIC: related to external factors that may have a
significant impact on the company's strategic planning.
These include political, legal, economic, socio-cultural,
technological and environmental factors (including those
related to climate change).

« OPERATIONAL: associated with the security of people,
processes and infrastructures, with the quality of service and
efficiency of work, as well as with the security of information
technologies (ICT).

« FINANCIAL: concerning corporate financial management
(liquidity management, solvency, interest rates, etc).

« SUSTAINABILITY/COMPLIANCE: relating to environment,
people management, ethics, integrity and regulatory
compliance.

« REPUTATIONAL: linked to the brand image and its
communication with stakeholders. These may arise from
problems outside the company's area of activity or other
situations affecting the way the company is perceived.



Below is the risk/opportunity matrix, which sets out the
main uncertainty scenarios facing Redexis, as well as their

Risks and opportunities

potential to generate new opportunities.

RISK/OPPORTUNITY
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RISKS

@Compliance and sustainability @Strategic ®Reputational

For all these risks, Redexis has specific action plans in place to
mitigate and control them, as well as targeted actions to move
forward on opportunities.

Actions taken on an ongoing basis to mitigate risks:

« Design of alternative plans to achieve the objectives that
have been set.

« Analysis of the impact of the brand on the networks and in
the Press.

« Diagnosis of areas of vulnerability and focused action plans.
« Review and update asset contingency plans and conduct drills.

« Targets for continuous improvement in terms of
environmental indicators.

« Continuous training on safety and compliance issues.

« Constant and fluid communication with the relevant
institutions and bodies.

Specific actions implemented in the financial year 2021:
« Tax risk management - Tax compliance policy.
« Project regarding suppliers that are critical to the company.

« Redesign and implementation of the company's new signage
system to improve field operations.

« Expansion of cyber-intelligence efforts.
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Materiality analysis and matrix

In the first quarter of 2019, Redexis conducted a materiality
analysis to identify and define which stakeholders and issues
are most important to the company.

LS S RN

The analysis focused on economic, environmental and social
issues for Redexis.

THE METHODOLOGY USED TO CARRY OUT THE MATERIALITY ANALYSIS IS BASED ON THE

FOLLOWING PROCESS:
Phase 1 Phase 3 Phase 4
EXTERNAL ANALYSIS ASSESSMENT OF MATERIALITY MATRIX
) Identify internal MATERIAL ISSUES )
Identlfy best communication channels Meetings with the Create th? Bedexw o
practices and with stakeholders and departments and divisions sustainability materiality

matrix and list of

to assess material issues i
relevant issues

material issues in
the industry

their potential in terms of
available information

In turn, this process has identified and assessed the relevance social and environmental value creation and ensure that
of various material issues that enable us to advance economic, stakeholders' current and future needs are met.
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The materiality analysis conducted by Redexis resulted in the materiality matrix; thisis a
visual representation of the main issues for Redexis and its stakeholders:

Materiality matrix

»
)

: [ PX]
. @25 822 78 @2
. ®: 820
. 22181781
: 3.0
. 84
: |2 @s
. @28 |16
q.; 118824831829
)
c
S s@86
K
& 2.0 .27 830 8::
©
g |10 |19
g
x
w
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. @13 |9
- 1.0
. 826
- 0.0
0.01 0 2.03 0 4.0
Internal Relevance
Corporate Users and . Environment Local
governance customers communities
. People and . Secure . Suppliers and
talent infrastructures partners

@ 1.Regulatory compliance

@ 2. Ethics, integrity and transparency
@ 3. Risk management

@ 4. Fiscal responsibility

@ 5. Good corporate governance

@ 6. Integrating corporate responsibility into the
business

B 7. Health & safety at work
B 8. Professional development
@ 9. Staff loyalty
@ 10. Fair remuneration
@ 11. Healthy working environment
@ 12. Diversity and equality (prevention of harassment)
@ 13. Labour flexibility
14. Quality of service

15. Complaint resolution systems
and customer satisfaction

@ 16. Crisis and emergency management
@ 17.Industrial safety

@ 18. Cybersecurity

@ 19. Security of supply

B 20. Adapting to climate change (External)

@ 21. Innovation applied to the use of
sustainable technologies

@ 22. Setting environmental emission
targets

@ 23. Adapting to climate change
(decarbonisation)

@ 24.Setting environmental
biodiversity targets

@ 25. Circular economy

B 26. Setting environmental targets regarding soil
contamination

@ 27.Setting environmental targets
regarding water

B 28. Supply chain security

@ 29. Extending corporate culture to the supply chain
(complying with codes and policy advocacy)

@ 30. Audit and monitoring systems withsustainable
criteria

@ 31.Sustainability criteria in relations with
employees and suppliers

32. Generating direct and indirect employment

33. Creating shared value (social investment)

331



o -

Redexis

134

Our
business
model

® Main strategic areas and priorities
® Market situation

® |ndustry trends

® Value chain

® Key factors: regulation




Our
business

model

efficiency and respect for the environment. Through its

infrastructure, it facilitates access to safe, convenient,
efficient and low-emission energy sources for consumers,
industries and businesses.

Redexis is committed to economic development, energy

« Natural gas transportation

 Natural gas distribution

« Distribution and sale of piped LPG

« Assets for energy efficiency improvement

« Refuelling infrastructure for low-emission transportation

« Injection of renewable gases, including biomethane and
hydrogen

"A business model that responds to the
challenges of the future"

The company operates in regions where gas penetration is lower
than the national average and lower than in other European
countries. This represents an opportunity for gas expansion in
the residential, business, industrial and transportation markets.
Redexis maintains a solid and ongoing expansion plan for its
energy infrastructures that aims to provide the communities in
which it operates with clean and efficient energy that supports
their development and well-being. Redexis designs its strategy
in accordance with the challenges of the future, aligning itself
with energy policy guidelines and seeking sustainable growth
and operation that guarantees profitability over time.

« Through the European Green Deal, the European Union has
adopted the ambitious goal of achieving carbon neutrality
by 2050.

« EU and Spanish regulations envisage that natural gas and
renewable gases will play a prominent and complementary
role to electricity in reducing emissions during the energy
transition and a carbon neutral economy in the long term.

« The National Integrated Energy and Climate Plan anticipates
that up until 2030 natural gas will maintain or increase
its proportion within the energy mix, thanks to its proven
contribution to reducing emissions, as well as its flexibility
and competitiveness. Accordingly, the recently published
2021-26 regulatory framework for gas distribution and

Our business model

transmission supports the extension of the use of available
infrastructure and the sustainable development of new
residential and industrial markets. Furthermore, it includes
additional incentives to connect new gas demand in the
industrial and transportation markets, and expanding the
role of gas infrastructure in reducing emissions by displacing
other more polluting conventional fuels.

« According to the European Commission study 'Impact of
the use of the biomethane and hydrogen potential on
trans-European infrastructure] Spain has an extraordinary
potential for producing renewable, emission-neutral gas that
replace natural gas.

« In the medium to long term, therefore, gas networks have a
central role to play in achieving the goal of carbon neutrality,
as they can be economically adapted to the distribution of
zero-emission renewable gases.

« Due to their reach, existing gas infrastructures can facilitate
the deployment of renewable gases, given that renewable
gas production enjoys economies of scale and gas networks
allow renewable gas producers to access these economies
by connecting and aggregating gas demand at an economic
transportation cost.

« Redexis' geographic footprint provides access to a potential
for renewable gas production that is equivalent to the
volume of natural gas that is currently distributed.

« With the recent publication of the Climate Change and
Energy Transition Act and the hydrogen and biogas
roadmaps, the first steps have been taken to harness the
potential of renewable gas and distribution networks to
achieve long-term carbon neutrality and to bring visibility
and sustainability to investment activity in gas infrastructure.
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Main strategic areas and priorities

Redexis continues to make progress under each of its main
strategic areas, sustainably aligning with regulatory priorities
and the real needs of society:

- Balanced and sustainable growth: focused on organic
growth in users and demand from regulated businesses that
provide long-term security, stability and visibility.

« Operational excellence based on the adoption of the
most advanced technology, constructive agreements
with partners, and the control of costs and emissions, to
support the improvement of operational efficiency and
carbon footprint, growth and the quality of the projects
carried out and services provided.

« Developing innovation, with the aim of improving
the efficiency and sustainability of our activities and
developing new business opportunities linked to the
energy transition, such as gas refuelling infrastructure,
the injection of renewable gases and assets for improving
energy efficiency.

« Managing risk, evolving and improving safety, health and
environmental standards, assessing risk events based on
the probability of their occurrence and their potential
impact on the company's strategy.

« Commitment to creating value for society and to
conserve the environment.

Developing these strategic priorities rests on the following
key areas:

« The people, who have extensive training and experience
and are the driving force behind Redexis.

« The economic, social and environmental sustainability.

« Financial stability, which is based primarily on
maintaining investment-grade creditworthiness and on
the basis of which growth investments are developed in
accordance with a long-term vision.

Redexis is committed to a sustainable and efficient business
model, developing strategies and objectives in line with the
new challenges currently facing the energy industry, such as
the fight against climate change and achieving the objectives
of Agenda 2030.

Redexis also seeks to be an active agent in the energy transition,
promoting sustainable development as a fundamental core
area.

The company's commitment to sustainable development s reflected
in its Sustainability Policy published in January 2021. This policy
expresses Redexis' commitment to social, environmental, ethical and
sustainable development, maximising positive impacts, through an
integral and transparent conduct with all its stakeholders.

Redexis is working to encourage economic activity, business
productivity, employment, the environment, energy efficiency
management and improving the quality of life of consumers,
businesses and industries. Our Sustainability Policy includes
Redexis' main commitments and these are reflected across all
areas of the company's activity. This global commitment is based
on the following responsibilities: economic, environmental,
social, health & safety, efficient energy management, quality and
service excellence:

« Compliance with all applicable legal requirements, as well
as with all internal guidelines, codes and policies to which
Redexis subscribes.

« Responsible management of economic and financial resources.

« Promote the use of financial instruments that incorporate
aspects that link to sustainability criteria, where feasible and
economically reasonable.

« Encourage innovation, sustainable business and the circular
economy.

« Guarantee a safe, efficient and affordable energy supply,
offering the highest possible level of quality based on the best
available techniques.

« Efficient management of risks and opportunities in all activities
in order to prevent harm to people, property and the
environment.

« Act with integrity and transparency in all dealings with all
stakeholders, by publishing regular reports and encouraging
active, two-way communication with them.

« Encouraging the professional development of Redexis
employees.

« Promoting work-life balance and equal opportunities for all
employees.



« Disseminating Redexis' sustainability culture among all
stakeholders.

« Developing sustainable development initiatives in the
communities in which we operate.

« Complying with the commitments set out in the company's
Integrated Health & Safety, Environment and Energy
Management Policy, and its development and application
through international reference standards and Integrated
Management System.

At the beginning of 2021, a series of policies were published that
aimed to increase transparency with all Redexis' stakeholders, in
addition to its sustainability policy:

« Tax Policy: establishes the basic principles of initiatives in
regard to tax matters for the Redexis Group

« Human Rights Policy: seeks to ensure that the protection of
human rights is respected across all the company's activities
and operations

« Equality and Diversity Policy: aims to promote and support
an environment that values and affirms talent, equal
opportunities and diversity within the Redexis Group

Our business model

As part of its environmental and social responsibility, Redexis has
promoted sustainability, making Sustainable Development Goals
(SDGs) a fundamental part of the company's corporate governance,
strategy and operational model. Asa key playerin the energy industry
in regard to the energy transition and sustainable development,
Redexis works to promote new solutions and alternatives by carrying
out projects for sustainable transportation and the use of renewable
energy sources - such as solar photovoltaic energy, green hydrogen,
biogas and biomethane.

THE COMPANY CONTINUES TO MAKE PROGRESS UNDER EACH OF ITS CORE STRATEGIC AREAS, CONNECTING

SUSTAINABLY TO REGULATORY PRIORITIES AND THE REAL NEEDS OF SOCIETY:

« BALANCED AND SUSTAINABLE

and carbon footprint, growth

« RISK MANAGEMENT: the

GROWTH: focused on organic
growth in terms of users

and demand from regulated
businesses that provide long-
term security, stability and
visibility.

« OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE:

based on the adoption of the
most advanced technology,
constructive agreements with
partners and managing costs
and emissions, to support
improved operational efficiency

and the quality of the projects
carried out and services
provided.

+ DEVELOPING INNOVATIONS:
aimed at improving the
efficiency and sustainability of
our activities and developing
new business opportunities
linked to the energy transition
- such as gas refuelling
infrastructure, renewable gas
injection and energy efficiency
improvement assets.

company's risk management
system, evolving and improving
safety, health and environment
standards, assessing risk events
according to their probability of
occurrence and their potential
impact on the company's
strategy.

« COMMITMENT TO CREATE
VALUE for society and
PROTECT THE ENVIRONMENT.
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Market situation

The European Commission has signed up to the Green Deal, environment while decarbonising sectors that are difficult to
which is the roadmap for achieving the goal of making the electrify. It is the cleanest, most efficient and reliable energy
European Union a more sustainable economy. Under this form of all fossil fuels, and its supporting infrastructure can be
paradigm, natural gas plays a key role in preserving the used to develop and transport renewable gases.

NATURAL GAS ACCOUNTS FOR ABOUT 25% OF NATIONAL ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND IS AN ESSENTIAL
ENERGY SOURCE FOR SPAIN'S ECONOMY:

eAbout eight million households use eIn the industrial market segment, e|n the transport and travel segment,
natural gas for hot water, heating and natural gas is hard to beat in natural gas vehicles are emerging
cooking. industries that have high thermal as a mature, convenient and cost-
. requirements (chemical, iron and effective alternative for reducing
eIn the tertiary segment, natural gas . L.
. steel, ceramics, paper, glass, food). transport-related emissions: 30-50%
has a penetration rate of 28%. . . .
. More than 35% of the industrial lower cost per km compared to diesel
Gas expansion has boosted the . . o
. . market segment's energy demand is trucks; up to 40% lower CO, emissions
competitiveness of strategic sectors . . 2
met by natural gas. when using biomethane as fuel; and

such as the hotel industry.
y refuelling times similar to liquid fuels.

ADVANTAGES OF NATURAL GAS

« Itis a form of clean energy that * It promotes industrial and business « It emits no particulates and contains
improves local and global air competitiveness. very little NOx and SOx.
quality.

« It provides continuous uninterrupted ¢ Itis economical, reliable, convenient
¢ It helps renewable energy's supply. and a sustainable form of energy.
penetration of the electricity industry.

"\ ANNUAL DEMAND FOR NATURAL GAS
M 400
300
200
100
0

2020 2021
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Spain's gas system operated normally throughout 2021 and due to economic activity picking up again after overcoming the
experienced a boost compared to the previous year, largely  worst of the Covid-19 pandemic.

DEMAND FOR NATURAL GAS IN 2021:

15.9%

t

‘ 3.8%

Demand - mainly for household, commercial and industrial
consumption and accounting for around 76% of the total
- grew by 6% compared to 2020, to 288 TWh. This increase
has been driven by the recovery in economic activity and
colder temperatures at the beginning of the year with
Storm Filomena.

56.3%

\

ELECTRIC @ INDUSTRIAL @) LNGTANKERs @ D/C+SMES

TOTAL NATURAL GAS DEMAND BY COUNTRY (change 2021 vs 2020

Total natural gas demand fell in Italy (-0.3%) and Portugal (-5%), while in Spain, France and the UK it increased by 5.1%, 7% and 4.8%,
respectively.

TWh
500 ‘ . f +4.8%
700
600
500 T+7%
200 T +5.1%
300
200
100 a S * % =
0 A X K
Spain Portugal France United Kingdom Italy
Conventional 6.2% -2.21% 8.80% 1.85% 0.2%
D/C 6.9% 4.2% 13.2% 5.2% 0.7%
Industrial 5.9% -11.7% 0.3% -33.7% -1.0%
Electric 1.6% -9.7% -10.0% 14.0% -1.2%
Total 5.1% -5.0% 7.0% 4.8% -0.2%
B Conventional B Electric

*Information from the 2021 GTS Report
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Industry trends

Today's international landscape has energy firmly in the
spotlight. In the short term, there is a transitory distortion
of natural gas prices due to the conflict in Ukraine, and both
the European Commission and the Spanish government
are taking the necessary measures to mitigate its potential
impact on consumers.

One of these measures is the promotion of renewable
gases, which, in addition to cushioning the transitory price
variation and building an economy that has greater energy
independence, accelerates the challenge of the energy
transition. This is an area of opportunity for Redexis.

Natural gas remains a key form of energy, and this is shown
in the National Integrated Energy and Climate Plan (PNIEC)
which views gas as a necessary energy for the transition.

Gas is without doubt an energy of the future, and the
European Commission has recently included it in its list of
sustainable activities (Green Taxonomy).

In this regard, the Commission recognises as sustainable
investments made in natural gas networks as they evolve
towards renewable gases - proof of the decisive role of
natural gas networks in the European Union's decarbonised
future.

In this context, Redexis is a driving force in rolling out
energy infrastructures in Spain - as demonstrated in
recent years with its growth levels. Between 2014
and 2020, 72% of all growth in the gas distribution
and transportation industry was from Redexis.

The company also expects significant growth

over the next five years as it works in a stable
regulatory environment that encourages

growth in both the residential and industrial

sectors.

Given that Russia is one of the European
Union's main suppliers, one of the key
issues triggered by the start of the conflict
in Ukraine is energy policy. In particular,

o

there are countries where security of supply is going to be
hard to achieve. In Spain the situation is very different, as
its infrastructure and storage means that it is in a better
position to face hypothetical supply cuts. Spain has over a
third of the European Union's regasification capacity. As for
gas imports from Russia, these reduced in 2021 from 10%
to 8% thanks to LNG. Furthermore, gas offers a significant
advantage overotherformsofenergy like electricity because
it can be stored; and Spain has a large storage capacity that
ensures coverage if an extraordinary situation should occur.
The industry has up to date, fully operational protocols.

The incorporation of biomethane and renewable gases into
the natural gas consumed is an excellent mechanism for
reducing external dependence, as well as contributing to
waste recovery and decarbonisation.




Our business model

Value chain

The company transports natural gas from the delivery points of  competitiveness, ensures continuity of supply, enables the
Spain's trunk or primary network to the points of consumption, introduction of technologies that improve energy use, and
homes or industries. For households and businesses, creates direct and indirect jobs.

access to gas through Redexis' infrastructure contributes to

THE GAS VALUE CHAIN b

PRODUCER OR IMPORTER

Carries out exploration, research and exploitation of hydrocarbon deposits. The
production of renewable gases.

LIBERALISED
ACTIVITY

REGASIFICATION PLANT

Owner of the regasification plants that transform liquefied natural gas
transported in ships and pump it into the system.

UNDERGROUND STORAGE

Owner of natural gas storage facilities in gas form.

TRANSPORTER @ 0
> =

Owner of the natural gas transmission infrastructure

in Spanish territory through primary networks with a . ‘
pressure of over 60 bar and secondary networks with a Re d eX I S

pressure level of between 60 and 16 bar.
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DISTRIBUTOR

Owner of the natural gas distribution infrastructure
linking the transmission system with the points

of consumption, with installations operating at a
maximum pressure equal to or lower than 16 bar. L B
- GAS SUPPLIER
w 1
= E I Purchases natural gas from producers for subsequent sale to
< E I consumers. Uses the national gas system to deliver gas to consumption
WY points.
=

"A business model that puts sustainability at the centre”
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Key factors: regulation

REMUNERATION FRAMEWORK FOR REGULATED ACTIVITIES

DISTRIBUTION

eThe remuneration system for natural gas distribution is based on a parametric formula linked to growth
in supply points and the volume of energy distributed, such that it rewards efficiency in on-boarding
consumers.

en addition, new towns and districts not connected to the gas supply are incentivised through additional
payments that seek to extend natural gas networks across the country.

TRANSPORT

oThe remuneration system for transportation is based on a payment model per constructed asset
and consists of a remuneration term for investment, another for operation and maintenance, and a
further new term that varies according to overall demand.

o Based on the fact that these are highly capital intensive activities, the new changes have allowed for
a better alignment of costs with revenues in the industry.

LIQUEFIED PETROLEUM GAS (LPG)

oThe piped LPG business for distribution companies is constrained by regulation, as the purchase price of
the raw material from the wholesaler as well as the sales price to the final consumer are regulated.



Our business model

The natural gas industry is highly regulated. The natural
gas industry's regulatory framework in Spain is based
on the Hydrocarbons Act 34/1998, enacted under Royal
Decrees 949/2001 and 1434/2002 (among others). The
former regulates third-party access to gas installations and
establishes anintegrated economic system for the natural gas
industry; the latter regulates the activities of transportation,
distribution, sale, supply and authorisation procedures for
natural gas installations.

Over the years and as the industry has liberalised, the
Hydrocarbons Industry Act has been amended on several
occasions - notably under Royal Decree 8/2014, of 4 July,
approving urgent measures for growth, competitiveness
and efficiency. This was subsequently passed into law by the
Spanish Parliament, when it was published as Act 18/2014,
of 15 October, approving urgent measures for growth,
competitivenessand efficiency. Itincludes the introduction of
measures that update the regulatory-economic framework,
including the following:

« A reform of the general scheme of revenues and costs
of the gas system, based on the principle of long-term
economic sustainability and balance, and taking into
account fluctuations in demand and the degree to
which existing infrastructures are developed, without
undermining the principle of adequate remuneration for
investments in regulated assets, or security of supply.
To this end, the principle of economic and financial
sustainability of the gas system is established in the sense
that any regulatory measure that entails an increase in
cost or reduction in revenue must incorporate a reduction
in costs or increase in revenue.

« Certain mechanisms are established to restrict temporary
annual imbalances from appearing in the settlement
system, by means of automatic revision of tolls when
certain thresholds are exceeded. If these thresholds are
not exceeded, the imbalances are financed through the
settlement system in proportion to their remuneration,
generating collection rights over the following five years
and with a market interest rate to be set by Ministerial
Order.

<X

« In terms of remuneration
of regulated activities, the
reform includes the basic
principle that any necessary
costs in carrying out the
activity by an efficient and well-managed company
should be considered under the principle of carrying out
the activity at the lowest cost to the system.

« Regulatory periods of six years are defined during which
the financial rate cannot be revised and no automatic
updating formulas will be applied to remuneration for any
of the activities during this period, with the potential for
adjusting certain remuneration parameters every three
years in the event of significant variations in the revenue
and cost items.

« A thorough and consistent review of remuneration for
all activities is carried out, affecting all assets, including
those already in service.

Royal Decree-Act 1/2019 reformed the gas system
competition framework, bringing the powers of Spain's
National Markets and Competition Commission (CNMC) into
line with the requirements of EU law in relation to Directives
2009/72/EC and 2009/73/EC of the European Parliament and
of the Council of 13 July 2009 concerning common rules
for the internal market in electricity and natural gas. The
new reforms include giving the CNMC powers to establish
methodologies for determining tolls and the remuneration
of regulated activities, including setting their values. Thus,
from the effective date of the above-mentioned Royal
Decree-Act, the CNMC has the authority to determine these
matters. However, the establishment of new methodologies
for determining the remuneration for regulated activities
did not apply until 1 January 2021 when the initial six-year
regulatory period established under Act 18/2014 came to an
end.
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Natural gas: transportation and distribution

Redexis builds, operates and maintains its own transportation
network to provide millions of people with access to natural
gas. This network is made up of high-pressure gas pipelines,
which transport natural gas from the backbone network to
industrial centres, power stations or distribution networks, in
accordance with current legislation and regulations.

The pipelines for the transportation phases connect to the
distribution networks, which have a smaller diameter and
withstand different pressures. In some cases, the distribution
networks are connected to an LNG plant.

Redexis also works in distribution - the last stage of the
process that culminates in the gas reaching the point of
consumption. The company builds, operates and maintains
the necessary facilities to supply natural gas and allows third
party access. This activity is also regulated.

In 2021, over €89m were invested in rolling out 174km of grids
and distribution assets, to reach a total of 8,848km of grids
in 268 towns and districts in 14 autonomous communities.
The distribution of natural gas also started in four towns and
districts: Esctzar, Puente de Génave, Viator and Huércal de
Almeria.

The company added 11,374 new natural gas supply points,
closing the year with 644,358 supply points in service - a
growth of 1.8% compared to 2020. Redexis supplied 36,546
GWh, 0.8% more than the previous year, as a result of the
organic expansion effort in all segments: residential, tertiary
and industrial.

During financial year 2021, Redexis continued to consolidate
its commercial activity and develop its products and services
aimed at domestic customers, while intensifying its service
offerings in the tertiary and industrial market and providing
new service solutions tailored to each customer.

As an infrastructure operator and as part of its commitment to
achieving a carbon-neutral economy, Redexis implemented
the following initiatives during 2021:

« Implementation of the Vortex System at the Singlienza LNG
plant: This is a pioneering project at one of the company's
LNG plants located in Singlienza (Guadalajara), which
has developed a new thermal treatment system to reheat
natural gas, thereby reducing its environmental impact.

«Expansion of networks and new connections of users,
businesses and industries to natural gas - including the
following: Hospital La Pedrera de Denia in Alicante, the
local authority of Huércal de Almeria, the Tovasa industry
in Casa Ibanez in Albacete, the local authority of Guadix in
Granada, the Oleoenergia industry in Jaen, the Baublock
production plant in El Puerto de Santa Maria in Cadiz, the
local authority of Serén in Almeria, the Paseo Maritimo in
Ibiza, the Marina de Marina in Ibiza, the residential area
of llla Plana and the municipal facilities of Son Servera in
Mallorca.

«Natural gas training and conferences: In 2021, the company
ran training courses on natural gas for firefighters
from Teruel Provincial Council fire stations in Teruel,
Calamocha, Montalban and Alcafiz and also took part in
the Aragonese Fire Academy Conference on "Emergency
Management with Natural Gas". Redexis was also involved
in simulations at the LNG plants in Ronda and Yecla
(Murcia) and jointly organised training together with the
Castile-La Mancha regional government for firefighters on
dangerous goods and liquefied gases at its Yepes plant
(Toledo).



Our business model

Supply points Distribution network Towns and districtsin = Transportation network
Regions with Natural (km) service (km)
Gas

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021
Andalusia 72,957 77,393 1,587 1,672 55 58 294 294
Aragon 242,821 245,252 1,967 1,982 72 72 559 559
Balearic Islands 115,263 116,514 1,342 1,351 17 17 181 181
Castile-Leon 43,993 45,274 728 732 48 48 358 360
Castile-La Mancha 10,565 11,229 219 224 15 15 83 83
Community of Valencia 18,734 19,130 440 454 18 18 103 103
Murcia 102,834 103,300 2,027 2,065 31 31 65 66
Extremadura 9,015 9422 184 188 3 3 0 0
Madrid 1,039 1,144 38 38 2 2 0 0
Catalonia 15,763 15,700 142 142 4 4 0 0
Total 632,984 644,358 8,674 8,848 265 268 1,643 1,645
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Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG)

As part of its piped gas distribution activity, Redexis is also
engaged in the distribution and sale of liquefied petroleum
gas through pipelines (piped LPG). This is a regulated activity
that is subject to the regime established under Section IV of
the Hydrocarbons Industry Act 34/1998.

LPG supply has many similarities with natural gas supply in
terms of infrastructure and operation, as well as end-user
benefits, compared to other energies. From a regulatory
perspective, it is an industry with the same oversight
authorities and regulatory bodies (CNMC, MITECO and the
autonomous communities) as the natural gas industry,
although its remuneration regime is different.

By developing piped LPG distribution facilities and supplying
the fuel to consumers, Redexis offers an alternative and
complementary solution, facilitating access to piped gas
supply to homes and businesses in towns and districts that
have low population density or are far from large urban areas,
where natural gas supply does not reach.

LPGis a by-product of petroleum refining that is extracted and
transported for storage until it is shipped by road to satellite
piped-LPG distribution plants. It is distributed through
medium- and low-pressure networks to consumption points.

146

LPG PROCESS:

LPG
TRANSPORTATION

Supply points

Distribution network

DISTRIBUTION
TO CUSTOMERS SALETO CONSUMERS

Towns and districts in

LPG (km) service
Regions
2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021
Andalusia 13,484 17,534 139 140 64 105
Aragon 18,149 28,415 630 635 200 214
Balearic Islands 11,426 12,717 38 38 37 44
Castile-Leon 8375 8,849 94 94 144 159
Castile-La Mancha 8,232 8,371 81 81 80 86
Community of Valencia 10,843 11,234 104 105 47 58
Murcia 14,637 14,757 255 259 27 27
Extremadura 5141 5133 12 12 54 54
Madrid 5,399 5,857 37 37 44 53
Catalonia 3,616 3,838 9 11 63 72
Navarra 888 494 0 0 33 33
Total 100,190 117,249 1,399 1,412 793 905
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Natural Gas Vehicles (NGV)

NGVs are a more efficient and sustainable alternative to  By2021 Redexis had created the largest network of NGV refuelling
traditional vehicles and Redexis is working to develop and stationsin Spain and will be up to 80 points by 2023. Redexis had
deploy infrastructure to provide the country with a network of  set up 25 gas stations by 2021 to provide access to this energy

refuelling stations for them. source, which enables more sustainable transport and travel.

As part of its commitment to sustainability, Redexis offers Redexis currently has 25 gas stations in service for, among other
natural gas vehicle (NGV) solutions as an alternative to things, public service fleets such as ambulances, taxis and intercity
petroleum-based fuels for light and heavy transport. NGVs buses. In Spain, NGVs are already used, via Redexis, by Palma de
reduce NOx emissions by 40% and CO, emissions by 27%, the Mallorca's municipal fleetin charge of waste collection and cleaning
main agent causing the greenhouse effect. The company's (Emaya); Ibiza's fleet of Valoriza Servicios Medioambientales,
commitment to achieving the goals set out in the Agenda Municipal Transport Company of Palma's bus fleet (EMT), the
2030 has led it to deploy an ambitious plan of NGV refuelling Figueras city bus fleet, and the Puerto de Santa Maria (Cadiz)
stations throughout Spain so that private vehicles can refuel cleaning company fleet. There are other gas stations connected to
and help fight against climate change. the Redexis network in Spain - in Murcia, for example.

Araia LNG (p)

MAIN ADVANTAGES OF NGV: g;)‘:;go S Cepsa
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Biomethane

Renewable gases like biomethane are a key factor in
the energy transition because of their ability to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions.

The Biogas Roadmap approved by the Council of Ministers
in 2022 is in line with the National Integrated Energy
and Climate Plan (PNIEC) 2021-30, which approves the
penetration of renewable gas, including biogas, biomethane,
renewable hydrogen and others. This means new investment
opportunities for Redexis in terms of assets that have a
neutral footprint which, if connected to our grids, would
allow us to decarbonise end uses that are costly to electrify.

Another of Redexis' commitments is to achieve efficient
production models that protect resources and reduce
environmental impacts. The concept of circular economy
is fundamental to the company and its actions are in line
with the approval of the Spanish Circular Economy Strategy
(EEEC).To this end, Redexisis aleaderin biomethaneinjection
in the country, through the reuse of waste from livestock
farming, the agri-food industry and human activity, with the
aim of protecting and conserving biodiversity wherever the
company operates.

The company's main focus is on the infrastructures that
enable the transportation and distribution of these gases. A
good example of this is the Galivi Solar project that Redexis
is developing in Lorca: a pioneering initiative in Spain that
will enable up to 40 gigawatt hours (GWh) of biomethane to
be injected into the distribution network per year. This will
save around 7,820 tonnes of CO, equivalent (tn-eqCO,) in

emissions. This volume of biomethane is expected to supply
the equivalent consumption of around 50,000 households in
the Murcian local authority. The project consists of building,
operating and maintaining a facility for injecting biomethane
produced at the Galivi waste treatment plant.

ADVANTAGES OF BIOMETHANE:

« Helps reduce methane emissions into the atmosphere.

« It allows energy to be used, with a net zero balance in
greenhouse gas emissions.

« It provides a viable solution for certain types of waste that
currently pose an environmental management problem
(slurry or OFMSW).

« The transformation of waste and biomass into organic and
renewable agricultural fertilisers is made possible indi-
rectly and through the digestate produced in anaerobic
digestion processes.

« Can be used to eliminate emissions from non-electrifiable
uses.

« Itis 100% interchangeable with natural gas and existing
infrastructure does not need to be modified to accommo-
date it.

Redexis is a member of the Spanish Biogas Association (AEBIG),
and is actively involved in the GASNAM and SEDIGAS renewable
gas working groups.



Hydrogen

Redexis actively promotes other forms of renewable energy
such as hydrogen. Green hydrogen is a fully sustainable energy
that can be injected into the gas transmission and distribution
networks and decarbonise the demand covered by natural gas.

The European Commission is promoting this energy source,
including hydrogen as an energy vector in the energy mix to

support climate neutrality.

Redexis promotes economically viable renewable hydrogen
projects in two ways:

« Through consortia with strategic partners, mostly funded by
the European Union.

Green Hysland, Spain's first hydro-product

Redexis is building the first hydro-productin Spain in Mallorca,
as part of the European Green Hysland project, which will
enable the residential, tertiary and industrial sectors to use
100% renewable energy, as part of a project aimed at a more
efficient and sustainable society.

This project brings together all the core elements of
the hydrogen value chain: production, transportation
infrastructure, distribution and end use of renewable
hydrogen. The project includes at least 300 tonnes of
hydrogen production capacity by electrolysis connected to
local photovoltaic plants, development of the hydro-product,
as well as different end-use applications: buses and cars, fuel-
cell cogeneration applications and thermal applications in
buildings.

The hydro-product complies with the consumption targets
set under the European Green Hysland project (Deployment
of a H2 Ecosystem on the island of Mallorca) and has been
designed to distribute the renewable hydrogen generated
at the Lloseta photovoltaic plant. This industrial project,
involving Redexis, Enagas, Acciona and Cemey, is part of the
European Green Hysland grant project, to which the EU has
committed €10m, via the FCH JU, to support the deployment
of the infrastructures needed to implement Mallorca's
renewable hydrogen ecosystem.

Our business model

« Through internal projects as part of the company's strategic
innovation plans - most of which are financed by national
organisations.

Ocean H2 - producing green hydrogen on the high seas

Redexis is also involved in the OceanH2 project, the aim of
which is to develop offshore plants for producing, storing,
transporting, distributing and supplying renewable hydrogen
produced from wind and photovoltaic energy obtained at sea.
The project includes the development and testing of scale
prototypes of some of the infrastructures, such as floating
platforms and storage systems, and the testing of electrolysis
equipment in a marine environment.

As part of the proposed research process, Redexis is
responsible for studying the different technologies that
make up the logistical-technological chain of hydrogen
produced at sea, and is designing solutions to facilitate
the evacuation of hydrogen from production and storage
plants. The project covers the entire hydrogen production,
storage, transportation, distribution and supply chain, while
developing a solution to integrate the maritime plant into
an loT platform to facilitate monitoring, maintenance and
management.

As part of this project, Redexis handles the design of hydrogen
transportation systems by pipeline, hydrogen loading, ship
transportation and unloading systems, temporary port
storage, hydrogen supply on land and hydrogen supply to
ships(bunkering). It will also conduct a comparative analysis
of each of these technologies in terms of conceptual design,
scale, technological maturity, integration conditions and
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estimated costs. Redexis will also identify requirements
in terms of energy regulations and industrial and marine
safety, with a view to establishing a production, storage and
logistics chain for green hydrogen produced at sea.

This project is supported by the Ministry of Science and
Innovation and has obtained the financial backing of
the CDTI, which is funding part of this project with over
€6m under the 2019 Science and Innovation Missions
Programme's call for proposals. Acciona, Ariema, TSI, Wunder
Hexicon and BlueNewables and twelve Spanish research
centres are working with Redexis to develop OceanH2.

DESIRE H2 - deploying up to 100 hydrogenerators in
Spain

Redexis and Air Liquide have teamed up to deploy up to
100 hydrogen refuelling stations in Spain by 2030, to be
strategically located in the main logistics centres like Madrid
and Barcelona, as well as in the main transportation corridors
linking the country with Europe, the Mediterranean and
Atlantic corridors.

As part of the energy transition, the objective of this project
is to accelerate the development of hydrogen vehicles in
Spain, providing a sustainable solution for the transport
industry and thus contributing to the reduction of its carbon
footprint.

Redexis submitted the project to the Hydrogen Expressions
of Interest raised by the government department under
the Recovery, Transformation and Resilience Plan. The
government department considered the project as pre-
selected for the Hydrogen IPCEl being developed. DIGCOMP
has decided that hydropower construction projects will be
developed under Climate, Energy and Environmental Aid
Guidelines (CEEAG).

It has also been selected by European Clean Hydrogen
Alliance (ECH2A) to be part of the European platform's
project portfolio. DESIRE H2 is aligned with the objectives of
the Spanish government's Hydrogen Roadmap.

Hydrogenizing BCN - implementing a green hydrogen
economy in Barcelona

The Port of Barcelona has been identified as the ideal
location to develop a long-term strategy based on green
hydrogen as a key vector of the energy transition.

Redexis is in charge of developing the necessary
infrastructures and building and managing the hydrogen
refuelling stations (hydrogenerators) that are to be installed
in various locations around the metropolitan area of
Barcelona, including the property of Butransa - one of
the Port of Barcelona's largest container transportation
logistics operators. This project also involves Hyzon Europe,
a manufacturer of fuel cell trucks, as well as over twenty
national and international companies.

It is also planned to expand hydrogen production capacity
by 100 MW in the future, for which the "Project100" proposal
was created as part of the European Green Pact's call for
proposals. It is being coordinated by Resilient Group, as
developer and operator of electrolysers, supported by
Kopala International, and alkaline electrolyser technology
provider John Cockerill.

Under the institutional leadership of the Port of Barcelona,
this international project involves Redexis and over 20
companies, research institutes and public entities, including
Técnicas Reunidas, Cetaqua, Tl Alvic and BayWa r.e. Spain,
Fraunhofer ISE, IREC, Enercoutim and Aalborg University

Zeppelin - waste-based green hydrogen

Redexis is involved in the Zeppelin project, which is
developing green hydrogen production and storage
technologies which use waste and by-products to improve
cost and efficiency, and is in charge of the storage of green
hydrogen in the form of ammonia.

The objectives of this initiative are to research new green
hydrogen production technologies that are alternatives to
electrolysis and that promote the circular economy through
the recovery of waste and by-products from different
industries. They will also develop new green hydrogen
storage materials and modelling tools for the different
technologies developed.

Higgs-hydrogeninjectioninto existing gasinfrastructures

The Higgs Project is a European cooperation initiative that
explores the potential for injecting hydrogen into existing
natural gas infrastructures as a way of reducing CO,
emissions. It also analyses the existing potential and the
impact on infrastructure, components and management
involved in injecting hydrogen into existing high-pressure
natural gas transmission networks. The project will
undoubtedly contribute to decarbonising the use of gas.



Pioneering Fuel-Cell Integration Project in Zaragoza

The "Fuel Cell Integration Project" establishes the integration
of a fuel cell in a Regulation and Measurement Station of one
of Redexis' gas pipelines in Zaragoza. This is the first of its kind
to be carried out in Spain and the aim is to study the feasibility
of injecting hydrogen into the gas grid with a view to being
able to do so on a large scale in the future.

Redexis has also recently reached an agreement with
the company ABEl Energy to collaborate on developing
renewable hydrogen production, transportation, distribution
and final supply infrastructures.

Photovoltaic solar energy

Redexis aims to offer alternative and less polluting forms of
energy, which is why it is working to promote photovoltaic solar
energy and innovative, competitive self-consumption. Through
this business line, it develops solar photovoltaic installation
solutions for homes, businesses and industries, thus promoting
self-consumption and sustainable energy.

ADVANTAGES OF PHOTOVOLTAIC SOLAR ENERGY:

« Solar energy saves up to 30% on bills.

« Itis quick and easy to install.

« It is a 100% renewable solution.

« Its lifespan is between 25 and 30 years.

« It generates employment in the places where it is installed.

« It reduces greenhouse gas emissions.

Other non-regulated activities

« Rental of the Common Receiving Installation (IRC): the gas
from its connection to the Individual Receiving Installations
(IRM).

o Other distribution services: connection and reconnection,
change of gas meters, verification of installations, etc.

Our business model

In 2021, Redexis ran several photovoltaic solar energy projects,
such as the installation of 564 photovoltaic panels on the roof
of the Panorama Factory over an area of 1,200 square metres.
Each of the panels has an output of 440Wp, giving a total of 248
kWp. Likewise, 27 photovoltaic panels have been installed in
Palma's Redexis office, covering an area of around 125™2, Each of
the panels has an output of 465Wp, giving a total of 12.55 kWp.
A 10KW photovoltaic inverter has also been installed. A solar
photovoltaic installation has been set up at CEIP Margalida Florit
in Ciutadella, Menorca, consisting of 86 photovoltaic panels on
the roof of this school, occupying an area of about 250 m2. Each
of the panels has an output of 45.6 kWp. In addition, a handrail
and a guardrail have been installed on the staircase leading to
the facility.

One of the most important milestones in this area was the
signing of the agreement with Cepsa, which provides for the
installation of photovoltaic panels throughout the Cepsa
service station network in Spain and Portugal by 2023.

«Value-added services: preventive maintenance, meterreadings,
breakdown notification services and corrective maintenance
work on customers' gas and thermal installations.
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Economic-
financial

aspects

Economic summary 2021

Redexis grew all its business segments in 2021, mainly in
the regulated activities of distribution and transportation of
natural gas and liquefied petroleum gas, which accounted

Economic-financial aspects

for approximately 90% of revenues. Revenues increased to
€261.9m, 8.4% higher than the previous year. Operating profit
(EBITDA) rose 5.8% to €179.4m.

Financial data 2020 2021

Data in €million, except where indicated

Revenue 241.7 261.9

Distribution - regulated 106.8 1126

Other distribution revenues - regulated 254 263

Transportation - regulated 596 59.8

Regulated LPG business 22.6 32.7

Other operating income 1.4 14.9

Work done by the company on non-current assets 16.1 15.5

Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 169.5 179.4

Margin 70.1% 68.5%

Margin (excluding dilutive effect of LPG Margin) 75.1% 74.6%

Capex 120.6 96.8

Financial year profits (6.8) 38.1
This growth was made possible by the The company maintained a high level of REVENUES (em) EBITDAEm)
gradual recovery in activity after a year investment focused on its regulated gas
impacted by the pandemic. The growth activities. There was a decline in 2021 to 3.4 58
levels of users connected to our networks  €96.8m - mainly due to the delay in the / /
recovered, distribution volumes lifting of Covid-19 restrictions. This meant
increased by 5.4%, and the liquefied thatcommercial activity in the residential 241.7
petroleum gas business grew revenues market was focused on installations that 7
by 45%, both in terms of volumes of gas  had already been completed, and activity
vehicles and the integration of point in more profitable segments such as
purchases carried out in recent years. industrial and tertiary were reinforced.

2021 2022 2021 2022
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Debt structure and liquidity

The company's financial policy is based on active management
of the company's debt and cash with the objective of
maintaining a solid liquidity position with a long-term debt
profile that allows it to support the company's strategy, while
maintaining an investment-grade rating at all times.

Maturity profile (€m)

500 500
239
150
41

5 AR B 4

12 17 17 17 17 17

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 (%) 2040

EIB Loan W RCF Hl Bonds (on loan) l Term loan

—

Sustainability cuts through every area of Redexis' strategy
and is applied to all its areas of action. At the end of 2021,
Redexis held €450m in sustainable debt, with an interest rate
linked to improvement of environmental, social and corporate
governance parameters measured by Moody's ESG Solutions
(formerly Vigeo Eiris).

—

Redexis is assessed annually by Standard & Poor's credit rating
agency. In November 2021, S&P confirmed the company's BBB-
investment-grade credit rating with a stable outlook. This rating,
in a challenging economic, political and social environment

Rating S&P Available
BBB- liquidity
stable outloock
(Affirrmed on Oct 2021) €340.1Tm

154

Instrument Amount Drawn Available
Figures in €m
A 1,0000 1,0000 -
(on-loan agreement)
RCF
(ESG-linked) 300.0 - 300.0
EIB loans 266.2 266.2 -
Term loan
(ESGrlinked) 1200 1500 )
Cash & Eq 40.1 - 40.1
Total 1,756.3 1,416.2 340.1

Vigeo 5 7_

Eiris 100

2019 2020 2021

marked by the events related to the Covid-19 pandemic,
supports the company's strategy and financial health for the
coming years and confirms the financial stability and resilience
of Redexis' business.

Average
debt maturity

4.7y

Average
financial cost

1.56%
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How
we

performed

to the threat of climate change, setting clear, achievable

and defined targets such as keeping the global temperature
increase this century to below 2°C above pre-industrial levels,
and aiming for no more than a 1.5°Cincrease.

The signing of the Paris Agreement seeks a global response

Agenda 2030 for Sustainable Development was also signed by
the members of the United Nations, with the aim of addressing
the social, economic and environmental challenges facing us,
putting people, the planet, prosperity and peace at the centre,
under the motto of "leaving no one behind". Agenda 2030
includes 17 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) that are
universal and apply to developed and developing countries alike.

As an end-to-end energy infrastructure company, Redexis
plays a fundamental role in the communities in which

International recognition

As proof of its ESG performance, various international
sustainability indices have recognised Redexis for its actions
and initiatives in this area.

For the third consecutive year, GRESB awarded the company
a five-star rating, the highest rating awarded, and a score of
91 points out of 100, with scores above the average of the
companies studied and of the companies in the industry, thus
demonstrating its constancy and determination in the area
of sustainability. The company increased its score by 9 points
compared to the previous year, placing itin the benchmark's Top
20. GRESB is an international sustainability index that evaluates
and rates the work of over 500 funds and assets from different
industries to promote sustainable development under a global
environmental, social and corporate governance standard.

This ranking provides standardised data validated by the
capital markets and is a global benchmark for measuring the
sustainability performance of companies.

In 2021, Redexis was also once again awarded a "robust" rating
under Vigeo Eiris's sustainability and CSR rating - a leading
international CSR assessment firm, with ratings above the
average for its industry in various sustainability indicators.

it operates and the sustainable development of these
communities is a core goal of its strategy. It has been a
member of the Spanish Network of the United Nations
Global Compact since 2014, and is therefore committed to
achieving its sustainable objectives. Thus, it strengthens this
global project through its activities and contributes to the
Agenda 2030 SDGs.

On the occasion of the sixth anniversary of the approval of
Agenda 2030 with its 17 Sustainable Development Goals
(SDGs), Redexis took part in the campaign #apoyamoslosODS
to work on publicising these United Nations Goals, in
collaboration with the Spanish Global Compact Network. The
objective is to contribute, based on our own commitment to
action with the SDGs, to publicising and raising awareness of
strategic issues.

These bodies certify Redexis' commitment to working in
socially and environmentally responsible ways.

One of the core strategies of the EU is the fight against climate
change, and has stated aims closely aligned with those of
the Paris Agreement, along with ambitious policies that aim
to make Europe the first climate-neutral continent by 2050.
It has developed the European Green Deal - a package of
ambitious measures aimed at reducing emissions, focusing
on innovation projects and protecting the environment and
biodiversity. The Green Deal is the European Union's roadmap
to a sustainable economy for the continent: zero emissions,
sustainable use of resources and no one left behind.

This time of change that the industry is going through, along
with the EU's Agenda 2030 decarbonisation goal, is leading
to the proliferation of renewable energies and the promotion
of more sustainable alternatives. Accordingly, Redexis is
working hard on developing new forms of cleaner and more
economical energy, with the aim of reducing emissions and
achieving a more sustainable planet, contributing to the
reduction of emissions, the creation of employment and
reduced emissions of both gases and particles.



How we performed

Environment

Environmental

AFFORDABLE AND
CLEAN ENERGY

A/
Cd

&

7\

« Redexis continues to develop the largest network of natural gas vehicle refuelling
stations through strategic agreements.

« Partnership with Cepsa to deploy Europe's first global network of renewable
energy generating service stations. The agreement provides for the installation of
photovoltaic panels throughout Cepsa's network of service stations in Spain and
Portugal by 2023.

1 SUSTAINABLE CITIES
AND COMMUNITIES

ale

« Commitment to transparency, communication and stakeholder engagement by
publishing annual reports, sustainability reports and NFIS.

1 CLIMATE
ACTION

L 2

« Recording the calculation of the Carbon Footprint under scope 1 and 2, with a
commitment to reduce emissions.

« Taking part in initiatives such as Green Hysland, Higgs, Ocean H2, Hydrogenizing
BCN and the pioneering biomethane injection project in Spain together with
Galivi Solar.
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OneofRedexis'main commitmentsisto carefortheenvironment,
mitigate the effects of climate change and advance the energy
transition. In this regard, the company is firmly committed to
respecting the environment and to achieving a sustainable
economy, which is why it works every day to achieve a society
in which sustainability prevails, in accordance with the Agenda
2030 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

Mitigating the effects of climate change and the importance
of the ecological transition are fundamental to Redexis, which
aims to achieve a sustainable society and economy.

This commitment to the environment is set out formally in
the Integrated Safety, Environment and Energy Policy, which
emphasises environmental excellence and energy management
and efficiency in the development of its activities.

This is why Redexis conducts its business activities in an
environmentally friendly manner and is committed to energy
efficiency.

To meet the challenge of occupational, energy and
environmental safety, Redexis is intensifying the necessary
supportand establishing the necessary procedures to guarantee
and minimise risks, protect workers, use resources rationally

and reduce waste, contributing to the sustainable development
demanded by society and the achievement of the guidelines
and objectives

Environmental Excellence is a core value of Redexis' policy, and
its management is based on the following main areas:

« Environmental monitoring of Redexis' activities - in particular
construction and maintenance of facilities and infrastructures.

« Planning and orderly execution of activities in a rational and
flawless manner, reducing the impact on the environment.

« Improving the management of waste generated, applying
appropriate measures for reducing, recovering and recycling
waste, ensuring the correct disposal of non-recoverable
waste.

« Providing the necessary information and resources to set and
review goals and targets to ensure environmental and energy
management.

« Reducing the consumption of natural resources, through
the use of recycled and/or recyclable products, promoting
energy saving.



« Informing and raising awareness among employees about the
importance of proper energy management and the impact
of their activities on the organisation's energy performance.

« Complying with environmental requirements set out under
environmental licences, declarations and authorisations.

o The company has Environmental Emergency Plans, and
conducts at least one drill a year in each Autonomous
Community.

Redexis-approved procedures for continuous monitoring of
environmental assessment or certification include:

« Procedure DOC-10 "Operational Control, Preventive Planning,
Measurement and Monitoring™: covers monitoring and
measurement activities to mitigate the environmental
impact and significant energy use and consumption
associated with its activities and to maintain the health &
safety of all stakeholders.

o Procedure DOC-13 ‘"ldentification and evaluation of
environmental aspects™: to identify and evaluate the
environmental aspects of its activity, products or services
that it can control and those that it can influence, and
their associated environmental impacts, from a lifecycle
perspective.

« Procedure DOC-08 "IMS Audits": to periodically carry out
audits, understood as the systematic and documented
verification process, which allows evidence to be obtained
and objectively evaluated in order to comply with the
objectives of the IMS.

Throughout financial year 2021, the company's objectives in
relation to the environment and energy saving were as follows:

« Reduce our Carbon Footprint (kgCO, emitted /km driven) by
1.5% compared to 2020.

« Achieve average savings in self-consumption ratio in 5 LNG
plants (Muro; Cala Millor; Ateca; Casas Ibafez and Mancha
Real) by 1% in financial year 2021 compared to financial year
2019.

« Achieve average savings in self-consumption ratio in 9 LPG
plants (San Mateo de Gallego, Pinseque, Epila, Daroca,
Carifiena, Castejon de Sos, Sabinanigo, Sarifiena and
Valderrobres) of 0.5% in the fourth quarter of 2021 compared
to 2019.

« In the electricity consumption recorded at the end of 2021,
increase electricity with guaranteed renewable origin in
offices by 10% compared to the electricity consumption
recorded in 2020.

How we performed

« Maintain the organisation's vehicles to reduce CO, emissions
into the atmosphere compared to 2020.

* 5% reduction compared to 2020 in terms of plastic waste in
offices.

« 10% reduction in the generation of hazardous waste from fuel
spills, diesel fuel, machinery diesel, used oils, etc.

«Reduction of electricity consumption in the Palma office with
the implementation of a photovoltaic solar installation for
self-consumption.

In order to achieve the proposed objectives, Redexis
implemented a series of activities through the GEMASST
department and has built environmental management, energy
management and the concept of sustainable development into
the company's strategy.

Redexis identifies and evaluates the environmental aspects
that may be significant for the activity it carries out, trying to
minimise their impact. In relation to this, it is concerned with
making reasonable use of resources and raw materials, carrying
outactions to try to minimise the generation of waste, emissions
and discharges and preventing and controlling the pollution
generated as a result of its activities, by applying continuous
improvement programmes and establishing environmental and
energy objectives and targets, making the company's facilities
and activities increasingly more respectful of the environment.

Energy saving and the rational and balanced use of different
energy sources are key aspects of Redexis' strategy, which
encourages its employees and society in general to develop
cleaner and more efficient energy technologies, and thus
minimise the carbon footprint generated.

Natural gas-fired power plants and cogeneration plants for
the production of electricity and heat can be connected
directly to natural gas distribution networks to provide
cleaner and more versatile energy to consumers. In the
current and future scenarios for renewable energies, existing
natural gas infrastructures and technology - such as Redexis'
transportation and distribution networks - become a key
strategic element in an orderly energy transition, without
compromising security of supply and meeting CO, emission
reduction targets.

The Environmental Emergency Plan has been kept up to date
at all times at all Redexis facilities, and the Internal Emergency
Plans and Self-Protection Plans have been reviewed and
updated. There is also ongoing analysis and monitoring of
the indicators for health & safety, environmental and energy
management.
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Since 2017, Redexis has recorded its Carbon Footprint every
year under scopes 1 and 2 in Spain's Ministry for Ecological
Transition (MITECO) National Carbon Footprint Register.
Following this, it obtained the "Calculation" seal for its
natural gas transportation and distribution activities. In
addition to this, the company carries out verification audits
for its Carbon Footprint calculation, with the aim of reducing
itin three years. This reduction will be effective in 2022, when
the verification audit of the 2021 footprint is conducted, as it
is from 2019 when the scope is comparable and corresponds
to the 5 companies that make up Redexis.

In addition, dashboards collect unified data on tonnes of
construction and demolition waste management. To prevent
environmental risks, Redexis has internal and external human
resources, a computerised energy management tool and
budgets allocated to the prevention of these environmental
risks.

In June 2021, the audit of the energy efficiency
management system was successfully passed, resulting
in the ISO 50001:2018 Certificate for natural gas, LNG and
LPG transportation, storage and distribution activities. In
addition, strengths were highlighted in the 1ISO 50001:2018
auditreport-such asan exhaustive study of the organisation's
context and stakeholders' needs and expectations; excellent
energy reviews by area; improvement of baselines by
incorporating new energy variables that have improved the
determination coefficient; energy efficiency improvement
targets supported by improvement plans; good monitoring
of indicators; excellent competence and knowledge at staff
and organisational level regarding the efficient operation of
processes; operating criteria applied to efficiently operate
the facilities from an energy point of view; considering the
priorities and risks related to securing the supply of LNG

and LPG; and good monitoring of energy consumption. At
all times, senior management's leadership is sought through
the GEMASST Leadership Committee meetings, with the aim
of reinforcing leadership commitment in matters related
to Health & Safety, Environment and Energy Management
defined under in this Integrated Management System.

Excellencein environmental and health & safety management
is evidenced by Redexis' commitment to maintain every year
continuous improvement in the Energy, Environment and
Health & Safety integrated management system, endorsed
by the reports and certificates of external audits conducted
in line with ISO 50001 standards for Energy Management,
ISO 14001 for Environmental Management and 1SO 45001
for Occupational Health & Safety. The system addresses the
monitoring of energy consumption (electricity, gas, fuels)
and the implementation of measures to reduce consumption.

In regard to certifications, ISO 14001:2015, I1SO 45001:2018
and 1SO 50001:2018 re-certification audits were conducted
in 2021, and re-certification was obtained in all three cases.
The implementation of the requirements arising under
Royal Decree 840/2015 was maintained at the SEVESO
plants and the related audits passed without any major non-
conformities. In this regard, courses on energy efficiency
and waste management in the office were offered to staff,
and a new course on Noma 05 Management of atmospheric
emissions was incorporated in 2021. This demonstrates
the importance placed by the company on training and
awareness-raising on energy and environmental issues, with
regular meetings of the energy management team being
held at corporate level: half-yearly meetings of the territorial
environment and energy committees, quarterly meetings of
the health & safety committees and half-yearly meetings of
the inter-territorial safety committees.



Emissions reductions

In order to reduce current emissions, an Emission Reduction
Plan was drawn up which includes several measures for
implementation in 2021:

« In LNG satellite plants, automated boiler shutdown during hot
periods, incorporating an ambient temperature sensor and
atmospheric gas temperature sensor.

« Comply with the LPG implementation plan for nine Heating
System Optimisation plants.

Circular economy

Through its Integrated Management System and, specifically,
through the "Waste Management" Operating Standard, Redexis
establishes its system for ensuring the correct control and
management of the waste it produces from its work, products,
services and facilities. Thus, it optimises the management of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste, setting targets for the
reduction of environmental indicators, and thereby contributing
to the development of a transition towards a circular economy.

How we performed

« For all supplies purchased
by  Redexis, increase
electricity with guaranteed
renewable origin to 100%.

Implementing these

measures in accordance with

the Emission Reduction Plan enabled the company's emissions in
2021 to be managed and reduced, resulting in a reduction in the
company's Carbon Footprint and allowing it to be recorded with
the Ministry for Ecological Transition (MITECO).

A series of measures were
implemented throughout 2021
to boost the circular economy:

« Preventing pollution by waste:
waste should be sent for
recycling or recovery where it can be managed by these
processes, avoiding disposal where possible.

» Segregating waste: the waste generator is responsible
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« Each contractor company is responsible for the waste
generated within its own sphere of activities.

o Waste storage: each waste-producing centre (office or
warehouse, as applicable) has specific areas for waste storage
and appropriate containers according to regulations, for all
types of waste generated.

« Labelling of waste: all containers are properly labelled in a
clear, legible and identifiable manner (in, at least, the national
language). The label is placed on one or more sides of the
packaging in such a way that it can be read horizontally when
the packaging is placed in the prescribed manner.

for depositing waste separated by type, according to its
EWC code, without mixing, and in suitable differentiated
containers, before depositing it at the collection points
designated for this purpose.

« Waste management: non-hazardous and hazardous waste is

« Hazardous waste is deposited under hygienic and safe )
managed by authorised waste managers and transporters.

conditions in the areas designated for this purpose.

« Monitoring and measurement of waste: weekly measurement
and monitoring of the management of waste in terms of its
correct separation and eventual delivery to the authorised
waste manager.

« Hazardous waste not generated by office activities and
owned by Redexis is transferred to the nearest "Hazardous
Waste Warehouse', taking the necessary measures to prevent
damage to containers and packaging. At these warehouses
it will be classified and catalogued as waste, segregated by
type and temporarily deposited in safe conditions until it is
collected by an authorised waste manager.

Non-Hazardous Waste Indicator Indicator
Management Offices  Total 2021 (kg) Total 2020 (kg) (/employee) (/employee) Variation
(kg) 2021 2020
Cardboard 344 1,968 0.99 5.44 -81.82%
Confidential Paper 1,554 3,524 4.46 9.74 -54.18%
Plastic 158 1,469 045 4.06 -88.82%
'5' Total 2,056 6,961 5.90 69.30 -69.30%

Water is consumed responsibly at all our premises. Proof of this ~ thanks to the environmental awareness campaigns that are
is the savings achieved each year in water consumption, mainly  regularly run.

Consumption Consumption

Non-E R Total 2021 Total 202 . . . ..
cér;n::r:‘g);i;s::;c)es ot(am3;) ot(am3()) 0 (/premises**)  (/premises*¥) Variation
P 2021 2020
0) Water Consumption 537 467 017 0.14 15.20%
Facilities
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Energy consumption is continuously monitored at Redexis, which enabled us to implement energy efficiency measures:

NG, LPG, Diesel, Petrol, Gasoline, Electricity 2021%* vs 2020
kWh 17,404,317 19,918,607 -
I:::"";"e:gy " TX&&@Z?SSLPG 10,818,593 11,482,185 .
Ratio 1.61 1.78 -5.61%
Tx positions kWh Consumed 11,860,860 13,997,632 44.76%
LPG plants kWh Consumed 1,702,691 2,381,103 88.49%
LNG plants kWh Consumed 2,372,676 2,895,882 39.38%
Vehicles kWh Consumed 973,503 526,769 -4.28%
Offices kWh Consumed 494,587 117,221 -68.91%

*Energy consumption is analysed by type of installation, comparing years. Estimates are available for 2021. For the estimates, actual data recorded from
January to September 2021 was taken and the last quarter of 2021 was calculated by replicating the months that are expected to have weather conditions
similar to those of the months already available in 2021.

Among the measures implemented to achieve energy savings, the following are highlighted:

Measures adopted in 2021

In the electricity consumption recorded at the end of 2021, increase electricity with guaranteed

Offices renewable origin in offices by 10% compared to the electricity consumption recorded in 2020.
Reduction of electricity consumption in the Palma office with the implementation of a photovoltaic
solar installation for self-consumption.

Transportation o ) ) . o :

.. Optimisation of operating parameters in position or transportation installations.
positions
LNG blant Automation of boiler shutdown during hot periods incorporating ambient temperature probe and
P atmospheric gas temperature probe.
LPG plant Comply with the LPG implementation plan for nine Heating System Optimisation plants.

Implementing these measures led to the following milestones  « 5.6% decrease in total energy consumed (KWh/ m Tx, Dx and
being achieved by the company: LPG networks).
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Climate change

Climate change is one of the biggest challenges we face as a
society and mitigating its effects is part of Redexis' strategy.

Following the adoption of the Paris Agreement in 2015 by the
United Nations, sustainability is a fundamental axis for mitigating
its effects. This agreement brought together 197 nations for the
first time under acommon cause: to join efforts to combat climate
change and to support developing countries in adapting to the
changes. The aim is to achieve a global agreement in which there
is a coordinated and organised response to tackle it, with the
objective of a global temperature increase of less than 2 degrees
Celsius above pre-industrial levels.

In 2021, the Glasgow Climate Pact, agreed on 13 November at
COP26, reaffirms the global commitment to accelerate climate
action during this decade.

The European Union signed the Green Deal with the aim of
becoming the first climate-neutral continent by 2050, ensuring
the reduction in emissions and the development of technology
and innovation. The physical boundaries of Redexis' greenhouse
gas quantification study fall under the following installation

types:

« Redexis offices
« Facilities
« LNG plants

«Vehicle fleet

« Networks



Redexis believesthatclimatechangeisaglobal environmental
challenge that requires everyone's contribution to
mitigate its effects. CO, emissions, for example, are one of
the most important contributors to global warming. The

How we performed

company is therefore constantly working to reduce its
energy consumption through investments to upgrade its
infrastructure and optimise its activities, thereby improving
its energy efficiency.

SCOPE 1 ég
{1
X

« Emissions associated with fuel consumption at premises

« Emissions associated with transportation fleet fuel consumption

« Emissions associated with refrigerant gas leaks

« Emissions associated with pipeline gas leaks

SCOPE 2

Redexis calculates its greenhouse gas emissions deriving from the
transportation, distribution and storage of natural gas in Spain.

The main objectives of this initiative are as follows:

« Understand and assess the organisation's greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions to identify carbon footprint reduction
opportunities.

 Improve reputation within the wider society, maintaining a
responsible commitment to continuous improvement.

« Record the carbon footprint in the Ministry for Ecological
Transition (MITECO) National Carbon Footprint Register.

« Emissions associated with electricity consumption at premises

To reduce current emissions, an Emission Reduction Plan was
drawn up that includes several measures, for implementation
in2021:

« At satellite LNG plants, automated boiler shutdown during
hot periods and fitting an ambient temperature sensor and
atmospheric gas temperature sensor.

« Comply with the LPG implementation plan for nine Heating
System Optimisation plants.

For all supplies purchased by Redexis, increase electricity made
from guaranteed renewable energy to 100%. Implementing
these measures has led to a reduction in the various indicators:

» 4.3% reduction in the company's Carbon Footprint (tCO,/mTx,
Dx and LPG networks).
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Carbon footprint (tCO,)

2021 Estimate

Scope 1 Scope 2 Total Scope 1 Scope 2 Total

Offices 152 39.37 40.89 1.51 - 1.51
LNG plants 399.38 3257 431.95 435.04 - 435.04
LPG plants 34212 6.92 349.04 422.33 - 42233
Transportation

.. 2,169.73 1105 2,280.23 2,378.16 - 2,378.16
positions
Vehicle fleet 147.7 - 147.7 257.34 - 257.34
Diffuse emissions 34472.70 - 34,472.70 33,231.57 - 33,231.57
Total 37,533.15 189.36 37,722.51 36,725.95 0.00 36,725.95

Ratio 2021 Estimate Change 2021 vs 2020
(T/KMnetworks Tx, Dx and LPG)
Total A1+A2 334 3.20 -4.30%
Scope 1 3.33 3.20 -4.30%
Scope 2 0.02 0.00 0.00%

The calculation methodology* is explained in the 2020
Carbon Footprint calculation report, verified by audit in

accordance with UNE-EN ISO 14064-1 Standard: 2012
Greenhouse gases.

“The methodology used is set out in the Redexis Non-Financial Information Statement (NFIS) for 2021.




Protecting biodiversity

Redexis remains committed to the protection of natural capital
and biodiversity. The company's activities are carried out on the
basis of preventing possible negative impacts and correcting
any that may have already occurred.

Adhering at all times to the precautionary principle, Redexis
carries out environmental studies during the design phase of its
infrastructures and facilities in order to minimise potential negative
impacts throughout their useful life. If these premises are close to
protected areas or areas of high biodiversity value, Redexis carries
out specific studies with the aim of adapting the project to avoid,
reduce or compensate any negative impacts on these areas.

In addition, it puts in place monitoring programmes for the
construction and operation phases in order to implement any
necessary preventive and corrective measures in relation to -
among others - waste management, control of machinery and
vehicles on-site, communication with environmental agencies
and compliance with defined environmental specifications.

When constructing a pipeline, the following phases are followed:

» Monitoring of the environmental obligations set out in the
Environmental Impact Statement

« Environmental Monitoring Programme

» Waste management

« Archaeological monitoring

« Landscape restoration and enhancement

How we performed

After construction, a series of guidelines are followed to
reforest the affected area. Redexis' environmental monitoring
in the areas identified aim to avoid potential damage to the
environment and this helps manage impacts, the effectiveness
of the preventive and corrective measures established in the
Environmental Impact Assessment procedure is monitored
along with certain conditioning factors such as the appropriate
management of hazardous and non-hazardous waste, and the
exhaustive control of machinery, etc. This monitoring will be
extended for the time determined in the Environmental Impact
Assessment, once confirmation has been obtained from the
organisations in charge of concluding it because the results of
the restoration and repopulation of the environment have been
obtained.

Anexample of archaeological controlin 2021 was the unearthing
of a group of mosaics of Roman origin dating between the end
ofthe 3rd and beginning of the 4th century AD, whilst gas piping
works were being done in the historic centre of Merida. The site
was studied by the consortium's Works Monitoring Team, and
Redexis' firm commitment to the city's archaeological heritage
was evident. These finds were catalogued, documented and re-
covered to protect them. Once the consortium had finished its
work, the layout of the pipeline was adapted to work around
the finds. It ended up deviating from the original route by a few
metres to continue with the channelling work.
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People

— REDUCED . . . . .
] 10 Newiumes - Redexis has a flexible remuneration plan so that it can adapt to the needs of all its
‘U : employees, offering different types of compensation depending on each member
8 \ : 4 of staff's personal situation.

Employment

Redexis seeks to attract and retain people who share its values
and are committed to the company's sustainable development.

Redexis has a Code of Ethics and Conduct which sets out
its commitment to all the principles of business ethics and
transparency, under which it establishes a series of procedures
and guidelines regarding conduct, the ultimate aim and
purpose of which is to guarantee the responsible and ethical
behaviour of everyone in the company.

This Code also summarises and determines the values and best
practices that must govern the conduct of the company and all
the professionals who directly and indirectly make up Redexis
and its work. The company also has a Collective Bargaining
Agreement signed in conjunction with the UGT and CCOO.
trade unions and workers' representatives; it regulates labour
relations between the company and its staff.

The company also has an Equality Plan, the main goal of which
is to guarantee real and objective equality of opportunities
between men and women across the whole company, with a
commitment to a development model based on equity and
a corporate culture that is based on equal treatment. Redexis
is committed to equal opportunities and the promotion of
diversity and therefore has objective and impartial selection,
hiring and promotion processes, based exclusively on merit and
personal skills, and promoting stable and permanent contracts
wherever possible. It also promotes the recruitment of under-
represented groups and a scholarship programme to give
young people access to the world of work.



Staff at year-end 2021

How we performed

Professional category/Age Men Women Total
Management Committee 8 4 12
2.aged 30-40 1 0 1
3.aged 41-50 3 3 6
4.aged 51 and over 4 1 5
Executives and Managers 93 19 112
1.aged under 30 1 0 1
2.aged 30-40 11 7 18
3.aged 41-50 59 11 70
4.aged 51 and over 22 1 23
Technical and Support 135 67 202
1.aged under 30 2 3 5
2.aged 30-40 39 20 59
3.aged 41-50 52 31 83
4.aged 51 and over 42 13 55
Other categories 5 6 11
1.aged under 30 0 1 1
2.aged 30-40 1 1 2
3.aged 41-50 3 3 6
4.aged 51 and over 1 1 2
Grand total 241 96 337

Type of contract Men Women Total
Permanent 238 91 329
Temporary 3 5 8
Total 24 96 337

J
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Total average number of employees in 2020

2020 Permanent Temporary Total
M w T w T
Management Committee 9 4 13 0 13
2.aged 30-40 2 1 3 0 3
3.aged 41-50 4 2 6 0 6
4.aged 51 and over 3 1 4 0 4
Executives and Managers 93 18 111 0 111
2.aged 30-40 16 6 23 0 23
3.aged 41-50 62 11 72 0 72
4.aged 51 and over 15 1 16 0 16
Technical and Support 152 70 222 1 224
1.aged under 30 7 5 12 0 12
2.aged 30-40 43 20 63 1 64
3.aged 41-50 59 32 91 0 91
4.aged 51 and over 43 13 56 0 56
Other categories 6 6 12 1 15
1.aged under 30 1 1 2 0 2
2.aged 30-40 1 2 3 1 5
3.aged 41-50 2 2 4 0 5
4.aged 51 and over 2 1 3 0 3
Grand total 260 298 358 2 363




Total average number of employees in 2021

How we performed

2021 Permanent Temporary Total
M w T M w T T
Management Committee 8 4 12 0 0 0 12
2.aged 30-40 1 0 1 0 0 0 1
3.aged 41-50 3 3 6 0 0 0 6
4.aged 51 and over 4 1 5 0 0 0 5
Executives and Managers 28 19 117 0 0 0 117
1.aged under 30 1 0 1 0 0 0 1
2.aged 30-40 14 7 21 0 0 0 21
3.aged 41-50 61 11 72 0 0 0 72
4.aged 51 and over 23 1 24 0 0 0 24
Technical and Support 138 68 206 0.5 1 2 208
1.aged under 30 3 3 6 0 0 0 6
2.aged 30-40 39 20 59 0 1 1 60
3.aged 41-50 53 32 85 0.2 0 02 85
4.aged 51 and over 43 13 56 0.3 0 03 57
Other categories 4 4 8 3 1 4 12
1.aged under 30 0.2 0 0.2 0 0.2 0 0
2.aged 30-40 1 1 2 1 0 1 3
3.aged 41-50 2 2 4 2 05 2 6
4.aged 51 and over 1 1 2 1 1 1 3
Grand total 248 95 343 3 3 6 349
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Work organisation

Redexis' commitment to its employees is reflected in its
remuneration policy, under which all company employees have
access to a variable remuneration system linked to company,
department and individual objectives. Other benefits and
advantages are also included:

« Flexible pay. Redexis offers all employees the option of
accessing a range of products according to their needs, so
that they can optimise their remuneration. By 2021, over
80% of the workforce had benefited from this programme,
which offers the possibility of signing up to four products:
Medical insurance, Restaurant, Transport and Childcare. New
in 2021 is the option to apply for training under this flexible
remuneration system, which already has several people who
are doing a master's degree or higher studies.

« Life and accident insurance. From the moment they join the
company, all employees are covered by life and accident
insurance.

« Pension plan. All company employees can join a pension plan
within one year of joining the company.

« Medical insurance. The company subsidises a percentage of
the employee's premium as a company benefit.

« Childcare. The company offers an allowance of 60 euros per
month per employee's child for 12 months.

« Redexis discount club. Everyone can access a range of
discounts on a variety of items and products including
cinema tickets, shows, travel, hotels, sport, fashion, and so on.

Committed to employee flexibility and work-life balance,
Redexis and the UGT and CCOO trade unions signed a second
Collective Bargaining Agreement, which improves different
aspects of working conditions.

Hours of absence 2021: 11,430



Employee relations

In 2018, Redexis approved its second Collective Bargaining
Agreement, the main objectives of which were to establish a
single regulatory framework that promotes job stability and
achieves a substantial improvement in working conditions. This
agreement was in force until 31 December 2021 and recognises
improvements such as:

« Reducing the total annual working day, and increasing the
number of rest days.

« Extending flexibility in regard to the starting time of the
working day.

« Recognition of a salary adjustment procedure linked to the
company's performance.

o Improved company benefits: Access to an occupational
pension scheme, substantial subsidies for employees' health
insurance, life and accident insurance.

« Access to the annual variable remuneration programme for all
employees of the company with a model based on achieving
objectives.

The second Collective Bargaining Agreement outlines the
company's labour relations and recognises the existence of an
Inter-centre Committee, made up of no more than five members,
who shall be appointed from among the members of the
different Centre Committees and/or company representatives.

Consultation and involvement of workers in matters of Health
& Safety at Work, established through collective bargaining, is
articulated via the six Territorial Health & Safety Committees
(CTSS):

« CTSS Central Zone
« CTSS Levante
Q° « CTSS Eastern Andalusia
¢ « CTSS Western Andalusia
« CTSS North Zone

« CTSS Balearic Zone

How we performed

RY
4

The Health & Safety Committees are bodies based on peer
and collegiate participation and are intended for regular and
periodic consultation in regard to the company's actions in the
area of prevention of occupational hazards. They are made up
of health & safety representatives on the one hand, and Redexis
representatives on the other (regional managers, delegates,
etc), in matching numbers. Each committee has a chairperson
and a secretary.

As a participatory body for regular and periodic consultation
in regard to health & safety actions taken by Redexis group's
companies, each committee has the following competencies
and powers in relation to activities carried out in the territories:

« Participate in drawing up, implementing and evaluating health
& safety plans and programmes.

« Discuss, prior to implementation, the company's choice of
organisational format and, where appropriate, management
by the specialist bodies that the company has engaged to
carry out preventive activities. In addition, projects relating
to planning, work organisation and the introduction of new
technologies, organisation and development of protection
activities, prevention, and the organising of training on health
& safety matters.

« Promote initiatives regarding methods and procedures for the
effective prevention of risks, and proposing improvements to
conditions or the correction of existing deficiencies.
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«Tobedirectly aware of the situation regarding risk preventionin

the work centres, conducting any visits it deems appropriate
for this purpose.

« To be informed of any documents and reports relating to
working conditions that may be necessary for the fulfilment
of their functions, as well as those arising from the activity of
the health & safety at work service, where appropriate.

« To be informed of and analyse any damage caused to workers'
health or physical integrity, in order to assess its causes and
propose the appropriate preventive measures.

« To be informed of and report on the annual report and
programming of health & safety services.

For Redexis, transparency and constant dialogue with
everyone in the company is essential, and key to the essential
management of communication. Redexis has an internal portal
(comunicacion@redexis.es) for shared communication between
all areas and departments. This portal is also used to report on
all achievements and milestones. The company also has an
internal whistleblowing channel (canaldenuncias@redexis.es)
through which employees can submit complaints or grievances.

Training

In order to be able to respond effectively to the challenges
within the industry every day and the transformations that
the market is undergoing, Redexis runs training programmes
for everyone in the company who needs to update their
knowledge and skills on an ongoing basis and thus ensure their
professional development.

Redexis has created a set of training actions organised in the
form of "schools", all of which can be accessed through Redexis
Campus. Each school focuses on specific content that is aimed
at the whole company or specific groups.

In 2021 we focused on the following schools:

« CORPORATE SCHOOL: focused on training on subjects of
general interest or that are mandatory for the entire workforce
- such as the Welcome Programme for new employees,
our internal rules and code of conduct under Corporate
Governance, our Equality Plan, and so on.

« SKILLS SCHOOL: open to everyone wanting to improve their
social and personal skills, to make communication and day-
to-day management easier.

Upon review, the company may take action on the complaint.
Another essential communication tool is the company's
intranet, to which all employees have access and where they
can consult all company news, regulations, documentation,
access the campus and other human resources channels, and
so on. The intranet is key to establishing strong connections
between the company and employees and a reliable source
of information on corporate issues. The Redexis Commitment
channel was created within the Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) area and through which all initiatives carried out by that
department are actively reported to staff. The aim is to increase
the sense of belonging and well-being with the company. The
second "Redexis Lights Up Your Christmas" children's drawing
competition was launched in November 2021, to continue
focusing on children's emotional development and well-being.
The competition, aimed at employees children under the age
of 13, was divided into different age categories, and they were
eligible for various prizes and the chance to be the Redexis
Christmas in 2021.

« SCHOOL OF LANGUAGE AND COMMUNICATIONS: the
focus here is on improving both the way we communicate
in our own language and in the use of other languages.
Workshops include English, public speaking, writing the
perfect email, etc.

o LEADERSHIP SCHOOL: aimed at those who manage teams
at Redexis, the objective is to improve management and
development skills, with online workshops and virtual classrooms
on Feedback, Coaching, Positive Influence, and more.



+«SCHOOL OF OFFICE AUTOMATION AND CYBERSECURITY:
training for everyone on tools to help them better do their day-
to-day work without compromising safety. The workshops
that had the highest participation were Information Security,
Excel, Office 365 and Teams.

« SCHOOL OF HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT:
together with the GEMASST area, we set up this school
that brings together content focused on health & safety for
all, as well as the environment and prevention. The most
popular workshops included Waste Management and Time
Management.

« TECHNICAL SCHOOL: we offered all staff a catalogue of over
500 courses on infrastructures, finance, project management,
renewable energies, the energy industry, etc. For this School,
we rely on the Structuralia catalogue - a renowned training
company that specialises in our industry. The courses with
the highest number of people signing up were those related
to renewable energies, such as Biogas and Biomethane,
Hydrogen, Solar Energy, etc. The Masterclass in Finance for
Non-Financial Staff was also very well received, and we have
already held two editions with great success in terms of
attendance and participant satisfaction.

In addition to these programmes, we created specific formats
to address topics of strategic interest - such as Hydrogen and

How we performed

Biogas - through webinars with world-renowned experts.
We grouped these webinars under the name of Learning on
the Net, and they allow employees to interact directly with
the speakers during the webinars, as they are live. Another
innovative format was the LideRa Programme, a Leadership
Development and People Management programme in which 48
company executives participated, including the Management
Committee. It uses a blended methodology (online workshops
and face-to-face training in a virtual classroom) to continue
building leadership skills that enable them to manage and lead
teams more efficiently with coaching, feedback, situational
leadership techniques, and more.

Lastly, we ran a number of courses that combined the face-
to-face format with streaming through virtual classrooms to
provide further training for teams on topics related to their
work and new projects:

« NGV SERVICE STATIONS (Natural Gas Vehicles): theoretical
training on maintaining and operating NGV installations in
a virtual classroom and a practical part held in gas stations
across Spain for 45 people.

« PHOTOVOLTAIC: training in the market, industry,
infrastructures, etc, including a visit to a photovoltaic plant.

« EMERGENCY HOME CARE: training for on-call staff.

Hours of training received, by professional category

2021

Management team

2,100.50 L

Managers, experts and technicians

3,966.00

Operational support and sales staff

604.90 0|0

Total

6,671.40
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Training actions Participants Hours

2020 2021 2020 2021
Corporate School 1,147 121 1,115 133
Skills School 2 51 28 2304
S SRR
eagonemrnnd |5 | w | e | w
Technical School 53 446 1,629 4,644
Leadership and Team Management 4 48 100 1,200
Total 1,437 802 5,421 6,671
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TRAINING ACTIONS COMPLETED

Total

2020
2021

119 28

Indicator (/
employee)

2021
2020

0.16 0.34

HOURS OF TRAINING PROVIDED

Total

2020

417\ 1

Indicator (/
employee)

2021

1.20

2020

1.91

TRAINED WORKERS

Total

2020

Indicator (/
employee)

2021

0.58

2020

1.27



Equality

Redexis aims for equality of opportunity for all employees,
suppliers and contractors. It seeks diversity and rejects any form
of aggression, harassment or different treatment for reasons
of sex, race, age, etc. This is why on 19 March 2013 its Code of
Ethics and Conduct was developed in accordance with these
principles. This code includes a commitment to business ethics
and transparency, thus guaranteeing the ethical behaviour
of everyone at Redexis. The code sets out the values and best
practices that should operate within the company and apply
to all professionals and their work. A set of corporate rules are
laid down and made available to all employees via the intranet,
ensuring the principles of equality and diversity:

» GOB Guideline 02: Reporting of alleged irregularities.

« SIS 01: Use of email and computer systems to deal with
harassment.

» GOB Guideline 13: Protocol for prevention and action in
situations of harassment. The aim of this guideline is to
prevent harassment in the workplace and, in the event of
a situation that could be classified as such, to define the
criteria for action.

Redexis also has a Diversity and Equality Policy, through which
the company is committed to promoting equality and diversity
and to a business culture that values talent, recognising that
the professionals that make up the organisation may have
different backgrounds and experiences that can contribute
valuable knowledge, avoiding any form of discrimination. This
policy applies to all areas of the company, and compliance is
mandatory for all professionals, and is particularly relevant
when carrying out recruitment and hiring processes. Redexis is
thus committed to treating all people with respect and dignity,
guaranteeing inclusive, understanding and supportive work
environments in which all people can carry out their activities.
The company is also committed not to engage in or tolerate any
act of discrimination within the company, including harassment
based on sex, sexual orientation, gender, marital status,
employment status, race, disability, nationality, religion, beliefs,
age or any other circumstance. With this, it is determined that
the selection of personnel for recruitment, promotion, training
orany other employment benefit will be carried out and decided
on the basis of individual skills and abilities, based on merit.

How we performed

Among the measures adopted by Redexis during
2021 for integrating people with disabilities and
providing universal accessibility are the following:

« Direct recruitment of people with recognised
disabilities.

« Signing a contract with the company Illunion Retail
y Comercializaciéon S.A.U., accredited as a Special
Employment Centre, the purpose of which is
the supply of office and stationery material and
consumables, printing and graphic arts work
and business, institutional, advertising and
promotional gifts.

« Signing a contract with the company INTEGRA,
accredited as a Special Employment Centre, for the
provision of reception services at the Palma and
Murcia offices. With these two contracts, Redexis
is certified as exceptional, and we comply with
the alternative measures, as required under Royal
Legislative Decree 1/2013, of 29 November, which
approves the Revised Text of the General Rights of
Persons with Disabilities and their Social Inclusion
Act.
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"Redexis has internal and external
reporting channels to ensure
compliance with these plans and
policies, as well as to act against irregular
acts of discrimination or harassment"

The company also has an Equality Plan which determines
that, when selecting and hiring personnel, it encourages
women to apply - especially in areas where they are less
represented, and encouraging the promotion and professional
development of women to positions of greater responsibility
within the company. One of its principles is to ensure equal
opportunities and to eliminate any gender bias in the
company's remuneration policies by fostering a culture
based on equal treatment both internally and externally. The
company is responsible for introducing the gender perspective
in occupational health, promoting equal opportunities in the
prevention of occupational risks and establishing protection,
aid, support and information measures for victims of gender-
based violence. In order to achieve its equality goal, Redexis is
concerned with guaranteeing work-life balance of all people
by establishing a series of measures:

« Wide flexibility in regard to start times.

)
« Option of flexible working hours on a weekly basis. ﬁ@
24 and 31 December set as non-working days.
« Establishing the last week of June to the first week of
September as intensive working days, including the
working day before Easter and the days before 24
and 31 December.

« 16 hours per year for personal and family needs from
annual leave, for anyone who needs it.

« Reducing travel and business trips by developing
alternative technological solutions: communication
systems and videoconferencing.

« Improved rights to change working hours for depend-
ants, victims of gender-based violence or victims of
terrorism.

« Support grants for paying for childcare for the children
of people who work at Redexis.



How we performed

Health & safety

GOOD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

Social

« Redexis is concerned about the continuous improvement of working conditions
_,\/\/\' beyond the current regulations, with the aim of reducing accidents to zero.

Redexis goes beyond compliance with current applicable
legislation and drives continuous improvement in working
conditions and in managing health, safety and well-being.
Redexis involves its employees, suppliers, collaborators, users
and other stakeholders related to its activity, with the aim of
acting with maximum safety.

On occupational health & safety issues, the company set a
number of targets for 2021:

« Carry out 7 ergonomic studies on "office workstations" in fixed
centres.

« 1 day of Health & Safety at Work awareness-raising for
executives, middle management and technicians in the works
execution business area.

« Conduct a minimum of 20% of drills in SEVESO plants involving
external resources.

« Comply with the following joint Claims Ratios for employees
and contractors:

« Combined Frequency Index (CFl) <1.79
« CFl = No. accidents/ No. hours worked *1000000
« Combined Severity Rate

« CGl= No. of working days lost *1000 / No. of hours
worked

« No. of accidents with sick leave and no sick leave
averages for the last 3 years below 8
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«Increase the number of workers trained in road safety by 20%.
« Increase the number of workers trained in first aid by 25%.

« Maintain activities to raise awareness of healthy habits
among workers.

« Run a course on time management and psychosocial
planning.

In order to achieve the proposed objectives, Redexis has
implemented a series of strategies thathave beenimplemented
by GEMASST management, where special emphasis has been
placed on boosting leadership and promoting awareness and
sensitisation in matters of health & safety at work. Throughout
2021, Redexis has promoted well-being and a healthy
lifestyle, monitoring and taking into account the health of its
employees at all times. At all its work centres and premises.
the company operates ongoing monitoring of compliance
with applicable legal requirements and other requirements to
which the organisation is signed up to in the areas of health
& safety, environment and energy. Workers are guaranteed at
all times training in health & safety at work, which is sufficient
and adequate for them to correctly do their work, with risks
identified and managed and any identified hazards being
eliminated, and the appropriate measures implemented.

Redexis provides ongoing general information on this to
workers via their representatives, as well as direct information
about the specific risks that affect their work or duties, and
informing them about applying any prevention measures
necessary to mitigate these risks. Workers are consulted at
all times and their involvement is sought in matters affecting
their health & safety through their employee representatives.

mm
©
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Due to the pandemic which has completely transformed ways of
working and encouraged teleworking, Redexis has highlighted
the value of digital disconnection and has published a series of
guidelines such as the need to respect rest times, holidays, avoid
calling meetings and sending emails outside working hours, the
rational use of digital tools, and so on.

At all times, the company acts both with regard to society and
itsemployees,inaccordance with the prevention criteria set out
under the legal and regulatory framework, as well as Redexis'
Integrated Management System, and verifies compliance with
the applicable legal requirements. This system is regularly
reviewed and measures are taken to continuously improve its
effectiveness. These criteria are integrated into health & safety
management at all levels of the organisation.

The actions under the Psychosocial and Well-being Action
Plan were implemented throughout 2021. In April 2021, the
"Covid-19 and Cardiovascular Disease" streaming courses were
run, taught by Dr Tormo, expert in cardiovascular diseases
from the Spanish Heart Foundation. They gave us a better
understanding of the different cardiovascular risk factors
along with practical guidelines on cardiovascular prevention,
in order to try to avoid the serious effects of their response
to Covid-19. It was also intended to raise awareness among
participants of the importance of lifestyle changes as an
effective means of cardiovascular prevention.

A training day was held in June 2021 on "HASAW Awareness
Raising for Executives and Managers. Practical Workshop
(Role Playing). Trial Simulation" for the work engineering,
bids and execution division. This training initiative made
staff with direction, management and control duties in the
works engineering, bids and execution division aware of the
potential legal responsibilities that can be incurred, especially
at criminal level, through an educational and entertaining
system consisting of reproducing all the phases and different
actions that make up a judicial procedure, paying special
attention to the procedural and substantive strategies that
must be adopted in relation to defending the interests of
technicians, managers and directors involved in liability
proceedings as a result of accidents at work or infringements
in the field of health & safety at work.
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Redexis' Healthy initiative continued in 2021 as did the
Employee Support Programme. This aims to care for
employees' emotional and personal state and offers
support in the following areas:

+ PSYCHOLOGICAL SUPPORT FOR EMPLOYEES:
free and confidential psychological assistance to all
employees.

+ COACHING SESSIONS FOR EMPLOYEES: this
resource allows people to develop skills in a way
that is tailored and adapted to their own challenges,
personal or professional, with the help of a personal
coach. Staff can work on skills such as public
speaking, improving social skills or improving time
management.

« WELL-BEING PROGRAMMES: All employees can
take advantage of individual training sessions free of
charge, which will serve as a tool to help them meet
any personal challenge or goal.

« WELL-BEING PORTAL: This is an exclusive portal for
all Redexis employees to use and contains resources
and information to learn how to take care of their
well-being. It is updated weekly with articles, videos,
advice, books, recommendations from specialists
and news prepared by professionals. Redexis is
committed to achieving the objectives aimed at
reducing any risks or hazards in the workplace,
offering recommendations and alternatives that are
committed to employee safety.

How we performed

GEMASST management monitors the number of accident-
free days and monitors this through various health & safety
committees, with the aim of reducing accidents to zero. A
technology-based tool is also available for recording, monitoring
and analysing the health care provided through the "My health"
app, made available by external prevention service Quirén. At
each of the company's work centres, records are kept of the
members of the Emergency Teams, as well as appointments
of members, and their training in first aid. Annual drills are
carried out at the SEVESO plants, including environmental and
health & safety at work scenarios, in order to ensure workers'
safety at all times. "Emergency Management" courses have
been kept up to date for new emergency team members, and
in 2021 a new course on the implications of SEVESO regulations
and emergency plans was run for all personnel involved in
emergencies, technicians/responsible for the operation and
maintenance of our facilities, and control centre operators. As
a company that is concerned about health & safety at work,
Redexis is equally concerned about the well-being of its
employees outside the work environment, which is why the
Travel Plan was continued in December 2020 and the road
safety campaign was launched during the holiday season, with
safe driving guidance in June 2021. Meetings of the Travel and
Road Safety Committee were held. The "Driving Improvement”
course was run on several days in October and November 2021.
Meetings of the GEMASST Leadership Committee were held,
the purpose of which was to reinforce the leadership of senior
management and their commitment to occupational health &
safety at work and environment issues

2,157 health & safety at work inspection visits were also
conducted at construction sites and 634 visits were made to
premises. A 5% increase in safety inspection visits (visit/ml built)
in construction works and 4.1% (visit/installation) at premises
compared to 2020.

A total of 46 drills were carried out at Redexis facilities in 2021.
Redexis continued to advance its commitment to workplace
safety in 2021 by recertifying its Occupational Safety and Health
(OSH) Management System to 1SO 45001:2018. In this regard,
the certification issued to Redexis by the British Standards
Institution, a leading auditing and certification standardisation
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body, with further strengthens the company's commitment
and leadership in Health & Safety at Work, Environment
and Energy, through an Integrated Management System.
ISO 45001 is currently the most internationally recognised
standard for health & safety at work. Its major advantage
is that the health & safety management system must be
adapted to the High-Level Structure now included in all new
versions of ISO standards. This implies a greater alignment
of the organisation's strategy with the health & safety

Hours worked (HW)

management of its workers, reflecting greater leadership by
management in this area. In addition to this, ISO 45001 takes
a significant step forward in terms of employee consultation
and participation obligations - in that employees must now
be empowered and involved in aspects such as defining
policies, objectives, needs and expectations. Along the same
lines, Redexis is working to continue offering its employees a
health and wellness plan, promoting healthy lifestyle habits
in line with its Healthy Company certificate.

204,386 (women)
525.566 (men)

Accidents

Without sick leave

With sick leave

0 Severe

[}

>

S

o Fatal

£

[IT]
Lost Days
Days lost due to sick leave 0.0
Frequency index* 0.00

Severity rate (no sick leave)**

Severity rate**

0.00

*¥) Frequency Rate = (Accidents with sick leave * 1,000.000) / Hours worked Accidents with sick leave (AwSL) = AwSL own personnel (Accident
reports notified by the company in the official electronic declaration Delt@) + AwSL contract personnel (Accident reports notified by the
contract personnel in the official electronic declaration Delt@ and communicated to Redexis) - Hours Worked (HW) = HW employees (Working
day recorded by HR for employees) + HW contract staff (Hours worked by contract staff reported to us through the DEA Format "Accident
Statistics Data" of the integrated management system) (**) Severity Rate = (No. of working days lost * 1.000) / Hours worked No. days lost (DL)
= No. days off work due to accidents at work - Hours Worked (HW) = HW employees (Working day recorded by HR foremployees) + HW contract
staff (Hours worked by contract staff who report to us using the Integrated Management System's "Accident Statistical Data" (ASD) format)
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Q
931,612 A
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BREAKDOWN OF FATAL, SERIOUS AND MINOR ACCIDENTS (employees and contractors)

Number of accidents
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How we performed

8

[
Innovation

Y

'E ADNRASTRUGIURE « Development of novel Artificial Intelligence tools with new algorithms to improve
o) business efficiency and optimise network deployment.

B
8 « Expansion and growth of natural gas in the industrial sector as an efficient and

L sustainable alternative to fossil fuels, enabling energy and economic savings.

Redexis is committed to innovation, development, sustainability
and contributing to the quality of life of society. It designs
solutions to improve its service, in line with the goal of boosting
the gas industry in Spain and playing a significant role in the
energy transition.

In order to respond to the new challenges and opportunities
posed by the environment, it has implemented an innovation
model that seeks to respond to the technological changes in
the industry by encouraging an innovative culture within the
company.
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Solutions in the natural gas industry

Redexis has developed several projects aimed at proposing
new solutions to engineering and process challenges related
to natural gas, receiving financial and institutional support to
develop them:

« PID AUTOERM PROJECT: Design, development and pilot
testing of a position regulation and measurement station
for energy-autonomous transportation, with funding from
the Centre for the Development of Industrial Technology
(CDTI); successfully completed in June 2020. This project was
chosen in 2020 from among the 101 initiatives for the climate
(#comunidadporelclima) as a pioneering project in Spain, as it
is the first integration of this technology to be done in Spain.

cﬁb

« CERVERA VORTEX PROJECT: Experimental development
of a new sustainable reheating system for liquefied natural
gas using the Ranque-Hilsch phenomenon, which ended
in November 2021 and was recognised under the Cervera
Transfer category, which finances projects developed by
companies that collaborate with state-level Technology
Centres in Cervera priority technologies.

"Redexis is also promoting innovative
renewable gas initiatives"

Redexis - a pioneer in the development and implementation of Artificial Intelligence in networks

The company is becoming more efficient, contributing to further
connecting the country to the gas supply and reaching more
industries, businesses and households, leading to increased
employment and well-being.

In 2021 Redexis took part in the "Digital Twin Zaragoza, Smart
Data" project as the basis for the Smartcity coordinated by
Inkolan, which proposes the creation of a Digital Twin that
addresses the transformation of its data model towards a

model based on smart data, constituting a virtual replica of
the elements and processes that make up the service/utility
networks that combined with other data will help to plan,
manage and design the city and its services.

Redexis is also developing pilot projects in the field of
sensorisation and mass data processing with the aim of
providing predictive analysis of faults at gas installations.

Redexis therefore provides a higher quality service to
customers, identifying those who are more likely to accept gas,
accurately tracing the deployment of networks for a reduced
impact. The application of Artificial Intelligence to its business
makes Redexis a pioneer company in:

« Business expansion: doubling

» Network optimisation: saving 20% on network deployment
investment

« Optimisation of inspection routes
« Early detection of fraud
« Predictive network maintenance management

« Risk prevention
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Social

1 NO
POVERTY

« Donation by the Redexis Foundation of 10,000 euros to the Island Council of La
Palma to support the emergency caused by the eruption of Cumbre Vieja volcano.

GOOD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

« Call for applications for the 1st Redexis Foundation Support Line aimed at non-
profit organisations for the development of projects to improve energy efficiency
and quality of life among people with disabilities, especially children and young
people.

«Implementation of the psychosocial and well-being action plan for Redexis
employees.

QUALITY
EDUCATION

« Financial support from the Redexis Foundation in the 2nd Edition of the Aragon
Hydrogen Foundation Awards for Doctoral Theses, Master's and Degree Final
Projects.

« Donation of 2,000 euros to Cante de las Minas Foundation for running an event in
Murcia.

Alliances

17 PARTNERSHIPS
FOR THE GOALS

&

« Agreements and alliances with the main national and international energy players:
GASNAM, Spanish Hydrogen Foundation, Appa Renovables and the Aragon and
Extremadura Energy Cluster, among others.

« Collaboration with sports and cultural entities: Teatro Real, Cuevas FC Almeria,
UCAM Murcia CB, Merida SAD Sports Association.
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Redexis Foundation focuses on promoting technological
innovation and developing social, charitable, welfare, educational
and cultural projects. In particular, it promotes the development
and well-being of people living in the places where Redexis
operates, supporting the use of clean energy and taking care of the
environment, serving as an active agent in the energy transition.

It also has the mission to be a dynamic foundation, in line with
the United Nation's Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).
Throughout the year, its work was geared towards these
objectives, as part of the vision of being a leader among business
foundations and establishing links between them.

THE FOUNDATION'S ACTIVITIES FOCUS ON RUNNING, PROMOTING AND SUPPORTING PROJECTS IN THREE

AREAS

e

INNOVATION AND
TECHNOLOGY

1 2

Throughout 2021, Redexis Foundation devoted its activities to
alleviating the difficult situations of certain groups and giving
financial assistance to associations whose main tasks include
supporting these people.

Italso focused on supporting culture and education, sponsoring
cultural spaces like the Royal Theatre and the 2nd Edition of
the Aragon Hydrogen Foundation Awards for doctoral theses,

Social action

Redexis Foundation made a donation of 10,000 euros to the
Island Council of La Palma to help with the most urgent needs of
those affected by the eruption of the Cumbre Vieja volcano.

This financial donation is part of our Foundation's commitment
to contribute to the well-being of society and to help alleviate the
needs and emergencies that may occur and affect populations.

In addition, in 2021, Redexis Foundation launched a public call
for grants, "First-Line Support’, aimed at social and well-being
projects, to support initiatives that seek to improve the quality of
life of vulnerable groups.

More than €25,000 was offered to help develop energy efficiency
improvement projects in Aragon, the Balearic Islands, Murcia,
Madrid, Castile-La Mancha, Castile-Leon, Extremadura and
Andalusia.

EDUCATION AND
ENVIRONMENT

SOCIAL, CULTURAL
AND SPORTING

3

master's degrees and final degree projects, among others - all
focused on improving and contributing to energy efficiency
and promoting sustainable forms of energy.

These initiatives are part of the Foundation's commitment to
contribute to the well-being of society - in particular, people in
vulnerable situations - and to be socially responsible in regard
to the environment.

Redexis Foundation's First-Line Support project supported the
charitable work of five associations that targeted their support
towards people with disabilities or who were in situations of social
exclusion: Ahinco Conil (Cadiz), Ajudisle (Seville), Asprodeme
(Cadiz), Caritas Diocesana 60 Merida-Badajoz (Merida) and
Dislexia Hellin (Hellin).



Cultural projects

Redexis Foundation's main areas of activity include the
development, promotion and encouragement of culture.

As part of this, it has a collaboration agreement with the
Teatro Real Foundation. As part of this collaboration, in 2021
Redexis Foundation contributed to the founding aims of the
Teatro Real Foundation - including the programming and
management of musical, lyrical and choreographic events.
Teatro Real is considered to be the leading institution for the
performing and musical arts in Spain, positioning itself as the
leading national opera house and one of Spain's main cultural
institutions.

The foundation also worked with Flamenco Real - a subsidiary
organisation of Teatro Real, whose mission is to promote
flamenco dance and give it its rightful place in Spanish culture.

Promotional and collaborative initiatives

As part of its aim to be an active agent in the energy transition,
Redexis Foundation issued its second energy publication -
focusing on this occasion on biomethane: "Biomethane - key to
a sustainable energy model".

This publication describes the current situation of biomethane
fuel, along with the related projects currently in place and
those that are planned for the future. It also outlines existing
regulation at national level and the position taken by different
countries around the world. In line with the Biomethane
Roadmap published by the Spanish government, this
publication provides a glimpse into Spain's significant potential
for becoming a leading player in the production, transportation
and storage of biomethane.

Educational projects

In terms of education, the Foundation financially supported the
2nd Edition of the Aragon Hydrogen Foundation Awards for
doctoral theses, master's and final degree projects, with the aim
of stimulating research into hydrogen as an energy vector. More

Environmental initiatives

In 2021, Redexis Foundation worked with the Oliete
Association for the Recovery of Barren Olive Groves,
whose mission is to protect olive grove as a natural
heritage and to promote environmental and rural
education. In doing so, the Foundation distributed

the association's products to help recover 100,000
abandoned centuries-old olive trees in Oliete
(Teruel), simultaneously helping to generate a
valuable sustainable rural economy in an abandoned
part of Spain.

How we performed

As part of its commitment to culture, in 2021 Redexis Foundation
also supported the Cante de las Minas Foundation, with a financial
contribution of €2,000. The collaboration with this organisation
reflects its commitment to culture and provides a boost to restore
the presence of the Cante de las Minas International Festival,
which celebrated its 60th anniversary, bringing together the
most acclaimed flamenco artists.

The foundation also worked with Madrid Energy Foundation
Fenercom and the Aragon Hydrogen Foundation.

specifically, Redexis Foundation is the sponsor of the "2021
Redexis Foundation - Aragon Hydrogen Foundation Award" for
the best doctoral thesis.

\
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Supply chain

Redexis works with a large number of suppliers and, therefore,
needs to employ selection processes that guarantee equal
opportunities and free competition, whilst ensuring the best
quality in purchased services.

Since 2020, Redexis' Supplier Approval, Monitoring and
Evaluation Policy has aimed to describe the process of
approving, monitoring and evaluating Redexis suppliers,

1

contractors and partners, as well as defining the criteria and
assigning responsibilities during this process. Its purpose is
to ensure that any third party supplying goods or services is
qualified in line with Redexis standards of transparency and
business ethics, health & safety, quality and environment.

A Supplier Code of Conduct is included under this policy and
outlines issues related to:

\

LABOUR
RIGHTS

N

b

ENVIRONMENT

| e

ol

CONFIDENTIALITY

SUPPLIER CODE OF
CONDUCT

g
Y

| DN 6
2 :

HEALTH & I FIGHTING AGAINST
SAFETY BRIBERY AND
REDEXIS CODE CORRUPTION
OF ETHICS
COMPLIANCE
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The company has a Purchasing Policy that encourages
competition and seeks added value, checking at all times
that suppliers and contractors comply with health & safety,
environmental and social criteria.

For Redexis, working with suppliers who have the same
social and environmental commitments as the company is
an essential part of achieving its sustainable development
goals. Itis for this reason that Redexis conducts an evaluation
and control process through which it carries out a study and
follow-up of the suppliers it works with.

As part of responsible supply chain management, Redexis
incorporates objectives relating to health & safety at work,
social and the environment when entering into agreements
with suppliers. The company's general procurement
terms and conditions include a section on environmental
protection and, when issuing an invitation to tender, the
internal standard DOC-14 "Environmental Responsibility and
Health & Safety of Suppliers" is always included. The approval
procedure also includes a Supplier Code of Ethics, where
there is an exclusive section on labour law, anti-corruption
and bribery, health & safety, environment and so on. For a
supplier to work with Redexis, it must comply with the DOC-
14 internal standard.

The company has aRegistry database (RePro, external supplier
classification system) for Spain in accordance with Spain's Act
9/2017, of 9 November, regarding procurement procedures
in the water, energy, transport and postal services industries.

How we performed

Redexis uses this Register when approving suppliers and
monitoring their documentation and certifications. This
reduces procurement-related risks, costs and compliance
issues. To verify compliance with the procurement databases
and to pick u[ any actions that can be corrected, audits are
carried out on suppliers with a higher volume of purchases,
where the non-conformities identified result in changes that
the supplier must resolve within the established timeframe.
16% of Redexis suppliers with a turnover of over €100,000
have been audited by Achilles Repro, with 100% of them
having passed this audit.

Redexis seeks to improve its purchasing management model
in order to guarantee the maximum possible objectivity
during the procurement process and ensure the best quality
services. Selection processes are key, and seek to ensure equal
opportunities and free competition. The company minimises
business, technical, environmental, health & safety risks
throughout its supply chain. This selection process covers
everything from identifying needs to receipt of the service,
establishing positive discrimination parameters such as the
purchase of energy with a guarantee of renewable origin or
hiring suppliers who provide a special employment centre
certificate.
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Users and customers

Redexis is committed to transparency in its communication
with the market and strives to ensure open and constructive
communication with all parties, whilst studying and creating
mechanisms for dialogue and mutual understanding.

In order to increase bilateral communication with users and
customers, Redexis ran a survey in the last quarter of 2021
to gauge the satisfaction of users and customers who have
recently signed up for our natural gas service, or who have
signed up for some type of service.

Through this survey, it was also possible to assess the opinion
of customers and users, to demonstrate to customers
that their opinion matters to the company, and to gather
information that enables improvements to be identified
and planned. The survey ran between 29 November and 2
December 2021 and its purpose was to:

» Redexis customers who recently signed \
up for our natural gas service.

« Redexis customers who purchased the
Channelled LPG service.

» Redexis customers who purchased the
Redexis Home service.

« Redexis customers who received a
regular inspection in 2021.

To ensure the security of all those involved in the supply chain,
Redexis has several communications centres. All personnel
- both our own employees and staff of partner companies
- must have the appropriate and necessary training and
knowledge to ensure their safety on the company's
premises. Guaranteeing the safety of consumers and society
in general is essential for Redexis and the company's young
infrastructure enables it to offer excellent safety ratios.

Transportation pipelines are constructed of steel pipes and
all are fitted with a high-strength polyethylene outer coating
that protects against corrosion whilst extending their service
life. Redexis applies a series of preventive, predictive and
continuous improvement actions to its infrastructures as
described under the asset integrity management plans. The
company also has aremote cathodic protection management
system to manage and modulate this protection.

The Redexis control centre, located in Zaragoza, has up-
to-date information regarding the training of everyone
who accesses the facilities, enabling it to permanently
manage access. The company provides an emergency call
centre for all users connected to its distribution networks,
offering 24x7 service in permanent contact with the Control
Centre. It receives and performs an initial classification of
consumer emergencies at its reception facilities. The call
centre also receives communications from other emergency
organisations (police, fire brigade, 112, etc), immediately
notifying the Control Centre, which manages the resolution
of any incidents or security issue at the premises.

Redexis has an internal operating rule for dealing with
distribution alerts. The Notification Service is ongoing and
its purpose is to handle telephone calls related to incidents
in the gas supply or gas installations (whether owned
by the distribution company or the user) as well as their
management, coordination and resolution within the scope
of the competences of a gas distribution company.



Stakeholders

How we performed

Channels of communication

Users and
customers

- Corporate website (www.redexisgas.es)
- Call Centre

- Control Centre

- Falcon LPG invoicing portal

- Website for readings

- "Yo leo gas" app and IVR for readings

Employees

- Employee portal (Intranet)

- Training platform (Redexis Campus)

- Internal whistleblowing channel

- Redexis commitment mailbox

« Email for Prevention of Occupational Hazards and Environmental matters

«Internal Energy, Environment and Health & Safety at Work Management Platform (GEMASST) with all
information and documentation concerning the internal management system.

« Healthy mailbox

+ Well-being platform

- Covid-19 information mailbox
- Mailbox for equality issues

Financial
Community

- Corporate website: Investors

- Investor mailbox: investor.relations@redexis.es. Direct contact with shareholders, investors, analysts, rating
agencies, financial institutions, etc

« Reports and notes on the company's activities

- Supplier portal
- Annual conventions
« RePro (Achilles)

Public authorities
and regulators

- Direct contact with organisations from different areas of regulation (CNMC, government department,
regional and local bodies, and so on.)

- Reports and notes on the company's activities

- Notifications, requirements and responses with different regulatory bodies

- Consultations/proceedings with different national, regional and local regulatory bodies

- Gas System Technical Manager (GTS)

Community

- Corporate website (www.redexis.es)

- Corporate communication email

- Press releases

- Information meetings (interviews)

- Institutional meetings

- Corporate and institutional events

- Involvement in business, sectoral, educational and cultural organisations
- Involvement in conferences, forums and seminars

- Sponsorships in the towns and districts where we operate
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Every month, the internal and external notifications received
by our call centre are compiled, and those in which a leak has
been detected following a visit by our contractor are separated
out from those where one has not.

The Control Centre's SCADA system uses sensors, central units
and field-mounted communication equipment to collect in
real time the values and status of the different parameters

that define the operation of the company's main facilities,
safeguarding consumers' health & safety. Contact information for
the Call Centre and Control Centre is provided to any and all staff,
internal and external, who pick up any anomaly on the premises.
The response to any incident is set out in internal procedures and
protocols for action. Regular drills are carried out involving all the
company's resources assigned to this type of action to ensure a
better response in the event of a real emergency.

COMPLAINTS FROM USERS AND CUSTOMERS ARE HANDLED ACROSS THREE AREAS:

/A5

Redexis processes the complaints received through the
external complaints channel. Complaints received through this
channel relate to the provision of gas services by Redexis. The
communications that come into this address are generally to
do with users wishing to change the timetable for the periodic
inspection of their gas installation, supply cut-offs, billing,
readings, etc.

Natural gas
distribution

Given that another channel is assigned to handle such matters,
these requests are transferred to the Sales Department, which
analyses the complaint, report or claim and pass it on as
appropriate to the relevant department:

- Call Centre, where the communication refers to questions
or complaints regarding billing and readings.

- Utilisation Department, where the communication relates
to inspections of installations.

- Systems Department, where the communication refers to
website issues.

LPG sales and
distribution

Value-added
services

A total of 67,990 complaints or claims were received in 2021,
98.73% of which were resolved during the year.

In 2021, as part of its commitment to offer services that are
focused on and tailored to users, the company launched the
Anidia digital brand, website and social channels. This project
ran commercial campaigns in 2021 including "Estado de
Ahorro" and "Internet a todo Gas" in the Almeria and Murcia
regions, as part of the project to extend the benefits of natural
gas to end customers.



How we performed

Responsible taxation

Taxes paid by organisations represents one of their contributions
to economic and social development and to the maintenance
of the public burden of the country in which they operate. In
this context, complying at all times with current tax legislation is
a core principle behind the company's corporate responsibility.

Tax is one of the main costs faced by the company. It is also an
area in which there is a diversity of possible interpretations in
terms of the applicable regulations, bringing with it potential
uncertainty. Therefore, taking into account both its public
and business interests, Redexis has developed a Tax Policy,
approved by its Board of Directors, that complies with the
following principles in terms of meeting its tax obligations and
its dealings with the tax authorities:

« Compliance with current tax legislation: pay the taxes
required under applicable law, adopting at all times a
reasonable interpretation and seeking to avoid inefficiencies
and undue tax costs for Redexis.

« Waiver of the following: operations or structures that solely
pursue a tax advantage, the structuring of operations of an
artificial nature or unrelated to the company's own activity
or the use of non-transparent structures in order to reduce
its taxes, or making of investments in or through territories
classified as tax havens.

« Transparency in regard to third parties (shareholders,
customers, suppliers, employees, regulatory bodies, etc)
in terms of the tax principles described herein, the bodies
involved in the tax governance of Redexis.

« Full cooperation with the tax authorities: in its verification
activities related both to Redexis and third parties,
maintaining relations based on good faith, cooperation,
professionalism and reciprocity, without prejudice to any
legitimate disputes that may arise in defence of the group of
companies' interests.

To ensure compliance with the company's tax policy, the
Board of Directors and Audit & Risk Committee are assisted by
the Chief Financial Officer and implement this policy through
appropriate tax operational procedures and processes. The
Chief Financial Officer is assisted by the Head of Tax, who advises
and instructs the different departments on a regular basis on
tax matters, including tax returns and reporting, ensuring full
compliance with the Tax Policy and applicable tax operating
procedures and processes.

At the end of financial year 2021, the company had started
preparing a procedure for managing and controlling
the company's tax risks, developing its Tax Policy and
complementing the risk management and control system.
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In 2021, Redexis' total tax contribution amounted to €12.3m  after tax, the amount of subsidies (limited to Spain as it is the
The following table shows the breakdown of operating and FY  only country in which Redexis operates):
results, as well as total revenues, accounting profit before and

196

Operating result €72,833.40 €79,351.05
Spain €72,833.40 €79,351.05
Profit for the financial year -€6,814.51 €38,108.18
Spain -€6,814.51 €38,108.18
Total income €240,807.89 €261,919.51
Spain €240,807.89 €261,919.51
Accounting profit/loss before taxes €29,516.11 €50,384.13
Spain €29,516.11 €50,384.13
Corporate income tax due -€36,330.62 -€12,275.95
Spain -€36,330.62 -€12,275.95
Corporate tax paid -€4,311.89 -€6,527.98
Spain -€4,311.89 -€6,527.98
Grants received €331,221.19

Pre-financing HIGGS project €199,865.00

Vortex project €85,532.46

35% AutoERM Project: CDTI *doc* €45,823.73

Note: Expressed in €000's




MOVEMENT OF GRANTS IN 2021

How we performed

Collections Returns
65% AutoERM Project: CDTI €85,101.21
Cancellation of CDTI IDI-20190418 debt -€104,739.95
AutoERM Project: CDTI
Vortex CDTi Project (AJ5)
OceanH?2 Project (AJ9) €12,227.88
Green Hysland Project (AJ8) €720,000.00
Total €817,329.09 -€104,739.95
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Scope

This is Redexis' first integrated report and covers both the main
parent company and its subsidiaries. The information covers the
period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

The report analyses and reviews the company's activity, both
financial and non-financial, during financial year 2021, largely
based on the results obtained from the materiality analysis carried
out, thus highlighting Redexis' main issues and taking into account
aspects of transparency and corporate communication.

It also analyses the situation of the industry and the market, along
with Redexis' position within it, its areas of influence, significant
aspects and main business activities. We also present the year's
financial and fiscal situation and compare it with previous years.

The information contained in this second Redexis Sustainability
Report, together with the Non-Financial Information Statement
(NFIS), aligns with the United Nations Global Compact 2021 Progress
Report, including Redexis' actions to contribute to achieving the
UN's Sustainable Development Goals.

—

Preparation

All Redexis business units were directly involved in defining the content of this report. This involved the following system:

) 2 ) 3 ) 4 ) 5 4

IDENTIFICATION PRIORITISATION  VALIDATION REVIEW APPROVAL AND
PUBLICATION

—
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About this report

Contact Redexis
2 Mahonia Street, 4th Floor

information 28043, Madrid

Customer Service Centre: 900811339
Submit meter readings: 800760577

Security and emergencies: Redexis provides a 24-7-365 Emergency Service for implementing actions necessary to guarantee
customer's personal and property safety, opening or closing gas installations and emergency actions in the event of any safety
incident: gas odour, fire or explosion, as set out in ITC-ICG-01 of the Technical Regulations for the Distribution and Use of Gaseous
Fuels approved by Royal Decree 919/2006.

I To report an emergency, please contact EmergenC|es'

Redexis Emergencies: +34 900 924 6020

Corporate contact addresses:

« Corporate Internet address:
www.redexis.es

« Communication:
comunicacion@redexis.es

« Investor relations:
investor.relations@redexis.es

« Complaints:
canaldenuncias@redexis.es
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1. Introduction

This report analyses and reviews the activity of Redexis, S.A.
(formerly Redexis Gas, S.A.) (“Redexis” or the “Company”),
in matters of corporate governance. For such purpose, the
Group continues to be committed to the implementation of
standards and good practices that favour transparency with its
stakeholders.

The Company is committed to strengthening the area of
corporate governance through a set of rules, principles and
procedures that regulate the structure and operation of the

2. Share Capital Structure

The Company’s share capital amounts to EUR ONE HUNDRED
MILLION (€100,000,000.00), represented by ten million
(10,000,000) shares, which are indivisible and cumulative, having
a face value of ten Euros (€10) each, correlatively numbered from
1to 10,000,000, both inclusive.

Redexis *

Corporate Governance

company's governing bodies. Therefore, in the interests of
transparency and diligence, the Board of Directors of Redexis
has resolved to issue this Annual Corporate Governance Report
(the “Report”), even though it does not have such an obligation.

This Report includes the information that the Company's Board
of Directors has considered appropriate to fully reflect Redexis'
corporate key figures during FY 2021, and, in general, any
material aspect of the Company that shareholders and investors
may consider relevant.

As of 31 December 2021, the share capital is fully subscribed
and paid up and distributed among the shareholders as
follows:

CHASE GAS
INVESTMENTS
LIMITED (“Chase”):

33.33%

ARBEJDSMARKEDETS
TILLAEGSPENSION'
(“ATP”):

33.33%

GUOTONG ROMEO
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(“Guotong”):

33.33%

1 On 22 November 2021, ATP carried out an internal restructuring resulting in ATP’s direct shareholding in Redexis, acquiring from ATP Infrastructure Il APS

the shares in such Company.
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3. Board of Directors Structure

3.1. Composition

The administration of the Company is entrusted to a
Board of Directors composed of a minimum of three and
a maximum of eleven members, in accordance with the

3.2. Members of the Board of Directors

provisions of article 19 of the Articles of Association. The
Board of Directors is currently composed of eight Directors
and a Non-Director Secretary.

As of 31 December 2021, the Board of Directors was composed of the following members:

Date of appointment or
last re-election

Category of Director

Mr. Fernando Bergasa Caceres 20 May 2021 Non-Executive Chairman
Mr. Fidel L6pez Soria 1 December 2021 Executive Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Li Bo 114 July 2021 Proprietary (proposed by Guotong) Director
Mr. Liu Yuan 16 September 2021 Proprietary (proposed by Guotong) Director
Mr. Niels Konstantin Jensen 23 May 2019 Proprietary (proposed by ATP) Director
Mr. Sorem Alverde Holm 20 May 2021 Proprietary (proposed by ATP) Director
Mr. Stephen Alan John Deeley 11 April 2019 Proprietary (proposed by USS) Director
Mr. Gavin Bruce Merchant 24 July 2017 Proprietary (proposed by USS) Director
Mr. Ignacio Perefia Pinedo 19 March 2013 Not applicable Secretary non-Director

2 Ms. Cristina Avila Garcia tendered her resignation as a director of the Company on 16 December 2021, effective 31 December 2021.

3.3. Restructuring of Redexis’ top management

In April 2021, executive directors Mr. Fernando Bergasa
Céceres and Ms. Cristina Avila Garcia informed the Board of
Directors of their intention to leave the Company.

A process of restructuring of the executive management
thus began, culminating in the appointment by the
shareholders at the General Meeting of Mr. Fidel Lopez Soria
as Director on 1 December 2021, and his election as Chief
Executive Officer by the Board of Directors of the Company

last 16 December 2021. Together with such appointment,
Mr. Fernando Bergasa and Ms. Cristina Maria Avila tendered
their resignations as Chief Executive Officer and Director,
respectively, on 16 December 2021, and effective as of 31
December 2021.

For his part, Mr. Fernando Bergasa has maintained his
position as Director and non-executive Chairman of the
Company.
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3.4. Board of Directors meetings held

The Board has held twelve sessions during FY 2021. In this regard,
the commitment of the Board members in the performance of

Corporate Governance

their duties is noteworthy, with a high level of participation and
attendance at Board meetings, whichin FY 2021 amounted to 88.5%.

Attendance to Board of Directors meetings

February
March
March
March

April
May

May

July
Septiember
October
November
December

3.5. Professional background of the non-executive Chairman

Mr. Fernando Bergasa obtained his PhD in Chemistry
from Princeton University, and has had executive training
at the universities of Harvard and Chicago. Between
2007 and 2011 he held the office of Director-General
Manager at Naturgas Energia and Director at HC Energia.
Additionally, Mr Fernando Bergasa had previously held

different executive offices in Endesa, S.A. and was a
consultant at Mckinsey&Co. Likewise, Mr Fernando
Bergasa has also been a Director and Vice-President of the
Permanent Committee in Sedigas and is a member of the
American Chemical Society and of the Alumni Advisory
Board of the Universidad Auténoma de Madrid.

3.6. Professional background of the Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Fidel Lépez Soria is a Mining Engineer graduated from the
Madrid Polytechnic University and the Paris Ecole Nationale
Superieure des Mines, having completed an MBA from MIT-
Sloan School of Management.

He joined the Ferrovial Group in 2007, working in the Services
and Airports divisions. At Ferrovial Services division he has
been CEO of Broadspectrum, Director of Development of

the division and member of the Boards of Amey, Tube Lines
and Swissport. At Ferrovial Airports division, he has been a
director of HAH and AGS, Commercial Manager of Heathrow
and Manager of Airports at BAA.

Additionally, Mr. Fidel Lépez Soria has held several positions at
Enel and was a consultant at Mckinsey&Co.

. Present
0

. Absent
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3.7. Director term of office

Directors shall hold office for a term of six (6) years and may be re-elected for further terms of the same duration, without
prejudice to their removal at their own request or at the request of the shareholders acting at the General Meeting.

3.8. Board Committees

During the FY 2018 (i) the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, and (ii) the Audit and Risk Committee, were set
up within the Board of Directors.

(i) Appointments and Remuneration Committee

On 25 October 2018, the Board of Directors resolved to set up the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, despite not being
required by law to do so.

Such Committee is composed of 3 members, who are the following:
« Mr. Niels Konstantin Jensen

» Mr. Steve Deeley

« Mr. Li Bo

Mr. Niels Konstantin Jensen was appointed Chairman, and Mr. Ignacio Perefia Pinedo Secretary of the Committee.

1108

Committee members hold office for a 3-year period and may be re-elected.
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Meetings held

In the FY 2021, the Appointments and Remuneration Committee held seven meetings, on the dates and with the agendas
indicated below:

MEETING OF THE APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE OF 19 FEBRUARY 2021

AGENDA
« Proposed settlement of incentives for the year 2020 and the 2018 — 2020 Three-year plan
« Approval of the minutes of the meeting

At such meeting, it was resolved to propose to the Board of Directors the settlement of the relevant incentives
regarding the 2020 Short-Term Incentive Plan for the executive members of the Board of Directors and the rest

of management.

MEETING OF THE APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE OF 8 MARCH 2021

AGENDA
« Proposed settlement of 2018-2020 Three-year incentive plan
« Approval of the minutes of the meeting

At this meeting, it was resolved to propose to the Board of Directors the settlement of the incentives regarding
the 2018-2020 Three-year Incentives Plan of the executive members of the Board of Directors and the rest of

management.

MEETING OF THE APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE OF 23 APRIL 2021

AGENDA

 Proposed amendment of the Executive Directors’ contracts

« Approval of the appointment of Heidrick&Struggles as advisor to the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee in connection with the Redexis’ Strategic Succession Plan.

« Approval of the minutes of the meeting

At such meeting, it was resolved to propose to the Board of Directors an amendment of the Company’s
executive directors’ contracts, as well as to appoint Heidrick&Struggles as advisor to the Appointments and

Remuneration Committee for the elaboration of a Strategic Succession Plan for Redexis.

MEETING OF THE APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE OF 20 MAY 2021

AGENDA

« Proposed appointment and re-election of directors

« Proposal for the appointment of a new Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
« Approval of the minutes of the meeting

At such meeting, it was resolved to propose to the Board of Directors the election of Mr. Sorem Alverde Holm
as Director of the Company and the re-election of Mr. Fernando Bergasa as Director, Chairman and CEO of
Redexis. In addition, it was resolved to propose the appointment of Mr. Borja Polo Bafios as the Company’s new
Chief Financial Officer (CFO).
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MEETING OF THE APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE OF 14 JULY 2021

AGENDA

« Proposal for the appointment of directors

« Proposal of the Short-Term Incentive Plan (STIP)
« Approval of the minutes of the meeting

At such meeting, it was resolved to propose to the Board of Directors the election of Mr. Li Bo as a
director of the Company. In addition, it was resolved to propose the Short-Term Incentive Plan for the

members of the Management Committee and the Company’s executive directors.

MEETING OF THE APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE OF 16 SEPTEMBER 2021

AGENDA

« Proposal for the appointment of directors

« Proposal to amend the addenda dated 23 April 2021 to the contracts of the executive directors.
« Approval of the minutes of the meeting

At such meeting, it was resolved to propose to the Board of Directors the election of Mr. Liu Yuan as
a director of the Company. In addition, it was resolved to propose the amendment of the addenda

entered into on 23 April 2021 to the contracts of the executive directors of the Company.

MEETING OF THE APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE OF 3 NOVEMBER 2021

AGENDA

« Proposal for the appointment of directors

e Succession plan (proposed contractual conditions for the new Chief Executive Officer)

« Proposal to amend the addenda dated 23 April 2021 to the contracts of the executive directors.
« Approval of the minutes of the meeting

At such meeting, it was resolved to propose to the Board of Directors the election of Mr. Fidel Lépez Soria as Director
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, together with his contractual terms and conditions. In addition, it was
agreed to propose the amendment of the addenda entered into on 23 April 2021 to the contracts of the executive
directors of the Company.

(1) Audit and Risk Committee

The Board of Directors resolved to set up the Audit and Risk Committee on 25 October 2018, voluntarily, since there was no legal
requirement in this regard.

Such Committee is composed of three members, who are the following:
+ Mr. Soren Alverde Holm

+ Mr. Steve Deeley

* Mr. Liu Yuan

Mr. Steve Deeley was appointed Chairman of this Committee and Mr. Ignacio Perefia Pinedo Secretary of the same.
The members of the Committee hold office for a 3-year period, and may be re-elected.



Meetings held
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In the FY 2021, the Audit and Risk Committee held one meeting, on the date and with the agenda indicated below.

MEETING OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE OF 19 FEBRUARY 2021

AGENDA
« External advisor

« Internal audit plan for the year 2021

« Compliance Report
« Approval of the minutes of the meeting

The audit plan for the year 2021 was also presented.

« Risk map and results of internal audit for the year 2020

During such meeting, the actions carried out during 2020 were presented, as well as the Company's risk map.

3.9. Conflicts of interest

Directors must inform the Secretary of the Board of Directors,
giving due notice, about any situation which could lead to a
conflict of interest with the Company. Directors must refrain from
attending and participating in the deliberation on issues in which
they have a direct, indirect or personal interest.

It shall also be considered that a Director has a personal interest
when the issue affects a person related to the same, or a company
with which the Director has an employment or professional
relationship, or where such Director performs a management
role or has a significant holding in such Company.

3.10. Director Remuneration

Pursuant to article 21 of the Articles of Association, the
remuneration of directors for the performance of their duties
may consist of a fixed monthly amount, and the Company
may also take out life and health insurance for them. This
remuneration is compatible with and independent of the
remuneration that directors attributed executive functions
within the Company are entitled to receive.

For these purposes, during 2021, no Director has received

In the FY 2021, no Director has reported the existence of any
conflict of interest with the Company.

Furthermore, at the time of the appointment or the re-election of
the Directors, all of them stated that they were not affected by any
grounds for incompatibility that would hinder or prevent them from
exercising any of their functions and, particularly, those set out in Act
3/2015, of 30 March, regulating the exercise of senior positions in the
General State Administration, as well as those established in articles
227,228,229,230and 231 of Legislative Royal Decree 1/2010, of 2 July,
approving the Consolidated Text of the Spanish Companies Act.

remuneration for his or her status as such. On the other hand,
the directors who performed executive functions during
2021 were Mr. Fernando Bergasa Céceres and Ms. Cristina
Avila Garcia. Such directors received remuneration for the
performance of such executive functions, in accordance with
the provisions of Legislative Royal Decree 1/2010, of 2 July,
approving the Consolidated Text of the Spanish Companies
Act, the Articles of Association and the resolutions adopted
for such purpose by the Board of Directors.
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3.11. Notice of the meetings

Sufficient notice was given of all meetings of the Board
of Directors that were called, and the explanatory

3.12. Information provided to the Directors

Before holding each Board meeting, the company’s
management provides each of the Directors with relevant
information about the Company and the Group, such as
the financial evolution of the companies in the Group,
regulatory issues and on-going tenders, occupational

documentation for each of the items on the agenda was
made available to the Directors.

health and safety mattersand any otherrelevantinformation
that they should know. For such purposes, Directors have
access to the mentioned information through a web portal
made available to the same by the Company.

4. General Meeting of Shareholders

4.1 General Meetings of Shareholders held

In the FY 2021, five General Meetings of Shareholders were held, on the date and with the agenda set out below.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF 20 MAY 2021

AGENDA

« Approval of the minutes of the meeting

« Resignation of a member of the Board of Directors

« Appointment of members of the Board of Directors

« Remuneration relating to executive members of the Board of Directors

« Proposal for the appointment of a new member of the Board of Directors of Redexis Gas Finance, B.V.

« Approval of the Annual Accounts and Management Report of Redexis Gas S.A., and the consolidated Annual
Accounts and Management Report of Redexis Gas S.A. and its subsidiaries for the FY 2020

« Approval of the allocation of profit or loss for the FY 2020

« Approval of the management of the Board of Directors for the FY 2020

« Amendment of articles 1 and 21 of the Company’s Articles of Association

At such meeting, the Group’s ordinary and consolidated annual accounts and the management by
the Board of Directors were approved, and the allocation of profit was resolved. Also, it was resolved
to amend Articles 1 and 21 of the Articles of Association concerning the Company's corporate name
and Board member remuneration respectively, as well as the resignation of Mr Ulrik Dan Weuder as a
Director of the Company, the appointment of Mr Soren Alverde Holm as a new member of the Board of
Directors and the re-election of Mr Fernando Bergasa Caceres as a Director of the Company.
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EXTRAORDINARY MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS HELD ON 14 JULY 2021

AGENDA

« Resignation of a member of the Board of Directors

» Appointment of a new member of the Board of Directors
« Distribution of dividends

« Approval of the minutes of the meeting

At such meeting, the distribution of dividends by the Company was approved, as well as the acknowledgement

of the resignation of Mr. Oliver Jan Schubert as a director of the Company and the appointment of Mr. Li Bo as
a new member of the Board of Directors.

EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF 16 SEPTEMBER 2021

AGENDA

« Resignation of a member of the Board of Directors

« Appointment of a new member of the Board of Directors
« Approval of the minutes of the meeting

At such meeting, the resignation of Mr. Ng Chik Sum was acknowledged and the appointment of Mr. Liu Yuan
as a new Director of the Company was approved.

EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF 1 DECEMBER 2021

AGENDA

« Appointment of new member of the Board of Directors
« Executive director remuneration

« Distribution of dividends

« Approval of the minutes of the meeting

At such meeting, the distribution of dividends by the Company was approved, as well as the appointment of
a new member of the Board of Directors, Mr. Fidel Lopez Soria, and the remuneration for executive directors,

Mr. Fernando Bergasa Caceres and Ms. Cristina Avila Garcia.

EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF 16 DECEMBER 2021

AGENDA
« Non-Executive director remuneration
« Approval of the minutes of the meeting

At such meeting, the remuneration of the non-executive Chairman of the company, Mr. Fernando Bergasa
Caceres was approved.
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4.2 Shareholder information

The Company has strictly complied with the obligations
established in article 197 of the Consolidated Text of the
Spanish Companies Act in relation to the duty to inform

5. New Business Activities

5.1 Photovoltaic business

During 2021, Redexis Gas Servicios, S.L.U. (hereinafter,
“Redexis Servicios”), a subsidiary of Redexis, has continued
to promote the photovoltaic business. To this end, in
February 2021, Redexis Servicios reached an agreement
with Cepsa Comercial Petréleo, S.A.U. (hereinafter, "CEPSA")

5.2 Hydrogen

5.2.1 Green Hysland

On 1January 2021, the execution of the so-called“Green Hysland”
project commenced, a project in which Redexis participates as
a member of the international consortium that is implementing
it. This project aims to deploy a hydrogen ecosystem covering
its entire value chain in Majorca (Spain), turning the island into
the first H2 hub in southwest Europe. The project develops the
necessary infrastructures for the production of green hydrogen
from solar energy and its distribution to end users, such as

5.2.2 Hydrogen Cluster of Castilla-La Mancha

In November 2021, Redexis joined the Hydrogen Cluster
of Castilla-La Mancha with the objective of advancing in
the renewable hydrogen value chain and establishing a
collaboration network between public and private entities to
promote its development and consolidation.

To this end, the Hydrogen Cluster of Castilla-La Mancha was
launched in 2020 and is currently located at the National
Hydrogen Centre. Its main functions are (i) the analysis
and preparation of plans, programmes and strategies for

5.2.3 Ready4H?2 Initiative

In the month of November 2021, Redexis joined the “Ready4H2”
initiative together with Nedgia, Nortegas, Madrilefia Red de
Gas, Gas Extremadura and a total of 59 European distributors
from 13 countries to support the development of a hydrogen
market and share knowledge and experience, with the aim of
contributing to the transformation of the European energy
infrastructure and achieving the European Union's climate
neutrality objectives.

shareholders and for the purposes of facilitating and
ensuring the exercise of shareholders rights.

for the installation, commissioning, sale and maintenance
by Redexis Servicios of approximately 1,800 photovoltaic
installations at CEPSA Service Stations located in Spain and
Portugal for self-consumption of electricity by the Service
Stations themselves.

the island's tourism, transport, industrial and energy sectors,
including injection into the gas grid for the generation of heat
and green energy at the location of its end use.

This project has received funding from the European
Union under the FCH JU (Fuel Cells and Hydrogen Joint
Undertaking) Annual Call for Proposals within the H2020
programme.

sustainable development based on the implementation
of this energy vector technology in the region; (ll)
collaboration with other Spanish and European associations
and clusters; and (iii) the positioning of the Autonomous
Community of Castilla-La Mancha both nationally and
internationally, identifying strategic projects in the field of
hydrogen technologies that improve the competitiveness
of the industrial fabric, and contribute to the creation of
employment and wealth linked to green energies.

The initiative aims to facilitate the implementation of a
national and European regulatory framework for hydrogen
development, tapping into the potential of the European gas
infrastructure and thus benefiting citizens and contributing to
achieve the EU's carbon neutrality target.

“Ready4H2" is developing its action mainly in three areas: (I)
analysis on the involvement of the different distributors in



hydrogen development, accumulated experience and strategy
in their countries; (Il) analysis on how European gas distributors
can contribute to strategic territorial planning; and (lll) a

5.2.4 Zeppelin Project

In December 2021, the Centre for the Development of
Industrial Technology (hereinafter, "CDTI") issued the
Final Resolution of the call for the "Science and Innovation
Missions" programme for the year 2021, a programme
aimed at supporting strategic sectorial business innovation
initiatives within the framework of the State Programme for
Business Leadership in R&D&I.

Thus, the consortium formed by six large companies,
including Redexis, and two SMEs, together with the
collaboration of nine research organisations presented
the "Zeppelin" project, which has been considered by the

5.2.5 Redexis-Air Liquide agreement

In December 2021, Redexis and Air Liquide signed an
agreement for the analysis of the joint deployment of a
network of up to 100 hydrogen refuelling stations in Spain
by 2030, mostly dedicated to heavy mobility.

The network of hydrogen refuelling stations would be strategically
located in the main logistics centres, such as Madrid and
Barcelona, as well as on the main transport corridors linking the
country with Europe, the Mediterranean and Atlantic corridors.

5.3 Natural Gas for Vehicles

Within the framework of the agreement entered into in 2019
between Redexis Servicios and Cepsa Comercial Petréleo, S.A.U.
(hereinafter, “CEPSA”), in 2021, several refuelling stations for
natural gas vehicles were inaugurated, including the refuelling
stations in Trujillo, Castillejo de Iniesta and Getafe.

6. Intra-Group Transactions

As part of its activities, the Company has entered into different
agreements with companies belonging to its Group, which are
detailed below:

« A framework agreement for the provision of services
between the Company and the rest of the companiesin the
Redexis Group, dated 30 June 2016, under which Redexis
provides the rest of the companies in its Group, among
others, services regarding systems and communications,

Corporate Governance

roadmap with concrete initiatives so that they may be the link
between hydrogen producers and consumers.

CDTI in its Final Decision. The objective of this project is to
investigate a flexible set of technologies for the production
and storage of green hydrogen based on the use of waste
and by-products, seeking to significantly improve the costs
and efficiency of the production of this energy vector.

In this context, Redexis will study the different ammonia
synthesis, storage and catalytic decomposition technologies
in order to design a modular plant for the production, storage
and dispensing of ammonia from hydrogen of renewable
origin, and for the decomposition of ammonia to release
such hydrogen.

This project was submitted to the Expressions of Interest
(EOI) of the Ministry for Ecological Transition and the
Demographic Challenge in 2020, under the name of DESIRE
H2 and is participating in the IPCEl mechanism (Important
Projects of Common European Interest). It has also been
selected by the ECH2A (European Clean Hydrogen Alliance)
to form part of the European platform's project portfolio.

At the same time, in September 2021, the operation
to supply renewable gas - biomethane - to Zaragoza
Transport Consortium buses operated by Alsa Agreda began
at the gas station located at the Zaragoza Taxi Cooperative
Service Station.

human resources, general services and corporate support.

« A twin-tube assignment agreement dated 23 December 2016,
under which the Company, together with Redexis Murcia,
S.A. and Redexis Infraestructuras, S.L.U., assigns to Redexis
Gas Servicios, S.L.U. the physical infrastructures attached to
the transmission and distribution networks owned by the
same, so that Redexis Gas Servicios, S.L.U. may carry out the
provision of the telecommunications services.
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« A credit agreement entered into between the Company
and Redexis Gas Murcia, S.A. under which the former grants
the latter a loan for an amount of EUR sixty five million
(€65,000,000). Such credit agreement initially expired on
31 December 2016; however, it has been automatically
renewed by the parties for one-year periods.

« Agreements for the sale and purchase of LPG facilities,
entered into on (I) 30 November 2017; and (ll) 31 January
2020, between Redexis Gas Murcia, S.A. and Redexis GLP,
S.L.U. pursuant to which the former sells to the latter piped
LPG facilities, together with different devices and networks
related thereto, as well as the LPG supply contracts signed
with the customers in connection with such facilities.

« Agreement for the sale and purchase of LPG facilities,
entered into on 30 November 2017, between the Company
and Redexis Gas Murcia, S.A. pursuant to which the former
sells to the latter piped LPG facilities, together with
different devices and networks related thereto, as well as
the LPG supply contracts signed with the customers in
connection with such facilities.

« Agreement for the sale and purchase of LPG facilities, entered
into on 31 January 2020, between the Company and Redexis
GLP, S.L.U. pursuant to which the former sells to the latter

piped LPG facilities, together with different devices and
networks related thereto, as well as the LPG supply contracts
signed with the customers in connection with such facilities.

« Agreement for the sale and purchase of LPG facilities
entered into on 22 November 2021, between the
Company and Redexis GLP, S.L.U. pursuant which the
former sells to the latter piped LPG facilities together with
various instruments and networks related thereto, as well
as the LPG supply contracts signed with the customers in
connection with such facilities.

» A services agreement between the Company and the
Redexis Foundation, entered into on 27 November
2020, pursuant to which Redexis provides the Redexis
Foundation with, inter alia, services relating to systems
and communications, human resources, general services
and corporate support.

« A loan agreement between the Company and Redexis
Infraestructuras, S.L.U. entered into on 18 December 2020,
pursuant to which the former grants the latter a loan of
three hundred and twenty-six million, nine hundred and
twenty-nine thousand, nine hundred and ninety-four euros
and three cents (EUR 326,929,994.03). This loan agreement
has a duration of 10 years, ending on 18 December 2030.

7. Sale and Purchase of Liquified Petroleum Gas (LPG)

Supply Points

Following the acquisitions made in previous years, on 16
December 2021, the Company and different companies in the
Nedgia Group entered into a framework agreement under
which the former acquired from the latter 14,450 supply
points, 321 piped LPG facilities, as well as various LPG-related
devices and networks associated therewith. In addition, the
Company acquired from the Nedgia Group the LPG supply
contracts subscribed with the customers in connection with
the aforementioned facilities. This transaction was notified to
the Spanish National Markets and Competition Commission
(CNMC) on 26 January 2021, which notified the Company of its
approval of the transaction on 16 February 2022.

In addition, on 30 December 2021, the Company and
different companies in the Cepsa Group entered into a
framework agreement under which the former has acquired
from the latter 2,295 LPG supply points, 98 piped LPG
facilities, as well as various devices and networks associated
therewith. In addition, the Company has acquired from the
Cepsa Group the LPG supply contracts signed with the
customers in connection with the aforementioned facilities.
This transaction is pending approval by Spain’s National
Markets and Competition Commission (CNMCQ).



8. Sustainability

8.1 GRESB

In November 2021, Redexis received from GRESB, for the third
year in a row, the recognition as leader in the 2020 Infrastructure
Sustainability Indexin ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance),
and the maximum rating granted and recognized with five stars.

GRESB is a worldwide sustainability index that evaluates and rates
the work done by more than 500 funds and assets from different
sectors to promote sustainable development, under a global
standard in environmental, social and governance matters. This
ranking provides data that is standardized and validated by the
capital markets, making it a worldwide reference for measuring
the performance of companies in the area of sustainability.

8.2VIGEO

In April 2021, Redexis received fromVigeo Eiris the report on key
metrics of corporate social responsibility and sustainability of
the Company. To this end, Redexis has seen its ESG rating from
Vigeo Eiris, a leading company in the assessment of Corporate
Social Responsibility, increase by 6 points, obtaining a rating of
“robust” in the performance of a socially and environmentally
responsible activity.

Thus, Redexis has obtained a higher score than the average of the
companies in its sector in the environmental, social responsibility

8.3TCFD

During the 2021 financial year Redexis has carried out
the update of the analysis exercise proposed by the Task
Force on Climate related Financial Disclosures (TCFD).
The TCFD establishes recommendations for transparent,
comparable and consistent disclosure of information on
the risks and opportunities presented by climate change,
so that the implementation of these recommendations
helps companies to demonstrate their responsibility and

8.4 Sustainability report

In July 2021, Redexis published its Sustainability Report
in order to make available to its stakeholders and other
interested parties the most relevant information for
the FY 2020. This report was also published on the
Redexis website.

Corporate Governance

In this edition, GRESB has awarded Redexis, within the
Diversification category, the maximum rating of five stars
and nine points more than in the last edition, reaching
a total of 91 points out of 100. This places Redexis in the
Top 20 of the Benchmark, with results above the average
of the companies that have participated and the rest
of the companies in the sector. The result awarded by
GRESB demonstrates Redexis’ commitment to sustainable
development and to implement practices and solutions in
the field of social and environmental responsibility in the
sphere of our activities.

and corporate governance indicators. Vigeo Eiris highlights the
evolution of Redexis in all the areas analysed, mainly in the social
aspect, rising overall from 50 to 57 points.

With this score, Redexis has improved the margins applicable to
the Revolving Facility Agreement entered into on 30 May 2019
between the Company and various financial institutions. Said
financing is a sustainable financing and in view of improvements
in the rating issued by Vigeo, the interest rate applicable to the
same is reduced.

foresight in the face of the circumstances associated with
climate change.

In this sense, Redexis has analysed the risks and opportunities
associated with climate change in the 2030 horizon and has
identified the lines of action necessary to mitigate or adapt to
the circumstances arising from climate change, and this report
has been presented to the company's Board of Directors.

Taking the content of the 2019 Sustainability Report as
a starting point and in line with its transparency policy,
Redexis continues to strengthen and advance its activity
from an ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance) point of
view. This report analyses and reviews the company's activity
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and results, providing a comprehensive overview of the
sustainability of its business model and strategic approach.

The objective of the information presented is to
communicate how Redexis creates value in a precise,
detailed manner, coherent with the environment and the

8.5 Statement of Non-Financial Information

Pursuant to the provisions of Act 11/2018 of 28 December 2018
amending the Commercial Code, the revised text of the Spanish
Companies Act approved by Royal Legislative Decree 1/2010 of
2 July and Act 22/2015 of 20 July on the Audit of Accounts, in
terms of non-financial information and diversity, Redexis has
prepared the statement of non-financial information.

9. Redexis Foundation

The Redexis Foundation was established on 12 July 2019,
with the objective of promoting the social work developed

activity it carries out, understandable and accessible to all
its stakeholders. This report also demonstrates Redexis'
commitment to the ten principles of the Global Compact
and the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
and provides a response to the Company's progress in the
implementation of these principles.

Through this document, Redexis reports on matters relating to
its business model, risk management, its commitment to the
environment, as well as on social, labour, human rights, anti-
corruption, responsible taxation, sustainable development
and relations with users and customers, all of which are
material issues for the company.

by Redexis. To this end, the Foundation's general objective is ) )
to promote technological innovation and the development of Name Date of appointment Office
social, charitable, assistance, educational or cultural works. Mr. Fernando Bergasa Céceres 12 July 2019 Ghairman
. . . Mes. Cristina Avila Garcia 12 July 2019 Trustee
In particular, the Foundation will promote the development and ) )
well-being of existing social groups in the territories where it Mr. Borja Polo Baios 22 July 2021 Trustee
operates, with special consideration given to the promotion of Mr. Ignacio Perefa Pinedo 12 July 2019 Trustee
infrastructures that contribute to sustainable development and Ms. Esther Reyes de Frutos 12 July 2019 Secretary
a cleaner economy. non-trustee

Ms Cristina Avila Garcia tendered her resignation as a director of the Company on 31
December 2021. In turn, on 3 January 2022, Mr. Fidel Lépez Soria was appointed trustee of
the Redexis Foundation.

The administration of Redexis Foundation corresponds
to its Board of Trustees in accordance with article 9 of its
Foundational Charter, which as of 31 December 2021 is made
up of four trustees as indicated below:

10. Actions in The Field of Good Corporate Governance

1118

In order to maintain its commitment to good corporate
governance and transparency, the Company has continued
todevelop actionsduring 2021 to ensure correct compliance
with market regulations and good practices. The Company
has a Code of Conduct and an internal and external
whistleblowing channel that allows the Head of Corporate

Governance to be informed of any possible breach of
the same.

So, in addition to the work already performed in previous
years, different actions were carried out in 2021, among
which, the following should be highlighted:



10.1 Internal rules

During 2021, the Company has approved:

() Review of the Redexis Group's procedure for reporting
alleged irregularities. The review of this Procedure has been

carried out within the framework of the provisions of Directive
2019/1937 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23
October 2019 on the protection of persons who report breaches

(1) Risk Management Manual. The purpose of the Manual
is to develop the principles established in the Redexis Risk
Management Policy previously approved in order to define

10.2 Training platform

Redexis is firmly committed to training its employees. In
this regard, the “Campus Redexis” training platform has
been used to provide employees with different courses and
contents, so that they may continue to advance in their
professional development. Specifically, the main courses to
which employees have had access are the following:

« Code of Conduct Course: A course intended to explain the
Company's ethical Code, to whom it applies and its basic
principles.

« Course on the procedure for reporting allegedly irregular
acts: The main objective of this course is to establish a
method to report to Redexis’ management any acts that
could be irregular or criminal, committed by any person in
the organization, and the way in which the management
deals with the complaints that are sent to the same.

« Course on Gifts and Entertainment to Public Officials: The
purpose of this course is to inform employees about what
is meant by gifts and entertainment to public officials
and which gifts and entertainment to public officials are
prohibited and which are allowed.

« Course on Prevention of Money Laundering, Terrorist
Financing, Bribery and Corruption: The purpose of this
course is to inform about the framework in which Redexis
and its employees must act within the general context of
crime prevention and, specifically, itis aimed at preventing
potential bribery and corruption risks in its business with
third parties.

« Course on Relations with Members of Public Authorities:
the purpose of this course is to set out the standards to
be followed in the relationships that personnel employed
by Redexis maintain with members of Public Authorities,
whether or not they hold an elected position.

Corporate Governance

of Union law and aims to establish a communication mechanism
through which any natural or legal person who has a relationship
with the Redexis Group may report any potential breach, irregularity
or wrongdoing that they observe or in which they are involved in
the context of their relationship with the Redexis Group.

the criteria for action, responsibilities and operation of the
Organisation's Risk Management System.

o Course on Meetings with Public Organisations and
Authorities: This course informs employees about the
process for reporting on and following up the meetings that
employees of the Redexis hold with the publicadministration
or public bodies during the performance of their duties.

« Tools for teleworking: This course informs employees
about the different tools that are available to them in
order to carry out their work from outside the office in an
effective and efficient way.

o Courses on "write, understand and speak business
English: The main objective of these courses is to improve
employees' knowledge and skills in the use of English in
their jobs.

« Courses on the various Office suite programmes (Access,
PowerPoint, Outlook, Excel, Office365 and Word): These
courses are intended to help employees improve their
knowledge and use of the various Office suite programmes.

o Data protection awareness pills: The main objective of
this activity is to make employees aware of the applicable
data protection regulations and how it affects the activity
performed.

« Madrid Office Emergency Plan: The main purpose of this
course is to disseminate the Emergency Plan for the Ma-
drid Office.

o Cybersecurity course: The objective of this course is for
employees to have the necessary training in cybersecurity
to avoid undesired situations and to be able to react
appropriately in risk situations.

o Air emissions management course: The purpose of this
course is to provide training and awareness to employees
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on how CO, emissions affect climate change, and to
provide training and awareness of Redexis' efforts to
reduce CO, emissions.

ISO 5001:2018 transition course: This course aims to
provide an understanding of: (I) the key changes of the ISO
50001:2018 version; (Il) the management requirements of
the standard "Strategic aspects”; and (Ill) the technical
requirements of the standard "Tactical aspects".

Course on energy efficiency at the office: The purpose
of this course is to (i) acquire good practices in air
conditioning, lighting, computer systems, transport
and mobility to achieve energy savings in offices; (ii)
participate in the continuous improvement of energy and
environmental managementat Redexis and (iii) contribute
to nurturing Redexis' corporate culture in environment
and energy management to achieve environmental
excellence integrated in its corporate culture.

+ Redexis Integrated Management System (OHS, ENVIRON
and EM): EThe objective of this course is to inform

10.3 Work environment survey

In September 2021, Redexis launched a survey to carry out a
work environment and commitment study among its employees.
The objective of such survey was to measure and manage the

10.4 Health and Safety and the Environment

Health and safety conditions at the workplace, together with
the environment, are one of the top priorities for the Company.

Thus, these values of Redexis are reflected by paying great
attention to the management of the managing the following
key issues:

a) The operation of a modern and efficient Control Centre, which
manages notifications ofincidents by third parties onafull-time
basis, controlling restricted access to the facilities, monitoring
in real time the technical alarms that are generated in our
facilities, managing the operation of the network through its
graphic information system of the networks, monitoring gas
discharges to our storage centres and directing actions for the
resolution of potential emergencies.

employees of (I) the Redexis Group Integrated Policy; (Il)
the Major Accident Prevention Policy; (Ill) the Integrated
Management System Manual, (IV) the Occupational Health
and Safety, Environment and Energy Documents; (V) the
OHS Standards (Noss), (VI) the Environmental Standards
and (vii) the formats and documents implemented for
each activity.

« Waste management course: The purpose of this course
is to help employees improve their knowledge of waste
generated at Redexis offices, for the management and
recycling thereof.

In addition, Redexis made available to its employees,
through an external provider, the Pharos training platform
specialising in Engineering, Infrastructure and Energy
content, as well as training in Big Data, Project Management,
Environment, among others. This platform has more than
500 online courses to choose from, so that employees to
may find those that best suit their needs and preferences.

organizational environment and sustainable commitment to
positively influence business results. This survey was carried out
by 86 % of the staff (69% of the staff in the 2020 survey).

b) The implementation of a system of continuous training
and education of our technicians in safety and environ-
mental matters.

¢) The dissemination to employees of the risks identified
and the preventive measures to be implemented and the
dissemination of preventive communication campaigns.

d) The implementation and dissemination of emergency
plans, providing specific training and periodically
carrying out drills to resolve potential emergencies.

e) The implementation of measures for the continuous
improvement of processes.



f) Intensive monitoring of field work by companies specialising in
occupational safety and environmental control.

g) Processes of prior environmental impact assessment of projects
where required.

h) A specific system for managing the environmental obligations
and requirements established by the regulator or local
authorities.

I) Rigorous specific systems for monitoring waste, discharges and
emissions.

The Company carries out actions that contribute, directly or in-
directly, to the Sustainable Development Goals approved by the
United Nations. Thus, Redexis focuses its sustainable development
efforts on working under two principles:

« Commitment to society
« Respect for the environment

In turn, promoted by the Senior Management, the Company has
defined an Integrated Policy that concerns all the Company's
employees, in accordance with the principles of sustainable
development, environmental conservation and efficient use of
the resources it uses.

10.5 Sponsorship and collaborative actions

The company maintains a continuous dialogue with local
institutions and communities, in order to identify their needs
and interests and to collaborate jointly through sponsorship
and collaborative actions in social, environmental, sports or
cultural projects.

In 2021, Redexis, either directly or through the Redexis Foundation,
has carried out a significant job of sponsoring and collaborating
with different organizations, associations and institutions,
demonstrating its commitment to proximity and creating value in
the areas where it operates. In the cultural field, it has remained as
sponsor of the Teatro Real, thus confirming its intention to support
the cultural and artistic project of this institution and forming part
of its Board of Trustees. Additionally, the Redexis Foundation has
been an Official Collaborator of the 60th Edition of the Cante de
las Minas with the aim of promoting the development of cultural
works, in line with the needs of the communities, in this case, La
Unién, where flamenco is a sign of identity for its citizens.

Among the conferences in which Redexis has participated

Corporate Governance

Finally, during the 2021 financial year, the following specific actions
carried out within the framework of health and safety and the
environment are worth noting:

a) The carbon footprint has been registered and submitted to the
Ministry of Ecological Transition in November 2021.

b) Redexis has participated in the process conducted by Gresb BV
to audit best practices in environmental, social and corporate
governance matters, as described in section 7.1

¢) The Healthy Business certificate has been maintained.

d) The ISO 14001:2015, ISO 45001:2018 and ISO 50001:2018
management systems for energy management have been
renewed.

e) The integrated policy on Occupational Health and Safety,
Environment and Energy as well as the Policy on the Prevention
of serious accidents continue in force.

Finally, it should be noted that the necessary audits have been
passed for renewing the certificates described in sections c), d) and
e) above.

or sponsored with institutions, it is worth highlighting: (i) the
breakfast on energy organised by El Periédico de Aragon; (i) the
event "Mallorca, European model of green hydrogen ecosystem”;
(i) the 5th National Renewable Energy Congress of APPA
Renovables; (iv) the conference "Electricity Market and Consumers"
in Murcia; (v) the Aragon Fire Academy Conference "Emergency
Management with Natural Gas"; (vi) the technical conference "The
challenges of self-consumption"; (vii) the dialogue on photovoltaic
solar energy organised by Servimedia; (viii) the "ODS Digital
Encounters - Energy" forum organised by Ideal; (ix) the Balearic
Government's round table for the fight against energy poverty;
(x) Funseam's 2nd circular economy cycle; (xi) GASNAM's "Green
Gas Mobility" congress; (xii) the "RENMAD Hydrogen 2021" event;
(xiii) the green hydrogen valley platform of the Region of Murcia;
(xiv) 2nd National Self-consumption Congress organised by APPA;
(xv) the event "Green hydrogen: Key in the decarbonisation of the
economy"; (xvi) the Webinar on the "Power to Green Hydrogen
Mallorca" project organised by Sedigas; and (xvii) the breakfast
organised by El Periédico de Aragdn to present the situation of the
energy sector in the region.
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In turn, aligned with the values and principles represented by
sport, Redexis, either directly or through the Redexis Foundation,
has supported various activities and sports clubs, highlighting (1)
the 3rd Corporate Run of La Verdad in Murcia; (i) the sponsorship
of Cuevas Club de Futbol de Almeria, UCAM Murcia CB and the
women's teams of Sala Zaragoza and Asociacion Deportiva Mérida.

On the other hand, Redexis has not been unaware of the current
delicate situation of certain groups. To this end, and in order
to alleviate, to a certain extent, such situations, the Redexis
Foundation made (I) a donation of ten thousand euros (€10,000)
to the Cabildo de La Palma to collaborate with the most urgent
needs of those affected by the eruption of the Cumbre Vieja
volcano; and (Il launched the 1st Redexis Foundation Aid Line
aimed at welfare and social projects. The aim was to support
projects that contribute to improving the quality of life of
vulnerable groups, with the following entities being awarded
the grants:

« Dislexia Hellin (Albacete, Castilla-La Mancha), an association
for people with dyslexia, for the implementation of
workshops to help improve the autonomy and work-life
balance of people with dyslexia.

o Cdaritas Diocesana de Meérida- Badajoz (Badajoz,
Extremadura), which provides care of people in situations
of social exclusion, to change the entire gas installation of
its centre, improving the energy efficiency of the building.

o Ajudisle in Lebrija (Seville), aimed at people with
physical and/or mental disabilities, for the replacement
of the lighting elements of its installations to improve
energy efficiency.

e Asprodeme in Puerto Real (Cadiz), an association that
provides care for people with intellectual disabilities, for
the development of theoretical and practical training
and job orientation activities for its users.

e Ahinco Conil de la Frontera (Cadiz), an organisation
for people with disabilities, for the adaptation of its
facilities for leisure and the promotion of job training
and employment for the users of its centre.

Finally, Redexis has launched the channel “Redexis
Commitment” ("Compromiso Redexis") where it reports on
all Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and Sustainability
actions, campaigns and projects that are carried out.



'

- -

Redexis

Consolidatead
Annual

Accounts

123 |






Redexis, S.A. and
Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2021,
together with Independent Auditor's
Report

Translation of a report originally issued in
Spanish based on our work performed in
accordance with the audit regulations in force
in Spain. In the event of a discrepancy, the
Spanish-language version prevails.



- Deloitte, S.L.
Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasso, 1
Deloitte.
v 28020 Madrid
Esparia

Tel: +34 915 14 50 00
www.deloitte.es
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Shareholders of Redexis, S.A.,

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Redexis, S.A. (the Parent) and its
subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement of
cash flows and notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year then ended.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated equity and consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and its consolidated results and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union (EU-IFRSs) and the other provisions of the regulatory financial reporting
framework applicable to the Group in Spain.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the audit regulations in force in Spain. Our
responsibilities under those regulations are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements, including those
pertaining to independence, that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in Spain pursuant to the audit regulations in force. In this regard, we have not
provided any services other than those relating to the audit of financial statements and there
have not been any situations or circumstances that, in accordance with the aforementioned audit
regulations, might have affected the requisite independence in such a way as to compromise our
independence.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Deloitte, S.L. Inscrita en el Registro Mercantil de Madrid, tomo 13.650, seccion 82, folio 188, hoja M-54414, inscripcién 962. C.I.F.: B-79104469
Domicilio social: Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasso, 1, Torre Picasso, 28020, Madrid.



The most significant audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
considered to be the most significant risks of material misstatement in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These risks were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on those risks.

Measurement of the goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life arising

from business combinations carried out 'In-,p_rior_years

Description

As described in Note 8 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, the
Group's non-current assets include goodwill
amounting to EUR 219,175 thousand and
intangible assets with an indefinite useful
life relating to gas distribution and
transmission licences amounting to EUR
542,914 thousand arising from business
combinations carried out in prior years.

The assessment of the recoverable amount
of the goodwill and intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life both allocated to the
transmission and distribution operating
segments requires the use of significant
judgements and estimates by management,
in estimating both the performance of the
activity and the future growth of the
business estimation.

We identified this matter as one of the most
significant matters in our audit based on
both the magnitude of the amounts affected
and the high degree of judgement required
of management when assessing the
recoverable amount of the goodwill and
intangible assets with an indefinite useful
life.

Procedures applied in the audit

Our audit procedures included, among
others, evaluating the feasibility of the
valuation methodology and key assumptions
used by management.

In this respect, we evaluated the feasibility
of the cash flow projections and the
discount rates applied by comparing the
assumptions made with data obtained from
both internal and external sources, and

| performed a critical evaluation of the key

‘ assumptions in the models used.

In particular, we verified the feasibility of

| the remuneration formulae used for the
estimation of the revenue having checked

' that they were consistent with the current

| regulations, as well as the use of a terminal

' value in the valuation of assets by applying a

| perpetual growth rate, for which we have

| involved our internal valuation specialists.

In addition, we have conducted a
retrospective review on prior years
estimations with the aim of identifying bias
in management cash flow projections and
assessed the historical compliance of the
Group’s budgets in order to assess the
reliability of the estimates made by the
Management.



Measurement of the goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life arising

from business combinations carried out in prior years

Description

Procedures applied in the audit

Finally, we have performed a sensitivity
analysis regarding the key assumptions and
assumptions identified, also evaluating
whether the note 3.f}, 3.g) and 8 of the
attached consolidated annual accounts
include all relevant disclosures required in
accordance with the applicable financial

| reporting regulatory framework.

Recognition of revenue from the gas system

Description

As described in notes 1 and 4 and Appendix |
to the attached consolidated annual
accounts, the principal activity of the Group
is the distribution and transport of gas and
petroleum products of any kind whose
revenues are calculated on the basis of the
remuneration formulae contained in the
applicable regulations and subject to the
system of liquidations of the National
Commission on Markets and Competition
{(CNMC).

In this context, the accuracy and cut-off of
the sales, due to the factors described
above, were considered to be significant
matters in our audit for 2021.

Procedures applied in the audit

Our audit procedures included, among
others, understanding the regulated
revenue process followed by the Group,
reviewing current legislation and evaluating
compliance therewith.

These tests were applied together with
procedures to verify the applicable
remuneration parameters and management
information used by the Group to calculate
the revenue for the year. In addition, the
correct recognition of the settiements
received in the year was verified, together
with the collections made from and
payments made to the associated gas
system.

Lastly, we checked that the disclosures
included in Notes 3.0) and 28 to the
accompanying consolidated financial
statements in connection with this matter
were in conformity with those required by
the applicable accounting regulations.




The other information comprises only the consolidated directors’ report for 2021, the preparation
of which is the responsibility of the Parent’s directors and which does not form part of the
consolidated financial statements.

Our audit opinion on the consolidated annual accounts does not cover the consolidated
management report. Our responsibility for the consolidated management report, as required by
the regulations governing the audit activity, consists of:

a) Only verify that the consolidated non-financial information statement has been provided in the
manner provided for in the applicable regulations and, if not, report on it.

b) To evaluate and report on the consistency of the rest of the information included in the
consolidated directors’ report with the consolidated annual accounts, based on the knowledge of
the Group obtained during the audit of those accounts, and to assess and report on whether the
content and presentation of this part of the consolidated directors’ report comply with the
applicable rules. If, based on the work we have done, we conclude that there are material
improprieties, we are obliged to report it.

Based on the work done, as described above, we have verified that the information referred to in
paragraph a) above is provided in the manner provided for in the applicable regulations and that
the rest of the information contained in the consolidated directors’ report is consistent with that
of the consolidated annual accounts for the financial year 2021 and its content and presentation
are in accordance with the applicable rules.

The Parent’s directors are responsible for preparing the accompanying consolidated financial
statements so that they present fairly the Group’s consolidated equity, consolidated financial
position and consolidated results in accordance with EU-IFRSs and the other provisions of the
regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Group in Spain, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Parent’s directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to

do so.



Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with the audit regulations in force in Spain will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
is included in Appendix | to this auditor’s report. This description, which is on the following page,
forms part of our auditor's report.

DELOITTE, S.L.
Registered in ROAC under no. S0692

Jorge lzquierdo Mazdn
Rggistered in R.O.A.C. under no. 18.194

31 March 2022



Appendix | to our auditor’s report

Further to the information contained in our auditor’s report, in this Appendix we include our
responsibilities in relation to the audit of the consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the audit regulations in force in Spain, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Parent's directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the use by the Parent's directors of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.



We communicate with the Parent’s directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

From the significant risks communicated with the Parent’s directors, we determine those risks
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the most significant assessed risks.

We describe those risks in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter.
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REDEXIS, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Fositien for 31 December 2021
(Expressed in thousands of Ewos)

Assels

Property, plant and equipment
oadwill
Dihar intangibie assets
Rigd of use aszafs
Mor-cumrent financial assets
Tracde ard other receivabies

Tofal non-cierrent assets

Inventanes
Trade and other receivanles
Oilher currand finaneial aszals
Other current asssets
Cazh and cash equivalents
Tolal currant assets

Total assets

Equity and Liabilifies

Cagital
Share prermiam
{Other resenves
Lthar compranansiva intcama

Equity attribuiable to equity holders

of the Parent
Equity: Mon-controlling interests

Total equiky
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Loans and borrowings
Qther finanoiz abilities
Leaza liabilitias
Beferred tax liabililies
Provisions for employes benafits
Gihar provisions
Government grants and other liabidities
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Prncipai
Intarest
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Principal
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Trage and other payihles
Current incoma tax liabilities
Provisions for employee benefits
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Total equity and liabilities
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11, 1 and 15
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15

12 snd 16
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20
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13
24
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20

21

3

21

2024 2020
1ATB969  1,423.284
2§9,175 219,475
561517 E58,703
11,582 1,630
1,502 i BB
5,802 2726
2416, 822 2117 046
5,716 5711
BB, 484 56,041
1,989 278
7,752 1529
An2% 599,752
127563 665,292
2,244 485 2,773,338

20 2020
100,008 100,000
105,433 105.433
324 871 352,065
36,108 {8.815)
EEA,412 BOM,G83
56 25
568,438 500,709
g1, 335 090,064
404, 755 413,486
1,791 1,181
o H25 8,754
102,517 g7,5a9
740 126
2,240 543
71,619 20,509
1,535,400 1,534,402
12,709 517,192
. 493 932
12,708 23,760
1,846 12,431
9,410 B,935
2,437 2,495
108,026 112,538
2,333 1.179
a4p -
5,153 3.118
2,140 z.073

.. 0557 | B4B.5IT

2,244 435 2,773,326

The accompanying Malss ¥ 1o 26 forrn an indegral gt al the Consclidated Anaoal Aucounts.,
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REDEXIS, 5.4 AND SUBSIDIARIES

imonsolidated Income Statement for 2024

{Expressed in thousands of Edrosh

Motos 2021 2020

Revenus 28 235,393 215,380
Other incorne 0 G, 500 5,365
Ball-constructad non-current assets 15.525 16,065
Consumption of raw materialz and corsurnables {26,751 {20,881
Employan banefits expanza k3l (294,237 (29,848
Depreciation and amertisatian F, Gandg 195,035} 91,773}
Impaiment los2es o0 non-curfent azsets 1,300 [1,0256]
{ithes aperating exgenses aa (29,1973 (25,536}
Results frofm operating activities 79,351 Faa33
Fnerce incame 238 286
Finahce costs (29,208} (43,6043
Net finance profit{lnss) 12 {26 26y 143,317}
Pratit before income tax 50,384 28,516
Incaine tax axpansa 13 (14278 (36_551)
Profit For the year 38,108 {6,845)
Profit for the year abributable to equity holders

of the Parant 38,108 {8,815

Frafit for the year aftributable to non-controlling interests

The secompanying Meaes 1 ke 38 Tam ar inlogezl pacl ef e Corsalidalzd Ansual Aseourts.
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REBEXIS, 5.4, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended

{Expressed in thousands of Eigros)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive tncome;

ttarns that will not be rectassified to profit or
|oss

Other compreheaneive income for the year,
net of taxes

Total comprehensive mcome for the
yedr

Total comprehensive incame attributable
o

Equily holders

of the Parent

ton-Controfing Interests

The accompanylng Males § 1o 36 o an lalegeal e of she Gonsckdoded AU AGCOLNES.

1252024

Notes 2021 en
38,108 {5,815}
38,108 {5,815
38,108 {6,815
28,108 {%,815)

-
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REDEXIS, 5.A. AND SLBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows far
the Year Ended 31 December 2021

(Exprassed in thousands of Euros)

The pecampenying Males 1 L 36 farm an integral par of ik Cangaligates Anaual Aocounis,

10

Notes 2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities
Profis for the vear Lefore bax 50,384 29,516
Adivafmeonts for
[Fepreciations T Eand 9 0B 035 1,773
Impairment lasses on non-curnent assets 1,304 1,056
Change in provizians 451 (1,596}
Government grants taken to incame (1,285} 1,252}
Finance incume a2 [238) (286}
Finance caslts 32 9,208 43 G
175,881 16z,833
Changes in working capitaf
) 8P 30,201 3883
Inwenteries {4,805} (RN
Tsade and other receivables {12 5BT) 748
Cithar currar assets {7,3%q) 4,784
Tzage and cther payablos {8.232] 31,781
Dither current liabiities fag 155
Cthar non-cutent aszelis and liabibities 1,821 1,004
Cash gqenerated from operations 145,754 201,515
Interest and cormmizslions pard 137,145 (33,726}
_ Interast received 254 285
“{ncormne tax paid {5,528 4,312
Met cash from oparating activitlas 102,313 183,765
Cash flows from investing activitias
Payments for purchases of distrinution and LPG azzads it Lse (5,473 {50,754
. Fruyrmenis for acouisition of properfy, plart and sqripment and infangible (84,830) {124 818)
L5eds o
Met cash wsed in vesting activities (30,318} {135,582}
Caszh Hows fram financing activities
Fayments from the disposal of Brancial azsets - {1.048)
Payimania of loans and borrewings 3 63 {9,413
Proceeds fram loans and barsowing s TZ20 224,770
Byoceeds fram loans and borowings with relatad comgpanies - 454 320
Faymonts from loans and borrowinga with relates pafics (494,087} (158,281)
Payments of lzase liabilitiaz 12,188) 2,881
Dlvldends paid [sado (50,000)
Mot cash from financing acblvities {563,604) 488 B
Met increase {decreaze} in cash and cash eguivalents {551 6050} LiG,840
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Jarpary 591,732 74 883
Cash and cash eguivalents al 31 Decernber 40,123 sQf 73z
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REDEXIS, 5 4. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes ta the Consolidated Annual Accoutis

Mature, activities and composition of the Group

Redexis, S.A. (hereinafter, the Company or the Parent) was incarporated with limited
liabifity under Spanish law in Madrid on 6 April 2000. Its registered office is located at
Mahonia n.® 2. 28043 Madrid and its tax residence is at Avda. Ranillas, n® 1, blague D,
planta 2°. C.P. 50018, Zaragoza {Spain). On 20 May 2021, the Parent's Shareholders
General Meeting resolved to change the company name from Redexis Gas, 3.A {0
Redexis, §.A

The statutory activity of Redexis, S.A, primarily entails the distribution and transmission
of all types of gas and oil-based products for domestic, commercial and industrial
purposes, the use of any by-products, and ralated activities.

Redexis, 8.A. is the Parent of a group of subsidiaries (harainafter, the Group). information
on subsidiaries, associate andfor retated ertities is provided in Appendix | and Appendix
1

At 31 December 2020 Redexis Gas, S.A. was 33.32% owned by Chase Gas Investments
Limited, 33.34% owned by ATP Infrastructure |} APS and 33.33% owned by Guotong
Romeo Holdings Limited.

On 22 November 2021 ATP executed a corporate restructuring, transferring the Redexis
shares from ATP Infrastructure Il APS directly to Arbejdsmarkedets Tillesgspension (ATF).

Therefore, at 31 December 2021, Redexis, S.A is 33.33% owned by Chase Gas
Investments Limitad: is 33.34% ownad by Arbejdsmarkedets Tillzegspension (ATP); and
is 33.33% owned by Guotong Romeo Holdings Limited.

Basis of Presentation

The Consclidated Annual Accounts for 2021 have been prepared on the basis of the
accounting records of Redexis, S.A and of the consolidated companies and in
accardance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Linion {IFRS-ELU}, and other applicable provisions in the financial reperting framework, to
give a frug and fair view of the consolidated equity and congolidated financial position of
Redexis, S5.A. and subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 and consolidated results of
operations and changes in consolidated equity and cash flows of the Group for the year
then ended,

The Board of Directors of the Parent considers that the Consolidated Annual Accounts
for 2021, awthorised for issue on 24 February 2022, will be approved with no changes by
the shareholders at their annual general mesting. The Annual Accounts for the 2020
financial year were approved by the Shareholders General Meeting on 20 May 2021

The standards or interpretations adopted by the European Union that will be obligatory in
coming years are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group's financial
statemants, although they may entail additional disclosures in the Consaclidated Annual
Accounts.

a) Basis of preparation of the Annual Accaunts

These Consolidated Annual Accounts have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

11
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b)

c)

d}

REDEXIS, 5.A AND SURBSIDIARIES

Motes to the Consolidated Annual Accounts

Comparative information

The accounting criteria were applied uniformly in 2021 and 2020, and there are no
operatians or transactions recorded following different accounting principles that
might cause discrepancies in the interpretation of the comparative figures for hoth
pariods.

The Consolidated Statement of Financial Pasition, Consolidated tneome Statement,
Consalidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, Consclidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated
Annual Report, in addition to the figures of the year 2021, include comparative
figures for the previous year, approved by the shareholders at the General Meeting
held on 20 May 2021,

Funchional and presentation currency

‘Fhe functional currency used by the Group is the Euro. The figures contained in the
attached annual accounts are expressed in thousands of Euros, unfess ctherwise
indicated, and are therefore rounded to the closest figure, with the Eura being the
functional currency.

Relevant accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements used when applying
accounting principles

Relevant accounting estimates and judgemants and other estimates and assumptions
have to be made when applying the Group's accounting principles to prepare the
Consclidated Annual Accounts under IFRS-EU. A summary of the items requiring a
greater degree of judgement or which are more complex, or where the assumptions
and estimates made are significant to the preparation of the Consolidated Annual
Accounts, is as folkows;

» Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets {see Notes 3.d
and 3.f)

» The assessment of the recoverability of intangible assets with an indefinite usefut
iife and goodwill to determine any impairment losses (see Note 3.g)

e The assessment of whether deferred tax assets are likely to be recovered based on
the business plan for the coming years and the recovery periods stipiiated in
Spanish tax legislation for the recovery of those assets, as well as the resolution of
possible differences in interpretation with the Tax Administration (see Notes 3.p and
13}

The Company directars’ estimates were caleuwlated on the best information available
as of 31 December 2021. Unfareseen future events could make it necessary to make
changes in the coming years, which might lead to adjustments in the consolidated
annual accounts that would be recorded prospectively, as the case may be.

12



REDEXIS, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Motes to the Consolidated Annual Accounts

2021 was marked by the appearance of the first signs of global recovery, after a 2020
in which COVID-19 put a brake on all economies. The {ifting of mobility restrictions
together with the reactivation of consumption and internationa trade have led to 2
partial recovery of growth. This recovery will be progressive urtil COVID-19 has been
definitively avercome and the adjustinents in the economies have been made.

i general, the coronavirus crisis has had a very Hmited impact on the Group due to
the fact that approximately 90% of its revenues are regulated, without bising subject {o
price volatility and with limited exposure to gas demand, and that it maintains a flexible
cost structure that allows it to rapidly adapt to changing activity levels. The only effect
on its activity has basically been the mability restrictions that have delayed the growth
plans in terms of new installations and gas connections within the strategy thet it has
heen developing over these years.

During 2021, the progressive recovery of economic activity in Spain meant that gas
volumes, especially in the industrial and commercial sectors, recovered partially and
the Group resumed its level of activity and its growth levers. in this sense, we trust that
a favourable evolution of the pandemic will bring progressive recovery of pre-pandemic
levals of activity and growth.

The Group has at all times maintained the comprehensive plan activated in March
2020 in relation to COVID-18, and which guarantees the continuity of its operations
under sirict health protocols to care for our employees and stakeholders. Likewise, the
Group continued to monitor and evaluate the possible impacts on the financial
statements, which are kisted below:

1. Impairment of nonfinancial assets: Due to the effects of the pandantic on af
sectors of the economy, new indications of impairment may be revealed in the
Group's CGUs. Following an analysis of all these factors, it was concluded that
they do not entall a significant impact on the Group's strategic plan, and were in
all cases taken into consideration in the cash flows used in the impainment tests
performed.

5 Einancial instruments; On the basis of the analysis performed, no significant
increase to the Group's credit risk is considered to have taken place, and neither
has a significant increase been detected in the Group's average payment pericd
or duration of its recaivables.

3. Inventories: These correspond to purchases of LPG and their storage in consumer
tanks. The purchase and sale prices are regulated, which, together with the
inefasticity of the demand for price and the cfimats dependence for cansumption,
means that the vaiue margin and future consumption is not affected by the
consequences of COVID-19,

13



10.

REBDEXIS, S A AND SUBSIDHARIES

Motas to the Consolidated Annual Acecounts

Credit risk: The Group has limited exposure to non-payment by its customers and
regutarly monitors the status of its portfolio, making convenient provisions in
accordance with accounting regulations. Within the distributed natural gas
business, which is the largest in the Group, the credit risk is covered by the
guarantees that the marketers deposit with the system manager, so the risk in this
activity is negligible. No significant changes were observed in the LPG business,
nor material changes {o the financial statements in any case.

- Leases: The majurity of the leases have not been amendad by the pandemic, and

therefore there has been no impact on the financiat siatements.

{ncome tax: The hypotheses and assumptions used in the test for recovery of
deferred tax assets were consistert with the rest of the impairment tests,
considering possible Impacts on the economy deriving from the pandemic.

Provisions. No onerous leases have been identified, and neither do any provisions
for restructuring exist deriving fram the pandemic.

Income statement: the total impact on the Group income statement for the
measures and suppfies aimed at safeguarding employee health and safety and at
comtaining the COVID-19 pandemnic come ta Eures 59 thousand (Euros 227
thousand in 2020). An effort has also been made to reduce fixed expenses during
the year.

Liguidity: due to the activity itself and the arigin of the income, the Group maintains
recurring cash generation and a solid liguidity position of over Furos 300 million,
The Management controls Group liquidity by regularly manitoring the flows from
the receipts and payments of each Company.

Group Management has conducted an analysis to cenfirm the stabiity of Group
companies in terms of the principle of going concern.

At the date of these financial staterments, the changing situation due to the pandemic
continues, whereby the Directors and Senior Management will continue to monitor and
following its evolution to prevent and decrease any possible impact on the financial
stafements,

Standards and interpretations adopted early or other chanaes in accounting nolicies

The following standards were published for their use in the European Union.

v' Miodification of IFRS ©,1AS 30, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 related to changing
benchmarks (secand phase).

¥ Madification of IFRS 4 related to the deferral of the appiication of IFRS 9 unt
2023,

14



REDEXIS, 5.4 AND SUBSIDIARIES

Motes to the Consolidated Annual Accounts

v Modification of IFRS 16 to extend the term of application of the practical
solution of IFRS 16 provided for rental improvements related to COVID-19,
Mandatory application for years beginning on or after 1 April 2021, with early
application allowed.

None of these standards has had a relevant impact on the Group's Financial
Statements,

Furthermore, the follawing mandatory standards, modifications and interpretations as
of 1 January 2022 were approved:

v Madification of IFRS 3 to align the definitions of assets and Habilities in a
husiness combination with those contained in the conceptual framework.
Certain clarifications are also made regarding the recording of contingent
assets and liabilities.

v Modification of IAS 16 Income earned before intended use. The modification
prohibits dedusting any income obtained from the sale of items produced from
the cast of property, plant and equipment while the entity is preparing the asset
for its intended use. Income from the sale of such samples, together with
production costs, must be recorded in the income statement.

¢ Modification of IAS 37 Onerous contracts — cost of fulfiling a contract. The
modification explains that the direct cost of fulfilling a contract includes the
incremental costs of fulfiling that contract and an allocation of other costs that
are directly related to fulfilling the contract.

¥ Improvements to IFRS Cycle 2018-2020. Minor changes to IFR3 1, IFRS 8,
IFRS 16 and |AS 41.

f) Going concern principle

Directors have prepared these consobidated annual acsounts in accordance with the
going congcern principle,

(3]  Accounting Principles

{al

Subsidiaries

Suhsidiaries are entities over which the Parent Company, either directly or indirectly
through subsidiaries, exercises control. The Parent Company controls a subsidiary
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
subsigiary and has the ability fo affect those returns through its power over the
subsidiary, The Parent Company has power over a subsidiary when it has existing
substantive rights that give it the ability to direct the relevant activities. The Faraent
Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returmns from its involvement with the
subsidiary when its retumns from its involvement have the patential to vary as a result
of the subsidiary's performance.

th



(b}

(c)

REDEX|S, 5.4 AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Annual Accounts

The income, expenses and cash flows of subsidiaries are incluged in the
Consolidated Annual Accounts from the date of acquisition, which is when the Group
takes control, untit the date that controf ceases. The subsidiary entities are excluded
from the consolidation as of the date on which the control is lost.

Transactions and balances with Group companies and unrealised gams or |osses
have been eliminated on consolidation. Nevertheless, unrealised |osses have heen
considerad as an indicator of Impairment of the assets transferred.

The subsidiaries' accounting policies have been adapted to Group accounting
policies for like fransactions and events in simifar circumstances.

The annual accounts or financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the
consclidation process have been prepared as of the same date and for the same
period as those of the Parent.

Guring the year there were no changes in the Group’s consalidation perimetar,

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business
activities from which it may eamn revenues and incur sxpenses, whose operafing
results are regularly reviewed by the Group's steering commitiee to make decisions
about resources o be allocated to the segment and assess ite performance, and for
which discrete financial information is available.

Non-Controlting interests

Non-controlfing interests in subsidiaries acquired are recognised at the acqguisition
date based on the ownership percentage of the fair value of the identifiable net
asgets.

Non-caontrolling interests are disclosed in consolidated equity separately from equity
atfributable to shareholders of the Parent. Non-controlling interests’ share in
consolidated profit or loss for the year and in consolidated total comprahensive
income for the year is disclosed separately in the Consolidated Income Statement
and the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The total comprehensive income for the year and changes in equity of the
subsidiaries atfributable to the Group and non-controlling  interests,  after
consolidation adjustments and eliminations, are determined in accordance with the
ownership percentage at year end,

15



{d)

REDEXIS, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

MNates to the Consolidated Annual Accounts

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recognised at cost bess  accumillated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment fosses. The cast of self-constructed
sseets, mainly for the transmission and distribution of natural gas and liquefied
petroleum gas, is determined using the same principles as for an acguired asset,
while also considering the criteria applicable o production costs of inventories and
the network construction required in properties untd the supply points come into
service. The production cost is capitafised by allocating the costs aitributable to the
asset to self-constructad non-current assets in the consolidated income statement.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes the estimated costs
of dismantling or removal and restoration of the site on which it is located, At the
fime of the initial valuation of the fixed assets, the Company estimates the present
value of future abligations arising from the dismantling, removal and others
associated with these fixed assets, such as the costs of rehabilitating the place
where it is located. This present value is capitalized as a higher cost of the
corresponding asset, giving rise 10 the recording of a provision {see note 3 ny, which
is subject to financial updating in the petiods following its creation.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated by aliocating the depreciable amount
of the asset on a systematic basis over its useful life. The depreciable amount is the
cost of an asset, less its residual value. The Group determines the depreciation
charge separately for each asset based on its type.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the following critenia:

Arnortisation Estimated
method years 0;
useful life
Buitdings Straight-line 10-50
Technical instaltations and machinery!
Liguefied natural gas plant Straight-line 20
Requiation and metering stations Straight-line 20-20
Community Receiving Facilities Straight-line 20
hatribdion networks Straight-line 24
Meter-reading equipment Siraight-tine 10
(Gas pipehnss Straight-line 40
LPG facifities Straight-line 20
Other iterms of property, plant and equiprnent Straight-ine 4-20
Cither instatiations, equipment and furniture Skraightine 4-20
Motor Wehicles Stratght-Ene 8

Transmission faciliies are depreciaied over their useful fife according to the
estimate made for items of property, plant and eguipment. For gas pipelines this is
40 years and for regulation and metering stations it 15 30 years. These estimates
are in line with Royal Decree 326/2008 of 20 February 2008, which sets the
remuneration for natural gas fransmission activities for faciiities that came into
service subsequent to 1 January 2008,
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REDEXIS, 5.4 AND SUBSIIMARIES

MNotes fo the Consolidated Annuat Accounts

The Group reviews residual values, usefid lives and depreciation methods at each
financial year end. Changes to initially established criferia are accounted for as a
change in accounting estimates,

Subseguent to initial recognition of the asset, only costs that will probably generate
future economic benefits and which may be measured reliably are capitalised,
including the costs required for the assets to operate as envisaged by management
and in accordance with the applicable lagal and regulatary requirements. Cosis of
day-to-day servicing are recognised in the income statement as incurred.

Replacements of property, plant and equipment that qualify for capitalisation ara
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the iterns reptaced. Where the
cost of the replaced tems has not been depraciated independently and it is not
pessible to determine the respective carrying amount, the replacement cost is used
as indicative of the cost of the replaced items at the time of acquisition ar
construghion,

The Group measures and determines impairment to be recognised or reversed
based on the criteria in section (g).

Right of use assely

(1) identification of a lease

At the start of a contract, the Group evaluates whether it contains a lease, A
contract is or contains a lease, if it grants the right to contral the use of the asset
identified for a period of time in exchange for a consideration. The perod of time
during which the Group uses the asset, includes consecutive and non-
consecutive periods of time, The Group only re-evaluates the conditions when
an amendment of the contract ooncurs,

The rates of occupation of the subsail for the gas distribution activity are included,
as well as the canons for the occupation of the subsail for the gas fransmissian
activity.

fif) Lesses reporting

In contracts with one or more lease and various lease components, the Group
assigns the consideration of the contract to each component of the lease in
accordance with the individual safe price of the lease component and the
aggregate individual price of the varicus components of the lease.

Any payments made by the Group that do not entail the transfer of goods of

services to i by the lessor do not comprise a separate component of the lease,
but instead form part of the total consideration of the cantract.

18



REDEXIS, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES

Motes to the Consolidated Annual Accounts

At the start of the lease, the Group recognises one right of use asset and one
lease liability. The right of use asset is comprised of the amount of the leaze
liability, any payment for the lease made on or prior to the starting date, less any
incentives received, the nifial direct costs inclrred and an estimate of the costs
for dismantling or restoration to be incurred, as indicated in the accounting policy
Brovisions.

The Group measures the lease liabilty by the present value of the lease
payments pending on the starting date. The Group discounts lease payments at
the apprapriate incremental interest rate, unless the implicit interest rate of the
lessor may be determined reliably.

The pending lease payments are comprised of fixed payments, less any incentive
to be coliected, the variable payments that depend on an index or rate, initially
appraised by the index or rate applicable on the starting date, the amounts
expected to be paid for residual value guarantees, the price of exercising the
purchase option whose sxercise is reasonably certain and any compensation
payments for contract termination, providing the term of the lease reflects the
termination option.

The Group measures the right of use assets at cost, less depreciation and
accrued impairment losses, adjusted by any re-estimate of the lease liability.

If the coniract fransfers the ownership of the asset to the Group at the end of the
lease term or the right of use asset includes a purchase option, the criteria for
depreciation indicated in the section on property, plant and equipment are
applied fram the starting date of the lease through the end of the useful life of the
asset. Otherwise, the Group depreciates the right of use asset from the starting
date until the earkier date between the usefut life of the right or the end of the
lease.

The Group applies the non-current asset impairment criteria indicated in section
{g} to the right of use assets.

The Group measures the lease liability increasing it by the financial expense
accrued, decreasing it by any payments made and re-estimating the carrying
amount by amendments of the lease or to refiect any updates of in-substance
fixed payments.

If the amendment does not result in a separate lease, on the amendment date,
the Group assigns the consideration to the amended contract as indicated above,
re-datermines the term of the lease and re-estimates the value of the liability
deducting any revised payments at the revised interest rate. The Group
decreases the carrying amount of the right of use asset to refiect the partial or
total termination of the lease, in those amendments that decrease the scope of
the lease and records the profit or loss in the income statement. For alt other
amendmenis, the Group adjusts the carrying amount of the right of use asset.

(3
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intanaible assels

]

Caoodwill

Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
where events or cireumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. Goodwill
on husiness combinations is allocated to the cash-generating units {CGUs) or
groups of CGUs which are expecied to benefit from the synergies of the business
cormbination and the criteria described in section {g) (impairment) are applied.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses,

Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an assat.
Licences

This #em reflects the amounts measured by an independent expert on
government authorisations, from the merger of the Group, for the distribution and
transmission of gas in the variocus areas in which the Parent and the subsidiaries
conduct or will conguct their activities, less any impairmert, as appropriate.

In accordance with the legal framework under which they were granted, these
authorisations do not have a limited duration.

Computer soffware

Computer scftware is cairied at cost, less any accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Computer software maintenance costs are charged as
expenses when incurred,

Other intangible assets

This item reflects the amounts incured by governmert authorisations,
subsequently to the merger of the Group, for the distribution and transmission
of gas in the various areas in which the Parent and the subsidiaries conduct or
will conduct their activities, less any impairment as appropriate for accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Costs incurred in relation to and prior to
obtaining government authorisation are inttially recognised under intangible
assets and subsequently transferrad to the income statement if the Group has
reasonable doubts as to whether authorisation will be obtained.

(i Useful life and amortisation rates

The Graup assesses whether the useful life of each intangible asset acquired is
finite or indefinite. An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful
lifa when there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset will
generate net cash inflows.
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives or that ara not limited in duration ara
not amortised, but are instead tested for impairment on an annual basis or
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
Group has estimated that government authorisation or licences for the
diatribution and transmission of gas have an indefinite useful lfe as, in
accerdance with the lagal framework under which they were granted, they do not
have a limited duration.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised by allocating the
depreciable amount of an asset on a systematic basis over its useful ffe, by
applying the following criteria:

Amortisation Estimated
mathod years of
L useful life
Computer software Straight-line 4-5
Cther intangible assels Straight-iine 5-20

The depreciable amount is the cost or desmed cost of an asset, 1858 ifs residual
value.

The Group reviews the residual value, useful ife and amortisation method for

intangible assels at each financial year end. Changes to initially established
critetia are accounted for as a change in accounting estimates.

(iiy |mpairment

The Group measures and determines impairment to be recogrised or reversed
based on the criteria in section (g).

Impairment of pon-financial assets

The Group evaluates whether there are indications of possible impairment losses
on nan-financial assats subject to amortisation or depreciation to verify whether the
carrying amount of these assets exceeds the recoverable amaount.

The Group tests goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives for
impairment at least annually, imespective of whether there is any indication that the
assets may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of the assets is the higher of their fair value less costs of
disposal and their value in use.

Megative differences resulting from comparison of the carrying amounts of the
assets with their recoverable amount are recognised In profit and loss.
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The recoverable amount is determined for each individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. If this is the case, the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit {CGL) to which the asset helongs.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are aliocated first to raduce the carrying
amolnt of goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assats of the unit pro
rata with their carrying amounts. The carrying amount of each asset may not be
reduced below the highest of its fair valie less costs of disposal, its value in use and
Zero.

At the end of each reporting period the Group assesses whether there ia any
indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods may no longer exist
or may have decreased. Impairment fosses on goodwill are not reversible.
Impaiiment losses on other assets are only reversad If there has besn a change in
the estimates used to calculate the recoverable amount of the asset.

A reversal of an impairment loss fs recognised in profit or loss, The increased
carrying amount of an asset atiributable to a reversal of an impairment loss imay not
exceed the carmying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
ar amortisation, had no impairment Ioss been recognised.

A reversal of an impairment foss for a CGU is allacated to the assets of that unit,
except goodwill, pro rata with the canying amounts of the assets. The carrying
amount of an asset may not be incteased above the lower of its recoverable amount
and the carrying amount that would have been disclosed, net of amortisation or
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are classified on initial recogniion as a financial asset, a
financial liabitity or an equity instrument in accordance with the economic substance
of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial asset, g financial
liability and an equity instrument in 1AS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation”.

The Group recognises financial instruments when it becomes party to the contract
or legal fransaction, in acsurdance with the terms set out therein.

For measurement purposes, the Group classifies financial instruments as financial
assets and liabilites carried at amontised cost.

The Group classifies a financial asset at amortised cost if it remains within the scope
of a hilsiness model whose purpose is to maintain financial assets to ohtain cash
fiows and the contractual conditions of the financial asset give rise, on specific
dates, to cash flows that are onfy payments of principal and intergst on the amount
of principal pending.

Offset principles

22



{ii)

(i)

(v}

{vi}

REDEXIS, 5.4 AND SUBSITHARIES

MNotes to fhe Consolidated Annual Accounis

A financia! asset and a financiat liability can only be offset when the Group has a
legally enforceatile right to offset the recagnised amounts oF intends either to
settle on a net basis, of to realise the asset and seitle the liability simultaneously,
In order for the Group to have a legally enforceable right, it should not be
contingent on a future event and should be legally enforceable in the ordinary
course of operations, in cases of insolvency or of liguidation declared fegally and
in the event of nan-payment,

Financial assets and liahilities at amuortised cost

Financial assets and liabifities at amortised cost are initialty recognised at fair
value, plus or minus the transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently
measlred at amortised cost using the effective interest rate.

Reclassiications of financial instruments

The Group reciassifies financial assets when it changes the business modet for
its management. The Group does not reclassify financial liabilities.

Impairment

The Group recognises @ valuation adjustment in the income statement for
anticipated futurg credit fosses of the financial assets measurad af amortised
cost

On each closing date, the Group measures the valuation adjustment in an
amount squal to the credit losses anticipated in the following twelve manths, for
the financial assets for which the credit risk has not increased significantly from
the date of initial recognition ar when i considers that the credit risk of a financial
asset has no longer increased significantly.

The Group considers that the credit risk has increased significantly from initial
recognition when non-payments exist for a period greater than 180 days.

Financial asset disposals, modifications and canceliations

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows relating
to these have expired or have been transfarred and the Group has substantially
transferred the risks and benefits deriving from their ownership,

Interest and dividends

The Group recognises interest by the effective interest mathed, which is the rate
adjustment that equals the carrying amount of a financial instrument with the
estimate cash flows throughout the expected lifetime of the instrument, starting
from its contractual conditions and without considering the anticipated credit
losses, except for financial assets acquired or originating with iosses incurred.

(vii) Financial liability disposals and modifications
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The Group de-recognises a financial liabliity or part thereof when it has complied
with the obligation contained in the fiability or if it is legally dispensed from the
primary responsibility contained in the liability, whether by virtue of a iagal
process of by the creditor.

Distributions to shareholdars

Dividends, whether in cash or in kind, are recognised as a reduction in equity when
approved by the shareholders at their annual general meeting.

Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at the lower of cost of purchase and net realisable
value.

The purchase price comprises the amount invoiced by the seller, after deduction of
any discounts, rebates or other similar items, plus any additional costs incurred to
bring the goods to a saleable condition, other costs directly aitributable to the
acquisition, as welt as finance costs and indirect taxes not recoverable from the
Spanish taxation autharities.

Subseguently, the Group values its inventories at welghtad average cost,

The cost of inventories is written down in those cases in which its cost excesds its
net realisabte value. For these purposes, net realisable value is understoad as its
replacemsnt price.

The Group uses the same ¢ost moded for all inventories of the same nature and
with a similar use.

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and demand deposits in financial
institutions. They also include other short-term, highly liquid investmerts that are
readily converible to known amourts of cash and which are subject to an
insigrificant risk of changes in value.

Government grants and Other fiabilities

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the
Group wili comply with the condifions attaching to them, and that the grants will be
received.

Capital grants awarded to the Group are primarily to carty ocut works and are non-
refundable. These grants are measured at the fair value of the sum received, and
are recognised under government grants and other Habilities in the consclidated
statement of financial position and taken to other income over the same period and
in proportion to the depreciation of the subsidised assets or when the assets are
disposed of or impaired.
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Other liabiliies also inciudes connection charges as manetary consideration for the
installation works and operations required to serve new gas supply pomnts or extend
existing ones. These connection charges are recognised as income in propertion 1o
the annual depraciation of the assets being financed {20 years), or over the period
specified in the contract if this is shorter, or, where apphicable, when the assets are
disposed of or impaired.

Employee benefits

The Group has contracted pension commitments with ceriain members of its
warkforce. These obligations, including both defined benefits and defined
contributions, are basically arrangad through pension plans or insurance policies.

Defined benefil plans

Defined benefit labilties recogrised in the consolidated statement of financial
position reflect the present value of defined benefit obligations at the reporting date,
minus the fair value at that date of plan assets.

The Group recognises actuarial losses and gains in other comprehensive income in
the year in which they ocour. These actuarial losses and gains are recognised
immediately in retained earnings. They are not recorded in the income statement in
a subsequent year.

Income of expense related to defined benefit plans is recognised as employee
benefits expense and is the sum of the net curent service cost and the nat interest
cost of the net defined benefit assat or liability.

The present value of defined benefit obligations and the refated current service cost
and past service cost are caiculated annually by independent actuaries using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. The discaunt interest rate is calculated based on the
yield on high quality corporate bonds of a curency and term consistent with the
currency and term of the post-employmert benefit obligations.

Assets and liabilities arising from defined benefit plans are recognised as current o
non-current based on the period of realisation of related assets or settlement of
related liabilities.

Defined contribution plans

The Group recognises the coniributions payable to a defined contribution plan in
exchange for a service when an employee has rendered service 1o the Graup. The
contributions payable are recogrised as an expense for employes remuneration,
and as a liabiiity after deducting any contribution already paid.

Provisionsg
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources

embodying economic bensfits will be required to settle the obligation; and a relighle
estimate can be made of the amuount of the obligation.
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The policy foluwed regarding the recording of provisions for risks and expenses
consists of recording the estimated amount to cover probable or certain
responsibilities arising from litigations in progress and for compensations or pending
wbligations, warrants and other similar guarantees. Its pravision is made when the
responsibility or abligation that determines the compensation or payment arises,

The amount recognised as a provision s the best estimate of the expendifura
requirad to settie the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account all risks and uncertainties surounding the amount to be recognised as g
provision and, where the time value of meney is material, the financial sffect of
discounting provided that the expenditure to be made each period can be reliably
estimated. The discount rate is & pre-tax rate that reflects the time value of money
and the specific risks for which future cash flows associated with the provision have
not been adjusted at each reporting date.

The financial effect of provisions is recognised as a finance cost in profit or loss.

H it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle an
obiigation, the provision is reversed, The provision is reversed against the income
statement item in which the related expense was recognised, and any surplus is
accountad for in other fncame.

Crovisions for dismanifing, restoration and simifar iahilifies

These provisions are measured in accordance with the general criteria for provisions
and are recognised as an increase in the cost of the associated property, plant and
equipment {see Note 3.d).

Changes in provisions resulting from changes in the amount, timing of the ocutflow
of resources or the discount rate increase or reduce the cost of fixed assets up to
the carrying amount thereof, whilst any excess is reconnised in profit or loss.

Recognition of revenue frorn contracts with customers

The revenue is evaluated on the basis of the consideration o be received in a
contract with a customer and excludes any amounts collected on behalf of thirg
parties, The Group recognises the revenue when it transfers the control of 3 product
or service o the customer,

The following is a summary of the recognition criteria applicable for each one of the
activities that generates income in the Group.

Digtribution activity

With the distribution activity the regulatory framework identifies the following tasks:
ta buld, operate and maintain networks and facilities for the distribution of natural
gas intended for situating the gas at the points of consumption.
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This set of tasks constitutes a commitment te the customers and the tasks cannot
he performed independently from each other; therefore they are considered to he a
single perfarmance obligation which is fulfilled, indefinitely, in accordance with the
administrative autharigation granted by the campetent institution on the basis of
which it carries out its business, gensrating the right to receive remuneration or
revenue. In this respect, consumers of gas simultaneously recetve and consume
the benefits of the service at the same time as the Group provides it.

The Graup recognises revenue fallowing the percentage of completion method.

The method to be used to measure the percentage of completion is the output
method, since the service rendered is similar throughout the period, and révenue is
recognised on a straight-line basis.

The regutated revenues fram distribution activity each year is set ex-arte for each
gas year by the CNMC in keeping with the new authorities attributed to it, effective
as of 1 January 2020 by Royal Decree-Law 1/201% (formerly attributed 1o the
Spanish Minietry for Ecologicat Transition).

Therafore the Ministerial Orders and resolutions of the National Commissian on
Markets and Competition (CNMC) published prior to the start of each year, establish
the remuneration for the coming vear based on expected sales and new customers
for that year (for remuneration and rate purposes, the term 'vear' hereinafter refers
to gas year). As a result, the amount of remuneration is subject to change for up to
two years, until the definitive data on demand and new customers is available for
the year analysed. With regard to references to 'gas year', it should be noted that in
accordance with Additional Provision 1 of CNMC Circular 6/2020, of 22 Juity,
regarding the calculation of local natural gas distribution network tolls and
regasification, the gas year and the rate period no tonger correspond to the calendar
year but instead to the period between 1 Dctober and 30 September of the following
year.

As of 2010 the CNMC has developed a series of Circutars that will define the
methodology far determining remuneration for the distribution and transmission of
natural gas for the following regulatory period (2021-2026). These methodologies
establish models that are conceptually very similar to those in force before 2021,
but that will entail certain adjustments to remuneration as of the year 2021,

This remuneration is comprised of a fixed component (Eurc/customer) and two
variable components in keeping with the increase (or decrease) in the vofume of
gas supplied to the customers connected to the network, For varighle components,
unit tarifis are sef on the basis of the pressure of the gas supplied and customer
type, for which certain additional incentives exist, such as the gasification of new
municipaiities, new industrial customers or new vehicular natural gas service
stations.
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The Group establishes the variable remuneration at the close of each year, using
the methodology defined in the regulation, with the best infarmation avaiiable at that
time (supply as well as demand points), adjusting this figure with the verified
information after closing the figures for each year. In turn, and once it has the final
figures for the year, the Ministry/CNMC determines the final amount of this
remuneration in the order it publishes the following year, and also establishes the
provisional remuneration for the year foliowing publication and regularisation of the
remuneration for the year in which it is published, with the best figures available at
that time.

Order TEC/258/2019, published on 20 December 2019, adjusted the remuneration
for 2018 and 2018 based on the most up-to-date figures on sales and consumers.
In addition, on 18 December the CNMC published the resolution establishing an
initial forecast for remuneration for 2020 through application of the parameters
established by Law 18/2014 of 15 Octoher 2014 approving wgent measures for
growth, competitiveness and efficiency. This law reformed the remuneration for gas
activities with a view to eliminating the deficit in the settlement system.

For its part, Order TED/1286/2020, of 29 December, adjusis the remunerstion
figures for 2019, closing said remuneration (the last set by the Ministry) since the
Final Settlement for the year 2019 had already been published on the date of the
Qrder.

During the year 2021, and due to the aforementioned change in gas year, the
remuneration recognised for the 2021 distribution activity was established in CNMG
Resatution of 11 February 2021, establishing the remuneration for the 2021 gas
year of the companies that perform regulated liguefied natural gas, transmission
and distribution facility activities, and in CNMC Resolution of 20 May 2021,
estabiishing the remuneration for the 2022 gas year of the companias that perform
reguiated liguefied natural gas, transmission and distribution faclity activifies,
insofar as the first Resolution covers the period fram 1 January to 30 September
2021, and the second covers the period from 1 Qctobar 2021 10 30 September 2022,
Both resolutions review the first remuneration determined by the CNMC, that
corresponding to the 2020 catendar vear. These reviews are not final, as the final
Settlement for that year remained open at the time of publication.

This distribution activity remuneration will be adjusted once the final amounis of this
remuneration have baen set by the Spanish Ministry for Ecological Transition and
the Demographic Challange (or the CNMG as of 2020), based on the actual figures
for the average incraase in consumers and KWh distributed. The Groug does not
expect significant differences to arise between the amaounts racogised and the final
setilements. Neverthcless, any differences will be recognised as 3 change in
accounting estimate in the consolidated income statement when they arise,
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The orders establishing tolls and user chargss for access by third parties to gas
facilities and the remuneration of the regulated activities include, in addition, the
price raview of certain regulated concepts, such as connection charges, or the faes
for meter rental, To this regard, Order ETU/M283/2017 adjusted the fees for meter
rertat, following the study published by the National Commission on Financial
Markets and Compeatition (CNMC} on 16 March 2017 "Agreement for the issue afa
study on the price applicable to the rental of gas meters of 3.1 and 3.2 toll groups
and the median age of rental meters”, The prices applied since the enforcernent of
said Order are valid for 2021 and are those praposed by the CNIMC.

Order ETUM367/2018 of 20 December defined the final interest rates associated
with the cumutative daficit at 31 December 2014 and of the imbalances of revenues
and costs for the years 2015, 2016 and 2017,

During 2021 the Group received the final setttement for regulated activities in the
gas sector for 2020, which had an immaterial impact on the Consclidated Income
Statement.

In accordance with Ministerial Orders 1TC/3126/2005, IET/2446/2013 and
IET/2355/2014 and the gas system technical management standards (NGTS), the
Group has recognised measurement differences (known as unaccounted for gas)
as regulated distribution revenue in the consolidated mcome statements for 2020
and 2019 in the amount of Euros 922 thousand and Euros 676 thousand,
respactively (see Note 29). In 2021 the measurement differences for 2020 were
settied and those for 2019 were seffled i 2020.

Transtnission activily

The regulatory framework identifies the following tasks within the fransmission
activity: to build, operate and maintain its own network of gas pipelines, supplying
natural gas to the major areas of consumptian,

As already indicated for the case of distribution, this set of tasks constituies a single
performance obligation which is fulfilled, indefinitely, in accordance with the
administrative authorisation granted by the competent Institution on the basis of
which it carries aut its business on a straight-line basis.

As with the distribution activity, the gas transmission activity is regulated and the
remuneration is set for each gas year by the CNMG in keeping with the new
authorities aftdbuted to it, effective as of 1 January 2020 by Royal Decree-Act
142019 (formerly athributed to the Spanish Ministry for Ecological Transition}.

This remuneration is fixed for gas year and is based on the start-up investment. If in
the course of the year new facilities are put into use, the remuneration wollid be
amended in keeping with the increase in facilities, which would be recognisad
prospectively as of that time.
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Due to the aforementioned change in gas year indicated in the section on the
distribution activity, that is likewise applicable to the transmission aclivity, the
remuneration recognised for the 2021 transmission activity was established in
CNMC Resolution of 11 February 2021, establishing the remuneration for the 2021
gas year of the companiss that perform regutated liquefied natural gas, iransmission
and distribution facility activities, and in CNMC Resolution of 20 May 2021,
establishing the remuneration for the 2022 gas year of the companies that perfarm
reguiated liquefied natural gas, transmission and distribution facility activites,
insofar as the first Resolution covers the period from 1 January to 30 Septermnber
2021, and the second covers the period from 1 October 2021 to 30 September 2022,

Onthe other hand, Order TED/ 1 286/2020 and the Resolutinns cited in the praceding
paragraph include the corresponding adjustments to remuneration for uninterrupted
supply from previous years,

The Group records revenue based on its estimate of the remuneration pursuant to
applicable legislation and in line with the level of investment.,

As previously mentioned, during 2019 and 2020 the CNIMC developed a series of
Girculars that will define the methodology for determining remuneration for the
distribution and transmission of natural gas for the following regulatory peried (2021-
2026). These methodologies establish models that are conceptually very similar to
those set at the time by Act 18/2014, but entail certain adjustments to remuneration
as of the year 2021,

In accordance with article 5 of Order [TC/3128/2011 of 17 November on matters
relating to third-party access to gas facilities and remuneration for regulated
activities, the Group has recognised measuiement differences as regulated
transmission revenues in the Consolidated Income Statement for 2021 and 2020 at
the amount of Euros 1,717 theusand and Furos 481 thousand, respectively (see
Mote 28),

Additionally, the Group is subject, among other things, to the follawing regulatary
framewark in the field of transmission and distribution of natural gas:

* Royal Decree 949/2001 of 3 August 2001, which reguiates third-party access
to gas faciliies and establishes an integrated econemis system for the natural
gas sector, in accordance with the mandate in aricle 8 of Roval Deciee-Law
6/2000 of 23 June 2000.

+ Order ECO/2692/2002 of 28 Qctober 2002, which regulates the settlement
procedure for remuneration from regulated activities in the natural gas sector
and for specifically allocated payments, and establishes the reporting system
for gas companies,

+ Royal Decree 326/2008 of 29 February 2008, which stipulates the remuneration

for natural gas transmission activities for facilities entering into serviee since 1
January 2008,
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» Royal Decres 143472002 of 27 December 2002, which reguiates transmission,
distribution, trading and supply activitiee and the authorisation procedures for
natural gas facilities,

The 2014 deficit in the gas sector, which included the deficits accumulated in prior
years, was set at Euros 1,025 million, which regulated entities will be able to
recover n fifteen consecutive annuat payments. On 1 December 2017 the Group
assigned the credit right it held with respect to this deficit in the amaout of Euros
41 RAH thousand collected in its entirety,

Deficits were also generated with respect 1o the years that followed, from 2015 {o
2017, that would be recoverable in five annual payments.

In 2015, the deficit figure closed at Euros 27 million (Euros 1.4 million carrespond
1o the Group). In 2018, the deficit figure ciosed at Euros 90 million (Euros 4.8
million correspond to the Group). With respect to 2017, the deficit figure closed at
Eures 25 millian (Euros 1.4 million correspond to the Group).

On 10 May 2019 the Group assigned the credit right it held with respect to the
deficits of 2015, 2016 and 2017 in the amount of Euros 5,713 thousand, coflected
in its entirety.

With respect to 2018, 2019 and 2020, the settlement system closed with & surplus
30.8 million of Euros, 353.9 milion of Euros and 186.7 milion of Euros
respectively, in accordance with the final settlements approved by the Spanish
National Commission on Financial Markets and Competition. In accordance with
the lagal procedure 2stablished, the surplus was aliocated toward covering deficita
from 2015 to 2017, offestting them i their entirety, and to covering the cumulative
deficit to 2014, leaving an outstanding capital of Euras 151.4 million.

Registration fees

The registration fess of a new supply consists of the operation to cannect the gas
receiving facility to the network of the distribution company, and the review and
verification that these adapt to the regulatory technical and safely conditions. This
operation usually takes piace one sole time and the activities are inseparable,
whereby this activity is considered as constituting a single performance ohligation.

Registration fees are regulated by each Autonomous Region, 2t a set price.

The Group recognises the revenue for the registration fees at the moment at which
the connection is made and verified, since it is at that moment when the customer
obtains fhe benefits of the service rendered and there is no future obligation
associated with it

Rental of Natural Gas metering gguipment

Mefering equipment (meter] is installed in the faciiities of the end-customer,
therefore the service of renting the meter constitutes a performance obligation.
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The payment for renting natural gas metering eguipment is regulated by the
regulatory framework of the sector, at a set price.

The Group recognises the revenue throughout the provision of the service, since
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of the service at
the same time the Group provides it.

The method to be used to measure the percentage of completion is the output
method, since the service rendered is similar throughout the period, and revenue is
recagnised on a straighf-line basis over time,

Rental of Community Receiving Facilities (CRF)

The Group collects a rental payment for the community receiving facility {GRF} from
the owners association without any other type of consideration, therefore the
Community Receiving Facility comprises a single performance abligation.

The payment for renting the community receiving facity is the price established in
the contract signed with the owners association, which sets a fixed maonthly price.

The Group recognises the revenue throughout the term of the contract, since the
customer simultaneously receives and consumas the benefits of the service at the
same time the Group provides it.

The method to be used tc measure the percentage of completion is the outpat
method, since the service rendered is simiar throughout the period, the revenue is
recagnised on a straight-line basis.

Inspections of individual receiving faclfifies (IRF}

In this case the service consists of the inspection of the individual receiving facility
{IRF}, nvolving a one-time action, considered as a single performance obligation.

The authority to set inspection prices is transferred to the Autonomous Regions and,
therefare, the price may vary from one area to another.

The revenue is recagnised at the moment of the inspection, since it is at that time
when the customer obtains the benefits of the service rendered.

Sale of Liguefied Pelrofeum Gas (LEG)

The contracts for the sale of LPG identify two separate performance obligations,
which are those corresponding to the supply of LPG and the rental of the meter
since, as mentioned above, they comply with the definition for consideration as
different from each other. For LPG, the Company supplies as well as distributes the
product, and therefore thera is a contractual refationship with the customer,

In the case of LPG consumption, the transaction price will be established applying

the established official tariff, with a fixed portion {(standard monthly rate} and &
variable element associated with consumption (Euro cents per Kg. ).
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The Group recognises the revenue throughout the period of time in which the
customer receives and consumes the benefits of the service rendared at the same
time the service takes place. Therefore the revenue deriving from this service will
ha measurad by percentage of completion,

For the purpose of measuring this complation, we cansider that the cutput method
is the one that best reflects the completion of the rendering of the service, whereby
the revenue will be recogrised as the service is rendered, by uni of LPG (ka)
consumed by the customer, which is subject to estimation since the hilling does not
match with the end of the calendar year.

Contracting pary connection charges

The connection charge of the contracting party consisis of the financial
consideration for connecting the community receiving facility 1o the network and the
commissioning of the facility. This operation usually takes place at one sole time,
whereby it is considered as a single perfarmance obligation.

The connection charges are regutated by the regulatory framewark of the sector, at
a set price,

The revenue is recognised at the moment of connaction of the community
receiving facility and the commissioning of gas, since this is the time at which
control of the services rendered is transferred to the customer,

Applicant conngction charges

The Group is autharised to receive a financial cansideration for performing the set
of installations and operations necessary to cover a new gas supply point or
increase the capacity of ane already in existence.

In this case a contract is arranged with the customer to establish the characteristics
of the installation to be built and the quantity {o be received for sach service.
Furthermara, it is established ihat the asset built by virtue of the contract will be
the property of the Group and a remuneration for building the connection is
established. This consideration is a determined fixed guantity.

The Group recognises these connection charges as income in proportian to the
annual depreciation of the assets being financed (20 years), or over the period
specified in the contract if this s less or, where applicable, when their disposal or
impairment occurs, since the customer simultaneosusly receives and consumes the
benefits of the service at the same time the Group provides them. The method to
be used o maasure the parcentage of completion is the ouput method, sirce the
sarvice rendered is similar throughout the peried, and revenue is recognised on @
straight-line basis over time,

incame tax

The income tax expense or tax income for the year comprises current tax and
deferred tax.
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Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable or recoverable in respect of the
consclidated taxable profit or tax loss for the period. Current tax assets of liabilities
are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation
authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted ar substantially
enacted at the reporting date.

Deterred tax Habilities are the amounts of income taxes prayabde in future periods in
respect of taxable temporary differences. Deferrad tax assets are the amounis of
income taxes recoverable in future periads in respect of deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax losses and the carryforward of unused
deductions. Temporary differences are differences between the carmying amourt of
an asset or liability and its tax base.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as income or expense and included in profit
or loss for the year, except to the extent that the tax arises fiom a transaction ar
event which is recognised, in the same or a different vear, directly in equity, or from
a husiness combination.

(i Recognition of deferred tax Habilities

The Group recognises deferred tax liabilitiss in all cases except where they arise
from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liahifity in a fransaction that is
not a business combination and, 2t the time of the tranzaction, affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable income,

(i) Recognition of deforred {ax assets

The Group recognises defsired tax assels provided that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be avaiable against which they can be utifised or when tax
legislation envisages the possibility of converting deferred fax asssts into a
receivable from public entities in the future. Nonetheless assats arising from the
intial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nar
taxable income, are not recognised.

It is considered probable that the Group will generate sufficient taxable profit to
recover deferred fax assets when there are sufficient taxable temporary differences
relating to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, which arg
expected to reverse in the same tax period as the expectad reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periads into which a tax loss arising from a
geductible temporary difference can be carried back or forward,

{iify  Measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liahilities are measured at the tax rates that are expectad
to apply to the period when the asset is reafised aor the lfability is settled, based on
tax rates and fax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted. The tax
conseguences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects ta
recover of settle the carrying amount of its assets or liabilities are also reflected in
the measurement of deferred tax assets ard liabilities.
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The Group reviews the carrying amount of deferved tax assets at the year end and
reduces this amount to the extent that it is not probable that sufficient taxabie profit
will be available against which to recover them.

Deferred tax assets that do not comply with the above conditions are not recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Fosition. At year end the Group
reassesses whether conditions are met for recognising previously unrecognised
deferred fax assets.

(W) Offsel and ofassification

The Group only offsets current tax assets and Habilities if it has a tegally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or
ta realise the assets and settle the Habilities simultansolsly.

The Group only offssts deferred tax assets and liabilities i it has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity or on different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabitities and assets on a nat
basis, or ta realise the assets and settie the liabilities simultanecusly, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
o be settled or recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the consolidated statement of
financiat position under nen-current assets or fabilities, irrespective of the expected
date of recovery or seftlement.

fv)  Consofidated taxation

The Group, which is composed of the companies indicated in Appendix 1, files
consoiidated tax returns.

In addition to the factors to be considerad for individuatl taxation, set out previously,
the following factors are taken into account when determining the accrued income
tax expense for the companies forming the consolidated tax group:

« Temporary and permanent differences arising from the elimination of profits and
losses on transactions between Group companies, derived from the process of
determining consolidated taxable income.

+ Deductions and oredits coresponding to each company forming the
consalidated tax group. For these purposes, deductions and credits are
allocated to the company that carried out the activity or obtained the profit
necessary ta obtain the right to the deduction or tax credit.

Classifination of assets and liabilities as current and non-current

Assets and liabilities are classified as current when they are expected ta be realised
or settled in the Group's normal operating cycle, within 12 months after the year
end. Otherwise they are classified as non-current.

35



(4)

REDEXIS, 5.4 AND SUBSIDIARIES

Motes o the Consolidated Anmual Accounts

{ry  Envirgnmerd

The Group takes measures to prevent, reduce or repair the damage caused to the
afvironment by its activities.

Expenses derived from environmaental activities are recognised as other operating
expenses in the period in which they are incurrad, By its nature, the Group's activity
does nut have a significant impact on the environment and as such no provisions
have been recorded far this contingency.

Property, plant and equipment acquired by the Group for long-term use to minimise
the environmental impact of its activity and protect and improve the environment,
including the reduction and elimination of future pollution from the Group's activities
{e.g. tha replacement of road surfaces or land related to the laying of pipelines), are

recognised as assets, applying the measurement, presentation and disclosura
criteria described in Note 3 {d).

Seclor Regulation

Natural gas tranamission and distabution activitios

Directive 88/3(WEC of the European Parliament and of the Councii of June 22, 1988

defined the bases of the internal gas market, setting up a liberalized markat in the supply
of naturzl gas.

With this, the regulatory framework for the natural gas sector in Spain is based on
Hydrocarban Law 34/1998, in part enacted by Royal Decrees 8492001 and 1434/200%.
The first of these Royal Decrees regutates third-party access to gas fadilities and
establishes an integrated economic system for the natural gas sector; the second
regulates transmission, distribution, trading and supply activities and the authorisation
proceduras for natural gas facilities,

Over the years, as the sector was gradually liberalised, the afarementioned Hydrocarbon
Law was amended on numerous occasions, The most recent amendment was pursuant
to Royal Decree-Law 8/2014 of 4 July 2014, which approved urgent measures for growth,
competitiveness and efficiency and was subsequently passed by the Spanish parliament
and published as Law 18/2014 of 15 October 2014, approving urgent measures for
growth, competitiveness and efficiency. The law infroduces cettain measures that update
the regulatory-economic framework, the most salient of which are as follows:

» A reform of the general scheme of revenues and costs of the gas system was
Undertaken, which is based on the principle of economic sustainabiity and long-
tesin economic balance, taking into account fluctuations in demand and the level
of development of existing infrastructure, while sustaining the principle of adequate
remuneration for investments in regulated assets, and security of supply. |t
therefore estabiishes the principle of econamic and financial sustainahility of the
gas system, such that any legisiation leading to a rise in costs ar reduction in
reveriias must mclude a reduction in costs or an increase in revenues.

+ Certain mechanisms wers introduced to restrict any annual temporary imbalances
in the settlement system, through the automatic review of tolls when certain
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thresholds are exceeded. |f these thresholds are not exceeded, the imbalances
are financed by the parties subject to the settlement system in proportion to thelr
remuneration, generating receivables in the following five years, with a market
interest rate set by Ministerial Order.

«  With regard to the remuneration of regutated activities, the reform includes the
basic principle of considering the necessary costs for an efficient and weil-
managed company to parform the activity at the lowest cost for the system.

» Inline with electricity sector regulations and the need to ensure regulatory stability,
regulatory periods of six years were defined, during which the financial rate cannot
be reviewed and no automatic update formulas wil be applied to the remuneration
of any of the activities. However, as the regulatory reform was proposed in a deficit
scenaric that is expected to be remedied in the coming years, # allows certain
remuneration parameters to be adjusted every three years if significant variations
arise in the income and expense itams.

» Anin-depth, standard raview (as described in Note 3 (o)) was undertaken of the
remuneration from all activities, encompassing all assets, including those alrsady
in service,

By means of Spanish Royal Decree-Law 1/2018, a reform of the scope of powers for the
gas sysiem was carried out, adapting the powers of the Spanish National Commission
on Financial Markets and Competition (hereinafter, “*CNMC"} to the requirements of EU
law in relation to Directives 2009/72/EC and 20087 3/EC of the European Parliament and
of the Council, of 13 July 2009, concerning sommon rules for the internal market in
efectricity and natural gas. Among these reforms, worthy of mention is the attribution of
powars in favour of the CNMC regarding the establishment of methodologies for
determining tolls and remuneration of the reguiated activities, including the setting of their
values. Therefore, as of the start of 2020, the CNMC will have the power to esiablish
these issues, while anything regarding the establishment of new methodologies for
determining the remuneration of regulated activities will not be applicable untii 1 January
2021, upon the conclusion of the first 6-year regulatory period that was establishad in the
aforementionad Law 18/2014. To this regard, in the course of 2019 and 2020, the CNMG
has been working on a series of Circulars that have defined the methodologies for
remuneration of the regulated activities developed by Redexis in the gas sector
{Transmission and Distribution} and that will be applicable as of January 2021, The most
relevant Circldars, insofar as they enable the determination of remuneration for the
distribution and transmission activity, were as follows:

—  Circular 82019, of 12 December, of the National Commission on Markets and
Competition, regarding the establishmeant of the methodology for determining the
remuneration of natural gas transmission facilities and of liguefied natural gas
plants.

—  Circular 42020, of 31 March, of the National Cammission on Markets and

Competition, regarding the establishmant of the methodology for determining the
remuneration of natural gas distribution.

7
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— Circular /2020, of 2 December, of the National Commission on Markets angd
Competition, regarding the establishment of reference unit values for investment,
operation and maintenance for the 2021-2026 regulatory period, and the minimum
requirements for audits on investments and costs in natural gas tranamission
facifities and liquefied natural gas plants.

hore recently, the ntegrated National Plan for Energy and Climate 2021-2030, approved
by Agreement of the Councll of Ministers on March 16, 2021, despite forecasting a
reduction in final energy consumption by 2030 compared to 2015 vakies (79.2 kiep
compared to 84.9), projects forecasts for stable natural gas consumption over that
horizon, remaining at 13 kiep. All of this confirms the fundamental! role of gas in the energy
transition process since, according to this PNIEC target scenario, it would go from a
contribution of 15.4% in final energy consumption in 2015 to 17.3%.

Chanhefled butl L PG refall marketing activity (LPG pinefine distribution)

The Hydrogarbons Act, in its article 44-2, among the activities related to the supply of
liguefied petrofeum gases recognises the retail marketing of channelled bulk LPG,
understood as the distribution and supply of LPG from one or several tanks by pipefine
to more than one supply point, delivered ta customers in gaseous phase, and whose
consumption is measured by a meter for each of the consumers. Therefore, unlike what
is established for the natural gas sector, in this acfivity the distribution and suppiy are
carried out by the sama agent and it is specifically called “retail marksting of channelled
bulk EPG" (or, more simplified, “pipsiine LPG distribution”).

This is an activity in which both the sale price 1o end users (consisting of a fixed term
€fmonth and a variable term c€/kg) and the acquisition or purchase price of LPG from
wholesale marketers (c€/kg} are regulated, which are updated each manth based on the
Order of 18 July 1998 of the Ministry of Industry and Energy, which updates the marketing
costs of the system for automatic determination of maximum pre-tax sale prices of
liquefied petroleum gases and by which certain supplies are liberalised, and based on
Order TC/3202/2008 of 14 November, which modifies the automatic pre-tax sale tariff
determination system of pipeline liquefied patroleum gases.

The pipefine LPG distribution activity is subject to a specific Regulation contained in Royat
Decree 10851892 However, since i is ultimately the supply of fuel gases by pipeline,
this activity is subject to the same technical distribution and use regulations as natural
gas distribution, which were approved by Royal Decree 818/2008. So much so that this
activity is subject to many of the rights and obligations of the natural gas distribution
activity, sUch as the facility construction and maintenance requirements, the receipt of
registration fees in payment for the incorporation of new supply points, or the
establishment of a completely identical framewark of rights and obligations for the
pericdic inspection of the reception factities.

Segment reporting

CNMC Circular 1/2015 establishes a new regufatory reporting system for costs, aimed
primarily at the regulated activities of transmission, regasification, storage and technical
management of the natural gas system.
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While the detailed information furnished makes reference to the transmission activity,
global amaunts that make reference to the rest of the activities are also indicated:
Distribution of Natural Gas, Transmission of Natural Gas, Distribution of LPG and Other
Actiities,

These activities will be assigned the revenuies and costs directly attributable 1o them.
Dverheads that cannot be directly atiributed 1o a specific activity will be allocated to final
activities hased on the allocation criteria in Cireular 1/2015, Redexis, S.A. has developed
an allocation moded based on profit centres, which are divided into final and allocable.

The accounting policies of the segments are as described in Note 3,
The assets, iabiliies, income and expenses presented in this note by segmentfactivity
include the synergies and economies of scale generated within the Group as a result of

its integrated management.

Mad the segment or activity costs been managed independently, they would have been
skightly higher than the figures reflected.

However, a complete and in-depth analysis of the revenue and costs of the transmission
activity will be performed when the regulatory cost reporting is submitted to the CNMC.

The most significant segment details are as follows:

STHZRTN

Thousands of Eures

Dstritwation  Transmission LPG D.i hfe.r Consotidated
actvitizs

Goodwili G4 432 164 440 303 219,473
Man-current szseats 1,180,285 551,204 158,806 27,265 1,887,747
Current assets 58 577 35,382 21.461 1832 127,282
Total assets 1,274,207 761 085 180,659 3813 2,244 173
Bon-cuyrent fabiities 892812 69,135 120 65k 12,585 1,535490
Current iabiities 141 el 189,328 10,431 1,715 14{] 246
Todal Habifities g92 LAz 528,464 130,990 23,700 1,675,736
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Mon-cureent fiabililies
Current liabilithes

Tota! liabilities
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{¥her income

Self-constructad non-current

assets
Supplias

Employes benefils axpense

Bepreciation and impairment

EXPENEeE

Othet aperating expanaes
Met finance profit!{loss)
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10122020

Theusands of Eurps

L .. Cther " .
Distributian  Transmission LPG ackvitios Cansolidated
G4.432 164 440 a5 - 218175
1,169,750 557,782 158,274 12,088 1,857 871
370,545 193 184 92 563 - GhE,292
1,584,717 915,356 251,139 12,086 2773338
817,584 01,604 17 556 ¥ 357 1,534 102
3B, Gt 187,075 59,171 KT G43,527
1,296,224 598,676 176,727 41,000 2102629

3122021

Thousands of Euros

Distribution  Transmission LP G.”'!e:r Consofidated
activities
136,004 59,801 36,424 7,554 239,883
4,356 Fan 821 B0 5 500
11068 1,887 53z 2039 15,626
1,761} - {21,348 I3.685) (26.791)
(20 352% {5,727 (1dd) {3,024} (26 237)
(72,267} {12,714 £10,302) £1,061} (Q7,344)
(1B, 364} {3,835) (4,396) {2,503 (29,157}
(¥7,761) {8,105} [3,228) 127 (28,967
20 545 30,8927 1,629, 141 a8 108
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3511202020

Thousands of Furos

e . Cither . .
Distribution  Transanssion LPG activitios Coneotidated

Revenue £29,540 58,612 25,868 5,230 218,380
(Hher income 2877 591 338 1,756 5,363
Self-constructed non-current 12,620 2,351 7T 847 18,065
assets
Supplies $1,123) - {16,0194) {3,6584) (20.901)

] [(20h284) (5,955, (122} (2,287} 128 B4R)
Employes benafits expense
Deprectation and impairmesd {69 487 (3,802 (9,133) {407 (52,820}
expenses
Ofhar operating exXpenses (17.472) (3,408} {2 B15) {1,803} {25,584)
Net finance prafitfloss) (28.166) {12 440) 4,717} B {43,217}
Profiti{loes) before tax 10,375 25,952 {6,877} (133} 29 518

(6) Subsidigries

{a) Composition of the Group

Information on the subsidiaries included in the consolidated Group is presented
Appendix |,

(bt  MNon-Conirglling interests

Naon-controfling interests reflect ihe 0.02% equity investment in Redexis Gas Murcia,
S.A.

fc) Related companigs

Redexis (3as Finance, BV, was incorporated on 10 March 214 in the Metherlands
and at 31 December 2020 is an investes of Guotong Romeo Holdings Limited, Chase
Gas Investments Limited and Arbejdsmarkedets Tillzegspension (ATP} (same
shareholders as the Parent). lis principal activity is the issue of debt.

All debt issues made by Redexis Gas Finance, BY. are guaranteed by the Parent,
and the funds ohtained from the issues were transferrad to the Parent by means of
knans with the same maturity dates as the debt issued.

The amount of the loans received by the Parent at 31 December 2021 and 2020 is
Eures 1.000,000 and Euros 1,484 097 thousand respectively, and these are the same
amounts as the ones guaranteed by the Parent for the Redexis Gas Finance, B.V.
issues. The list of these loans is itemised in Note 18,
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The Redexis Foundation was incorporated on 12 July 2049 and its purpose, in
general, is the prometion of technological innovation and the development of social,
charity, assistance, training or cultural works. Specifically, the Foundation promotes
the development and well-baing of the social groups that exist in the teriitories where
the Redexis Group operates, with special consideration given ta promoting
infrastructures that contribute fo a sustainable development and cleaner economy.

{7)

Property, plant and equipment

Details of property, plant and equipment and mavement during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Tholssands of Eums

Technicat imtﬁgzgns Cither Linder
0 inslallalions {7 "I proparty, §conslroction
l.and Buildings and equ;p:r'rﬂ]ent sant and and Tatal

rmashinery furniturs aqilpmenl | advances
Cost at 31 December 2020 T84 §,862 2,133,551 3,992 2014 36,146 2,190 084
Arditiona - - 34086 - - B 55y £5 055
Transfars 11 28 58,113 2 126 (58, S {284}
Dispasals [&53) (2, THEY - - [2,838) 6,129}
Cost at 31 December 2021 7,026 5,891 2200274 4,000 2450 45,281 2,269,621
Accumulated amartisalion b _ {1.553) RGO, 77 (3,108 {1,365 _ (66, TA6)
3 Decembes 2320
Deyqraciations - (5007 (37 550 (2560 [27g) - (88,393}
Transfars - 204 - 254
Disposals - - 2218 19 ) 2,238
Accumilatedt ameortisation a - 2 5T 945 G106 3543 1.544 _ 857 665
Aerumiated amr {2052) | (48618)] @343 (1649 (952.665)
Net carrylng amount at 31 7076 4,838{ 1,258 685 £67 505 45,281 | 4,214,963
December 2021
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Thoussnds of Eurps L ]
Technical Cither I Cther nder
S installaiions | installationz, piaparty, CORStruskion

l-and Buildings ard squipmeni plant and and Total
) ] machinary | and furnituee | couipment §  acdvances |
Cast at 31 December 7,253 BalE| 2,020,053 3,630 1,832 46,424 2,079,810
Additons B ol TTHo7as . ' 102 474 143,220
Transfars 1841 LT 103,634 EYDE 182 (106040} (1,136}
Disposals £13) {589y | (7 ) 712 (1,814}
g:;;zsé at 31 December 7,514 5,862 2,131 551 3,082 2014 35,146 2,190,089
Acrumulatad amantisation ) H ' § ' '
st 31 Decernber 2018 - {1,2.28] {?TH.EQ?} {2,832) . {T,.'12{ﬂ .1?83,??1}
Diapreciations [345) (33,834} (418} 3 [245) {84,843)
Transfers 14 Gz 145 - 1,136
Disposats 2 &0 - ] - o BE2]
Acsumuiated amortisatkon N
at 41 December 2020 (1.553) (aﬁp.?fgj @res| {1,265 o {B6E,T9E)
Mek carrying amount at : i
31 Desember 2020 %514 5.310|  1.272778 887 54| 36145| 1323284

The majority of the additions taking place in 2021 and 2020 are from the organic growth
of the Group by means of the extension of distribution networks, in new municipalities as
well as in locations already served by the Group,

Additionally, highlighting the following corporate operations for the integration of LPG
networks and facifities that are describad below:

At 30 December 2021, Cepsa Comercial Petrdlea, S AU, GASIB Socledad
Ihérica de Gas Licuado, S.L.I and Redexis entered into a framework agreement
for the purchase and conveyance of LPG networks and faciities serving around
2,285 supply points, for approximately Euros 1,565 thousand. This cperation is
under approval, therefore the asset will be registered in the balance sheet in 2022,
once said approval process has been completed.

At 16 December 2021 several companies of the Nedgia Group and Redexis
entered into & framework agreement for the purchase and conveyance of LPG
networks and facilities serving around 14,450 supply points, for approximately
Euros 19,998 thousand. This transaction is in the process of its communication to
thae CNMC for approval, therefore the asset will be registered in the balance sheat
in 2022, once said approval process has been completed.

On 28 December 2020, Repsol Butano, S.A. and the Group entered into a
framework agreement for the purchase and conveyance of LPG netwarks and
facilities serving around 4,230 thousand supply points, for approximately Eures
4 338 thousand. The majority of these assets were conveyed during 2021.

On 27 December 2019, Cepsa Comergial Petrdleo, S.AU. and the Group entered
into & framework agreement for the purchase and conveyance of LPG networks
and facilities serving around 1.3 thousand supply points, for approximately Euros
11.670 thousand. The practical entirety of these assets was conveyed in 2020.
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At 31 December 2021, property, plant and equipment under construction refiect
investments in gas transmission and distribution networks that the Group a¥pects to
comglets in the coming months,

At 31 December 2021, the Group has recognised gas plant dismantling costs of £uros 53
thousand under Technical instaflations and machinery (Euros 296 thousand at 31
December 2020). These expenses were determined based on the Group's best estimate
of the markat costs of the various physical units invoived in dismantling these plants.

The Group has taken out insurance policies to cover the risk of damage to its property,
plant and equipment. The cover provided by these policies is considered sufficient.

The cast of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment in use at 31 December 2021
and 2020 is as follows:

Thowsands of Euros

_.ee 2020
Beslidings =153 213
Technical installations and machineny 233,872 2(10,542
Cther installations, eguiprnent and furniture 2517 1,313
Orher property, plant and eguipment 1,042 aay
237,607 208338

Intangible assets

Details of intangible assets and movement during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 are as follows:
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'I‘h_oua:.arids of Eures
: : Other
Licences GGoodwil Computer intangitbe  § Fotal
software
L asseis !
| Gost at 31 December 2020 542,914 219,175, 48 830 6418 815,243
Additions - - 7,733 G928 £ 6019
Dispozals _ - - o -
Cost at 31 Becember 2021 542914 219,178 64572, 7.344| 824004
Accumulated amorisation at 31 ; aRp 1 085 A6
December 2020 (36,352} (1.088)|  (37.436)
Diepreciations - (5,174) {268) ! {5447}
! Accurmasdated amartisafion at 31 ) ) P 453 47,884
{ Deesnber 202t (41,531} $1.:352) (42.584)
Becumulated impairment at 31 December _ ) ) 29 (2
2020 i
Accumulatad impaiment 21 31 December _ _ _ {29) {29}5
”g; fam’i’“g amount at 31 Decamber 542,914 | 219175 13,041 se62| 781,001
2 . i
‘ - Thousands of Euras
; Other |
iicences Goodwill i%m;i‘:r Hrtangibke Tatal
assets
i Costat 31 Decemb-:_tr 2019 542,_914 215},1?5_-3 41 562_5 §,210 5091924_
Additions - " 5,213 353 5 56T
Disposals _ - - - {1485 (148}
Cost at 31 December 2020 842 914 - 214,175 45,8349 6,416 _ 815,343
L Accumnulated amartisation at 31 3 298 & o 753
| December 2049 {231.776) (378} {32.,752)
Dieprectations - - (4,576} {108 {4 5o}
Disposals - - - - -
Accumulated amaortsation at 31 L - .
- - 36 352 1,085 37,436
i December 2024 ¢ ! ! { ) { )
Aceumuilated impairment at 31 December . ) B {29y 4 (20}
2019 H
Accemuialed impairment at 31 Decembeyr _ _ ; 28] (20
2020 ) ) ] .
-gﬁ;a’ﬂ"“g amount at 31 December 542,814 218,175 10,487 | 5,302; 777878
i . . 1

The volume of additions for investment in computer applications in 2021 comes from
projects for the implementation of computer systems and programs as well as the
avolutionary improvements of corporate systems, for similar amounts to those in 2020,
with the difference of the projects for the implementation of systems under the CNMC's
COPEX program {Meridian Project) for an amount of 2,255 thousand euros,
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The goodwilf arising on the business combination carried out in 2010, amounting to Eurps
213,053 thousand (subsequently reduced by Euros 1,584 thousand), and that generated
on the business combination carriad out in 2015 amounting to Euros 7,706 thousard, are
essentially based on the future profits from the ardinary aclivities of the Parent Company
and the companies Redexis Gas Infraestructuras, S.L.U5 and Redexis Gas Murcia, 5.4,
which fail to mest the conditions to qualify for recognitian as a serarate asset.

Details of the allocation of goodwill at 31 December 2021 and 20240, by cash-ganerating
unit (CGLIY, are as follows:

_.. Thousands of Euros

2021 2020
Gaz distribution 54 432 fd 437
{338 transmission 164,440 164,440
LPG 03 33

219175 219,175

A summary of the CGUs to which intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, namely

ficences for gas distribution and transmission, have been allocated at 31 December 2021
and 2020 is as follows:

Thausands of Euros

2021 2020
Gas distribuwtion 333,493 333,483
Gas transmission 239,421 208,421

542914 542,914

The cost of fully amortised intangible assets in use at 31 Dacember 2021 and 2020 is as

follows:;
Thousands_uf Euros
2021 2020
Computer software 32,048 27177
Other intangible assets _ 484 385

32,532 27,573

(8) Right of use assets and lease iiabilities

Details and movement in the accaunts included in the Right of use assets by clagses
during the years ended at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
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Thousands of Euros

tnformation ,
. flotor i . Subsoi Computer
Land Buiidings Vehicles IEI ;EE?EQE e eofware Total
Coastat 31
December 2020 1,655 8,722 2,483 185 7,296 312 18803
Additions 153 1,137 b6z 7 274 2,133
Trangsfer 3 12 10 1 29 - a8
Dispozals - - - - - {312} £312)
Costat 3 o2t 1,785 7.870 3,054 203 7539 S| 20480
Mecumutated
amartisation at 31 (300) {3,925) {1,350) (122} {281y {293) (6,973
Decamber 2020
Depreciations {151} (1,082} (421) 27 (50H) (13 {2,194
Dizposals . . - - - 208 308
Transfer 13 (12 {10} (1) {20 ) (35}
Acourmiiabod
amortisation at 31 (438) (508 {1,784) {1500 {1,512 - {8,800
Decembar 2021
Met carrying
amount at 31 1,357 2851 1,273 53 B,02F - 11,562
Decomber 2021
__Thousands of Euros o o
Inferrrmation 2| e
Land Buildirgs VE;T:?::B. Eru;essmg SZTEUEI : (;fm;:? Total
o : E g pment . )
Cost at 31
Degember 2018 | 1,339 5,669 | 2,047 247 7,236 32| 16,850
Additions 316 1,067 436 28 - - 1,847
i Digposals - {t4 - R |:11)] - - (B
Co=t at 3
December 2020 1,655 6722 2483 195 7,236 312| 18,603
Accumulated L i
smortization at 31 1a4ys (2A7% Fierach) {182 (513) (1471 4821
Decernber 204 i
Depraciations (1e7 {1 068) {378 20 {469} (147y|  (2,246)
CHeposals - 14 - Ak - " a4
Accumulated :
amorisatian at 31 (300 (3,925} [£.3500: {122% aah {293 (B.973
Decermnbar 2020 H i
Met carrying amount i
at 31 Deceimber 1,258 2,798 1133 73 &,255 18 11,630
220

The Group performs a large part of its activities in properties and facilities leased from
third pasties. The leases are negotiated with several renewsl and cancellation options for
flexibility depending on how the business responds in each area. The contracts expose
the Group fo a certain variability, atbeit limited, due to that the majority of these is indexed

to CPI.

Subsoil occupancy rates for the gas distribution activity are likewise included as well as
the charges for subsoil accupancy for the gas transmission activity {under Subsoil Use},
and those leases of land for facilities belonging to the Group (under Lands).
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In addition, the Group has short-term lease contracts, for which it has recorded an

expense in the amount of Euros 417 thousand {Euros 97 thousand in the previous year}
{ses Note 30).

The details and relevant amounts of lease contracts by asset type at 31 December 2021
and 2020 are as follows:

3122021

Amounts

Fixed loase
payments
Financial
expensas for
fease |fahilities
Long term [ease
liabilities

Short term tease
lighifties

Conditions
Lease term

J1 272024

Ameounts

Fixed lease
paymanks
Financial
expenses for
lease Habilities
Lang termn lease
Eahilities

Short term leass
liabilities

Conditions
Lease termn

Thousands af Euras

- iT Mator Subsoil  Computer
Land Sulldings Equipment  Vehicias LSE software Fotal
162 1,145 28 445 670 13 2 4854
25 Fit 1 an 189 1] Gt
1,248 1,843 28 8Ta 5,628 a 80625
142 1,007 27 47 447 a 2,140
110 35
10 years 3o 4 vears 4 years 4 years yoars 2 years
Thousands of Euros
. IT lotor Subsoit  Computer
Land Buildings Equipment  Vehicles use software Total
132 1,148 38 402 f42 151 2,514
31 2o 2 k| T86 3 334
1,237 1,818 38 780 5,885 a 0,754
141 1,080 3r arg 400 19 2,073
f to 38
10 years  2io 4 years 4 yesars 4 years years 2 years
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The analysis of the maturity date of the lease liabilities, including future interests to be paid, is

as follows,
Thousands of Euros
2021 2020

Up to six manths 1,070 ,037
From six months o one year £,070 1,037
From one {0 two years 2,154 2,000
From two to threse years 1,729 1,556
From four to five years 552 ahd
Owver five years £,190 5,645

11,764 1,827

{10}

The are na commitments deriving from shoridarm lease contracts.

impairment and Allocation of Goodwill and Intangible Assets with indefinite Usefd Lives
to CGLUs

For impairment testing purposes, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
have been allosated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs) as detailed in Note 8.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on calculations of its fair value
less costs of disposal. These calcutations include estimated cash flow projections, ess
the posi-tax average cost of the capital itself from the underlying CGU activity. The
ecanomic forecasts start from the best estimate by management of the evolution of the
G businesas for a projection period of 15 years and assume a terminal value upon its
conclusion with & perpstual growth rate {g) of 1.5%.

For the natural gas distribution and fransmission activity, a post-tax average cost of capital
calcdated In accordance with CNMY Circukar 2/2019, of 12 November, was used fo
establish the methodology for calculation of finansial remuneration rate of the
transmission and distribution activities of electric power, and the regasification,
transmission and distribution of natural gas.

The Group determines budgeted gross margine based on past experience and forecast
market performance. The weighted average growth rates are consistent with the forecasts
included in sector reports. The discount rates used are after-tax values and reflect specific
risks related to each GG

According to the projections and estimates available to the Company (which include the
considerations of the National integrated Energy and Climate Plan {PNIEC) 2021-2030),
the forecasts of the cash flows aftributable to the CGU to which it is allocated goodwill and
intangible assets with indsfinite usefid lives allow recovering the value of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives recorded as of December 31, 2021. A
sensitivity analysis to the assumgtion of the perpetual growth rate {g ) in a projection
period of 15 years shows that, for the natural gas distribution activity, there would onfy be
a sign of impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives if the
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perpetual growth rate (g) was -7.5% or below; in the case of the natural gas transmission
activity, for thera to be 3 sign of impairment, the rate would have -2.7% or below.

{11} Financial Assets by Categary and Class

The classification of financial assets by category and class, is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Mon-crrrent Current
2021 2020 2024 2020
Financial assets at amortisod cost
Loans - - 1,989 278
Security and ather deposils deliverad 1,440 1,435 - -
Diher financia] azzets R2 2 - -
Trade and cther recoivables
Trade receivables 4512 2,725 51 849 39,141
Other receivables 1.260 - 18,067 18,162
tmpairment - - (1,532 {1,352}
Cash and cash equivalents - - 40,123 594,732
Total financial aszets 7.304 4,454 110,585 848,951

The amount of net profits and losses, corresponding o the category of financial assets at
amartised cost in the years 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

Fhousands of Euros

20124 2020

\ . . 4 G
Finance income at amorised cosf

Losses for impairment (305 {383

(304) {377

Details of these items are provided in Notes 12 and 15.

(12) Current and Non-Current Financial Assets

Details of current and non-current financial assets ai 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as

foblows:
Thousands of Euros -
L2 2020
___Nt:ln-cumeni Current NO!_'}_—__{_:H rrent _[___‘,_H_r_rent
Security deposits paid 1,440 - 1,438 .
Loans to employees and olher - £,585 . 278
Other Bnancral assets Bz - 82 .
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Tedal 1,502 1,589 1,528 278

Security deposits paid comespond essentiaily o the balances lodged with the
Autonomous Regions, deriving from deposits received from customers whan a service is
arranged, by virtue of the provisions of applicable legisiation in force at any given time.
These security deposits are maintained for as long as the Group maintains the supply
cantract with the customer or if the customer maintains the agreement with its supplier,
and its distribution company is a Group compary.

Current credits correspond to the balance receivable for the sale of fixed aseets already
received in January 2022,

income tax

Al the Shareholders General Meeting held on 17 December 2010 the Parent Company
shareholders agreed that, with effect as of 1 January 2011, the Company would apply the
consolidated taxation regime regulated in Title Vi, Chapter Vil of the now repealed Royai
Legisiative Decree 472004, of 5 March, replaced by Title Vil, Chapter Vi of Law 2772014,
of 27 Movember, approving the Corporate Income Tax Law. Redexis, 5.A. is the parant
company of a new tax group alsu made up of the subsidiaries detaited in Annex | attached.

Details of deferred tax assets and liabilities by type of asset and Hability are as follows.

_ 2021 _
. Thousands of Euros o
Assets Liabilities Net

Property, plant and equipment 1,645 {32,001} {30,356}
Goodwill - (8,738) (8,736}
Deferred income - (2,293 {2,203}
Intangible assets - (65 618} (65,818
Provisions 205 . 205
Arnortisation and depreciation 2,269 - 2,260
Personnel remuneration o 3.388 _ - 1,386

5,505 (108,648} (103,142)
Tax loss carryforwards = - 226
Net assets and liabilities 5,731 {108,648} (102,817)

o

o
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. 2020 —
_ Thousands of Eures

Agsets Leghilities Met

Property, plant and equipment 1,708 (33,719} (32,014)
Gaodwill - {6 725} {6,726}
Beferred income - {2631 (2,631}
Intangible agsets “ {54,293) {84,283}
Frovisions 264 - 264
Amoriisation and depreciation 2,633 - 2,933
Personnel remuneration . 1,931 - 1,831

5,834 [107,368)  (100,535)

Tax loss carryforwards 2.56488 - - 2855

Met assets and liabititios 9,730 (107,369) (97,639}

There are no unrecorded deferred tax assets or lisbilities

Deferred tax liabilities relating to property, plant and equipment mostly detive from the
application of the tax incentive approved in additional provision 11 of Law 472008 of 23
Dacember 2008 and in Royal Decree-Law 132010 of 3 December 2010, on accelerated
depraciation of property, plant and equipment, which the Group applied in 2009, 2010 and
20111, as wel as from the fair value measuremant of property, plant and eguipment in the
business combinations in 2010 and 2015,

Accelerated depreciation is only applied to investments brought inte service in the 2008,
2010 and 2011 tax periods that correspond 10 new assets commissioned under works
execution contracts or investment projects with an execution period, in both cases, of less
than two years between the commission or investment start date and the date on which
the asset becomes avallable or enters service. Investments in distribution assets arg
depreciated over a period of 20 years for accounting purposes and one year for tax
purposes. Investments in transmission assets are depreciated over a period of 40 years
for accaunting purposes and one year for tax PLDOSEs,

All deferred tax iiabilities associated with intangible assets and deferred income derive
from the aforementioned business combinations.

The merger approved by the shareholders in 2014, detailed in the accounts for the
mentionad year, became effactive for accounting purposes on 1 January 2014, The Group
therefore reversed the deferred tax liability in the amount of Euras 80,748 thousand in the
consaolidated income statement for 2014. The merger was carried out under the special
protection tax regime contained in Chapter Vil of Title VI of the Spanish Corporate incame
Tax Law and, thersfore, the tax value of the property, plant and equipment, intangible
asgets and goodwill at 1 January 2014 was Euros 23,345 thousand, Euros 245314
thousand and Eures 5,030 thousand, respectively. The tax effects ocour as of whan the
Imerger was entered in the Mercantile Registry on 27 February 2015,
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On 23 December 2015, the Parent Company requested a ruling from the Directorate-
General of Taxes as to whether the tax toss carryforwards of the absorbed subsidiaries
(Redexis Gas Transportista and Redexis Gas Distribucion), arising from temporary
differances to be reversed in the future, shoukd be calculated as a reduction in the
deductible marger difference, as was the case with the accelerated depreciation applisd
by these companies in 2009, 2010 and 2011, On 26 December 2016, the Parent Company
received a positive response to its query, stating that the tax loss carryforwards of the
absorbed subsidiaries arising from temporary differences to be reversed in the future
should not be calculated as a reduction in the deductible merger difference. As a resull,
the tax value of intangible assets and goodwill in 2016 increased by Euros 29,525
thousand and Euros 45,098 thousand, respectively. In 2016 the Group therefore reversed
the Eurcs 7,441 thousand deferred tax Hability in the consolidated income statement,

The tax value of intangible assets and gaodwill in 2017 increased by Euros 43031
thousand and Euros 75,253 thousand respectively, The Parent Company obtained a tax
certificate cotresponding to the former Company shareholder, which reveals the capital
gain included in the Seller's tax base, the resulting doubte taxation of the fransfering
sharehoider Endesa Gas, and of the purchasing company Redexis. The aforementioned
capital gain could be eliminated by application of paragraph o of Transitory Provision 23
of Carporate income Tax Law 27/2014,

Pursuant to Law 18/2012 of 27 December 2012, which introduced several tax measwes
to coneclidate public finances and boost economic activity, depreciation of property, plant
and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets was tmited to 70% of the
depreciation and amortisation charge for accounting purpases for the 2013 and 2014 tax
periods. Consequently, the Group has recognised deferred tax assets of Ewros 2,017
thousand at 31 December 2020 {Furos 2 682 thousand at 31 December 2019). As of
2015, any depreciation and amortisation that was not deducted for tax purposes in the tax
periods cammenced in 2013 and 2014, due to the aforementioned limit, may be daeducted
on a straight-line basis over a periad of 10 years, or over the usehyl life of the assets. The
Parent Company has opted for the 10-year reversal period.

During 2015 the Tax Authorities conducted an inspection for Carporate income Tax {for the
years 2010, 2011 and 2012). The Tax Autharities issued a settlement to increase Corporate
Income Tax payabls far 2010 by Euras 348 thousand plus jate payment interest, {0 reduce
tax loss camyforwards generated in 2011 by Eures 35,285 thousand, and 1o reduce non-
deducted net finance costs arising in 2012 and avattable for application in fulure years by
Euros 35391 thousand. The inspection team has considered certain participating loans
extended to the Company to be capital contributions from the Group's shareholders, and
therefore does not consider the finance costs accrued in connection with these loans in 2010,
2011 and 2012 as tax deductibie. The Company deemed the propased adjustment unlawful
and had therefore fitled an administrative appeal and has lodged its submissions against the
settlament at the Central Economic-Administrative Tribunal (TEAC). On 2 February the
TEAC confirmed the decision of the inspection, which is why the Parent Company filet a
claim in the Mational High Court, submitting it on @ Getober 2017, On 24 July 2018, the
National High Court confirmed the inspection arguments and on 15 Octaber 2019, the Group
filed & notice of appeal in cassation before the Supreme Court. On 2 June 2020, the rotice
of appeal before the Supreme Court was dismissed as non-admissible, whereby an appeal
for legal protection was filed before the Constitutional Court on 24 November 2020. On B
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March 2021, once the appeal had been examined, the appaal for protection was overtlrned,
thus ending the judicial procedure.

Using the same criterla, the taxation authorities settled a reduction of deductible net finance
costs generated in 2013 and 2014, carded forward for amounts of Euros 35,205 thousand
and Ewros 9,379 thousand, as i considerad the participating loans extanded to the Parent
Company {o be capial contributions from the Group's shareholders, and therefore doss not
consider the finance costs accrued in connection with these loans in 2013 and 2014 as tax
deductivte. The Parent Company deemed the proposed adjustment unlawful and had
therefore filed an administrative appeal against the setifement bafore the Central Econamic-
Administrative Tribunal an ¥ July 2017, which declined jurisdiction and forwarded the claim
to the Regional Economic-Administrative Tribunal (TEAR) of Aragon, by resolution dated 20
January 2020, which notified its rejection on 28 December 2020. The company filed a
contentious-administrative appeal in the following two months before the Superior Court of
Justice of Aragdn and withdrew it an 1 December 20271 as a result of the non-admission of
the appeal

In consideration of the above, the Company Directors have decided to derecognise the
deferred assets recognised at 31 December 2020 and pay the Euros 348 thousand and
default interest corresponding ta the infraction natice of 2010

In accordance with legislation in force, the Group may offset its tax loss carryforwards for
the 2020 and 2621 tax periods up to a maximum of 25% of taxable income hafore the
offset. In its provisional calculation of income tax for 2021, the tax group has offset tax
losses of Euros 10,683 thousand (Euras 5,755 thousand in the definitive income tax refurn
for 2020),

Based on the best estimate of future consolidated profits, recovery of the deferred tax
assefs is considered probable and they have therefore been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Corporate Income Tax Law 27/2014 of 27 November 2014 amended the income tax rate.
The tax rate is 26% for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2016, and for 2015 it
was 28%. The Group adjusted all of its deferred tax asseis and liabilities based on a tax
rate of 25%, except for defarred tax assets arising from non-deductible amortisation and
depreciation in view of the application of Law 16/2012 of 27 December 2012, In thie
respect, Transitory Provision 37 of the CIT Law provides for a deduction in total inesme
tax of 5 % of the amounts included in taxable income for the tax peried, for depreciation
and amortisation not deducted in tax periods starting in 2013 and 2014. This deduction
was 2% for the tax periods commencing as of 2015,

There are no items charged or credited directly against other overall incame and net ety
in 2021 and 2020,

Details of the income tax expense are as folows:
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Thousands of Eures

_ 3021 2020
Current tax
Present year 10,621 5,683
Adjustment of prior years {377) 28,534
Defarred tax
Qrigination and reversal of temporary
differences {2,947) (3,152}
Finance costs - -
Accalerated depreciation and
amartisation {1,462) (1.48%)
Depreciation and amortisation ¥33 BEG
Salaries payable 5497 {254}
Goodwat (2488} (2,486}
Provisions {324) 404
Income tax expense for the year 7 298 31 475
{companies) ! '
Adjustments and efiminations on consofidation 4 830 4. 858
Income tax expense for the year (Group} 12,278 36,31

A reconciliation of current tax with current income tax liabilities is as follows:

Thousands of Edros

2021 2020
Corrend bax 10,621 5,693
;’: :rI;:uss carnfonwvards offset and recognised in prior @571 (1,450)

Consohdation adiustments . _

Incoms tax payabie for the year (Groug) 7,950 4,234
Paymenis on account during the year (5517 (3,066}
Wyithhoidings - -
Current income tax liabifity 2,333 1,178
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The relationship between the income tax expense and pre-tax profit for the YEAr 5 a8
follows:

Thausands of Erros

Lo&2l e
Profit for the vear before tax 50,304 20 516
Tax at 25% 12 596 ERCE]
Adjustment of prior years {3F7) 280,934
Other net movements _ _ 5T T8
income fax expense for the year (Group) 12,218 36,331

The Group has recognised the tax effect of Unused tax loss carryforwards as deferred tax
assets, the amounts and reversal pariods of which are as follows:

Af 31 December 2021 _
Cornpany f Year Thﬂ;izrlgss of

_Redexis Group / 2011 <
Total 903

At 31 December 2020

Thousands af

Company ! Year Euros
Redexis Group/ 2611 T 1isas
Total 11 bEG

in accordance with curtent legislation, taxes cannat be considered definifive until they
have been inspected by the taxation authorities or before the inspection periad of four
years has elapsed.

in 2016 the Tax Authorities commenced an aldit of the following companies of the Group,
far the years and taxes set forth below:

Tax Years ppen

Corporate Income Tax {All Group companies*) 2015-2018
Value Added Tax (Redexis, 5.A.) 2017-20158
Non-Resident income Tax (Redexis, S.A.) 20M8-201%9

{*} The period under inspection for the Redexis, S.A. corparate income tax is from
2018 through 2013.
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The Group has open to inspection by the taxation authorities the main taxes applicable
for the following years:

Tax Years opan

Carporate Income Tax {) 2019-20620
WValug Added Tax (%) 2018-2021
Persanal Income Tax 2018-2021
All other applicahle Taxes 2078-2021

{*} The period for filing corporate income tax is within 25 calendar days following six
months after the end of the year, wheraby the Corporate Income Tax correspanding to
2021 will net be open 1o inspection urdil 25 July 2022,

Mevertheless, the right of the taxation authorities to inspect or investigate unused or offset
tax loss carryforwards, and unused or applied deductions to promete the undertaking of
certain activities, have a 10-year statute of Iimifations as of the day after the end of the
period for filing the tax return or self-assassment corresponding to the tax period in which
the right to offset or application was generated. Following that period, the Group should
accredit any tax loss carryforwards or deductions by disclosing the setflemeant or seif-
assessment and the accounting records, with proof that they were filed at the Mercantile
Registry within the abgve perod.

Due to different possible imterpretations of prevailing tax legislation, additional tax liabilities
could arise in the event of inspection. In any case, the Parent's directors do not consider
that any such lkabilities that could arse woulkd have 2 significant effect on the Consolidated
Annual Accounts

Inventories

Detalis of [nventories are as follows:

Thousands of EUros

_ a2t .. 200
LPG inventories 8,283 5 189
Solar Panels BRZ -
Qther materials a0 30
Supplier advances 2t 492

8.718 87t

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no commitments to purchase or sell
inventories.
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(18) Trade, ciher receivablies and other currant assefs

Details of trade and other receivables and other assets are as follows:

Thousands of BEuros

2 2020
Won- Current Neon-current Cusrent

Trade receivables 4 582 51,948 2,728 38,141
Receivables, sefflements

pending 1,290 16,760 - 17,968
Other receivables - 2.28% - 1,194
Less impairment due to

uncallectibility - (1.552) - H.,362)
Fotal trade and other 5,802 68,484 2728 56,041

receivabies

Thouzands of Euros

2021 2020
Public entities
Taxation authorities, recoverable
VAT 8,150 985
Taxaticn authorifies, withholdings 28 45
QEher g8 o2
Frepayments a7 526
Total other agsets 7.2562 1,629

Trade receivables primarity comprise balances receivable from suppliers of natural gas
for tolls invoiced and propane gas invoiced to end customers. In the case of non-current,
they come fram sales with deferred payment of energy facifities for third parties.

Current and non-current receivables recorded under debtors, setements receivable
reflect setttements and measurement differences receivable from the gas system.

Movement in impairment due 1o uncollectibility is as follows:
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Theousands of Euros

2021 2000
Balance at 1 January {1,362} {1,097
lmpakrment charge [(339) {488)
Reversals for impairment 3 105
Cancellations _ 139 118
Balance at 31 December {1,532 {1,362)

Past-due unimpaired trade receivables amounting to Euros 32 thousand at 31 December
2021 {Euros 37 thousand at 31 December 2020) reflect balances receivabte from Public
Entities for which no ¢radit risk is foreseen.

Cash and cash eguivalents

Details of cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

Thousands of Buros

20219 2020
Cash in hand and at banks 40,123 581,732
40,123 oB1,732

The variation in 2021 is mainly due to the repayment of debit explained in Note 19.

Equity

Details of equity and movement during the year ate shawn in the consolidated statement
of changes in eguity.

() Capital

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the share capital of the Parent Company
amounted to Euros 100,000 thousand, represented by 10,000,000 shares of Eurcs
10 par value each, subscribed and fulty paid.

At 31 Decembar 2021, Redexis, S A. is owned {ij 33.33% by Chase Gas
vestments Limited, a subsidiary of the USS private equity fund; {ii) 33.34% by
Arheidsmarkedets Tillssgspension (ATF) private equity fund; and (i) 33.33% by
Cuotong Romeo Holdings Limited, a company owned by the funds Guoxin
Guoteng Fund LLT and CNIC Corporation Limited.

To this raspect, on 22 November 2021 ATF executed a corporate restructuring,
transferring the Redexis shares from ATP Infrastructure I} APS directly to ATP.
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On the other hand, at 31 December 2020 Redexis, S A. was owned (i) 33.353% by
Chase Gas Investmerts Limited, a subsidiary of the USS private equity fund, {ii)
33.34% by ATP INFRASTRUCTURE 1| APS, & subsidiary of the ATP private equity
fund; and (ji) 33.33% by Guntang Romeo Haldings Limited, a company vwned by
the funds Guoxin Guotong Fund LLT and GNIC Corporation Limited.

The Group actively manages its capital to maintain a structure capable of creating
value for its shareholders and other stakeholders, as well as optimising the cost of
this, always safeguarding the principle of guing concern,

The Group has several levers that allow it to adjust its capital structure. These
range from the discretionality in the payment of dividends and in making
investments for its organic growth, through the amortisation of debt, issue of
shares or sake of assets,

In order tu monitor and achieve these objectives, the Group maintaing a prudent
financial policy that specifies a commitment to maintain an investment grade
rating, in other words, BBB- or greater by Standard & Poor's rating agency or any
other agency with which the Group maintains a rating request. Thiz erdails the
fufdiment of a series of leverage ratios and cash generation in accordance with
that rating.

Share premium

This reserve, amounting to Euras 105,433 thousand at 31 December 2021 and
2020, is freely distributable, provided that its distribution would not reduce the
Parent's equity to an amount lkower than share capital.

Other reserves

Details of Other reserves are as follows:

Thousands of Euras

2021 2020
Leqgal regenve 20,000 20,000
Other
shareholder 97,538 157,638
coniributions
Other reserves _ 207 333 214,527
324,871 392,065

feqal resarve

The fegal reserve hag been appropriated in compliance with arficie 274 of the
Revised Spanish Companies Act, which requires that companies frangfer 10% of
profits for the year to a legal reserve until this reserve reaches an amount equal {o
20% of share capital.
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The legal reserve is not distributable to shareholders and ¥ it is used to offset losses,
in the event that no other reserves are available, the reserve must he replenished
with future profits.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Parent had appropriated to this reserve the
minimUm amount required by law, i.e. Euras 20 milfion (20% of share capital}, and
will therefore not allocate any further amoeunts to this reserve.

Ofher regsenves

The goodwill reserve was appropriated in compliance with article 273.4 of the
Revised Spanish Companies Act, which required companies to constitute a non-
distributable reserve squal to the amount of goodwill recognised in the Parent's
individual statement of financial position. Howaver, the amendment to article 32.4 of
the Spanish Code of Commerce in 2018 provided for the systematic amortisation of
goodwill {in annual accounts prepared under Spanish GAAP), thus gliminafing the
obligation to appropriate this reserve.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, other reserves include goodwilt reserves
amounting to Euros 16 356 thousand, which are non-distributable untit the carrying
amount of goodwill is lower than the amount of this reserve in the Annual Accaunts
of sach Group company.

Details of reserves contributed by each Group company at 31 December 2021 and
2020 are as follows:

Thousand_s o_f Euros

2021 2020
Redexis, 3.4, 320,707 331,683
Redexis Gas Murcia, 5.A 1,667 324
Redexis Gas Servicios, S.L.U. {£,607] {1,470
Redexis GLP, S.L.U. (5,658} {3,364}
Redexis infraestructuras, S.L.1L 4,761 L4872
324,871 392,065

Bividends

During 2021, the Parent has praceeded to pay two dividends to shareholders at the
rate of Euros 3 per share in each distribution. The total amount distributed in 2021
was Euros 60,000 thousand {Euros 60,000 thousand in 2020}, against the freely
distributable reserves of the Parent to shareholders of the Company as detailed in
section (a), of which Euras 58,100 thousand were paid and the rest retained.
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(e} Profitfifloss) for the year

Details of profit/{loss) for the year contributed by each Group company at 31
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 200
Redaxis, S.A, 33,948 (8,593
Redexis Gas Senvicios, S.L.U. 743 {137)
Redexis GLP, S.L.U. 35 (2.204)
Redexis Gas Murgia, S.A 24859 1,244
Redexis Infraestiucturas, S.LU ¥20 0 3,875
38,108 {€,8185)

(18) Financial Liabilities by Class and Category

() Glassification of financial liabilities by cateqory

A classification of financial liabilities by category and class is as follows;

Thous_ands of Eurog

_ 2021
Carrying amount Carrying amaount
Men-currant Current

Financial liabilittes at amortised cost
Debt with related paries 89391885 12 700
Loans and borrowings
Yariable rate 145,205 250
Fixed rate 266 544 11,588
Security and aiber daposits received 855 -
Payables transformable into subsidies 536 -
Lease liabiitios . BpRas 2,140
Totaf financial lishilities 1,408,054 26,697

62



{b)

{c)

REDEXIS, 8.A AND SUBSIDIARIES

Motes to the Consolidated Annual Accounts

Thousards of Furos

oA _
Carrying amount  Camying amourt
Mon-curent Current

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Dbt with refated parties 890,064 57,192
Loans and boriowinds
Variatie rate 147 556 254
Fixed rate 265 930 14.648
Sacurity and siher deposits received 1,134 -
Oiher finaricial iabilities 45 ha3
|.ease liahikites 2754 _ 2073
Tutal financiat llabilifies 1,414 486 531 895

The fair value of loans and horowings with related parties at 31 December 2021 is
Euros 1053082 thousand (Euros 1,572,423 thousand at 31 Becembar 2020}, The
average interest rate of these debts is 1.56% (1.56% in 2020}, For the rest of the
liahilities, the fair value is similar to the carrying amaunt.

Security deposits recsived essentially correspond to the deposits received from
customers when a service is arranged, by virtue of the provisions of appiicable
legislation in force at any given time, These security deposits are maintained for as
lang as the Group mainfains the supply contract with the customer or if the custamer
maintains the agreement with its supptier, and its distribution company is 2 Group
camparny.

Met lnsses and gaing by financial liahility category

Net losses and gains by financial Fability category for 2021 comprise finance costs
at amortised cost totalling Euros 28,616 thousand (Eures 42,774 thousand in 2020).

Changes in Liabilities arising from Financing Activities

Tha reconciliation of liabifities classified as financing activities is as follows:
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Thaousands af Euros

Balance at 31 December

2020

Cash flows
Other changes

Batanee at 31 December

20214

Dent with
refated t%;i'gii”i Lease liahiities Total
parties g
1,141,780 207,885 12,498 1,361,865
3368 550 315,358 (2,181) 543,715
5.677 (345} 1,800 7444
1,487 996 422,848 11,827 1,918,721
1454,097} (9.218) (2,188) (505,504}
1,686 485 2127 4,598
991,885 414,165 14,765 1417 815

(19} _Debt with refated partiss

As indicated In Note 6(c}, at 31 December 2021 the Parent was extended a series of loans
by related party Redexis Gas Finance, B.Y. in a nominal amount of Euros 1 000 000

thousand (Eures 1,484,097 at 31 December 2020),

The origin of these loans are the issues of debt made by Redexis Gas Finance, BV All
issues are guaranteed by Redexis and the funds obtained from the issuss were

transferred to the Parent Company by means of said loans.

The list of ioans at the closs of 2020 and 2021 is as follows:

Year 2021
lssue date  Term {(years) Maturity Coupeh Nominal
2710452015 12 270412027 1.09% 250,000
Band s
0141212017 months 2042027 1.00% 250,000
28/05¢2020 a 28/0542025 1.891% 500,400
1,000,000
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Year 2020
Issue date Term {years) M at by Coupon Mominal
DRO42014 7 08042021 2ET% 494,057
2700472015 12 2710412027 1.80% 250,000
9and &
014272017 months 2THOASZD2T 1.89% 250,600
28/05/2020 5 28052028 1.8 % 5¢0,000

1,454,087

The transactions perfarmed in 2021 were as follows;

The loan in the amount of Euros 484 087 thousand, held by the Parent with
FRedexis Gas Finance, BY. was prepaid on 7 January 2021, [n tum, an 8 January
2024 Redexis Gas Finance, BV, procesded ta partislly repay all of the bonds in
force of the issue to mature on 8 April 2021, in an amount of Euros 494 097
thousand.

The transactions performad in 2020 were as follows:

In May 2020 the Parent formalised a lean with Redexis Gas Finance, BV, in an
amount of Euros 500,000 thousand for 5 years, to mature in May 2025, The
amount of this loan was used to partially prepay Eures 155,903 thousand of the
foan in the amount of Euros 650,000 thousand held by the Parent with Redexis
Gas Finance, BY o mature on B Apsil 2024, leaving an outstanding amount of
Eures 484,087 thousand.

The remaining funds, together with the bank {oan in the amount of Euros 150
million formalised in May 2020 and detailed in Note 20, will be allocated toward
prepaying the aforementionad loan,

Accrued interest not yet due at 31 December 2021 and 2020 is reflected under *Loans
and Baorrowings with Related Parfies' under current lhabilities in the Consclidated
Statement of Financial Position.

Loans and Borrowings

Details on loans and barrowings at 31 December 2021 and at 31 December 2020 ars as
follows:
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Thousands of Eures

Carrying amaunt at 31

Dacember 2021
. Maximumn Mon-
Maturity available
Type Cusrent cufrren!,
Loans and borrowings:
- ESi5 finked - Revolving 2024-2025 oy 12
Credit Facility 300,000 63 {1,267)
- EiB foan 2015 2036 141,178 10,238 131,844
- EiB toan 2017 2039 541, LHH) 520 45,500
- BiB foan 2018 2040 75,000 441 75,000
- ESG hnked - Term 2023
L oan 160,000 187 145,475
715,176 11,848 404,753
(1) Cornmitment fee.
{2} Outstanding depreciable expenses
Thousands of Euros
Carrying arnaunt at 31
December 2020
, W =xirmien Morn-
Malurity available
Type Current cLsrent
Loans and borrowings:
- ES0G linked - Ravalving Credit !
Facility 2028 00000 63 {1, 154)
- EIB loan 2{Hta 2036 180,550 10,287 141,040
- EIB Ioan 20HY 2038 50,000 820 44 894
- EIB logn 218 2040 75,000 a1 743,004}
- E5G linked - Term Loan 2023 150,000 187 148,110
725,580 413 4PA

{t) Commitment fee.
{£) 20 vears fram the drawdown
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The maturity by year of the loans is

At 31 Pecember 2021:

: 2028 and
2022 2023 2024 2025 thereafter | Total |
EIB 941z2] 12,383 16,766|  16,765] 210,882 286,178
TERM
LOAN - 160,800 - - - 150,000
TOTAL 9412 162,303 16,765 16,765 210882 46178

No new financing transactions were parformed in 2021,

The transactions perfarmed in 2020 were as follows:

years.

the Parent, which matured on 8 April 2021.

Trade ancd other payables

Details of frade and other payables are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

pozi 200
Suppligrs G.629 3112
Trade payables 13,651 12,3%8
Payables. setllements pending a7.534 45,062
Sakaries payable 3,660 7.7
Payables for acquisition of non-cumrent assels 44,649 42,525
Totat trade and other payables 108 028 112,535

87

On 20 February 2020, the Parent made the final drawdown on the loan from the
EIR in an amount of Euras 75 million, with a 20-year maturity and an annual
repayment of capital and interest, with a capital grace period during the first 3

in May 2020 the Parent formalised a Term Locan with several Spanish and
international institutions in an amount of BEuros 150,000 thousand far 3 years, {o
mature in May 2023 Together with the transaction detailed in Note 19, the funds
were allocated toward cancelation of the bond issued by Redexis Gas Finance,
B.V. with the guarantee of the Parent, which matured on 8 April 2021 and which
was coordinated by cancellation of the loan betwesn Redexis Finance, BV and
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Thousands of Eures
2021 2020
Public entities, ather
. Taxation autherities, personal incorme 2,049 404
Sonial Sevurity payables 410 458
Taxation authorifies, personal VAT tax i3 137
Pulilic utility rates, taxes and local ’
councll payablos 2! 2,122
Total ather liabililizs 5,183 3,118

Payables, settlements pending at 31 December 2021 primarily include the balances
related to provisional settlements pending final seftlement by the regulatory body for 2019,
2020 and 2021 (for the years 2018, 2019 and 2020 at 31 December 2020).

Payables for acquisition of non-current assets at 31 December 2021 and 2020 mainly
reflect payables for acquisitions of property, plant and equipment, primarily for the
extension of distribution and transmission networks. Accounts payable for acquisitions of
property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2021 include 5,101 thousand euros of
advanced commercial debis by credit institutions.

Late Payments to Suppliers. ‘Reporting Requirement”, Third Additional Provision of Law
15/2010 of 5 July 2010,

Details of late payments ta suppliers by Spanish consolidated companies are as follows:

2021 2020
Days
Average supplier payment period 41 49
Transactions paid rafio 42 a1
Transaciions payable ratio 35 34
Amount (thousands of
Euros) i
Total payments made 203,731 192,101
Total payments outstanding 26,623 | 23,271

To calculate the average period of payment to suppliers, the commercial operations

corresponding to the delivery of goods or provision of services accrued in each year were
taken into account.

Trade creditors for debts with suppliers of goods or services, included in the item "Trade
creditors and other accounts payable” of the current liabilities of the balance sheet are
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considered suppliers exclusively for the purposes of giving the information provided foar in
this Resolution.

“Average payment period to sUppliers” is understood as the term that elapses from the
receipt of the goods or the provision of services by the supplier and the material paymsant
of the operation,

Risk Management Policy

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities are exposed fo various financial risks: market risk (inciuding fair
value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk, and cash flow interest rate
risk. The Group's global risk management programme focuses on uncerainty in the
financia! markets and aims to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's profits.

Risks are managed by the Group's finance management in accordance with policies
approved by the Board of Directors. This department identifies, evaluates and mitigates
financial riske in close collaboration with the Group's operational units.

Credit risk

The credit risk is that which arises as a result of the breach or non-payment of the
countarparty in a financial transaction,

Due to ite activity, geographic distribution and to the special characteristics of ifs
customers given the sector in which it operates, the Group does not have significant
concentrations of credit risk. Despite this, the Group has implemented a credit risk control
pracedurs, monitored by a committee that furthermore evaluates exposure o certain
transactions,

On the sther hand, the Group policy for financial asset investments is to maintain the
availability of their liguidity for use. These balances are maintained in top-tier financial
institutions.

The tables below show the ageing of financial assets at 31 Becember 2021 and 2020
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2021

— Thousands of Euras

Lass than 1-3 3 months Muore than
1 marth maonths -1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
Trathe and other receivables,
fixed rate 14 436 358,266 15,780 3,997 1,805 74 2EG
Other finatcial assots 1,860 - B30 - £.002 3,491
Total assats 16,287 38,266 15,919 2,897 3,307 FEFrT
2020
o . Thousands of fyros L
Less than 1 1ta 3 From 3 manths TiohG More than & Total
month months to 1 year YEAS ¥Ears

Trade and other
receivables, fixed rate 10.254 28,718 17 BRE 1,787 933 BLEETY
Dthear frnancia assats - - 278 - t.520 1,806
Tolal assets 10,264 28,7140 18,246 1,787 2467 61473

Liquidity risk

The Group applies a prudent policy to cover its liquidity risks, based on having sufficient
cash and avaiiable finanding through credit facilities committed to covering the operating
and tinancial needs of the Group.

The goal of the Group's finance management is to maintain flexible financing through the
availability of the credit facilities contracted. As of December 31, 2021, the Group has g
negative working capital of EUR 12,994 thousand. However, in order to cover the
operationa! needs that may be necessary , the Group maintains the availability of credit
facilittes amounting to Euros 300,000 thousand availaile at December 31, 2021 (Euros
300,000 thousand available at 31 December 2020, see Note 21) which, together with the
current cash flow generation and cash and cash equivalents (Furos 40,123 thousand in
2021 and Eures 581,732 thousand in 2020) cover the funds operating needs of the Group
for the year 2022,

Details of the Group's exposure to liquidity risk at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are shown
below. The tables reflect the analysis of financial liabilities by contractual maturity date,
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2021
. Thousands of Euros e
From 3
Lf iﬂijﬂ;ﬂ rr;]c:r?i:s months to 1 to & years Mﬁﬂ Te:;in Tatal
year
Loans and hormowings - 258 14,558 210,856 193,887 415 601
YWariable rale . 28 - 148,200 - 145 458
Preirwipal - - - 148,203 - 143,205
Interest - 260 " - - 250
Fixed rate - - 11,098 BZ 547 193 897 268,142
Frincipal - - Q412 G2 Gd7 193 887 235,556
Interest - " 2,186 - - 21869
Trade and other 4517 7 954 2 559 - - 106,026
payables
Dbt with related ; 12,708 406178 406707 1004594
parkias
Fixed rate - - 12,709 405 178 496 707 1,004,594
Principal - - - 4895 173 496 707 981,585
interesk - - 12, 700 “ - 12,709
Tota) fiabiifies 4 517 a7.850 27566 706034 641, Gl 1,527 241
2020
e Thousands of Euros _ _
From 3
{ess Bhan fio 3 106 Mare than
morths o Totat
1 month months 1 year YEars 5 yeats
Leans and borrowings - 260 11,548 202 850 210,636 425 394
Wvatiabie rate - 260 - 147 556 - 147 3186
Princioal - - - 147 556 - 147 856
interest - 280 - - - 260
Fixec rate - - 11,648 hh 294 210,636 277 670
Principa - - 0412 55,204 210,636 275,342
Infetest - - 2,236 - " 2,238
Trade and other 4,824 100,541 7.170 - - 112,535
payables
Debt with related partiss - - R17,192 405 178 494 886 1,507,256
Fixed rate - - 517,192 495 178 454 k86 1,607 256
Principal - - 4403 632 495 1758 494 BhG £,483 006
fnterest - - ad el - . 23,260
Totat fiabilifies 4 B24 100 B4 536,005 64948 028 705,622 2,045 185

1
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{24} Provisions for Employee Benefits

Details of provisions for employee benefits and their classification as current and non-
current are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

_ 2021 2029

_ Non-current Currgnt Non-current
Benefit abligations 132 348 126
Multi-arnual incentive provisian 578 . -
Total 710 348 126

Current benefit obligations record outstanding compensation.

The mulrannual incentive provision was reclassified in 2020 under Current trade
payables with the rest of the remunerations payable to employees.

{a) Post-employment and lorg-term employee benefits

Under the currant pension scheme, cerfain Group employees stil hold the rights
acquired through the pension scheme of the group to which the Parent previously
belonged. This scheme provides defined contribution plans for retirement, far which
insurance policies have been aivanged for cover the Plan.

On the other hand, the social benefit obfigations for deferred remuneration commitments
in the form of length-of-service and retirement premiums are covered by internal
provisions.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020 ohligations with employess provisioned with internat
funds correspond to long-service bonuses for serving personnel.

Details of and movemeant in provisions for long-term employee benefits are as follows
{thousands of Euros}
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(ther long-term employes

penefits
2021 2020

Balance at 1 January 126 3,872
Parsonnet exXpenses B 108
Finance costs - a0
fkppimatmns recognised in profit or B (3,457)
LSS

Transfers - {A38Y
Actuzrial gains and losses ) 1 i8)
Balance at 31 December 132 128

The present value of the commitments was determinad by gqualified independent
actuaries.

The contributions made by the Group fo the pension plan amounted to Euros 593
thousand in the year ended 31 December 2021 and are included under personnel
expenses in the consolidated income statement {Euros 609 thousand in the year ended
31 December 2020, see Note 31).

At 31 December 2021 and at 31 Becember 2020, no accrued coniributions were
pending.

{25} Other provisions
Movement in ather provisions in 2021 and 2020 was as follows:

Thousands of Euins

2021 2020
Balance at 1 January 543 a76
Charges 2,078 ass
Payments (227} {433}
Reversals 151 S o) B
At 31 December 2,290 443

These provisions mainly include measurement differences in the distribution and
transmigsion activity pending settlement, several lawsuits and provisiocns to dismantle
facilities.
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Guarantees

The Group has extended guarartees to various government bodies totalling Euros 52 B&7
thousand at 31 December 2021 (Euros 54,282 thousand at 31 December 2020) to ensure
compliance with its obligations as a company officially authorised to distribute gas in a
number of municipalities and to carry out warks on puhlic thoroughfares. The Group does
not expact any significant liabilities to arise from these guarantees,

Environmentat infarmation

The Group is aware of its responsibility to protect the environiment and has undertaken a
number of initiatives with this purpose within its area of influence. The Group conducts its
activities in full compliance with prevailing environmentat legislation.

The Group renders an important energy advisory service to its customers, including active
participation in campaigns to replace other energies with natural gas, as wsll as
sUpporting and facilitating the renewal of facilities, with conseguent improvemerds in
energy efficiency and reductions in pollutant emissions.

When so required by law due to the characteristics of the project in question, the Group
commissions mandatory reports by independent environmental consultants when Carrying
out network extension works and recognises the related costs as an increase in the value
of the investment.

aovernment grants and other liabilities

Movement in non-refundable government grants and other liabilities is as follows:

2021 _
Thousands of Eures =~~~
Amounts
Palance at L Balances at
Body/item Scope 1 January Additions Transterrad 41 Decembas
in P&L _ _

Fukfic entities PE 14,260 15 (780) 13,486
Connection charges  Private 5,648 1880 (215) 8,023
20,808 1,805 {1,205) 21,519
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2020 .
_ Thousands of Euros _
Amounts
Balance transferred Balances
Bodyitem Scope at 1 Additions Dispozals  tothe at 31
Janary income  December
~ skaterment
Public entities PE 15,120 - (111} {749, 14,260
Connection charges Private 6,096 1,035 - {483 5,548

21,216 1,035 (1 {t.232y 20,009

Capital grants awarded by public entities are earmarked for investment in gas pipelings
and distribution networks.

(28) Revenue from ordinary activities

Details of ravenue are as follows:

Theusands of Eyros

2021 2020

Rernuneration for distribution activities 112,615 106,843
Remuneration for fransmission activities 89,804 59,551
One-off adjustmant to previous years' _ (939)
transmission revenus _
Fﬁe_rn_u_neratmn for transtrission and distrigetion 172,418 165,455
activities
Reguiated LPG sales a2 rae 22 559
Oither regulated distribution revenue {connection
charges, equipment rental, other services) 26,321 25,362
Other non-requlated revenue 8,425 6,004

239,893 219,380

{i) Breakdown of revenue from ordinary activities:

The following provides a breakdown by type of activity andfor service rendered and the
time at which the revenue is recognisect:
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Thousands of Euros

2021 2020
Service rendered andlor assof transferred
over time
Gas distribution 112515 106,843
Gas fransmission 59,804 L8612
Sale of LPS 32,728 22 559
Remal of matering equipment 8974 8,731
Renting aind matntaining CRF 7 865 Fil=rls
Service rendered andior asset transferred at
a specific time
Registration fees 2098 1,971
IRF Inspections 85,000 8,008
Gontracting party connection charges 2,455 2,422
Supply reinstatemant fee G35 514

fiiy Contract hatances

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has no accounts receivable, customer
cantract assets or llabiities.

(29} Other income

Details of other income are as follows:

2021 2020
Government grants taken to income (Mote 27) 780 745
Applcant connection charge 815 483
Income from thisd-party offsets 833 387
Pmljts associated with property, prant and 1 440 517
efpment
Lease income 251 200
LNG transmmission ravenue 1,982 1314
Other income 580 1,013
Total 6,500 B,363
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{30 Other Operating expenses

Details of other expenses arg as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2021 2020

Operating lease expenses 417 o7
Repairs and maintenance 2,353 7.681
independent professional services 22240 1,731
Bank and sirnilar fees 374 iB5
Advertising and publicity 953 1,088
UMtilities 281 372
[nsuUrance pramiums 18 5EE
Taxes 2,394 2,244
Qutsourced services &.828 £,8R2
Other expenses 3,742 3,161
impairment losses / {profit) and

uncobectibility of trade and other 308 383
Teceivables (Moie 9}

Other non-recurrent expenses 1,592 987
Total 29,197 25596

(31 Employes benefits expense

Details of the employee benefits expense for 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2021 T 2020

Saolartes and wages 22,231 23 834
Social Security payable by the Company 4,858 4,805
Contributicns 1o defined benefit plans

{Mote 24a)) 593 609
Other employee banefits and Provisicns 625 {2,645}
Mon-recurrent expenses 1,128 1,847
Total 28,237 28,648

In 2020, Cther employee benefits and Provisions included the application of provisions to
terminate the right of supply to retired personnel

T



REDEXIS, 5.A AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Conzsolidated Annual Accounts

The average headcount of the Group in 2021 and 2020, distributed by category, is as

follows:
Sieering Committes
Executives and
managers
Technical and Support
Staff

Other categories

Total

At the 2021 and 2020 year ends the distribution by gender of Group personnel and the

Number
2021 2020
12 13
7 111
riE 994
12 15
349 163

members of the Board of Directors is as follows:

2021 2020
liaie Female  Total Male Female Total

Board members | 1 g 7 1 a8
Steering Committes 7 3 10 8 3 11
Executives and managers g3 19 112 g2 18 110
Technical and Support 135 67 202 144 70 14
Staff

Oither calegories ] B 11 53 5 11
Total 248 96 344 257 97 354

(32) Einance Income and Costs

Details of finance income and costs are as follows:

Finance income
Interest on loans and barrowings

Interast on loans and borrowings with related parties
Impairment and profitloss) from disposals of financial

instruments
Other finance costs

Finance costs arising from provision adjustments

Net finance profit/(loss)
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_ Thousands of Euros

2021

2020

239 286
(6,834)  (5.389)
(21,848)  (35.038)

- (2.560)
(107) (235)
(319) (384)

(28,967)  (43,317)




REDEXIS, 5.4 AND SUBSIDIARIES

Motes to the Consolidated Annual Accounts

{33) Related Party Balances and Transactions

The balances payable to related parties at 31 December 2020 are shown in Note 149.

The Group's transactions with related parties are as follows!

2021
Thouzands of Euros
Related Key
. management .
parties personnel Total
Expanszes
Interest {21,548} - {21,845)
Dongtions (175} - 175}
Benefits expanses - {5, 186) (5.188)
{22 129) {5,186} {27,307
2020
Thousands of EUros
Related Key
) maragement
pantics personnel Total
Expenses

Interest (35,0365} - {35 036)
Donations {177 - {177}
Beneafils expenses - (5.600% 15,600%
(35,213} (5,800) (40,813

(34) Information on the Members of the Pargnt's Board of Directors and the Group's Sgnior
Management Parsonneg|

At 31 December 2021 the Parent’s Board of Directors comprises nine members: one
woman and eight men.

Without prejudice fo the above, on 16 December 2021, (i) Mr Fernando Bergasa Caceraes
tenderad his resignation as Chief Executive Officer; and (i} Ms Cristina Avila Garcia as
Director of the Board of Directors of the Parent, both effective 1 January 2022.

On the other hand, on 1 December 2021 the Redexis Shareholders General Meeting
appointed Mr Fide! Lopez Soria as a Lirector of the Parent, and an 16 December 2021 he
was appointed by the Board of Directors as its Chief Executive Officer, effective 1 January
2022.

7o



REDEXIS, 5.4, AND SUBSIDIARIES

Motes o the Consolidsted Annual Accounts

The members of tha Board of Birectors receive no remuneration for their role on the board,
and no balances in this regard are payable to or receivable from these directors in 2021
or 2020. However, remuneration is paid ta board members who perform executive duties
in the Company.

in 2021, the executive board members and other directors who report directly to the board
members raceived remuneration amounting to Eurcs 7,178 thousand for 13 recipients (13
recipients received Euwros 4,529 thousand in 2020, which includes the settlement of the
bonus accraed in 2020,

in 2017 a bonus plan was implemented on a three-year basis for the period betwean 2018
and 2020, both inclusive, and a five-year pian which expires in 2022, | refation to the
three-year plan and for the year 2021, a provision has been made for continUity with the
previous plan, which the management has taken as the best estimate in the surrent
context, pending definition of the detailed plan.

The Group also has pension and life insurance obligations with its executive board
members and other directors who report directly to the Board of Directors. For this
concept, the Group incurred an expense of Euros 102 thousand in 2021, Euros 110
thousand in 2020, for 13 recipients in both years.

The amount of civil Habiity insurance premiums for damages caused by acts or omissions
of Directors and senior management personnel in the exercise of their posis came to
Euros 25 thousand in 2021 and 2020,

No advances or foans were granted in 2021 or 2020 to executive board members or other
directors who report directly to the Board of Directars, nor were any guarardeess extended
on their bahalf

In 2021 and 2020 neither the meambers of the Board of Directors of the Parent nor other
directors who report directly to the Board of Directors carried out any fransactions other
than ordinary business or applying terms that differ from market conditions with the Parent
or any ather Group company.

The members of the Board of Directors of the Gompany and their related parties have had

no conflicts of interest requiring disclosure in accordance with articie 229 of the Revised
Spanish Companies Act.
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REDEXIS, 5 A AND SUBSIDIARIES

Motes to the Consclidated Annual Accounts

{35) Audit Fees

Diefoitte, 5.L., the auditor of the Group's annual accounts, acerued the following fees for
professional servicas during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Thousands of Curns

2021 2020
ALt services 199 198
Other audit-rolated services ¥ 22
236 221

The amounts detziled in the above table include the iotal fees for services rendered in
2021 and 2020 irrespective of the date of invoice.

Other companies affiiated with Deloitte invoiced the Group the following feez and
expanses for professional services during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Thousands of Euros

2021 2020

Other services 208 241

205 241

(36) Ewvents after the Reporting Period

No events occurred after year end.
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APPENDIX I
Alternative performance measures {APM)

The Redexis Group financial infermation contains magnitudes and measures prepared in
accardance with applicable accounting regulations, as well as others prepared in accordancs
with reporting standards established and developed internally, which are known as
Alternative Performance Measures (APMz).

These APMs are considered magnitudes adjusted with respect to those presented in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union {IFRS-EU}, which is the applicable accounting framework for the consolidated financiai
statements of the Redexis Group, and should therefore be considerad by the reader as

supplementary but net replacing these, which should be read, interpreted and reviewed
overall and not separately.

These additional financial measures deriving from the conselidated accointing records ars
not financial or liguidity performance measures of the Group according fo the IFRS, and
should not be considerad as an alternative to consolidated net income; or as an indicator of
Group performance; or as an alternative to cash flows from operating activities, or as a
measure of Group liquidity. Therefore, they may differ from measures with simitar tities
repoited by other companies and may not be comparabie.

The Redexis Group reports these APMs to help users of financial information to understand
its financial performance, since these constitute additional financial information ant the
Group considers that they represent useful alterative and additional indicators of the
financial perdformance of the Group when read or interpreted together with the financial
statements.

These AFMs are consistent with the main indicators Lsed by the community of investors and
analysts in capital markets. To this regard, and in accordance with the confents of the
Guidelines issued by the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA}, in force since
3 July 2016 refative to the transparency of Alternative Performance Measures, the Redexis
Group provides the following information deemed significant relative to thase APMs includeg
in the 2021 management information.

1. EBITDA

Acronym for "Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amaortisation' This is an
indicator of the results from operating activities of the Group, before dedueting net
interest, corporate mcome tax, depreciation and amortisation and prior to possible
adjustments for nan-recurring ifeins relative to remuneration from gas transmission from
previous years, possible non-securring organisational restruciuring andfor personnsl
expenses, other non-recurrent operating expenses or non-current asset impairment.

2, EBIT

Acronym for “Earnings Before Inferest and Taxes™ indicator that measures the resulis
from operating activities of the Group before deducting interest and corporate income
tax.

3. EBT
Acronym for "Eamings Before Taxes”: indicator that measures the results frormn operating
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activities of the Group before deducting corporate income tax.

EBITDA margin

EBITDA figure of the total operating income and other revenue.

EBITDA margin less the difutive effect of the LPG

EBITDA figure of the total operating income and other revenue, after deducting the cost

of the LPG from these, so as to show the net margin of the EPG in the income as
remuneration, in the same way as the gas distribution and transmission business.

. Total income and other operating income

Total income and other operating income plus the work carried out by the company for
its fixed assets:

. Personnei expenses

Expenses for salaries and wages and other employee benefit expenses, without including
non-recurrent expenses relative to organisational changes or other non-recureant
expenges.

Capital { Investment Expenses
Capital used in additions of non-current tangible assets, such as PPE {proparty, plant

and equipment} including outlays for the acquisition of subsidiaries or husiness units and
including additions of non-current intangibie assets.
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1. Position of the company

1.1.

Organisational and corporate structure

The Redexis Group (hereinafter the “Group” or “Redexis") is an ensrgy infrastructure
group engaged in the development of gas infrastructures and renewable energies such
as hydrogen or biomethans. ts netwarks provide access to natural gas to many
residential, industrial and service sector customers, The companies comprising the Group

arg!

Redexis Gas _.: . Redexis Gas
"Murcia, S.A Servicias, _Sfl,._u_

Redexis, S A, Mead of the Group engaged in the distribution and transmission of
all types of gas and cil-based products for domestic, commercial and industrial
purposes, the use of any by-products, and activities retated with the above,

Redexis Infraestructuras, 5.L.U. davoted to the regasification of liquefied natural
gas, natural gas transrmission and storage and related and ancillary activities. it is
100% owned by Redaxis.

Redexis GLP, S.L.U. is devoted to the retail sale and supply of liquefied petroleum
gas. [fis 100% owned by Redexis.

Redexis Gas Murcia, 5.A is devoted to the distribution and secondary
transmission of natural gas, and the distribution and sale of liquefied petroleum
gas through pipelines. it is 99 98% owned by Redexis.

Redexis Gas Services, 8.L.U. is devoted, among others, to the planning, analysis,
project, execution, assembly and operation of infrastructures, in addition to the
management, advisory and corporate services linked to the energy sector. I is
100% owned by Redexis.

.......... . e HUOY

: - "Redexis

Infraestructura, *
sLu o

THLASY, oo e IO

- Redexis GLP,
SRR YRR

There are also two entities connected to the Group:

Redexis Gas Finance, B.V., a company devoted to the issue of debt.

The Redexis Foundation, devoted to the promation of technological innovation
and the devefopment of sacial, charity, assistance, training of cultural works.

Redexis, 5.A and Redaxs Gas Finance BV. have the same shareholders, which
participate in both companies in the same proportion:

Universities Superannuation Scheme ("USS"): Europsan pension fund, 33.33%.
Arbejdsmarkedets Tiliegspension ("ATP"); European pension fund, 33.34%.

Guoxin Guotong Fund LLP {"GT Fund"} and CNIC Corporation Limited ("CNIC™:
financial investors that hold a 33.33% joint stake.
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1.2, Activity

Redexis is an energy infrastructure group devoted to the activities of natural gas
transmission and distribution, distribution and supply of liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) and
mromaotion and development of renewable energies, such as renswable gases and
hydrogen.

The Groun develops and operates infrastructures to transmit natural gas from the main
transmission networks in Spain to the peints of consumption in homes, businesses,
industries ard service stations.

Redexis is fully committed to society and the environment. As a comprehensive energy
infrastructure company, it seeks to maximise grawth and efficiency, cardributing decisively to
sustainable development, being responsible with the environmert and generating value for
its stakeholders.

The Group is conscious of the importance of the energy transition and its role in a sustainable
future. To do so, it promotes projects in order to position itself as a leader in the development
of renewable infrastructures promoting clean and renewable energies such as hydrogen,
hiomethane or photovoltaic energy. Therefore, in addition to expanding the infrastruciures to
make gas accessible, the Group promotes a futwre in which a sustainable energy source
rirculates through its networks, taking advantage of the opportunities for a circular and
Cleanar econoimy.

1.2.1. Key indicatars

With more than 761 thousand supply points and a volume of distributed energy of 36.5TWh,
the Group gives access to a sustainable and efficient source of energy, natural gas and LPG,
serving 980 municipalities in 40 provinces through more than 11,000 kilometres of its own
energy infrastructure. 1t operates in the Autonomous Regions of Aragén, Andalusia, the
Balearic tslands, Castila-La Mancha, Castilla y Ledn, Catalonia, the Region of Madrid,
Valencia Extremadura, Navarra and Murcia. The Group also operates a network of 25
refuelling stations in service nationwide that provide access to a competitive and low-
emission mobiity alternative. 91% of Redexis activity is regulated and aimed at providing an
optimal, safe, and efficient service, placing the end user at the centre of all decisions. All this
while designing, building, maintaining and improving transmission and distribution
infrastructures to guarantes the natural gas supply. Additionally, Redexis has prior
administrative authorisations in 93 municipalities in 2 additionat provinces, which aliows it to
keep its growth potential high.

In 2021, the Group continued its plan to expand its energy infrastructures, adding 28,000

new supply points and new tertiary and industrial demand to existing networks and the 130
new kilometres of distribuition netwarks deployed in the year.
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_Operating data 3 2021 2020 % Var.

Connection points 761,607 733,174 3.0%
Natural gas (NG P<abar G44 029 §32,667 1. 8%
LPG ™ 117,248 100,160 17.0%
Makural gas (NG P=4 bar 325 37 3.8%

Provinces served 40 28 5.3%

Municipadities served 1 280 854 13.4%

Length of the network (km) 1,905 M,¥18 1.6%
Distribution network (km) © 16,260 10,073 1.9%
Transmission nebwork (km) 1,645 1643 0.1%

Pawer distributed {(GYWh) 36,546 36,260 0.8%

{*} Atthe cloze of 2021 are inelided the 14,450 and 2,205 supply points acquired in Dooombar 2027 fiom the
Mactiia Group and the Copsa Group, respectively, it 114 mumiioatities pending integralion af yasr riasing,
Additionally, 4,897 suoply poinfs in 53 murcpabiies are Jncludad from ihe purchase made duimg 2021 to
Frepsod and whith are pending integration at ear end. i total, thore aro 278 fon of network that are pending
integration af 1 2027 wlosing fo add fo the 10,260 ki reported.

From a financial standpoint, the Group closed 2021 with revenue growth of 8.8% to Furos
261.9 million. The consclidated EBITDA of the Group in 2024 amounted to Euros 1794
millicn, and an EBITDA margin of 68.5% (74.6% if the net margin of LPG is included in
Revenue),

Finanecial information 2021 2020 % Var.

Figures fn miflions of Euros, excant whera

indicafed

Incame 261.9 2417 8.4%
Distribution — requiated 112.6 106.8 5.4%
Other distribution revenues - regulated 26.3 2564 35%
Fransmission — regulated 0.8 506 8.3%
Requtated LPG business 327 22.6 44.7%
Othar cperating incoma 14.9 1.4 30 7%
Self-constructed non-curremt asseks 15.5 16.1 (3.7%)

EBITDA 1704 169.5 5.8%

EBITA margin _ 68.5%  70.1% {lépp)

EBITLA Margﬁ'n fwith nal LEG mangin in r'eﬁ':'riua} 74.6% 751% 06pp

1.2.2 Activities
{a) Disfribution

The Group builds, operates and maintains the distribution facilities fo supply natural gas to
different municipalities in Spain and gives new users accass to gas. This activity is regulated.

At the close of 2021, the Group has 644,029 natural gas supply points and a distribtion
network spanning 8,674 km distributing natural gas to 267 municipalities in Spain, adding
two new municipalities in Andalusia,

Taking advantage of its experience, the Group continues to extend and broaden its activity
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and services in a wager for growth and connesting with the real needs of socisty. Therefore,
as of 2019 the Group wagers for the development of vehicular natural gas refuelling stations
far the use of natural gas as a fusl for both heavy and light vehicles as an economic and
sustainable alternative o traditional fuels,

In 2021 the Group buit and put 13 new refuelling stations into operation. Thus, Redexis
already has a netwark of 25 refuelling stations of real national scope: 11 LNG stations for
1ong-distance heavy traffic that cover the country's main traffic corfidors, 10 CNG stations
that provide service for transport fleets such as the public bus service of Transporte de las
Islas Baleares (TIB). or the ambulance sewvice in Murcia, and 5 CNG stations apen to the
general public in the main cities. In the upcoming years, the Group maintains its plan for the
deployment of gas refuelling stations throughout Spain.

The Group continues to invest in R&D for more efficient and safer activity. Thus, the Group
maoved forward this year in new initiatives for robotisation and virtualisation of assels such as
LNG plants. Likewise, it uses artificial inteligence that, by means of algorithms and advanced
analytics, is able to reveal information that enables the construction of tools aimed at a more
efficient expansion of the network, optimising contracts, improving levels of security and the
quality of supply.

fh} Transmission

Redexis operates and maintains its own network of gas pipslines, supplying natural gas to
the areas in which consumption is most concentrated. This activity is regulated,

At the end of 2021, Redexis had a network of 1,843 km, comprising 51 gas pipelines and
transmitting gas at pressures exceeding sixteen bars to industrial hubs and connections with
distribution netwerks.

{c} Ligusfied Pefrofeum Gas (LPG)

Redexis distributes and seils liquefied petroleum gas {(LPG), a regulated activity subject to
the regime provided by Title 1V of Hydrocarban Law 34/199a.

The LPG business complements the natural gas distribution business, enabling Radexis to
capitalise on growth opportunities in areas where it is not feasible to extend its distribution
network, and to provide its end customers with an optimised high-quality service that s
seclire and efficient,

Redexis currently has more than 117 thousand LPG supply points and a network spanning
more than 14 thousand km in 908 municipalities at a national level, which intlude the
acquisitions made from Repsol, Cepsa and Nedgia between 2020 and 2021,

In December 2021, the Redexis Group signed agreements with the Nedgia Group and the
CEPSA Group for the purchase and transmission of LPG nefworks and facilities that serve
14,450 and 2,285 supply points, respectively. These operations are in the process of
appyoval.

On the other hand, in December of last year, the Group signed a frameweork agreement
between Repsol Butane, S.A. and the Group for the purchase and conveyance of LPG
networks and facilities that wowd service around 4,230 supply points in 35 municipalities
distributed over one new province.

Building on its experience, Redexis converis these LPG supply points into natural gas

21



points. These conversions take place gradually, taking inte account certain technical and
requiatary criteria,

1.3. Businegss model and stratecy

Redexis wagers for sustainable growth, aimed at a more sustainable and efficient business
madel. To do so it focuses its strategy on the following priorities:

Balanced and sustainable growth, focused on businesses that provide leng-term
sectrity, stability and visibitity.

Operational excelience, focusing on customer satisfaction.

innovation, by means of the use of the mast advanced technology to obtain greater
efficiency.

Proactive risk management based on prevention and anticipation.

Creation of value for society and stakeholders.

Respect for and conservation of the environment,

People: key to the development and growth of the past and future Growp.

Financial stability based on a prudent financial poticy in which any investment should
be financially sustainable, and that is reflected in the commitment of the Group to

maintain an investment grade cradit level.

Sustainability in @l econemic, social and environmental spheras.

2. Business evolution and results

2.1,

Key milestones in 2021

The maost significant events of the Group during the year are detailed below:

Comporate Governance and Management Cominittee

Reorganisation of the executive leadership of Redexis, in which Mr Fernando
Bergasa was appointed non-executive president and Mr Fidel Lépez Soria was
appeinted CES

Appaintmant of Mr Borja Polo Bafios as the new Economic-Financial Director,
maintaining his responsibilities as Director of Strategy and Corporate Deveiopment

Credit rating and sustainabiify

L

Standard & Poor's (S&P) credit rating agency reaffirms Redexis's investment credit
quality, maintaining its BBB- rating with a stable outiook.

GRESB, the worldwide Sustainability Benchmark, awarded Redexis with the
maximum cf five stars for the third consacutive year for its performance in ESG
{Environmental, Socia! and Governance) for a total of 91 points out of 100, Redexis
has been quaiified as “Sector Leader”, a special mention that recognises the best
entities by sector and region
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The Vigeo Firis CSR and Sustainability index awarded Redexis with a "rofist
ranking and improved its score by 12% with respect o the previous year,

Business development

]

Redexis reaches 761,607 supply points, extending its presence in Spain, serving 980
municipalitics in 48 provinces

Within the distribution business, the pace of growth was maintained in all residential,
tertiary and industrial segments, doubling the annual growth in the acquisition of new
ugers in the last of these.

Deployment cortinued in the vehicuiar natural gas business, adding 13 new refueliing
stations. There are already 25 refuelling stations developed by Redexis throughout
Spain.

The supply of renewable gas to the metropolitan bus line of the Consorcio de
Transpories de Zaragoza began. This gas station is connected to the Redexis gas
pipehine network, thus ensuring the renewable origin of biomethane through
renewable gas guarantees or certificates of origin, thus achieving neutral mobility in
CO2 emissions.

Redexie and Cepsa have signed an agresment to promote the first photovoltaic
enerqgy network at its gas stations in Europe. Redexis will take care of the instaltation,
start-up and maintenance of the solar panels at the Cepsa stations.

Redexis has grown in the photovoltaic solar self-consumption market business,
connacting more than 3MWp of new photovoltaic solar energy capacity.

Redexis reaches an agreamsnt with the Nedgia Group for the purchase and
transmission of LPG networks and facilities that serve some 14,450 supply paints.
“This transaction is in the process of ite communication to the CNMC for approval.

The Group reaches an agreement with Cepsa Comercial Petrdles, 5.A.U. and GASIB
Sociedad Ibefica de Gas Licuado, 3.L.U., for the purchase and fransmission of LPG
netwarks and facilities that serve some 2,295 supply points. This operation is under
approval.

Hydrogen and renewable gases

Redexis promates the injection of biomethane into gas networks through a project
that paves the way in Spain and will connect its natural gas infrastructure to the Galivi
Solar waste treatment plant in Lorca (Murcia Region) for the injection of biomethane
inta its distribution network.

Signing of a collaboration agreement with the multinational Air Liguide for the
development of a project on the value chain of hydrogen mobility in Spain, with the
aim of reducing the carbon footprint of the transport sector. The two companies have
agreed to work on analysing the deployment of a network of up to 100 hydrogen
refuelling stations in Spain by 2030.

Participation in the Hydrogenizing BCN project, which will develop the necessary

infrastructures to promote the use of green hydrogen in industry and mobility in
Barcelona
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Redexis will build the first Spanish hydroduct in Palma de Mallorca as part of the
“Green Hysland” project, the first strategic project in southern Europe financed by the
European Commission for the creation of a green hydrogen ecosystem in the Balearic
Islands

Participation in the OceanH2 preject for the investigation of transmission technologies
and supply of renewable hydrogen from the sea. Redexis wilf be responsible for
studying the different technologies that will make up the logistics chain of the
hydrogen produced.

The Centre for Industrial Technological Development (CDTI) gives financial backing
to the R&D project led by Redexis called VORTEX, based on the development of a
new thermal treatment system for liqusfied natural gas (LNG) facilities that will bring
significant energy savings.

FParticipation in the 'Ready4H2" initiative fogether with 59 European distributors from
13 countries, to support the development of a hydrogen market and share knowledge
and experience,

Foundsation and sponsorships

The Foundation has made a danation fo the Cabildo de La Palma council to cover
the needs of those affected by the eruption of the volcano on the island.

The Hedexis Foundation has granted aid to improve energy efficiency and quality of
life to five non-profit associgtions.

Redexis supports women's sports as a new sponsor of Sala Zaragoza
Redexis new sponsar of UCAM Murcia CB. ¥ will sponsor the Infantil "A" group of the
uriversity youth academy, which will he renamed UCAM Murcia Redexis and will

wear the campany's logo in all regional and natienal competitions.

Redexis joins the Spanish Confederation of Business Crganisations (CEOE) as an
associate.

Environment and safety

The 150 14001 certifications have been renewed: 2015, environmental management
system; the |50 5000t: 2018, energy management system, tha IS0 45001 2018
the occupational health and safety management system, and the 1SO 50001:2018
transmission, storage and distribution of natural gas and liquefied natural gas (LNG)
and liguefied petroteum gas (LPG).

Registration of the carbon footprint for the year 2020 with the Ministry, verified by

GHG and according to IS0 14064 centification. The 2020 footprint was 0.6% down
on 2018
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2.2. Analysis of rgsulis

Kay indicafors:
ey financial indicators 2021 2020 Var. b
Figures in midfions of Euros
Regulated revenues 231.5 214.3 17.2 5.0%
Regulated distrbution revenus 112.8 i06.8 5.8 & 4%
Other regltated distribution revenue 283 264 1.0 319%
Regulated ransimission fevenus 50.8 506 0.3 0. 5%
Regutated LPG business 327 228 10.2 45, 1%
Other operating income 14.9 11.4 a6 31.6%
Seif-constructed non-current assets 185 16.1 {0.5) {3.1%)
Total inzceme 261.9 241.7 20.2 5.4%
Supplies {26.8) {20.9) {5.8) 28.2%
Empiovee benefits expense (28.1) (26.7) (1.4 52%
Cther recurrent operating expenses {27.8] {24.8) (3.0} 12.2%
EBITDA 179.4 169.5 9.9 5.8%
Non-recurring revenue adjustment
for Transmission from prior years 0.0 {0.9) 4.9  {£1000%)
Other non-recurrent aperating expenses 1.8} £1.8) {0.8) 803.0%
Non-recurrent workforcs expenses 1.1} {1.9) 0.8 {42, 1%}
limpairment losses on non-cuTrent assets {1.3) {t.1 {0.3) 27.3%
Depreciation and amertisation [95.0} (91.8) (4.2) 4.6%
Earnings before interest and taxes {EBIT) 79.4 72.8 6.5 8.9%
Met inance profitiloss) (29.4) {43.3} 14.4 {33.3%)
Eamnings before tax {(EBT} 50.4 29.5 20.9 70.8%
Incoma tax (expensaiievenus §12.3} {36.3) 24.1 (56.4%)
Profit/{loss) for the year 3B {6.2] 45.8 667.8%

Poto 1 Rodexis Gas revenues compass he remuneration it receives fram the gas sysfem for its ransmizsion o
distribution activities, sz awardad by e nalonal reguiatory aufurities,

In 2021, the Group recorded revenue growth of over 8% to Euros 261.9 million, with a
positive contribution to growth from all business fines and mainly as a result of its regulated
activities.

EBITDA grew by 5.8% to 179.4 million, mainly due to the organic growth of the businesses
and the increase in the volume of distributed energy compared to 2020,

EBIT increased by 8.9% and the net profit by 861.8%, mainly due 1o the disappearance,
in the financial expenses of 2021, of the refinancing effect started in 2020 and completed
in 2021, and the extracrdinary accounting expense that occurred in corporate tax in 2020.
The Group's track record continues to show a line of sustained growth and reinforces its
growth strategy to cantinue investing in the deployment of new energy networks in Spain
and in new lines of business and value-added services related to natural pas.
3. Liguidity and capital resources
3.1. Debt structure

The Group conducts a prudent management of the liquidity risk ensuring compliance with
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the payment commitments acquired, trade as well as financial, covering funding needs by
reeans of the recurring cash generation from s businesses, as well as the contracting of
long-term |eans and credit facilities.

In these past few years, the Group has proven its ability to access capital markets by
means of bank facilities, bond issues and loans with the EIB.

Al 31 December 2021, the Group has liquidity in the amount of Euros 340.1 million,
according to the following breakdown

CiType Mt ' Total - ‘Drawn down  Available -
Sustainable revolving credit {acifity 300.0 - 3000
Cash and cash equivalents 40.1 - 40.1

The debt structura of the Group is as follows:

_ orType s Total down CAwvailable - - Maturity -
Laan with the European Investment Bank 141.2 141.2 - July 2038
Loan with the European lnvestment Bank 5.0 a0.g - June 2039
Loan with the European lnvestment Bank 750 780 - F?ﬁgw
Cebt with retated parties (M) 500.0 A00.0 - May 2025
Dbt with related parties {*) &500.0 500.0 - Aprit 2027
Sustainable bank loan 150.0 150.0 - MWay 2023
Sustamable Revnlwng credit faclltty 300.0 - 3000 May 2024

- Total gross debt - 11l ATIE2 o UH4M62 300,00 T

{:ash and cash equwalents 40.1 4[&.1
T Nt et T g

|’",1 Loam with Redexis Gas Fmancc El 'L" d&m!ed m the Tssue of debt, and that are m.l'amd |'r:u Eha -'ss-ue uf bunds I:l].f
Roookis Gas Finance, 8. with Fre guamnfﬂa af Radaxiz, 5.4,

On 8 January 2021, Redexis, S.A. completed the refinancing started in May 2020, by
cancelling the significant remainder of the loan of Eures 650,000 thousand {as of that
date, Euros 484,097 thousand} that it had with Redexis Gas Finance, B.V. and which, in
turn, cancelied the bond issue associated with said loan for an initial ameount of Euros
§5(,000 thousand (as of that date, Euros 494,097 thousand) whish matured in April 2021,

The operations formalised in May 2020 and that are currently in force are:

-~ Redexis, 3.A. formalised a sustainable loan with several Spanish and foreign bank
institutions in an amount of Euros 150,000 thousand due in 2023,
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Redexis, 3.A. formalised a new loan with Redexis Gas Finance, BV, in the amount
of Eures 500,000 thousand due in 2025 This kan is associated with the issue of
bonds by Redexis Gas Finance, B.V. with the guarantee of Redexis, 5.A., with the
same amount and maturity.

At the end of May Redexis, S.A. proceeded to prepay Euros 155,903 thousand of the loan
in the amount of Euros 650,000 thousand, leaving an outstanding amount of Euros
404 067 thousand. With the funds obtained, Redexis Gas Finance, BV. procesded to
partially repay the issue of debt associated with the toan in the amount of Euros 850
mitilion, with Euros 494,097 pending cancellation.

In February 2020, the European Investment Bank (EIB) provided Redexis, 5.4 with the
last franche of the credit fasility granted within the scope of EFSI {European Fund for
Strategic Investments) allocated toward the development of natural gas distribution
networks throughout Spanish territory, corresponding to the funding framework,

The Group has liquidity and sufficient financial resources to ensure its growth, address its
future investments and iis finaneciai commitments.

3.2. LCredit rating

On 12 October 2021 the credit rating agensy Standard & Poor's prepared the annuat
report for Redexis, S.A., which maintained its BBB- rating with a stable outlook and
investment grade category.

At year-end, there has baen no update

IFapning: the ratings e b reviored, sispendaed or wildrawn by the vading aneiy af wny e,
4, Events after the reporting period
Events after the year end are described in Note 36 to the Consohidated Annual Accounts.
5. Information on cutiook

Natural gas represents about 25% of national energy consumgtion and is an essential source
of energy for the Spanish economy. More than 8 million homes use this source of energy
and in the tertiary and industrial sector, gas accounts for around 3% of energy consumplion.
Gas is a compstitive, low-emission energy source and cantributes to the sustainability and
economic viabilify of homes, businesses and industries.

The role of natural gas and gas infrastructure is essential in the energy transition and for the
development of a cirgular economy based on energy vectors that depend less on not-
renewable sources and which promote the management of agricultural and urban waste,
such as biomethane and hydrogen. This is established in the National Integrated Energy and
Climate Plan '21-30 (PNIEC} and the Decarhonisation Strategy to 2050 prepared by the
Spanish Govarnment within the scope of ihe Law on Climate Change and Energy Transition
and which are alignad with the European Green Deal.

As a benchmark energy infrastructures company, leader in efficiency and firmly commitied
to its users, empioyees and shareholders, Redexis wagers for a move toward a more
sustainable and efficient business modet with the development of a business model whose
ohjective is to address the new challenges facing the energy sector,

Redexis forms part of the energy transition. In coming years, it will continue prometing the
ur
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Spanish gas sector, and will continue developing, operating and maintaining gas
infrastructures in Spain, and offering alternative and complementary solutions based on an
innovation model that seeks to provide a respanse to the fechnological changes with
advanced artificial intelligence tools,

Furthermore, Redexis has a flexible infrastructure that adapts fo the dewvelopment of
renewable energies without the need for additional investments, which makes it relatively
easy to diversify the supply sources, increasing and improving the sectrity of supply to
Spanish homas and industries,

lts activity is regulated and defined within a regulatory framework that also stipulates the
parameters that set the remuneration for regulated activities. This will permit the continued
operational devefopment of the Graup's project via:

+  Growth in distribution activities in new areas and greater saturation in existing areas.
- Growth of the LPG business, complementary to the natural gas distribution.

+ Growth apportunities arising in this phase of energy transition, promoting clean and
renewable energies such as vehicular natural gas (VNG), hydrogen, biomethane or
phictovoltaic energy.

+  Improvement in operating efficiency thanks to the innovation of new technologies that
make i possible to develop infrastructures more efficiently.

- Development of increasingly demanding health and safety and environmental
standards,

6. Main risks associated with Redexis activities

Just like any other company or group of operating companies, the Group is axposed to
several risks inherent to the sectar, fo the markets in which it operatas and to the activities it
performs that, were they to materialise, could prevent the attainment of its uhjectives and the
successtul execution of its strategies.

The Group has opted for a control and risk management modet that makes it possible to
adapt 1o the economic context and to the businass activity of the Group, in order to be able
tor respond to any risks that it may face,

The Group has an Audit and Risk Committee whose duty is to oversee activity and risk
management, reviewing policies and practices regarding this management, as well as
ensuring the ability of the Group to identify new risks and monitor the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management. This Committee is composed of 3 non-executive directors of the
Group, and reports directly to the Board of Directors.

7. Human resources

At the end of December 2021, Redexis had a fotal of 343 employees while the average
headcount for the year was 346

8. Own shares

Redexis did not hold any own shares at 31 December 2020, nor did # perform any
transactions with own shares during 2020.
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9. Financial instruments
The risk management policy is explained in Note 23 to the Consolidated Annual Accounts.
10.Average payment period

The average paymert period of the group is 41 days as detailed in nofe 22 to the
Consolidated Annual Accounts,

11.Innovation model

Redexis opts for innovatian, development, sustainability and contribution to the quality of life
of society. It designs solutions to improve its service, in keeping with the objective to promote
the gas sector in Spain and play a significant role in energy transition.

In response to the new challenges and opportunities posed by the present situation, it has
implementad an innovation model that seeks to respand to the technological changes in the
sector, encouraging an innovative cuiture within the Group focused along the following lines:
Main Business, Hydrogen and Renewable Gases, Mobility and Digital.

»  Redexis innovation in the Natural Gas sector

Redexis has developed several projects aimed at proposing new solutions to the
engineering challenges and processes regarding naturat gas. All of them have been
institutionally racognised and have direct or indirect participation from the publlic sector.
Among those being deveioped we highlight:

v The CERVERA VORTEX project for the experimental deveiopment of a new
sustainable reheating system for liquefied natural gas by means of the Rangue-
Hilsch phenomenon, which ended in Movember 2021 and was recognised in the
Cervera CDTI transfer catagory that finances projects developed by companies
collaborating with State Technology Centres on Cervera priority technologies.

v The MICROGRID BLUE Project, which consists of the development and technology
transfer of innovative tocks to enhance the integration of distributed renewable
energy in the form of electric microgrids so that they can aperate in coordination with
the different agents in the energy sector. The Vice-Miristry of Industry of the
Government of the Canary islands and the Instituto Tecnoldgico de Canarias 5.A.
parkicipate in it.

« Redexis, driver of hydrogen and renewable gas

The development of renswable gases (biomethane, renewable hydrogen and synthetic gas})
is necessary to achieve climate neuirality by 2050, which is the aim of the European Chmate
Law, since renawable gases contribute to reducing GHG emissions in sectars that are difficuit
to electrify and to maokility, and allow the penetration of renewable energies in the energy mix
to be increased.

Gas networks are a strategic asset for the development of renewable gases, since the eurrent
netwarks cater for the change from natural gas with limited investments

Renswable gases
Redaxis ie promoting initiatives to inject renewable gases into natural gas networks, since.

v They contribute to reducing diffuse but direct emissions of methane into the
atmosphers.
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¥ They allow energy exploitation, with a zero balance in GHG emissions.

¥ They provide a viable solution for certain types of waste that currently pose a problem
for environmental management (2.g., slurry, Organic Fraction of Municipal Solid
Waste) and indirectly and by means of the digestates produced during ahasrobic
digestion processes,

Hydrogen

riydrogen i$ a cross-cutting vector that will benefit sectors like mobility ar industry. it
furthermore minimises the surplus caused by spikes in renewable energies, since it is
capable of storing the electricity. | is emission-free whereby it is fotally respectful of the
environment and in line with the objectives of the European Commission that considers the
development of Hydrogen essential for achieving a more environmentally respectful
economy, The use of hydrogen and of fuel cells in mobility are key for completion of the
decarbonisation of fransport.

Redexis promotes hydrogen development through its Foundation and is a member of the
Board of Trustees of the Foundation for the Development of New Hydrogen Technolagies in
Aragon, and of the Spanish Hydrogen Association.

Redexis has announced projects to promote national initiatives related to hydrogen and gas
networks. Among the most relevant innovative projects developed in 2021, the following are
worthy of merntion:

- The H2020 Green Hysland project, which proposes the deployment of a hydrogen
ecosystem on the island of Malforca including the design and consfruction of a
renewable hydrogen production plant from photovoltaic solar energy for use in
mobility, stationary applications (fusl cell and cogeneration with a fuel cell in a hoteh)
and injection inte the natural gas transmission network. In this project, Redexis will
ke in charge of building the first hydroduct in Spain

v The H2020 HIGGS project, Hydrogen In Gas GridS: a systemalic validation approach
al various admixiure fevels irto high pressure grids, which launched in 2020 after
being chosen in the European H2020 FCH JU programme and whose main objestive
is t0 cover gaps in knowledge regarding the impact that different levels of hydrogen
may have on the gas infrastructure, its companents and its management.

+  The MISIONES OCEANHZ project, for the generation, sforage and distribution of
offsfrore green hydrogen, financed by CDT in the 2019 Misiones Call for Proposals,
that launched in 2020. This is an industrial research project for a generation, storage
and distribution plant for green hydrogen from offshore renewable power generation.
In this project Redexis will study the various technologies involved in the lngistic-
technological chain for the transmission, storage and land and/or maritime supply that
gnable the evacuation and supply of hydrogen produced at sea and will undertake
the corresponding design and integration of optimal solutions.

= The ALl ComputameH?2 project, Dynamic Computational Modefing of Methane-
Hvdrogen Blends in natural gas iransmission networks, coordinated by the Aragan
Hydrogen Foundation and chosen in the AE! Calf for Proposals {Innovative Business
Groups) of the Ministry of Industry, Commerce and Tourism in 2020 was closed in
2021 with highly satisfactery results.

Redexis has recently joined the most important project for the development of hydrogen
i Spain, Power to Green Hydrogen Mallorca’, a benchmark for initiatives in terms of the
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production and distribution of hydrogen and that will allow its supply on the istand for
incustries, hotels and transpart.

+ Promoting susfainable mability

Gas for vehicles is a real alternative that is more efficient and sustainable than petroleum-
based fuels for fight and heavy transport, offering mobility solutions that generate savings
and reduce emissions.

«+ Digitisation Redexis pioneer in the development and implementation of Acrtificial
Intelfigente in networks

In 2021 Redexis continued to invest in R&DA&, channelling resources that accelerate
processas of change with the firm objective of achieving operational excellence. Along
these lings, the digitisation and robotisation plans for processes in the different areas of
the company continued to be promoted and improvements continued to be made in key
aspects such as cybersecurity and IFS mohikity.

Likewise, Redexis has redoubled its efforts in the development of artificial intelligence
technologies and applications, in the field of mobility {prevention on condition), LMG (tank
monitoring) and gas pipelines {equipment for remote management and cathodic
protection measuremeant of gas pipelines)

The application of Arfificial Intefligence has turned Redexis into a pioneering company el

v Customer acquisition, doubling its commerciat capacity and increasing commercial
efficlency by 30%

¥ Network optimisation: saving 20% of the investment in network deployment and
optimising the inspaction routes

¥ Predictive management of network mamienance
v~ Early fraud detection and risk pravantion

Likewise, Redexis participated in the Gemelo Digital Zaragoza, Datos Inteligentes project as
the basis for the Smarteity, coordinated by Inkolan, proposing the creation of a Digital Twin
that addrasses the transformation of its data moded to 2 mode! based on intelligent data and
comprising a vitual replica of the elements and processes that form part of the
servicefutiliies networks and that, combined with other data, help plan, manage and design
the city and ifs services.

12. Environmental protection

As a company devoted fo the development and operation of energy infrastructures in Spain,
Redexis renders an important service fo its sustomers: it places clean energy at their disposal
with a series of functional. financial and environmental advantages vis-a-vis other types of
fuel.

Additionally, Redexis strives to minimise social costs with regard to environmental aspacts
and the negative effects that this may cause, undertaking projects that go beyond compliance
with legal requirements and other envirenmental requirements that it voluntanly adopts,
involving its suppliers and prometing the responsible use of energy.
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The Group strategy maintains its commitment to the protection of the environmeant. It is one
of its pillars and a factor of competitivensss. To be aware of the environmental impact of iis
operations and to develop & company culture that reduces environmental impaet as much as
possible s paramount for Redexis,

Redexis congiders environmertal excellence, energy management and sfficiency, sacurity
and continuous improvement of warking conditions and health protection as essential valyes
of its business culture. This is duly reflected in its Integrated Policy approved by Senior
iJanagement,

Redexis reviews its Integrated Management System (IMS) annually to adapt it to new
regulatory requirements, as well as for continuous improvement. |t is currently adapted to the
requirements of ISO 45001:2018 occupational health and safety management system, 130
14001:2015 envirorumental management system and 180 50001:2018 energy management
sysfem.

This process involved the implementation of the entire management system, invohving
greater alignment of the organisational strategy with environmental and ENargy
managenent, manifesting clear leadership and involvement of Management in this area.
This resulted in the establishment of the Leadership Committes on energy managemsent,
envirorment and safety and heaalth.

In the course of 2021, our integrated management system was recertified through 56 days
of environmental, energy and carbon footprint verification audits, internal as well as external,
for improvement of the processes.

Redexis maintains scorecards with environmental and energy indicators for monthiy
measurement and reporting that will allow it to identify improvements in its management.

Atthe close of 2021, Redexis has the ISO 14001: 20185, environmental Mmahagement system,
the ISO 50001 2018, energy management system, and the 1SO 45001: 2018, the
occupational health and safety management system. It also maintains its certificate as &
healthy enterprige.

in addition, in July 2021 the Group recorded its carbon footprint, exceeding the greenhouse
gas verification with no reservations and with the decfaration of a positive opinion, in
compliance with IS0 14064, by an external and independant entity.

The directors of the Group consider that at year end no expenses are likely to be incurred in
connection with environmentat rigks for which provision should be made.

Information regarding the Group’s environmental activities is presentad in Nete 268 o the
Consolidated Annual Accounts,

13.Non-Financial Information Statement
The Consolidated Management Report inciudes the Non-Finangial Information Statement as

Annex 1 and meets the requirements of Directive 2014/95/EU on non-financial information
and diversity, as well as the associated Spanish legislation (Law 11/2018. of December 28th),
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ANNEX 1

NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENT
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Redexis, S.A. and
Subsidiaries

Independent limited assurance report
on the consolidated non-financial
information statement of Redexis, S.A.
and subsidiaries for 2021



- Deloitte, S.L.
Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasso, i
Deloitte
< 28020 Mzdrid
Espafia

Tel: +34915 14 50 00
www.deloitte.es

Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish. In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

INDEPENDENT LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED NON-
FINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENT OF REDEXIS, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES FOR
2021

To the Shareholders of Redexis, S.A.,

In accordance with Article 49 of the Spanish Commercial Code, we have performed the
verification, with a scope of limited assurance, of the Consolidated Non-Financial Information
Statement (NFIS) for the year ended 31 December 2021 of Redexis, S.A. and subsidiaries
(“Redexis”), which forms part of the Consolidated Directors’ Report of Redexis.

The content of the NFIS includes information, additional to that required by current Spanish
corporate legislation relating to non-financial reporting, that was not the subject matter of our
verification. In this regard, our work was limited solely to verification of the information identified
in Appendix | "Index of contents of the Non-Financial Information Statement required by Law
11/2018" in the accompanying NFIS.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The preparation and content of the NFIS are the responsibility of the Board of Directors of
Redexis. The NFIS was prepared in accordance with the content specified in current Spanish
corporate legislation and with the criteria of the selected Global Reporting Initiative Sustainability
Reporting Standards (“GRI Standards”) described as indicated for each matter in Appendix | "Index
of contents of the Non-Financial Information Statement required by Law 11/2018" of the
aforementioned Report.

These responsibilities also include the design, implementation and maintenance of such internal
control as is considered necessary to enable the NFIS to be free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

The directors of Redexis are also responsible for defining, implementing, adapting and
maintaining the management systems from which the information necessary for the preparation
of the NFIS is obtained.

Deloitte, S.L. Inscrita en el Registro Mercantil de Madrid, tomo 13.650, seccion 83, folio 188, hoja M-54414, inscripcidn 962. C.1F.: B-79104469
Domicilio social: Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasso, 1, Torre Picasso, 28020, Madrid.



Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code),
which is based on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity, competence and due care,
confidentiality and professional behaviour.

Our firm applies International Standard on Quality Control 1 (ISQC 1) and, accordingly, maintains
a comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures
regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and
regulatory requirements.

Our engagement team consisted of professionals who are experts in reviews of non-financial
information and, specifically, in information about economic, social and environmental
performance.

Our Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express our conclusions in an independent limited assurance report based
on the work performed. We conducted our work in accordance with the requirements established
in International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000 Revised, Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information (“ISAE 3000
Revised”), currently in force, issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board
(IAASB) of the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC), and with the guidelines published
by the Spanish Institute of Certified Public Accountants on attestation engagements regarding
non-financial information statements.

The procedures performed in a limited assurance engagement vary in nature and timing from,
and are less in extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement and, consequently, the level
of assurance obtained is substantially lower.

Our work consisted of making inquiries of management and the various units of Redexis that
participated in the preparation of the NFIS, reviewing the processes used to compile and validate
the information presented in the NFIS, and carrying out the following analytical procedures and
sample-based review tests:

* Meetings held with Redexis personnel to ascertain the business model, policies and
management approaches applied, and the main risks relating to these matters, and to obtain
the information required for the external review.



o Analysis of the scope, relevance and completeness of the contents included in the 2021 NFIS
based on the materiality analysis performed by Redexis and described in the 2021 NFIS, taking
into account the contents required under current Spanish corporate legislation.

» Analysis of the processes used to compile and validate the data presented in the 2021 NFIS.

» Review of the information relating to risks and the policies and management approaches
applied in relation to the material matters described in the 2021 NFIS.

» Verification, by means of sample-based tests, of the non-financial information relating to the -
contents included in the 2021 NFIS and the appropriate compilation thereof based on the data
furnished by Redexis information sources.

¢ Obtainment of a representation letter from the directors and management.
Conclusion

Based on the procedures performed and the evidence obtained no additional matter has come
to our attention that causes us to believe that the NFIS of Redexis for the year ended 31 December
2021 was not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the content specified in
current Spanish corporate legislation and with the criteria of the selected GRI standards, as well
as other criteria described as indicated for each matter in Appendix | "Index of contents of the
Non-Financial Information Statement required by Law 11/2018" of the aforementioned
Statement.

Use and Distribution

This report has been prepared in response to the requirement established in corporate legislation
in force in Spain and, therefore, it might not be appropriate for other purposes or jurisdictions.

DELOITTE, S.L.

P ——

Jor% Izquierdo Mazon

31 March 2022




Redexis

2021 Non-financial Information Statement

In accordance with Act 11/2018 of December 28, 2018, which amended the Spanish Commercial
Code, the consolidated text of the Spanish Capital Companies Act approved by Royal Legislative
Decree 1 of July 2 2010, and Act 22 of 20 July 2015, on the Auditing of Accounts with regard to
non-financial information and diversity, this Non-Financial Information Statement has been
prepared for inclusion as an annex to the Consolidated Management Report for REDEXIS, SA and
Subsidiary Companies for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

For the purposes of disclosing this information, the company has used the Global Reporting
Initiative (GRI) framework for the preparation of sustainability reports as a reference, in its GRI
Standards version.

In this document, Redexis reports matters relating to its business model, risk management and
commitment to the environment, along with social, employment and human rights issues,
combatting corruption, responsible taxation, sustainable development and relationships with
users and customers, all of which constitute important issues for the company.

Contents:
1. Our business model
2. Risk management
3. Our commitment to the environment
3.1 Pollution
3.2 Circular economy and waste prevention and management
3.3 Sustainable use of resources
3.4 Climate change
3.5 Protection of biodiversity
4. Our commitment to people
4.1 Employment
4.2 Work organisation
4.3 Health and Safety
4.4 Social relations
4.5 Training
4.6 Equality
Our commitment to ensuring respect for human rights
Our commitment to the fight against corruption and bribery
Our commitment to sustainable development
Our supply chain
. Our commitment to users and customers
10. Our commitment to transparency: Tax information

©® NG W

Appendix I: List of contents required in Non-Financial Information Statements under Act
11/2018



1. Our business model

Business environment, organisation and structure and markets in which we operate.
GRI 102-1, 102-2, 102-3, 102-4, 102-5, 102-6 and 102-7.

Redexis S.A. (hereinafter, Redexis) is an integrated energy infrastructure company that is active,
both directly and through its subsidiaries, in the development and operation of networks for the
transmission and distribution of natural gas, the distribution and sale of liquefied petroleum gas
and the promotion of renewable applications for natural gas and hydrogen. In May 2021, the
General Shareholders Meeting gave its approval for the Company’s name to be changed from
Redexis Gas, S.A. to Redexis, S.A.

Its registered office is at Calle Mahonia 2, 28043 Madrid, and it has work centres in Alicante,
Almeria, Avila, El Puerto de Santa Maria, Figueres, Granada, Huesca, Ibiza, Linares, Madrid,
Mérida, Murcia, Palma de Mallorca, Teruel, Valladolid and Zaragoza.

Redexis develops and operates networks to deliver the necessary energy to homes, businesses
and industries, always ensuring that maximum safety and quality conditions are maintained. The
Company has a robust expansion plan to continue offering energy solutions throughout the
territory of Spain, which translates into nearly 1,500 million euros invested since 2010.

Redexis is currently the second largest natural gas transmission operator in Spain, the third
largest distributor and the second in LPG, operating in 13 autonomous communities and 980
municipalities in 40 provinces. It has a total of 761,607* supply points throughout Spain.

(*) Includes 14,450 and 2,295 supply points acquired in December 2021 from Nedgia Group and Cepsa Group, respectively, which
at the closing date are pending integration. In addition, 4,691 supply points from the purchase made in December 2020 from Repsol
are included, which at the closing date are pending integration.

Redexis’s capital stock is fully subscribed and paid-up and held by shareholders as follows:
- Chase Gas Investments Limited: 33.33% (subsidiary company of the USS pension fund)
- Arbejdsmarkedets Tillaegspension: 33.33% (ATP pension fund)
- Guotong Romeo Holdings Limited: 33.33% (company in which the investment funds

Guoxin Guotong Fund LLT and CNIC Corporation Limited have holdings)

Redexis is the parent company of the Group, which comprises the following companies:

Redexis, S.A.

(99,98%)—( 100% 100% H 100% J

Redexis Gas Seducds Gus Rudusis Redexis GLP,
Servicios, Infraestructuras, S.LU

S.L.U. S.L.U.

Murcia, S.A.




e Redexis GLP, S.L.U.
The purpose and main activity of REDEXIS GLP, S.L.U. (hereinafter, “Redexis GLP”) is to engage
in activities relating to the marketing and retail supply of liquefied petroleum gases.
Redexis GLP is wholly owned by Redexis.

e Redexis Gas Servicios, S.L.U.
The purpose and main activity of REDEXIS GAS SERVICIOS, S.L.U. (hereinafter, "Redexis
Servicios") is as follows:

o The holding, purchase, subscription, exchange, sale and management of national or
foreign securities and, in general, engagement in any transaction relating to such
securities, mainly in relation to energy companies, for the purposes of directing,
administering and managing these companies. This excludes any activities that are (i)
expressly reserved by law for Collective Investment Institutions, (ii) expressly reserved
for Securities and Stock Market Brokers and Companies under the Spanish Securities
Market Act; and (iii) regarded as being regulated under the Hydrocarbons Industry Act,
along with any activity relating to the sale and production of natural gas.

o The offer of management and advice services and the provision of business, IT,
accountancy, employment, administrative, strategic, commercial, industrial, technical,
organisational and planning services relating to the infrastructure sector and, in
particular, the energy sector, including (i) the inspection and maintenance of facilities,
(ii) quality control, (iii) emergency assistance services, and (iv) the management of
energy consumption, transmission, facilities and usage, along with research and
development in all types of processes relating to energy use and saving.

o The preparation of plans, studies and projects and the execution, assembly and
operation of infrastructure.

o The purchase, assignment and financing of capital assets associated with the above
activities and the maintenance and repair of those assets.

o Research, development and exploitation of industrial safety systems for both industrial
and domestic environments.

o Telecommunications operator.

Redexis Servicios is wholly owned by Redexis.

e Redexis Infraestructuras, S.L.U.
The purpose and main business of REDEXIS INFRAESTRUCTURAS, S.L.U. (hereinafter, “Redexis
Infraestructuras”) consists principally of activities relating to the transmission of natural gas,
along with other related or ancillary activities. It is the owner of the Redexis Group’s primary gas
transmission pipelines.
Redexis Infraestructuras is wholly owned by Redexis.

e Redexis Gas Murcia, S.A.
The purpose and main business activity of REDEXIS GAS MURCIA, S.A. (hereinafter, “Redexis
Murcia”) consists of the distribution and secondary transmission of natural gas in the Murcia
Region.
Redexis owns 99.98% of the capital stock of Redexis Murcia, while the remaining 0.02% is held
by minority shareholders.



Objectives and strategies
GRI 102-14 and 102-15.

Redexis is committed to a sustainable and efficient business model, and it develops strategies
and objectives that are aligned with the new challenges currently faced by the energy sector,
such as the fight against climate change and achievement of the Goals set out in the 2030
Agenda.

Redexis also seeks to be an active agent in energy transition, with sustainable development as a
core principle. It has therefore defined a series of strategies and priorities adapted to the current
and future context of the industry, taking account of its business lines.

e Achieving sustainable and balanced growth, with safety and stability as a top priority.

e Operational excellence. Redexis incorporates the most advanced technologies in order
to ensure the highest quality in its operations, projects and services.

e Innovation, as a core principle of Redexis’s activity, aimed at advancing, transforming
and improving the efficiency of its operations.

e Risk management. Redexis complies with the highest quality and safety standards, and
it therefore strives to identify any potential risks that may arise in relation to its
activities, assessing the probability and impact of such risks.

e Commitment to value creation, while always ensuring care for the environment and
society in general.

The Company's commitment to sustainable development is reflected in its Sustainability Policy,
published in January 2021. This Policy sets out the Group’s commitment to social,
environmental, ethical and sustainable development, maximising any positive impact through
honest and transparent relations with all its stakeholders:

Users and customers

Employees

The financial community

Collaborators and suppliers

e The public authorities and regulatory bodies
o The community

Redexis, as an energy infrastructure operator, plays a fundamental role in the sustainable
development of the local economies in which it operates. As a key agent in the Spanish gas and
energy sector, it aims to boost economic activity, business productivity, employment, the
environment, and the management of energy efficiency, and to improve the quality of life for
people, businesses and industries.

The Sustainability Policy includes Redexis’s main statements of commitment, which refer to all
spheres of its activity. This global commitment is based on the following economic,
environmental, social and health and safety responsibilities, efficient energy management, and
quality and excellence of service:

e Legal compliance with all current requirements, as well as with the internal regulations,
codes and policies that the Group adheres to.

e Responsible management of economic and financial resources.

e Promoting the use of financial instruments that incorporate links to sustainability
criteria whenever feasible and financially reasonable.



e Promoting innovation, sustainable business and the circular economy.

e Guaranteeing energy supplies in a safe, efficient and accessible manner, offering the
highest possible level of quality, based on the best techniques available.

e Efficiently managing risk and opportunity in all its business activities, with the aim of
preventing harm to people, property and the environment.

e Comprehensive and transparent action with all stakeholders, through the publication of
regular reports and the promotion of active two-way communication.

e Providing all Redexis employees with professional support and development.

e Promoting work-life balance and equal opportunities for all workers.

e Disseminating Redexis’s sustainability culture among all stakeholders.

e Developing actions aimed at sustainable growth in any communities in which it
operates.

e Complying with the commitments reflected in its Integrated Health and Safety,
Environment and Energy Management Policy, and the development and
implementation of those commitments using international reference standards and the
Group’s own Integrated Management System.

A series of policies was published at the beginning of 2021 with the aim of increasing
transparency among all Redexis’s stakeholders in addition to the Sustainability Policy, these
included:

e Tax Policy, establishing the basic principles for the actions taken by the Redexis Group
in relation to tax matters

e Human Rights Policy, seeking to ensure that the protection of Human Rights is
respected throughout the Group’s activities and operations

e Equality and Diversity Policy, aiming to promote and support an environment that
values and reinforces talent, equal opportunities and diversity within the Redexis Group

Redexis’s strategy is linked to sustainable development throughout all the areas in which it
operates, which has led to its recognition by a number of evaluation agencies that monitor
environmental, social and governance (ESG) practices, such as GRESB and Vigeo.

e GRESB: in 2021 Redexis was once again awarded a five-star ESG rating, the highest
awarded, in the GRESB sustainability index, thus maintaining its rating from the previous
year and demonstrating its long-standing commitment to sustainability. The Company
obtained 9 points more than in the previous financial year, taking it to 91 and positioning
it above the companies in its sector.

e Vigeo Eiris: this leading international CSR and sustainability ratings company awarded
Redexis the rating of "robust" in 2021, for its performance in ESG practices in 2020. The
Company has obtained ratings that are above the industry average in a range of
indicators, which bears witness to Redexis’s commitment to sustainable development.
This has allowed Redexis to access sustainable financing of 150 million euros.

Within a framework of environmental and social responsibility, Redexis has promoted its
Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainability division, integrating the Sustainable
Development Goals as a fundamental part of its model for corporate governance, strategy and
operations. As key players in the areas of energy transition and sustainable development within
the energy sector, Redexis strives to promote new solutions and alternatives by carrying out
projects for sustainable mobility and the use of renewable energy sources, such as photovoltaic
solar energy, green hydrogen, biogas and biomethane.



Principal market factors and trends
GRI 102-15

During the first quarter of 2019, Redexis carried out a materiality analysis in order to develop
its strategy, defining and identifying its stakeholders and the issues that were most relevant to
them. This analysis made it possible to establish priorities for the action to be taken and to define
strategies aligned with the expectations of these stakeholders.

The analysis was divided into four phases, consisting of an internal analysis in which best
practices and material issues for the industry were identified, an external analysis in which the
existing communication channels with stakeholders were defined, an assessment of material
issues in which meetings were held with all divisions, and finally, generation of the materiality
matrix with a list of relevant issues.

Thanks to this exercise, Redexis has been able to make progress in its creation of economic,
social and environmental value, thus ensuring that it meets the needs of its stakeholders at all

times.

The materiality matrix obtained shows the most relevant points and issues for the Company and
its stakeholders, the following 15 being the most relevant:

Reference ‘ The 15 most relevant internal and external issues

1 Regulatory compliance

2 Ethics, integrity and transparency
3 Risk management

4 Responsible taxation
5

7

Good corporate governance
Workplace health and safety

14 Quality of service

15 Complaint resolution system and customer satisfaction
16 Crisis and emergency management

17 Industrial safety

20 Adapting to climate change (external)

21 Innovation applied to the use of sustainable technologies
22 Setting environmental emission targets

23 Adapting to climate change (internal)

25 Circular economy

As regards issues relating to occupational health and safety, the environment and energy
management, there are several factors that could affect the Company's activities, such as:

e Non-compliance with environmental, energy or health and safety criteria.

e Loss of external financing opportunities due to non-compliance or insufficient
environmental, energy or health and safety standards.

e Regulatory context adverse to the Company’s business activity.

e Loss of awareness that environmental, energy, or health and safety management is a
transversal process throughout the Company and in all areas, without exception.

e Adverse environmental conditions.

e Estimation of insufficient monitoring resources applicable to contractors.



e Inefficient monitoring resulting in a legal violation that affects Redexis’s image and
reputation.

e Non-compliance with the frequency of meetings of the Health and Safety Committees
and the Environmental and Energy Committees.

e Deviations from commitments undertaken by Managers and Middle Managers.

e Inefficient operational monitoring that does not permit the measurement of indicators
or the evaluation of trends.

The natural gas sector is a highly regulated sector. Thus, modifications to the applicable
regulations may have a significant impact on the sector itself and on each of the individual agents
that operate in it.

In this regard, particular mention should be made of the regulatory framework for the natural
gas industry in Spain, which is based on Spanish Hydrocarbons Act 34/1998, implemented by,
among others, Royal Decrees 949/2001 and 1434/2002; the first of these regulates third-party
access to gas facilities and establishes an integrated financial system for the natural gas industry;
the second regulates transmission, distribution, marketing and supply activities and the
procedures for the authorisation of natural gas facilities.

Over the years, as deregulation of the industry has evolved, the aforementioned Hydrocarbons
Sector Act has been modified on several occasions. Particularly relevant among these is the
modification introduced by Royal Legislative Decree 8 of 4 July 2014, on the approval of urgent
measures for growth, competitiveness and efficiency, which was subsequently enacted as Law
by Parliament and published as Act 18 of 15 October 2014, on the approval of urgent measures
for growth, competitiveness and efficiency. This introduced certain measures to update the
regulatory and economic framework, among which the following are particularly important:

e A reform of the general structure for income and costs in the gas system was undertaken,
based on the principle of long-term financial sustainability and balance, taking account of
demand fluctuations and the level to which existing infrastructure had been developed,
though without undermining the principle of appropriate remuneration for investments in
regulated assets or security of supply. The principle of economic and financial sustainability
in the gas system was therefore established in such a way that any regulatory measure that
implied a cost increase or reduction in revenues should include a reduction in costs or an
increase in revenues.

e Certain mechanisms were established to restrict the emergence of temporary annual
imbalances in the settlement system, through an automatic review of tolls when certain
thresholds were exceeded. If the above mentioned thresholds are not exceeded,
imbalances are financed by the parties subject to the settlement system in proportion to
their remuneration, with the generation of collection rights over the following five years at
a market interest rate to be set by Ministerial Order.

e As regards payment for regulated activities, the reforms included the basic principle of
considering the costs that are necessary to perform activities by an efficient and well-
managed company under the principle of performing activities at the lowest cost to the
system.

e Regulatory periods of six years are defined in which the financial rate may not be revised,
and no automatic updating formulas for the remuneration of any of the activities may be
applied during the same period. However, taking account of the fact that the regulatory
reforms were proposed in a deficit scenario that is expected to be reversed in the coming
years, the possibility of adjusting certain remuneration parameters every three years in the
event of significant variations in income and cost items was included.



e A thorough and homogenous review of remuneration for all activities was
carried out, including all assets, even those already in service.

Under Royal Legislative Decree 1/2019, a reform of the framework for competition within the
gas system was undertaken, bringing the powers of the National Commission on Markets and
Competition (“CNMC”) into line with the requirements arising from Community law in relation
to European Parliament and Council Directives 2009/72/EC and 2009/73/EC of 13 July 2009,
concerning common rules for the internal market in electricity and natural gas. Among the
reforms introduced, we should mention the attribution of powers to the CNMC in relation to the
establishment of methodologies for the setting of tolls and payment for regulated activities,
which include placing a value on these activities. Therefore, since the entry into force of the
aforementioned Royal Legislative Decree, the CNMC has had the power to implement these
measures, though as regards the establishment of new methodologies to calculate
remuneration for regulated activities, these would not become applicable until 1 January 2021,
once the first six-year regulatory period established in the said Act 18/2014 had ended. In this
regard, during 2019 the CNMC promoted the preparation of a series of Circulars defining
methodologies for the remuneration of the regulated activities engaged in by Redexis in the gas
industry (Transmission and Distribution) and, once approved and published in the Official State
Journal (Boletin Oficial del Estado, “BOE”), these became applicable from January 2021.

The foregoing regulation has been further developed, insofar as it directly affect Redexis, in the
following circulars:

e Circular 2 of 12 November 2019, which established the methodology for calculating the
financial remuneration rate for regulated electricity and natural gas activities

e Circular 8 of 12 December 2019, which established the methodology and conditions for
access to and the allocation of capacity in the natural gas system

e Circular 9 of 12 December 2019, which established the methodology for determining the
remuneration of natural gas transmission facilities and liquefied natural gas plants

e Circular 2 of 9 January 2020, which established the natural gas balancing regulations

e Circular 4 of 31 March 2020, which established the methodology for determining the
remuneration for the distribution of natural gas

e Circular 6 of 22 July 2020, which established the methodology for calculating the tolls for
local network transmission and natural gas regasification

e Circular 8 of 2 December 2020, by the National Commission on Markets and Competition,
which established the unit reference values for investments and operation and maintenance
for the 2021-2026 regulatory period and the minimum requirements for audits on
investments and costs at natural gas transmission facilities and liquefied natural gas plants.

Due diligence procedures applied to the identification, assessment, prevention and mitigation

of significant risks and impacts and the verification of controls
GRI102-29.

The Company has an internal and external complaints channel (https://www.redexis.es/sobre-
redexis/principios-de-actuacion/canal-de-denuncias/ ) that can be used to submit complaints,
reports and claims in relation to the code of ethics. During the last year, no complaints have
been received via this channel regarding corporate, social or environmental governance.

In addition, each time an internal standard is approved, the entire company is notified of its
approval, and particular emphasis is placed on the obligation to comply with the standard in



question. Employees have access to all internal standards via the Intranet. In the event of any
questions or queries regarding these standards, employees can contact the legal department.

Furthermore, since 2020 Redexis has had a Risk Management and Control Policy for the
purposes of establishing the basic principles and general acting framework for managing the
risks faced by Redexis. This guides and directs all the strategic, organisational and operational
actions that allow the Redexis Board of Directors to promote compliance with the organisation's
objectives, within a framework of rigour and excellence that is aimed at ensuring safety and
service in the performance of all its activities.

In addition, Redexis has approved internal regulations on the legal review of contracts,
agreements and mandatory agreements of a material nature, in order to verify that the
agreements entered into by Redexis comply with the applicable regulations and legislation.

Redexis has incorporated all of its principles and strategies into its Integrated Management
System, adapting the standards contained in environmental management standard ISO
14001:2015, health and safety standard ISO 45001:2008 and energy efficiency standard ISO
50001:2018.

During 2021, as regards certification, the relevant recertification audits, were completed on
standards 1SO 14001:2015, 1SO 45001:2018, and ISO 50001:2018, and recertification was
successfully achieved in all three cases.

This ensures the monitoring of performance in the areas of health and safety at work and
environmental management, the procedures for which are dealt with in the following general
Integrated Management System documents:

e Procedure DOC-02 "Identification, Control and Evaluation of Legal Requirements and
Other Requirements": the system used by Redexis to identify and access the legal
requirements and other requirements by which the organisation is bound and which
apply to the environmental, energy-related and occupational health and safety areas of
its activities, along with any subsequent verifications and updates of these
requirements.

e Procedure DOC-03 "Competence and Awareness": this defines the methodology used
to identify the training needs of its employees and describes how to manage training
activities and environmental and energy awareness.

e Procedure DOC-05 “Control and Investigation of Incidents, Non-Conformity and
Corrective Action”: this establishes and maintains an updated documented procedure
to identify, record and process accidents, incidents and non-conformities.

e Procedure DOC-08 “SGI audits”: the procedure for carrying out regular audits,
understood to mean the systematic and documented verification process which permits
the collection and objective evaluation of evidence in order to meet the aims of the
Integrated Management System.

e Procedure DOC-09 "Emergency Situations at Redexis Group facilities": this establishes
the methodology and system for acting in emergency situations.

e Procedure DOC-10 "Operational Control, Preventive Planning, Measurement and
Monitoring": this includes the following monitoring and measurement activities, in
order to mitigate environmental impact and the significant energy use and consumption
associated with the Company’s activities, and maintain the health and safety of all
stakeholders.



e Procedure DOC-13 "ldentification and Evaluation of Environmental Aspects": this
procedure is followed in order to identify and evaluate the environmental aspects of the
Company’s activities and the products or services that it controls, along with those that
it may influence, and the asocial environmental impacts of such activities, from a life
cycle perspective.

e Procedure DOC-14 “Environmental, Occupational Health and Safety and Energy
Responsibility of Suppliers and Contractors”: this includes informing suppliers and
contractors about the procedures and requirements that apply to environmental,
energy-related and occupational health and safety issues.

e Operation Standard NOss-01 "Coordination of Business Activities": this monitors the
effectiveness of the process requested from contractors via DOC-14.

e Procedure DOC-15 “Hazard Identification. Assessment and Monitoring of Occupational
Risks and Serious Accidents”: this defines how the requirements relating to
Occupational Health and Safety and Serious Accidents are met and, in particular, the
identification of hazards and the assessment and monitoring of risks.

e Procedure DOC-17 “Energy Planning”: this describes the established system for ensuring
that any energy-related issues arising from the business activities, products and services
performed by the Company at its facilities are properly planned, and that this plan is
monitored, with an analysis of any energy consumption or use that may significantly
affect its energy-related performance.

e Procedure DOC-20 “GHG Quantification and Reporting Manual”: a document used to
measure and report Greenhouse Gas emissions, along with any emissions generated and
used in all activities, products and services relating to the various businesses and
facilities that are included within the scope of Redexis’s calculation and reporting of its
greenhouse gas emissions.

e Operational Standard Noss-09 “Operational Monitoring of Health and Safety on Site”:
the purpose of this procedure is to define the different duties of Redexis’s own internal
staff with regard to construction, and to define the various tools established by the
Company in order to monitor on-site health and safety when the Redexis Group is
involved as developer.

In addition, Redexis continuously tracks the objectives, goals and annual preventive action plans
of its regional centres, an operational monitoring process that is carried out at its various work
centres using a range of operational standards relating to both safety and environmental issues;
it monitors contractor companies through its “vigilance” procedures; it holds meetings to
coordinate business activities, and the results are recorded in the minutes of the meetings held
in the different regions; on-site internal safety and environmental inspection visits are carried
out in the different regions by the Company’s health and safety and environmental monitoring
coordinators; facilities and maintenance activities are monitored in relation to both distribution
and transmission; the Company arranges external audits of the integrated management system,
in accordance with ISO 14001:2015, ISO 50001:2018 and I1SO 45001:2018; it verifies Greenhouse
Gas Emissions by analysing its Carbon Footprint Report, in order to verify compliance with ISO
14064-1: 2012; audits are carried out to verify compliance with legal requirements regarding
health and safety, the environment, energy management and industrial safety; frequent
meetings of the energy management team are held at corporate level, with six-monthly
meetings of the Territorial Environment and Energy Committees and quarterly meetings of the
Health and Safety Committees, among other actions.
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2. Risk management
GRI 102-29, GRI 103.

Redexis implements a risk management model designed to identify and assess risks sufficiently
in advance so that they can be anticipated, thus preventing any adverse effects while taking
advantage of the potential opportunities they may bring. Redexis manages this through its
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) system, which coordinates its activities based on the
international COSO and ISO 31000 standards. The Internal Audit and Risk Department manages,
evaluates and coordinates these risks, acting as a link between the Divisions, General
Management and the Chair, thus facilitating and supervising the implementation of practices
and measures for the management of risk to ensure its minimisation or mitigation. This
department provides a logical and systematic model which allows decisions to be made and an
efficient response to be given to any potential threats or opportunities that may arise.

Through the Risk Control and Management Policy approved by the Board of Directors in 2020,
Redexis is committed to developing all of its capabilities so that the relevant risks can be properly
identified, evaluated, managed and controlled.

The actions taken to control, manage and mitigate risks comply with the following basic
principles:

e Integrating Redexis’s decision-making and goal-setting processes with its risk
management procedures.

e Optimising risk management and control from a global organisational perspective.

e Continuously evaluating its risk mitigation mechanisms to ensure their suitability, the
adoption of the best market practices and the proper use of these mechanisms.

e Properly segregating duties in order to identify those responsible for risk analysis,
control and supervision.

e Aligning all the specific policies that need to be developed in the area of organisational
risk with the Company’s Risk Management Policy.

e Acting within the law and in accordance with the values set out in the Code of Conduct
that applies to the organisation.

e Fully and transparently reporting the main risks encountered by Redexis and its
management mechanisms to the relevant regulatory bodies and organisations,
maintaining the appropriate channels to encourage communication.

e Protecting the health and safety of the individuals who work in and for Redexis, as well
as guaranteeing respect for the environment.

The Risk Management System is supported by the appropriate definition and assignment of
duties and responsibilities, in the various stages and activities involved in the process, which
mainly include:

e |dentifying the relevant risk relating to strategy and planning, finances, ethics and
compliance, reporting and operations and infrastructure, which includes taking account
of any possible impact that this risk may have on key management goals and
engagement in business activities.

e Analysing this risk as a key element in its management.

e Establishing a structure of controls and limits, which helps contribute to the efficient
management of risk.
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e Implementing and monitoring compliance with policies and guidelines, through suitable
procedures and systems, including the contingency plans required to mitigate the
impact of risks when they emerge.

e Assessing and controlling risk following similar and common procedures and standards.

e Regularly and transparently communicating the results of its monitoring of risk control
and management.

e Continually evaluating the suitability of the system and best practices and
recommendations relating to risk, for potential inclusion in the model.

In this context, the risk management system consists of three phases:

o Afirst assessment phase, in which risks are identified and evaluated and which includes
the definition, classification and measurement of their impact and probability, based on
the criteria approved by the company.

e A second management phase, in which strategies to respond to risks are defined and
the agreed control instruments are monitored.

e A third follow-up phase, in which regular reports are made regarding any events that
have occurred. In this phase, the control instruments are modified according to their
results, and action plans are adjusted.

2021 saw the approval of the risk management manual, along with the formation of a risk
committee to provide greater monitoring and, in the event that risk emerges, prioritise a
response. This manual also formalises the process for regular reporting between the business
and corporate departments and the risk department, thus ensuring supervised management.
The ultimate aim is to achieve continuous improvement and to try to avoid or anticipate risks,
or to mitigate them, as well as to take advantage of any opportunities that may arise.

As regards the sector to which it belongs, Redexis has to face a number of risks that are inherent
in the industry and the market in which it operates. The main risks associated with the industry
and market in which Redexis operates in terms of sustainability, the risks for which plans are
made and guidelines established on an annual basis, are as follows:

e Risks relating to individuals (management): Risks arising from managing people's
talent, including measures to reinforce the commitment of employees to the company
and its values.

e Cybersecurity risks: Risks associated with external or internal factors that may affect
systems through attacks.

e Risks of loss of biodiversity and water resources. Environmental or personal risks: This
refers to a series of risks that arise from the daily operations of the organisation and
that, given their nature, are managed to guarantee the safety of people and, the
safeguarding of assets, water resources and the environment.

e Reputational Risk: This includes the risk associated with external and internal factors
that can negatively affect the brand image. Redexis is aware of society’s growing
demand for companies to make a greater active and voluntary contribution to the
achievement of social, economic and environmental improvement. In this connection,
Redexis is committed to including these considerations in its decision-making in a
transparent way, with the aim of establishing best practices that can contribute to the
improvement of society.

e Risk relating to ethics and integrity: This includes the external or internal factors which
could lead to an absence of ethics or integrity. Redexis believes that it is essential to
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guarantee compliance with both the code of ethics and the company’s own values, and
it develops annual actions in order to mitigate these kinds of risks.

e Risks relating to climate change: Risks arising from both energy transition and potential
global warming which would mean arise in average temperatures. Based on this study,
Redexis carries out studies on innovation and projects directed towards alternative
energies.

e Risk due to environmental catastrophes and external climate phenomena: Risk arising
from potential external factors that could alter corporate continuity. In this case,
Redexis has a continuity plan and has established protocols for action in case they are
needed.

All of these risks, together with the action plans and the activities engaged in to contain them,
are regularly submitted to the Audit and Risks Committee, whose main duties are as follows:

e Evaluating and reviewing Risk Management policies and practices.

e Supervising the effectiveness of the risk management and control systems.

e Reviewing the company’s ability to identify new risks that may arise.

e Ensuring that the Board receives regular information and risk control reports.

e Controlling the effectiveness of the Redexis Risk Management System.

e Checking compliance with both internal and external legal and regulatory requirements.

A more detailed description of risk management can be found in the following public documents,
which are available on the Company's website:

e The Annual Corporate Governance Report for the 2020 financial year.
e The consolidated Management Report for the 2020 financial year.
e The Risk Monitoring and Management Policy.

3. Our commitment to the environment
GRI 103.

One of Redexis’s main commitments is caring for the environment, mitigating the effects of
climate change and making advances towards energy transition. In this regard, the Company is
firmly committed to respect for the environment and the achievement of a sustainable
economy. It therefore strives on a daily basis to achieve a society in which sustainability prevails,
according to the Sustainable Development Goals (SDG) from the 2030 Agenda.

Mitigating the effects of climate change and recognising the importance of ecological transition
are issues that are fundamental for Redexis, which has set the goal of achieving a sustainable
society and economy. In order to achieve this, it has included the Sustainable Development
Goals (SDG) from the 2030 Agenda as part of its strategy.

This commitment to the environment is formalised in its Integrated Policy, which places a high
value on environmental excellence and energy management and efficiency. Redexis has
therefore decided to engage in all of its business activities in a way that respects the
environment and is committed to energy efficiency, given the scarcity of natural and non-
renewable resources. To face the challenges of employment, energy-related and environmental
safety, Redexis has intensified the necessary support and established the procedures required
to guarantee and minimise risk, the protection of workers, the rational use of resources and the
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reduction of waste, thus contributing to the sustainable development that society demands and
the achievement of the relevant guidelines and objectives.

The general guidelines and objectives pursued by Redexis are set out in its Integrated Safety,
Environmental and Energy Policy. This Policy is regularly monitored and reviewed to ensure its
continuing suitability. The organisation's workers and stakeholders (suppliers, collaborating
companies, temporary staff, etc.) are informed about this Integrated Policy via the
communication channels provided in the Integrated Management System.

Environmental Excellence is one of the fundamental values of Redexis’s Policy, and its
management is based on the following cornerstones:

e Monitoring environmental issues across all of Redexis’s activities, particularly the
construction and maintenance work carried out on its facilities and infrastructure.

e Planning and executing its activities in an ordered, rational and flawless manner,
thus reducing impact on the environment.

e Improving the management of any waste generated, applying appropriate measures
for the reduction, recovery and recycling of waste and ensuring the proper disposal
of non-recoverable waste.

e Providing the information and resources required to establish and review objectives
and goals that will guarantee environmental and energy management.

e Reducing the consumption of natural resources, through the use of recycled and/or
recyclable products, promoting energy savings.

e Informing and raising awareness among employees about the importance of proper
energy management and the impact of their activities on the energy performance
of the organisation.

e Complying with the environmental requirements established in the Company’s
environmental licenses, declarations and authorisations.

e The Company has Emergency Environmental Plans, and it carries out emergency
drills at least once a year in each Autonomous Community.

The procedures approved by Redexis to provide continuous monitoring of environmental
evaluation or certification include:

e Procedure DOC-10 "Operational Control, Preventive Planning, Measurement and
Monitoring": this establishes monitoring and measurement activities to mitigate the
environmental impact and the significant use and consumption of energy associated
with the Company’s activities, and to maintain the health and safety of all
stakeholders.

e Procedure DOC-13 "Identification and Evaluation of Environmental Aspects": this
allows the Company to identify and evaluate the environmental aspects of its
activities, products and services that it can control and influence, along with their
asocial environmental impacts, from a lifecycle perspective.

e Procedure DOC-08 “SGI audits”: this provides for the completion of regular audits,
understood to mean systematic and documented verification processes that will
enables the Company to obtain and objectively evaluate evidence in order to meet
its SGI targets.
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Throughout the 2021 financial year, the Company implemented the following targets
relating to the environment and energy savings:

a. Reducing our Carbon Footprint (Kg CO2 emitted / Km pipeline) by 1.5% as
compared with 2020.

b. Achieving an average saving of 1% in the self-consumption ratio at 5 LNG plants
(Muro; Cala Millor; Ateca; Casas Ibafiez and Mancha Real) during the 2021
financial year, as compared with 2019.

c. Achieving an average saving of 0.5% in the self-consumption ratio at 9 LPG
plants (San Mateo de Gallego, Pinseque, Epila, Daroca, Carifiena, Castejon de
Sos, Sabifianigo, Sarifiena and Valderrobres) during the fourth quarter of 2021,
as compared with the same indicator in 2019.

d. With regard to electricity consumption recorded at the end of 2021, increasing
the use of electricity from guaranteed renewable sources at offices by 10% as
compared with the consumption recorded in 2020.

e. Maintaining company vehicles that reduce CO2 emissions into the atmosphere
as compared with 2020.

f.  Reducing the generation of plastic waste at the Company’s offices by 5% as
compared with 2020.

g. Reducing the generation of hazardous waste resulting from spillages of fuel,
machine diesel, used oils, etc. by 10%.

h. Reducing electricity consumption at the Palma office with the installation of
solar photovoltaic equipment for self-consumption.

In order to achieve its proposed objectives, Redexis pursues a series of strategies through its
GEMASST Department, and it has made environmental management, energy management and
the concept of sustainable development an integral part of the Company's strategy. One of its
main concerns is to show transparency, raise awareness and educate all stakeholders using
documented environmental and energy criteria in its planning and decision-making processes.

Redexis identifies and evaluates any environmental aspects that may be significant for its
business activities, seeking to minimise the impact of these activities. In this regard, it is
committed to making reasonable use of resources and raw materials, taking action to try to
minimise waste generation, emissions and dumping, and preventing and monitoring the
pollution generated as a result of its activities through the application of continuous
improvement programs and the establishment of environmental and energy-related objectives
and goals. It seeks to make the Group's facilities and activities more respectful to the
environment and thus preserve the natural environment around its facilities by adopting
measures to protect species of fauna and flora and their habitats.

Energy saving and the rational and balanced use of various energy sources are key aspects of
Redexis’s strategy, which is committed to promoting the development of cleaner and more
efficient energy technologies among its employees and society in general, thus minimising the
carbon footprint generated.

Redexis works to continuously improve the processes, systems and capacities that guarantee
greater quality and safety in the performance of its activities, as well as in the products and
services it offers, and the Company regularly and objectively reports on its performance in
respect of environmental and social issues.

15



Furthermore, it is mainly engaged in the construction and maintenance of transmission and
distribution networks for natural gas, considered the cleanest, most sustainable, efficient and
environmentally friendly form of conventional energy.

Natural gas plays a key role in the Spanish energy matrix and, in a context of reducing emissions,
meeting consumers’ needs while taking care of the environment. Natural gas is an efficient,
low-emission energy source which is highly competitive for households, businesses, and
industry alike. Natural gas improves air quality and in turn assists the market penetration of
renewable energies. It also favours competitiveness by offering lower prices to industry and
guaranteeing security of supply.

Natural gas is an economical, reliable, comfortable and ecological form of energy. The
advantages offered by natural gas particularly include the following:

e It improves local and global air quality, since it does not emit particles and has a very
low NOy and SOy content.

e It provides coverage for the introduction of renewable energies in the electricity
industry.

e |t promotes industrial competitiveness.

e |t guarantees the security of supply both at a domestic level and at a commercial and
industrial level.

Plants that generate electricity using natural gas and cogeneration processes for the production
of electrical and thermal energy can be directly connected to natural gas distribution networks
to provide consumers with a cleaner and more versatile energy source.

In the current and future renewable energies scenario, existing natural gas infrastructure and
technology like the Redexis transmission and distribution networks form part of a fundamental
strategy for orderly energy transition that will not comprise security of supply but will
nevertheless comply with the targets for the reduction of CO2 emissions.

The Environmental Emergency Plan has been kept up-to-date at all times at all Redexis facilities,
while the Internal Emergency Plans and Self-Protection Plans have been reviewed and updated,
with continuous analysis and monitoring of previously defined health and safety, environmental
and energy management indicators.

Since 2017, Redexis has recorded its annual Scope 1 and Scope 2 Carbon Footprint in the
Ministry for Ecological Transition’s National Carbon Footprint Register (MITECO), and it has
been awarded the “Calculation” stamp in respect of its natural gas transmission and distribution
activities. In addition, the Company conducts audits to verify the calculation of its Carbon
Footprint, with the aim of reducing this footprint over three years. This reduction could be
achieved in 2022, when an audit to verify its footprint for 2021 will be completed, since the
scope that corresponds to the 5 companies from which the Group is comprised has been
comparable since 2019. Likewise, the data relating to the management of tons of construction
and demolition waste have been compiled in a unified way through the use of Dashboards.

In order to prevent environmental risk, Redexis uses both internal and external human

resources, an energy management IT tool and budget items allocated to the prevention of
environmental risk.
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In June 2021, following a successful audit of its energy efficiency management system, the
Company was awarded the ISO 50001: 2018 Certificate for activities involving the transmission,
storage and distribution of natural gas, LNG and LPG.

The 1SO 50001: 2018 audit report also highlighted some strong points, such as an exhaustive
study of the organisation’s context and the needs and expectations of its stakeholders, excellent
energy reviews by area, the improvement of base lines with the incorporation of new energy
variables that have improved the coefficient of determination, targets for the improvement of
energy efficiency supported by the Company’s Improvement Plans, good indicator monitoring,
excellent competence and knowledge at a personnel and organisational level for the efficient
operation of processes, operational criteria that are applied to the efficient operation of facilities
from an energy perspective, with consideration for the priorities and risks that relate to ensuring
the supply of LNG and LPG, and the effective monitoring of energy consumption. The Company
seeks at all times to maintain the leadership of its Senior Management through meetings of its
GEMASST Leadership Committee, in order to reinforce its commitment to leadership on issues
relating to Health and Safety, the Environment and Energy Management, as defined in its
Integrated Management System.

The excellence of its management of environmental and health and safety issues is
demonstrated by Redexis’s commitment to make continuous improvements each year in its
system for the integrated management of Energy, the Environment and Health and Safety,
supported by reports and certificates recording external audits carried out on the basis of the
following standards: 1ISO 50001 on Energy Management, ISO 14001 on Environmental
Management and ISO 45001 on Health and Safety at Work. The system addresses the
monitoring of energy consumption (electricity, gas, fuel) and the introduction of measures to
reduce consumption.

As regards certification, recertification audits were completed on standards 1ISO 14001:2015,
ISO 45001:2018, and I1SO 50001:2018 during 2021, and recertification was successfully achieved
in all three cases. Implementation of the requirements arising from Royal Decree 840/2015 has
been maintained at the SEVESO Plants, and audits of these plants have been completed without
any major non-conformities.

Redexis is aware that the protection of nature and the natural environment must be taken into
account in any business activity, since future generations will depend on this, thus contributing
to sustainable development. In this connection, all of the members of the Company’s workforce
have been offered courses on Energy Efficiency in the Office and Office Waste Management,
and 2021 saw the introduction of a new course, Standard 05 Management of Atmospheric
Emissions, which highlights the importance that the Company places on training and awareness
in respect of both energy-related and environmental issues. Regular meetings of the energy
management team are held at a corporate level: biannual meetings of the territorial energy and
environment committees, quarterly meetings of the health and safety committees and biannual
meetings of the inter-territorial safety committees. All of this has led to an increase in
communications at an Integrated Management System level, mainly focused on aspects relating
to the environment and energy.
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3.1 Pollution
GRI 305-1, 305-2, 305-4, 305-5 and 305-7.

In order to reduce current emissions, an Emission Reduction Plan has been drawn up, which
includes several measures undertaken during 2021:

e The automation of boiler shutdown at LNG satellite plants during warm periods,
incorporating a room temperature probe and an atmospheric gas temperature probe.

e Compliance with the Plan implemented in relation to LPG for 9 Heating System
Optimisation plants.

e Increasing electricity with guaranteed renewable sources to 100% in all supplies
contracted by Redexis.

The implementation of these measures following the Emissions Reduction Plan has meant that
the Company has been able to control and reduce its emissions in 2021, reducing its Carbon
Footprint and allowing its registration with the Ministry for the Ecological Transition (MITECO).
As detailed below, this means that the Company’s estimated Carbon Footprint for 2021 (though
these data are not yet definitive) will be 36,713 tCO2, making the differentiation between Scope
1 emissions with 36,713 tCO2 and Scope 2 emissions with 0 tCO2.

3.2 Circular economy and waste prevention and management
GRI 306-2.

The concept of circular economy is fundamental for Redexis, which seeks to achieve efficient
production models that protect resources and reduce environmental impacts.

Through its Integrated Management System and, specifically, through its "Waste Management”
Operational Standard, Redexis establishes the system by which it ensures that the Company
duly controls and manages the waste produced as a result of its business activities, products,
services and facilities. In this way it optimises the handling of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste, establishing goals for the reduction of environmental indicators and thus contributing to
transition towards a circular economy.

In order to implement this and comply with the provisions of its Waste Management Operational
Standard, a series of measures were introduced during 2021:

e Prevention of pollution by waste: waste must be recycled or recovered when it can be
managed using these processes, and disposal must be avoided whenever possible.

e Waste segregation: the waste generator is responsible for collecting its waste,
separated by type on the basis of its LER code, unmixed and in appropriately
differentiated containers, for subsequent deposit at the collection points intended for
this purpose. All internal and external staff are responsible for disposing of waste in the
corresponding containers.

o Hazardous waste is disposed of in hygienic and safe conditions in the areas
intended for this purpose.

o In the case of hazardous waste that is not generated by office activities but is
owned by Redexis, this is transferred to the nearest "Hazardous Waste Storage",
taking the necessary measures to avoid damage to the containers and
packaging. At these storage points it will be classified and catalogued as waste,
separated according to its type and temporarily kept under secure conditions
until it is collected by an authorised manager.
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o Each contractor company is responsible for the waste generated during the
performance of its activities.

e \Waste storage: each waste-producing centre (offices and warehouse, as applicable) has
specific areas for the storage of waste and suitable containers, according to the
regulations, for all the types of waste generated.

e Waste labelling: all containers are duly labelled in a clear, legible and identifiable way
(at least in the national language). The label is placed on one or more sides of the
packaging, so that it can be read horizontally when the packaging is placed in the
required position.

e Waste management: non-hazardous and hazardous waste is managed through
authorised managers and carriers.

e Waste monitoring and measurement: waste management is measured and monitored
weekly through its correct segregation and final delivery to an authorised waste
manager. These authorised managers report the amount of waste managed on a
monthly basis.

Management of Non- Total 2021 Total Indicator Indicator Change
Hazardous Office Waste (Kg) 2020 (Kg) | (/employee) (/employee)

(Kg)* 2021 2020

Cardboard 344 1,968 0.99 5.44 -81.82%
Confidential Papers 1,554 3,524 4.46 9.74 -54.18%
Plastic 158 1,469 0.45 4.06 -88.82%
Total 2,056 6,961 5.90 69.30 -69.30%

Food waste management is only applicable in office areas where food waste residue can be
generated. There are waste containers in all the offices at Redexis work centres and they are
managed through an authorised waste processor.

3.3 Sustainable use of resources
GRI 302-1, 302-2, 302-3, 302-4, 302-5.

Water consumption is handled responsibly at all facilities and work centres. Proof of this can be
found in the savings achieved each year in water consumption, mainly due to the Company’s
regular environmental awareness campaigns.

Indicator Indicator Change in
Consumption of Non-Energy Total 2021 Total 2020 (Jfacility**)  (/facility**) relatt:;nto

2021 2020 indicator

Resources (m3)* (m3) (m3)

Water Consumption at Facilities | 537 467 0.17 0.14 15.20%

*Real data for 2021 are available for the period from January to September; an estimate has been made for the final
quarter of 2021 based on data from October, November and December 2020. Definitive data will be received in
February 2022.

**Facility: LPG and LNG plants; LPG and LNG tanks above and below ground; LPG and LNG storage tanks; above or
subway regulation and/or metering positions and stations.

Energy consumption is continuously tracked at Redexis, giving us the ability to implement
energy efficiency measures:
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‘ NG, LPG, Diesel, Petrol, Electricity 2020 2021* 2021* vs 2020
kWh 17,404,317 19,918,607 %
::rt]as:‘f::;gy m Tx, Dx and LPG networks [ 10,818,593  |11,482,185 |%
Ratio 1.61 1.78 -5.61%
Tx Positions kWh consumed 11,860,860 13,997,632 44.76%
LPG Plants kWh consumed 1,702,691 2,381,103 88.49%
LNG Plants kWh consumed 2,372,676 2,895,882 39.38%
Vehicles kWh consumed 973,503 526,769 -4.28%
Offices kWh consumed 494,587 117,221 -68.91%

*Note: Energy consumption is analysed by type of facility, compared year-on-year. Data for 2021 are estimated. To
make this estimate, real data was compiled from January to September, and the final quarter of 2021 was calculated
by replicating data for months that were expected to display climate conditions similar to months for which data was
already available from 2021.

Particular mention should be made of the following measures implemented to achieve energy
savings:

Measures adopted in 2021

Offices With regard to electricity consumption recorded at the end of 2021, increasing
the use of electricity from guaranteed renewable sources at offices by 10% as
compared with the consumption recorded in 2020.

Reducing electricity consumption at the Palma office with the installation of solar
photovoltaic equipment for self-consumption.
Optimisation of operational parameters in transmission positions and facilities.

Transmission

positions

LNG plant The automation of boiler shutdown during warm periods, incorporating a room
temperature probe and an atmospheric gas temperature probe.

LPG plant Compliance with the Plan implemented in relation to LPG for 9 Heating System

Optimisation plants.

The implementation of these measures has resulted in the Company hitting the following
milestone:

e 5.6%* fall in total energy consumed (KWh / m Tx, Dx and LPG networks).

*Note: The 2021 figure is an estimate, taking real data from January to September, and the final quarter of 2021 was
calculated by replicating data for months that were expected to display climate conditions similar to months for which
data was already available from 2021. Definitive information will be available in April 2022.

3.4 Climate change
GRI 305-1, 305-2, 305-3, 305-5.

Climate change constitutes one of the greatest challenges we face as a society, and mitigating
its effects forms a key part of Redexis’s strategy.

Ever since the approval of the Paris Agreement by the United Nations in 2015, sustainability has
represented a fundamental key to the mitigation of its effects. This agreement brought together
197 nations for the first time under a common cause: to join forces to fight against climate
change and to support developing countries so that they can adapt to changes. This sought to
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achieve a worldwide agreement to offer a coordinated and organised response to climate
change, with the aim of keeping global temperature rises below 2 degrees from pre-industrial
levels.

2021 was marked by the Glasgow Climate Pact, an agreement reached on 13 November at the
COP26 conference, which reaffirmed global commitment to speeding up action to protect the
climate over the coming decade.

The European Union, a key player in this field, signed the Green Deal with the aim of becoming
the first climate-neutral continent by 2050, ensuring the reduction of emissions and
technological and innovative development.

The physical limits of Redexis’s greenhouse gas quantification study are included in the following
types of facilities:

e Redexis Offices

e Transmission facilities, also referred to as transmission positions
e LNG plants

e Vehicle fleets

e Networks (associated with diffuse emissions)

Redexis considers climate change to be a global environmental challenge that requires everyone
to contribute in order to mitigate its effects. CO2 emissions, for example, is one of the factors
that most influences global warming. The Company therefore works constantly to reduce its
emissions by making significant investments in the updating of its infrastructure and
optimisation of its business activities, thus improving their energy efficiency.

Redexis develops tools to measure and control greenhouse gas emissions, with a view to
reducing them. One of its most outstanding initiatives relates to the calculation of its Scope 1
and Scope 2 carbon footprint, an exercise designed to provide information and transparency
that resulted in its being awarded the “Calculation” stamp from the Spanish Ministry for
Ecological Transition for the natural gas transmission and distribution business carried out from
its headquarters in Madrid.

Emissions associated with fuel consumption in facilities

Emissions associated with the fuel consumption of the transport fleet

SCOPE 1

Emissions associated with refrigerant gas leaks

Emissions assoclated with gas leaks in pipelines

SCOPE 2 Emissions associated with electricity consumption in facilities

Aware of the impact that its activities have on the environment, and with the aim of establishing
effective and efficient policies for the reduction of emissions, Redexis calculates the greenhouse
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gas emissions that emanate from its transmission, distribution and storage of natural gas in
Spain. It then prepares its report for the purposes of calculating the carbon footprint caused by
its activity and transparently communicating the Company’s emissions to its stakeholders. The
main goals sought through the implementation of this initiative are:

e Ascertaining and evaluating the Company’s Greenhouse Gas Emissions in order to
identify opportunities for the reduction of its carbon footprint.

e Improving the Company’s position in relation to society in general, maintaining a
responsible commitment to continuous improvement.

e Registering the Company’s carbon footprint in the Spanish Ministry for Ecological
Transition’s National Carbon Footprint Register.

An Emission Reduction Plan has been drawn up with the aim of reducing current emissions, and
this includes several measures undertaken during 2021:

e The automation of boiler shutdown at LNG satellite plants during warm periods,
incorporating a room temperature probe and an atmospheric gas temperature probe.

e Compliance with the Plan implemented in relation to LPG for 9 Heating System
Optimisation plants.

e Increasing electricity with guaranteed renewable sources to 100% in all supplies
contracted by Redexis.

The implementation of these measures has led to a reduction in a number of indicators:

e A 4.3%* decrease in the Company's Carbon Footprint (t CO2 / m Tx, Dx and LPG
networks).

Note*: The 2020 data have been audited in accordance with UNE-EN ISO Standard 14064-1: 2012 Greenhouse Gases,
and the Carbon Footprint figure has been registered with the Ministry for Ecological Transition. The data for 2021 are
estimated, as we will not have the actual data until April 2022.

The carbon footprint reduction measures are the actions that have been planned in order to
reduce energy consumption in the action plan for the ISO 50001 energy management system
implemented at Redexis.

e Carbon Footprint Indicators *

Carbon footprint

(tC0O2) 2020 Estimate for 2021
Scope 1 Scope 2 Total Scope 1 Scope 2 Total
Offices 1.52 39.37 40.89 1.51 1.51
LNG plants 399.38 32.57 431.95 435.04 435.04
LPG Plants 342.12 6.92 349.04 422.33 422.33
Transmission
positions 2,169.73 110.5 2,280.23 2,378.16 2,378.16
Vehicle fleets 147.7 | --- 147.7 257.34 257.34
diffuse emissions 34,472.70 | --- 34,472.70 33,231.57 33,231.57
37,533.15 189.36| 37,722.51| 36,725.95 0.00 | 36,725.95
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Ratio (t/ km Tx, Dx and

LPG networks) Estimate for 2021 Change 2021 vs 2020
Total Al + A2 3.34 3.20 -4.30%
Scope 1 3.33 3.20 -4.30%
Scope 2 0.02 0.00 0.00%

Note*: The 2020 data have been audited in accordance with UNE-EN ISO Standard 14064-1: 2012 Greenhouse Gases,
and the Carbon Footprint figure has been registered with the Ministry for Ecological Transition. The data for 2021 are
estimated, as we will not have the actual data until April 2022.

The calculation methodology is explained in the 2020 Carbon Footprint calculation report and
verified in an audit carried out in accordance with UNE-EN ISO Standard 14064-1: 2012
Greenhouse gases. The estimates for 2021 are calculated using methodology that takes real data
from January to September 2021 and then replicates data for months that were expected to
display climate conditions similar to months for which data was already available from 2021.
Definitive information will be available in April 2022.

The criteria used were taken from DOC. 20 of our integrated management system, "GHG
Quantification and Reporting Manual”, and the calculation tool used was developed by an
external consultancy company based on its experience in the Carbon Footprint Calculation field.

The methodology for obtaining activity data for each emission source is as follows:

e Electrical consumption: Data on electricity consumption will be obtained from the bills
issued by the commercial electricity companies. These bills are compiled by an external
service which uploads them to an online platform, from where the person responsible
for making the calculation will load the consumption figures into the carbon footprint
calculation tool.

e Natural Gas consumption: Activity data on natural gas consumption will be obtained
from readings taken from NG meters owned by REDEXIS.

e LPG consumption: Activity data on LPG consumption will be obtained from readings
taken from LPG meters owned by REDEXIS.

o Fleet fuel consumption: Activity data associated with the use of vehicles will be compiled
from the information provided by the Solred cards.

o Diffuse methane emissions: The activity data used to calculate the emissions produced

by operational activities and fugitive gas from the pipelines will be compiled using two
different methodologies:
In the case of diffuse emissions from both distribution networks with an MOP greater
than 16 bar and transmission networks, calculation and data collection is based on the
guidelines for the linear method established by Sedigas in its report entitled
“Methodology for the Calculation of Methane Emissions in Gas Distribution Systems”,
published in September 2019, while in the case of diffuse emissions from distribution
networks with a MOP of 16 or less, the event method from the same methodology is
used, under which the level of emissions produced is estimated based on the events
occurring with the inclusion of field data, in order to determine methane emissions
according to different types of event.

e Fluoride leaks from air conditioning and cooling equipment: The activity data for
refrigerant gas leaks will be obtained from the maintenance reports for the air
conditioning and cooling equipment, which record the amounts of gas required to
recharge this equipment.
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The estimated uncertainties in emissions are based on combining the uncertainties in emission
factors with the uncertainties in the corresponding activity data. The emission factors used to
prepare the organisation's GHG Inventory are extracted from official sources and are specific for
each source category. The selection of these emission factors is intended to reduce uncertainty
as far as possible. As part of this methodology, the values collected in the GWPs from the fourth
IPCC report are used as a reference, based on the notification made to the Inventory Unit at the
General Sub-department for Air Quality and the Industrial Environment.

The activity data used to prepare the organisation's GHG inventory are extracted from supplier
invoices or contracts for each of the sources.

The level of uncertainty in the consumption and activity values recorded by Redexis is
considered to be low. The uncertainty levels in the emission factors provided by the CNMC and
the Ministry for Ecological Transition are also low, but uncertainty in the factors used to calculate
diffuse emissions is considered high, given that they are based on average empirical values
developed using a reduced sample. The total level of uncertainty in the Carbon Footprint
calculation is therefore considered to be intermediate.

3.5 Protection of biodiversity
GRI 304-1, 304-2, 304-3, 304-4.

Redexis is firmly committed to the conservation of natural capital and biodiversity. The
management of its activities takes careful account of the way in which the impact of these
activities is handled, and the Company maintains a preventive approach to the generation of
such impacts, correcting any that may occur.

Based on the principle of caution, Redexis carries out environmental studies while designing its
infrastructure and facilities, with the aim of minimising any potential negative impacts during
their useful life. If these facilities are close to areas that are subject to protection or are of high
value from a biodiversity perspective, Redexis carries out specific studies with the aim of
adapting the project in question and thus avoiding, reducing or offsetting any impact on these
areas. It also implements a monitoring program, both for the works phase and for the
operational phase, with the aim of applying the necessary preventive and corrective measures
in relation to waste management, control of on-site machinery and vehicles, communication
with environmental agencies and compliance with defined environmental specifications, among
other issues.

The construction of a gas pipeline involves the following phases:
e Control of the environmental obligations set out in the Environmental Impact Statement
e Environmental Monitoring Program
e Waste management
e Archaeological monitoring
e Landscape restoration and improvement

Following construction, a series of guidelines are put in place to reforest the affected area. As a
result of the environmental monitoring carried out by Redexis in the areas identified, with a
view to avoiding possible environmental damage, impacts are monitored and the effectiveness
of the preventive and corrective measures established in the Environmental Impact Assessment
procedure is tracked, along with certain conditioning factors such as the appropriate treatment
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of hazardous and non-hazardous waste, the comprehensive control of machinery, etc. This
monitoring process will continue for the amount of time defined in the Environmental Impact
Assessment, once the agencies responsible for certifying completion have done so, based on the
results of environmental restoration and repopulation.

As an example of the Company’s archaeological monitoring, in 2021, while excavation work was
being carried out for a gas pipeline in the historic district of Mérida, a number of Roman mosaics
were found, dating from the end of the 3rd century or the beginning of the 4th century AD.
These mosaics were examined by the City Council’s Works Monitoring Team, to which Redexis
expressed its firm commitment to preserving the city’s archaeological heritage.

The site was catalogued, documented and covered over once again in order to protect the
ancient remains. As regards the excavation work, once the Council had completed its own work
and the site had been protected, the course of the pipeline was adapted as required. In this case,
the original course was moved by a few metres so that excavation could continue.

4. Our commitment to people

4.1 Employment
GRI 103, 102-8, 405-1, 405-2

For Redexis, success is born from the efforts of its workforce, and it is therefore fundamentally
important to attract and retain people who share the same values and are committed to the
Company’s sustainable development.

Redexis has a Code of Ethics and Conduct which reflects its commitment to all the principles of
corporate ethics and transparency, thereby establishing a series of behavioural procedures and
guidelines that are ultimately aimed at ensuring the responsible and ethical behaviour of all the
individuals who form part of the Company. This Code also summarises and defines the values
and good practices that must govern corporate conduct and the actions of all the professionals
who are both directly and indirectly connected Redexis, during the performance of the
Company’s activities.

The Company has also entered into a Collective Agreement with the UGT and CCOO union
organisations and the workers’ representatives, and this governs all employment relations
between the Company and the workers who belong to the Redexis workforce.

In addition, as a sign of Redexis’s commitment to equal opportunities and combatting inequality,
the Company has an Equality Plan, the main purpose of which is to ensure a real and objective
equality of opportunity between men and women at all levels of the Company, promoting a
development model that is committed to equality and encouraging a business culture that is
based on equal treatment.

Redexis is committed to equal opportunities and the promotion of diversity, which has led to
the development of objective and impartial selection and hiring processes that focus exclusively
on criteria based on merit and personal ability, and the promotion of stable and permanent
contracts whenever possible. Redexis also provides all of its employees with an internal Job
Posting tool that they can use to consult and apply for any available vacancies, thus ensuring
internal mobility and the professional development of all of the people who make up the
Company.
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In addition, the Company encourages the engagement of members of under-represented
groups, and it supports a scholarship program to help young people access the labour market.

Creating employment and attracting talent are fundamental objectives for Redexis, which seeks
to achieve excellence in its activities by creating long-term value. At the close of 2021, Redexis

had 337 direct employees across the whole of Spain.

e Workforce at year-end 2021, broken down by age, gender and professional category

2021
Professional Category/Age Men Women ‘ Total
Management Committee 8 4 ‘ 12
2. 30-40 years 1 0
3. 41-50 years 3 3
4. >=51 years 4 1
1. <30vyears
2. 30-40 years 11 7 18
3. 41-50 years 59 11 70
4. >=51 years
1. <30 vyears
2. 30-40 years 39 20 59
3. 41-50 years 52 31 83
4. >=51 years
Other categories 5 6
1. <30vyears 0 1
2. 30-40 years 1 1
3. 41-50 years 3 3
4. >=51 years 1 1

Overall total

(*) Other categories include sales representatives and telephone service
professionals

° Total number and distribution by type of contract:
2021
Type of Contract Men ‘ Women Total ‘
Permanent 238 91 329
Temporary 3 5 8
Total 241 \ 96 337 \
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° Total average and distribution by type of contract, gender, category and age:

2020 Permanent Temporary 2021 Permanent Temporary

Management
Committee Management
Committee
2.30-40 years 2 1 3 0 0 0 3 T B
2.30-40 years 1 0 1 0 0 0 1
3.41-50 years 4 2 6 0 0 0 6
3.41-50 years 3 3 6 0 0 0 6
4. >=51years 3 1 4 0 0 0 4
Py — 4.>51 years 4 1 5 0 0 0 5
1
Managers
2.30-40 years 16 6 23 0 0 0 23
1.<30vyears 1 0 1 0 0 0 1
3.41-50 years 62 11 72 0 0 0 72
2.30-40 years 14 7 21 0 0 0 21
4. >=51years 15 1 16 0 0 0 16
Technical and 3.41-50 years 61 11 | 72 0 0 0 72
1. <30 years 7 5 12 0 0 0 12 Technical and 138 68 206 05 1 2 208
Support Staff
2.30-40 years 43 20 63 1 1 2 64
1. <30 years 3 3 6 0 0 0 6
3.41-50 years 59 32 | 91 0 0 0 91
2.30-40 years 39 20 | 59 0 1 1 60
4. >=51years 43 13 56 0 0 0 56
3.41-50 years 53 32 | 8 | 0.2 0 0.2 | 85
Other categories 6 6 12 ‘ 2 1 3 15
4. >51 years 43 13 | 56 | 0.3 0 03 | 57
1.<30vyears 1 1 2 0 0 0 2
Other categories ‘ 4 4 8 3 1 4 12
2.30-40 years 1 2 3 1 1 2 5
1. <30 years 0.2 0 0.2 0 0.2 0 0
3.41-50 years 2 2 4 1 0 1 5
2.30-40 years 1 1 2 1 0 1 3
4. >=51years 2 1 3 0 0 0 3
3.41-50 years 2 2 4 2 0.5 2 6
TOTAL ‘ 260 98 | 358 ‘ 3 2 5 363
4.>51 years 1 1 2 1 1 1 3

(*) Other categories include sales representatives and telephone service professionals
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e Number of employment contracts terminated on the Company’s initiative at year-
end 2021, broken down by age, gender and professional category:

2021

Professional Category/Age

<
=

1. Directors and Managers
2. 30-40 years

3. 41-50 years

4. > 51 years

SN ECEESEESE O)

!

2. Technical and Support Staff
2. 30-40 years

3. 41-50 years

4. > 51 years

W (W=

3. Other categories

|

N OPN O | |O [l O | O | © [N=]

1. <30 years
3. 41-50 years

Overall total 14

(*) Other categories include sales representatives and telephone service professionals
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e Average salaries broken down by age, gender and professional category (**, **#):

2020 2021 (***)

Professional Professional

Category/Age* Category/Age*

Directors and 1. Directors and

WEREEES \WEREELES

2.30-40 years 71,005 75,110 72,125 1.<30 years 51,147 0 51,147
3.41-50 years 70,669 60,787 69,159 2.30-40 years 71,740 71,233 | 71,543
4.>=51years 69,144 82,033 69,950 3.41-50 years 69,494 63,840 | 68,605

Technical and Support

Staff 4.>=51years

74,784 80,667 | 75,039

2. Technical and

1. <30 years 35,004 28,268 32,197 —

2.30-40 years 35,615 34,354 35,195 1.<30 years 37,772 26,783 | 31,178
3.41-50 years 41,802 36,888 40,039 2.30-40 years 36,995 33,594 | 35,842
4.>=51years 53,496 34,627 49,080 3.41-50 years 41,130 37,972 | 39,950

Other categories 4.>=51years

54,339 35,522 | 49,891

1.<30 years 3. Other categories

2.30-40 years 17,475 15,037 16,256 1.<30 years 0 15,292 | 15,292
3.41-50 years 16,237 15,037 15,637 2.30-40 years 17,692 17,692 | 17,692
4.>=51years 15,037 15,037 15,037 3.41-50 years 16,092 16,092 | 16,092

Overall total 4.>=51years 15,292 15,292 | 15,292

|

Overall total 54,104 40,970 50,386

(*) Other categories include sales representatives and telephone service professionals
(**) Data for the managers who sit on the steering committee is not included.
(***) Variable forecast at 100%, does not reflect actual salary received
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° Pay gap and minimum salary under the collective agreement (*)

The pay gap between men and women is the difference between the wages received by workers
of both genders, calculated on the basis of the average difference between the gross earnings
of all workers. The pay gap between men and women is shown as a percentage of the income
of the male population, and it represents the average of the difference between the gross
earnings of workers of both genders. In the EU, the gender pay gap is officially called the
unadjusted gender pay gap, as it does not take account of each worker’s individual
characteristics workers and the factors that influence this difference, such as differences in
education, work experience, hours worked, the type of job performed, etc.

Redexis Pay

Gap
2021
16.7%

Las diferencias salariales se calculan de la siguiente manera:

) . | Retribucion hombres — Retribucion mujeres
Diferencia Salarial =

Retribucion hombres

£l resultado se expresa como porcentaje, y tiene la siguiente interpretacion
o >0%. Significa que las mujeres cobran menos que los hombres. Se expresaria como “las mujeres
cobran un x% menos que los hombres”, donde la retribucién de los hombres es tomada como

referencia. Veamos un ejemplo: Retribucién hombres = 100 ; Retribucién mujeres = 85
100-8S
100
o =0%. Significa que las mujeres cobran igual que los hombres.

Diferencia salarial = = 15%, “las mujeres cobran un 15% menos que los hombres

® < 0%. Significa que las mujeres cobran més que los hombres.

(*) The minimum wage established in Redexis’s collective agreements is 14% above the minimum interprofessional
wage in Spain in 2020.

° Directors’ and managers’ pay (*)
Men 561,264
Women 556,820

Total** 559,896

Men 215,893 Men 345,371
Women 212,652 Women 344,168

Total pay
Total MTIP 214,896 without MTIP 345,001

(*) Information about the paid directors on the Board of Directors, as well as the managers who sit on the
management committee.

(**) Includes MTIP, consisting of a 3-year incentive plan based on annual and cumulative targets for the
period 2018-2020, to be received in 2021.
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4.2 Work organisation
GRI 103, 403-2.

Redexis’s commitment to its employees is reflected in its payment policy, through which
everyone who works for the Company enjoys a variable payment system that is linked to the
achievement of company, departmental and individual targets. It also includes other benefits
and advantages:

e Flexible remuneration. Redexis offers all the members of its workforce the opportunity
to access a series of products, according to their individual needs, in such a way that
each person is able to optimise their remuneration and increase their disposable
income. During the 2021 financial year, more than 80% of the workforce benefitted from
this programme, which offers the chance to take advantage of four products: Health
insurance, Restaurant, Transport and Creche. In addition, following its introduction in
2021, employees can now request Training as part of this flexible payment plan, and
several people have already taken advantage of this opportunity to study for a Master’s
degree or advanced study diploma.

e Life and accident insurance. From the moment that they join the Company, everyone
on the workforce enjoys life and accident insurance.

e Pension plan. A year after joining the Company, any member of the workforce may, if
they wish, sign up to a pension plan, regarded as a socially responsible investment.

e Health insurance. The company subsidises a percentage of the employee’s premium by
way of a social welfare benefit.

e Créche. The Company provides employees with assistance of 60 euros per month per
child for a period of 12 months.

e Redexis Discount Club. Employees can access a series of discounts on different items
and products such as movie tickets, shows, travel, hotels, sports, fashion and other
items.

Redexis is committed to the flexibility and work-life balance of its employees, and it has signed
the 2nd Company Collective Agreement with the UGT and CCOO union organisations. This
agreement improves working conditions in a number of different ways:

e Gradual reduction in annual working hours.

e Flexible working day, with workers arriving at between 8 and 9.30 am and leaving from
5.30 pm onwards.

e Uninterrupted working Friday, with workers offered a flexible start time and able to
leave from 3 pm onwards.

e Short summer working days, over a period of two and a half months.

e 24 and 31 December are non-working days.

e Working days that precede public holidays (5 January, 23 and 30 December and Easter)
are worked as uninterrupted 7-hour days.

e Increased holiday periods, which will be extended to 25 days in 2020 and 2021.

As a result of the publication of Royal Decree-Law 8 of 8 March 2019, Redexis guarantees the
daily recording of the working hours of all its employees, thus combatting job insecurity and

taking social protection measures.

° Absenteeism hours:
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Absenteeism hours 11,430

With the principal aim of improving employee experience with Redexis’s applications and tools
and thus improving the management of the Company, making it more efficient and ensuring
data reliability and security while complying with all the regulatory requirements relating to
employment issues, Redexis has launched a new employee portal. This new space has made it
possible to consolidate and organise all the tools associated with the management of and
interaction with Human Resources issues.

Some of the improvements that have been implemented include:

e Integration of the working hours recording application, simplifying its use and
functionality.

e A new “Who’'s Who” section, making it much easier to identify the people with whom
one is working.

e  All functionalities have been improved as compared with the previous portal (access to
the working calendar, holidays and absences, the viewing of employment documents and the
management of changes, etc.)

e Using this new portal, employees will be able to see all the notifications associated with
management of the portal, and a channel has also been provided for listening to your
suggestions.

e  The processes for signing documents have been automated.

e Newly engaged employees are able to sign their contracts electronically and consult the
signed documents on the portal itself without having to print anything out.

e  Other documents can also be signed electronically, such as form 145, certificates, etc.

4.3 Health and safety
GRI 103, 403-2, 403-3, 403-4, 403-9, 403-10.

Redexis goes beyond mere compliance with the legislation in force and promotes continuous
improvements in working conditions and the management of safety, health and welfare.
Redexis involves its employees, suppliers, collaborators, users and other stakeholders connected
with its business activities, with the aim of acting with maximum safety.

As regards issues relating to occupational health and safety, the Company set a series of
targets for the 2021 financial year:
e Compliance with the following joint Accident Rates for employees and
contractors:
o Combined Frequency Rate (FR) <1.79
FR = No. Accidents / No. hours worked *1000000
o Combined Severity Rate <0.03
FR = No. days lost ¥*1000 / No. hours worked
o Average no. of Accidents with sick leave and without sick leave in the
last 3 years lower than 8.
e Carrying out 7 ergonomic studies in “office workstations” at fixed work places.
e Organising 1 day to raise awareness on ORP for Executives, Middle Managers
and Technicians working in the building works construction Division.
e Carrying out a minimum of 20% of the drills performed at SEVESO plants with
the involvement of external resources.
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e Increasing the number of workers trained in road safety by 20%.

e Increasing the number of workers trained in first aid by 25%.

e Maintaining awareness activities on healthy working practices.

e Administering a course on Time Management and Psychosocial Planning.

In order to achieve its proposed objectives, Redexis has implemented a series of strategies that
have been implemented by the GEMASST department, in which special emphasis is placed on
stimulating leadership and promoting sensitivity and awareness in respect of occupational
health and safety issues. Throughout 2021, Redexis promoted well-being and a healthy
lifestyle, monitoring and taking account of the medical health of all of the Company’s
employees at all times.

At all its work centres and facilities, the Company continuously monitors compliance with the
legal provisions that are in force and any other requirements to which the organisation
subscribes in terms of health and safety, energy and the environment.

Employees are at all times guaranteed the occupational health and safety training that is
considered sufficient and appropriate for the correct performance of their working duties, with
the identification and monitoring of risk, the elimination of any hazards detected and the
adoption of suitable measures. Redexis ensures at all time that its employees receive general
information on this issue through their representatives, along with direct information on the
specific risks that may affect their own workstations or duties, with information on the applied
preventive measures that may be required in order to mitigate the risks in question. The
Company consults with its workers at all times and seeks their participation on issues that may
affect their health and safety, through their company representatives.

Given the situation caused by the pandemic, which has completely transformed the way that
employees perform their duties and encouraged remote working, Redexis has supported digital
disconnection and established a series of guidelines, such as the need to respect break times
and holiday periods, avoiding the holding of meetings and the sending of emails outside working
hours, the reasonable use of digital tools, etc.

The Company acts at all times, vis-a-vis both society and its employees, in accordance with the
prevention criteria that result from the legal and regulatory framework, in combination with the
Redexis Integrated Management System, verifying compliance with all the applicable legal
requirements. This latter System is regularly reviewed, and measures are taken to continuously
improve its effectiveness. These criteria form an integral part of prevention management at all
levels of the Organisation, without exception.

In 2020, the Company added its Integrated Management System Course to the Redexis Campus
for new employees in order to ensure they receive information on how the areas of occupational
health and safety, energy management and the environment are managed. There were also
meetings of the Working Group on Psychosocial Activities and Well-Being, a body created in
November 2019 as a stimulus to encourage employee participation in well-being and
psychosocial activities. The Working Group comprises various members of the Company's
Management, the Prevention Service and Prevention Officers (employee representatives).
Implementation of the Psychosocial and Well-Being Action Plan continued during 2021.

In April 2021 the Company launched streamed courses on “Covid-19 and Cardiovascular
Disease”. Presented by Dr Tormo, an expert in cardiovascular disorders from the Spanish Heart
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Foundation, these courses gave us all an opportunity to gain a greater understanding of the
different cardiovascular risk factors and provided practical guidelines for cardiovascular
prevention, with a view to preventing serious effects arising from the response to Covid-19.

The aims of this course focused on the creation of a culture of self-care among employees, with
the aim of reducing cardiovascular risk through the provision of health-related information on
the different kinds of cardiovascular risk factors that we may have encountered during lockdown
and its gradual lifting. It was also intended to make participants aware of the importance of
lifestyle changes as an efficient way of preventing cardiovascular disorders.

A training day entitled “Workplace Risk Prevention Awareness for Directors and Managers.
Practical Workshop (Role Playing). Mock Trial” was held in June 2021 for the Engineering,
Tenders and Execution Division. This activity was designed to increase awareness among staff
who have management, direction and supervisory duties relating to engineering, tendering
processes and the completion of building works, with regard to the potential legal, and
particularly criminal liabilities that they might incur. The activity centred around an enjoyable
educational programme that consisted of reproducing all the different phases involved in court
proceedings, with a particular focus on procedure and the basic strategies to be adopted when
defending the interests of the technicians, managers and directors involved in proceedings for
the enforcement of liability as the result of accidents in the workplace or infringements of
workplace risk prevent regulations.

2021 also saw the continuation of the Redexis Healthy initiative, which was introduced in April
202 with the launch of the “Redexis Healthy Well-Being” programme. The Employee Support
Programme was also maintained, with the aim of offering emotional and personal care for
employees through the offer of the following services:

e Psychological assistance to employees: free and confidential psychological assistance to
all of the organisation’s employees.

e Coaching sessions for any employees requesting them: this resource allows individuals to
develop skills in a personalised way that is adapted to their own personal or professional
challenges, closely supported by a personal coach. The sessions focus on skills such as
public speaking, enhancing social skills and improving time management. Sessions are
conducted by video call or by phone.

e Wellness Programs: All employees can enjoy individual training free of charge, and
programmes are designed to serve as a tool to help them face any challenge or personal
goal. The sessions proposed in 2020 have been: reconciliation of work and family life, time
management, problem solving, coping with stress, emotional management of uncertainty
and healthy relationships in the workplace.

o Wellness Portal: This is an exclusive portal for all Redexis employees which contains
resources and information on learning how to care for their well-being. This portal is
updated every week with articles, videos, tips, books, specialist recommendations, and
verified news prepared by professionals.

Redexis is working steadily to achieve objectives aimed at reducing the risks or dangers that may
emerge in work environments, offering recommendations and alternatives aimed at the safety
of its employees. The GEMASST Department monitors the number of days without accidents,
performing this duty through different Health and Safety Committees, with the aim of reducing
the number of accidents to zero. There is also a technological tool for the recording, monitoring
and analysis of any healthcare provided through the “Mi salud” app, which is provided by the
third-party prevention service, Quirdn Prevention.
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At each of the Company’s work centres there are records showing the names of the members
and people appointed to the Emergency Teams and the first aid training they have received, and
annual drills are carried out at the SEVESO Plants. These include environmental and occupational
health and safety scenarios designed to ensure the safety of workers at all times. New members
of the Emergency Teams have been brought up to date with the courses on “Managing
Emergencies”, and a new course was offered in 2021 on the implications of SEVESO regulations
and emergency plans for all the personnel involved in dealing with Emergencies, Technical Staff
and Heads of Operation and Maintenance at the Company’s facilities and all control centre
operatives.

As a company concerned with occupational health and safety, Redexis is equally concerned with
the well-being of its employees outside the work environment, which is why it maintained the
implementation of its updated Mobility Plan in December 2020 and launched its road safety
campaign during the holidays, distributing a set of Safe Driving Rules in June 2021. Further
meetings of the Mobility and Road Safety Committee were also held. Several seminars were
held during October and November 2021 as part of the “Driving Improvement” course.

The GEMASST Leadership Committee continued to hold meetings, with a view to reinforcing
the leadership of Senior Management and their commitment in areas related to occupational
health and safety and the environment.

There have also been 2,157 occupational health and safety inspection visits to construction sites
and 634 visits to facilities, an increase in safety inspection visits of 5% (visit/m pipeline
constructed) for construction sites and 4.1% (visit/facility) for facilities as compared with 2020.
46 drills were carried out at Redexis facilities during 2021.

In 2021 Redexis continued to make progress in its commitment to safety at work by certifying
its Occupational Health and Safety Management System under the ISO 45001:2018 standard.
In this regard, the certification issued to Redexis by the British Standards Institution, a leading
standards body in auditing and certification, further consolidates the Company’s commitment
and leadership in the field of Occupational Health and Safety, Energy and the Environment,
through an Integrated Management System that covers all its activities.

ISO 45001 is currently the most prestigious international standard for occupational health and
safety. Its greatest advantage is that the health and safety management system must be in line
with the High-Level Structure which now includes all new versions of ISO standards. This means
greater alignment between the organisation's strategy and the management of its workers’
health and safety, reflecting greater leadership from the Management in this area. In addition,
ISO 45001 represents an important step forward in terms of the obligations relating to employee
consultation and participation, in such a way that employees must now be empowered and
involved in certain areas such as the definition of policies, targets, needs and expectations. Along
these same lines, Redexis is also working to continue offering its employees a health and
wellness plan, promoting healthy lifestyle habits that are consistent with its Healthy Workplace
certificate.

Redexis against COVID-19
Due to the pandemic caused by SARS-CoV-2 (Covid-19) which led to the approval of a State of
Emergency throughout Spain on 14 March 2020, a Covid-19 Monitoring Committee was created

to establish a communications mechanism for employees at all levels during this crisis. This
Committee has defined a protocol for contingencies and preventive measures in the face of the
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crisis, making adjustments to adapt to this extraordinary situation, taking account of the needs
of the teams and coordinating resources to return to normal working levels while ensuring the
physical and mental health of employees.

Given the situation caused by the pandemic, which has completely transformed the way that
employees perform their duties and encouraged remote working, Redexis has supported digital
disconnection and established a series of guidelines, such as the need to respect break times
and holiday periods, avoiding the holding of meetings and the sending of emails outside working
hours, the reasonable use of digital tools, etc.

In addition, the Company has published regular weekly bulletins on its protocol for
contingencies and preventive measures against Covid-19 for all employees, as well as updating
its preventive protocol for the use of offices when deemed necessary. The pandemic has made
it necessary for Redexis to adapt to a new way of working, namely remote working, and this has
tested both the Company’s human and material resources.

Employees have been kept informed about developments relating to the pandemic and the
protocols that the Company has implemented, through the General HR Department’s Message
Board and the Covid-19 Space on the Company’s Intranet.

In addition, to mark the World Day for Safety and Health at Work, Redexis organised the virtual
activity ‘Covid-19 and Cardiovascular Disease’ between 26 and 30 April, which consisted of a
series of virtual initiatives directed towards the Company’s employees.

e Occupational Health and Safety Indicators
Health and Safety in the workplace forms a key aspect of Redexis’s operational strategy, and the

Company has implemented the foregoing initiatives to achieve its proposed objectives. As a
result of these actions, its workplace Health and Safety indicators for 2021 were as shown below:
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2021
204,386 (women)
Hours Worked (THW) 525,566 (men)
Accidents 0
Without Sick Leave 0
With Sick Leave 0
4]
9 Severe 0
>
o
- Fatal 0
€
w
Days Lost 0
Days Lost due to Sick Leave 0.0
Frequency rate * 0.00
Severity rate (without Sick Leave) ** | 0
Severity rate ** 0.00
931,612 (men and
0 Hours Worked (THW) women)
[]
g
s Accidents 2 (men)
c
S 0 (women)
Without Sick Leave 0
With Sick Leave 2 (men)
0 (women)
Severe 0
Fatal 0
Days Lost 0
Days Lost due to Sick Leave 10 (men)
0 (women)
Frequency rate * 2.15
Severity rate (without Sick Leave) ** | 0
Severity rate ** 0.01
Hours Worked (THW) 204,386 (women)
1,457,178 (men)
w
§ Accidents 2 (men)
e 0 (women)
% Without Sick Leave 0
fo) With Sick Leave 2 (men)
& 0 (women)
s Severe 0
&)
= Fatal 0
._.E_. Days Lost 0
Days Lost due to Sick Leave 10 (men)/ 0 (women)
Frequency rate* 1.20
Severity rate (without Sick Leave) ** | 0.00
Severity rate ** 0.01

(*) Frequency rate = (Accidents with Sick Leave * 1,000,000) / Hours worked Accidents with sick leave (AWL) = own personnel AWL
(Work accident reports notified by the company in the Delt@ official electronic declaration) + contracted personnel AWL (Work
accident reports notified by the contractor in the Delt@ official electronic declaration and communicated to Redexis)
- Hours Worked (HW) = HW own personnel (Working hours registered by HR of own personnel)
+ HW contracted personnel (Hours worked by contracted personnel communicated to us via
the DEA Format "Statistical Accident Data" under the integrated management system)
(**) Severity Rate = (No. of days lost * 1,000) / Hours worked No. days lost (DL) = No. days of Sick Leave due to
work accident
- Hours Worked (HW) = HW own personnel (Working hours registered by HR of own personnel)
+ HW contracted personnel (Hours worked by contracted personnel communicated to us via
the DEA Format "Statistical Accident Data" under the integrated management system)
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Breakdown of fatal, severe, and minor accidents (own workers and contractors)

Accidents number
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Accident severity rate (own workers and contractors)
ASR 2021=0.01 (No. of days lost x1000 / hours worked)
ASR average for the last 4 years=0.03

Severity Rate
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(1)  Calculated as the number of accidents multiplied by 10° and divided by totsl worked hours
(2)  Calculated as the number of lost days multiphed by 10%and divided by total warked hours.
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No. of OSH Inspection Visits (work)

Ne of visits Total 2021 Total 2020 Indicator (/ml  Indicator (/ml Variation
(ud) (Uds) (uds) constructed) constructed)
2020 2021
Total 2.157 3.236 0,01 0,01 5%
No. of OSH Inspection Visits (Maintenance and Operation)

N2 of visits Total 2021 Total 2020 Indicator Indicator Variation
(ud) (Uds) (uds) (/installation  (/installation

no.) 2020 no.) 2021
Total 634 609 0,19 0,20 4,11%

A series of business meetings are held to coordinate works, maintenance, and operations at the
different facilities. Studies are carried out in the offices to detail the safety, health, and work
conditions of each of the centres.

No. of meetings CAE Works

Number of Total 2021 Total 2020 Indicator (/ml  Indicator (/ml Variation
meetings (ud) (Uds) (uds) constructed)  constructed)
2020 2021
233 0,00
No. of meetings CAE Maintenance and Operation
Number of Total 2021 Total 2020 Indicator Indicator Variation
meetings (ud) (Uds) (uds) (/installation (/installation
no.) 2020 no.) 2021
82 0,03
No. of safety plans carried out or updated (works)
N2 SP (ud) Total 2021 Total 2020 Indicator (/ml Indicator (/ml Variation
(Uds) (uds) constructed)  constructed)
2020 2021
Total 415 385 0,00 0,00 70%
No. of Risk Assessments performed in office

N2 RA Total 2021 Total 2020 Indicator (/no. Indicator (/no. Variation
office(ud) (Uds) (uds) offices) 2020 offices) 2021
Total 4 7 0,41 0,24 -43%

N2 HE (ud) Total 2021 Total 2020 Indicator (/no. Indicator (/no. Variation

(Uds) (uds) offices) 2020 offices)
2021

Total 5 5 0,29 0,29 0%

To guarantee the health and safety of its professional staff at all times, Redexis has detailed
emergency and self-protection plans for its offices and facilities, which entail the regular
performance of drills to ensure that these plans are properly operative at all times and to
identify whether they need to be updated, as well as to ensure that everyone knows how to act
at any given time.

No. of indoor emergency plans carried out
N2 IEP (ud) Total 2021 Total 2020 Indicator Indicator Variation

(Uds) (uds) (/installation  (/installation
no.)2020 no.)2021
Total 7 13 0,0040 0,0022 -46%

No. of self-protection plans carried out
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N2 SPP (ud) Total 2021 Total 2020 Indicator Indicator Variation
(Uds) (uds) (/installation  (/installation
no.)2020 no.)2021
54

No. of Explosion Protection Documents produced
N2 EPD (ud) Total 2021 Total 2020 Indicator Indicator Variation
(Uds) (uds) (/installation  (/installation
no.)2020 no.)2021

No. of drills carried out in facilities

N2 Drills (ud) Total 2021 Total 2020 Indicator Indicator Variation

(Uds) (uds) (/installation  (/installation

no.)2020 no.)2021
46 0,0142
No. of Emergency Plans carried out in the office

N2 EP (ud) Total 2021 Total 2020 Indicator (/no. Indicator (/no. Variation

(Uds) (uds) offices) 2020 offices) 2021

Total 5 11 0,6471 0,2941 -55%

Key: M and O: Maintenance and Operations; CBA: Coordination of business activities; RA: Risk assessment: IEPs
Internal Emergency Plans; SPPs: Self-Protection Plans; EP: Emergency Plans.

Health and safety training is vital for Redexis, which is why the GEMASST Department carries
out training exercises that seek to inform the workforce of these issues and raise awareness
about the possible risks they may face when performing their duties and how to detect them.

N2 Acciones Formativas Realizadas
| S 020 Indicador Indicador
Ne AF(ud) ota - ota oy (/empleado) (/empleado) Variacion
(ud) (ud) 2020 2021

Total 265 201 0,56 0,76 27%

N2 Horas Formacion impartidas

Total 2021 Total 2020 Indicador Indicador
Ne Horas Formacién impartidas ( H ) (/empleado)  (/empleado) Variacién

(H) (H) 2020 2021

Total 2402 2423 6,69 6,90 3%

N2 Trabajadores Formados

Total 2021 Total 2020 Indicador Indicador
N2 Trabajadores Formados( Ud ) (Jempleado)  (/empleado) Variacién

(ud) (ud) 2020 2021
Total 816 1303 3,6003 2,3431 -35%

Key: M and O: Maintenance and Operations; CBA: Coordination of business activities; RA: Risk assessment: IEPs
Internal Emergency Plans; SPPs: Self-Protection Plans; EP: Emergency Plans.

4.4. Social relations
GRI 103, 403-1, 403-4, 402-1, 102-41.

In 2018, Redexis approved its 2nd Company Collective Agreement, the main purpose of which
was to establish a single regulatory framework that would promote job stability and provide a
substantial improvement in working conditions. The Agreement covers 85% of the people who
work at Redexis. This Collective Agreement remained in force until 31 December 2021, and it
offered improvements such as:
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e Areductionin the total number of hours worked in a year, increasing the number of rest

days.

e Increased flexibility in relation to the time at which the working day starts.
e Recognition of a salary review procedure under the Agreement, linked to the Company’s

results.

e Improvements in welfare benefits: Access to a professional pension plan, significant

subsidies in health insurance, life insurance and accident insurance policies for workers.

e Access to the programme for variable annual payments (bonuses) for all the Company’s

workers, using a model based on the achievement of targets.

The 2nd Collective Agreement governs labour relations at the Company, providing for the
establishment of an Inter-Centre Committee, which comprises a maximum of 5 members
appointed from among the members of the Company’s various Work Centre Committees and/or
Personnel Representatives.

The Committee performs the following duties:

a)

t acts as a valid agent in dealings with the Company in individual or collective matters in

which the Inter-Centre Committee has been expressly delegated to act by the Work Centre

Committee, Personnel Representative and/or workers requesting its intervention, meaning

that decisions adopted by the Inter-Centre Committee in these matters will be binding on

all those who have agreed to its delegation.

b) The Company informs the Inter-Centre Committee about the Company's global hiring plans

on an annual basis.

c) The Company also reports annually to the Inter-Centre Committee on its global training

plans.

d) The Inter-Centre Committee will legally represent the workers in all aspects relating to the

collective issues provided for in articles 40, 41, 44.9, 47, and 51 of the Spanish Workers’
Statute, provided that the Company measures relating to the matter in question affect

more than one of the Company’s workplaces. It will also represent them in any matter
relating to Article 82.3 of the same Statute.

In addition, the following should be highlighted as part of the social dialogue:

A.

Both the CCOO and UGT unions have established their respective union delegations at
Redexis.

As of 31 December 2021 there were currently 21 Workers’ Legal Representatives with the
power to call union elections across all of the Company’s work centres.

Union elections were held at the Company’s work centres in Alicante and Almeria during
2021.

. The Group’s 2nd Equality Plan has come into force, establishing a Monitoring Committee
which is responsible for monitoring and evaluating the Plan. It holds one ordinary annual
meeting with the possibility of holding two extraordinary meetings.

. The working timetable for all work centres is agreed with the legal representatives each

year.

The consultation and participation of workers in matters of Safety and Hygiene in the Workplace,
established through collective negotiation, is implemented through the 6 Territorial Health and
Safety Committees (THSC):
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THSC Central Region
THSC Levante

THSC East Andalusia
THSC West Andalusia
THSC Northern Region
THSC Balearics

O O O O O O

The Safety Committees are joint and collegiate participative bodies, charged with offering the
opportunity for regular consultation of the company's actions in the prevention of occupational
risk. Their members comprise prevention officers and representatives from Redexis (Regional
Managers, Delegates, etc.) in equal numbers. Each Committee has a chair and a secretary. A
representative of the Prevention Service may attend the Committee's meetings in an advisory
but non-voting capacity. Given its status as a joint and collegiate participative body, all its actions
must be carried out jointly, following prior written agreement by a simple majority of its
members, and with representation from both parties. These committees hold quarterly
meetings, though they may be convened on an extraordinary basis.

As a participative body designed to allow regular consultations regarding the actions of the
companies that make up REDEXIS in matters of risk prevention, each Committee will have the
following powers and duties in relation to the activities carried out in the regions:

a) Participation in the preparation, implementation and evaluation of risk prevention
plans and programs.

b) Discussion, before implementation, of the company's choice of organisational
methods and, where appropriate, the management work carried out by specialist
organisations with which the company has agreed to carry out preventive activities;
projects relating to planning, work organisation and the introduction of new
technologies, the organisation and development of activities for the protection,
prevention, planning and organisation of training in preventive matters.

c) Promotion of initiatives on methods and procedures for the effective prevention of
risks, proposing the improvement of conditions or the correction of existing
deficiencies.

d) Being directly informed of the situation regarding the prevention of risk at work
centres, making the visits it deems appropriate to achieve this.

e) Ascertaining how many documents and reports relating to working conditions are
necessary for the performance of their duties, along with the documents and reports
resulting from the activities of the prevention service, where applicable.

f) Being informed about and analysing the damage caused to the health or physical
integrity of workers, in order to assess the causes and propose appropriate preventive
measures.

g) Being informed about and issuing the annual report and scheduling of prevention
services.

In addition to these 6 regional Safety Committees, the Inter-Regional Safety and Health
Committee (ISHC) was created in 2019. This Committee is made up of 5 company members: the
Director of Operations, the Director of Network Execution, the Regional Director for the Balearic
Area, the Regional Director for the North and the Director of Talent (HR), along with 5 workers’
representatives from the different regions and union delegations. The post of Secretary falls to
the head of GEMASST, with the right to speak but without the right to vote, and the Head of the
SPP acts as adviser, also with the right to speak but without the right to vote.
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The ISHC is attributed with all the duties and powers described below, when these exceed the
territorial scope of each of the Regional Security Committees:

a) Promotion of observance of the legal provisions in force to prevent occupational risk
throughout the Redexis Group.

a.

Participation in the preparation, implementation and evaluation of risk
prevention plans and programs.

Discussion, before implementation, of the company's choice of organisational
methods and, where appropriate, the management work carried out by
specialist organisations with which the company has agreed to carry out
preventive activities; projects relating to planning, work organisation and the
introduction of new technologies, the organisation and development of
activities for the protection, prevention, planning and organisation of training
in preventive matters.

Promotion of initiatives on methods and procedures for the effective
prevention of risk, proposing the improvement of conditions and the
correction of existing deficiencies.

Being directly informed of the situation regarding the prevention of risk at
work centres, making the visits it deems appropriate to achieve this.
Ascertaining how many documents and reports relating to working conditions
are necessary for the performance of their duties, along with the documents
and reports resulting from the activities of the prevention service, where
applicable.

Being informed about and analysing the damage caused to the health or
physical integrity of workers, in order to assess the causes and propose
appropriate preventive measures.

Being informed about and issuing the annual report and scheduling of
prevention services.

Issuing the reports and opinions requested by the THSCs in relation to any
issues that exceed the latters’ territorial scope.

Informing the THSCs of the conclusions adopted by the ISHC when knowledge
of these conclusions is of general interest.

Being informed about the issues passed on to it by the THSCs.

Being informed about and issuing an annual report on the evolution of the
health and safety training program.

Being informed about the results of the external health and safety audits that
the Company carries out either voluntarily or mandatorily.

Being informed about the preventive plans and safety procedures developed
for the different business lines.

Similarly, Sustainability, Environmental and Regional Energy Committees have been established
(meeting on a half-yearly basis).

For Redexis, transparency and constant dialogue with all members of the Company is essential,
these being key aspects for the essential management of communication. Redexis has an
internal portal (comunicacion@redexis.es) to facilitate shared communications between all
divisions and departments. This portal is also used to report all the achievements and milestones
reached. The Company also has an internal complaints channel (canaldenuncias@redexis.es)
that employees can use to submit complaints or claims. After complaints have been studied, the
Company may adopt measures accordingly.
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Another essential tool for communications is the Intranet, which all employees can access and
which allows them to check all the latest news about the Company, regulations and
documentation, as well as giving them access to the campus and other Human Resources
channels, etc. The Intranet is vital for establishing links between the Company and its employees
and is a reliable source of information on corporate matters.

The Compromiso Redexis channel was created within the area of Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) and is used to inform employees actively about all the initiatives carried out by the
department, with a view to increasing a sense of belonging and well-being with the company.
November 2021 saw the launch of the 2nd children’s drawing contest entitled “Redexis lights
up your Christmas”, which continues to focus on the emotional development and well-being of
children. This contest, which can be entered by all employees’ children under the age of 13, is
divided into different age categories, and winners can choose between a number of prizes and
the opportunity for their drawing to become the Redexis Christmas card for 2021.

4.5 Training
GRI 103, 205-2, 404-1, 404-2, 404-3.

In order to offer an efficient response to the daily challenges faced by the sector and the
transformation that the market is currently undergoing, Redexis provides training programmes
for all of the Company’s employees who need to continuously update their knowledge and skills
and thus ensure their professional development.

Redexis has created a series of training activities organised in the form of “Schools”, all of which
can be accessed via the Redexis Campus. Each School focuses on specific content which is
directed either at the Company as a whole or at individual groups. During 2021, activities were
centred on the following Schools:

e Corporate School: focused on training in matters of general interest or issues requiring
mandatory compliance by the entire workforce, such as the Welcome Programme for
new employees, “Somos Redexis”, the internal regulations and code of conduct included
as part of the Company’s Corporate Governance, our Equality Plan, etc.

e Skills School: open to anyone who wishes to improve their social and personal skills in
order to facilitate day-to-day communications and management, such as managing
expectations, social intelligence, meeting one’s own targets, etc.

e Languages and Communication School: focused on improving both the way we
communicate in our own language and our use of other languages. Workshops include
English, public speaking, writing the perfect email, etc.

e Leadership School: aimed at people who manage teams at Redexis, the aim being to
improve management and development skills through online workshops and virtual
classrooms sessions on Feedback, Coaching, Positive Influence, etc.

e Office Systems and Cybersecurity: Training for everyone in tools that lead to improved
day-to-day working without endangering security. The workshops that have attracted
the greatest participation have been Information Security, Excel, Office 365 and Team:s.

e Safety, Health and the Environment School: Working with the GEMASST department,
the Company has introduced this school which brings together content focusing on
health and safety for all, the environment and prevention. The most important
workshops have been Waste Management, Time Management, etc.

e Technical School: we have provided the entire workforce with a catalogue of more than
500 courses in infrastructure, finance, project management, renewable energies, the
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energy sector, etc. This School has a list of courses offered by Structuralia, a well-known
training company that specialises in matters relating to the sector in which the Company
operates. The courses that have seen the most enrolments have been those that are
connected with renewable energies, such as Biogas and Biomethane, Hydrogen, solar
energy, etc. Another course that was well-attended was the Finance Masterclass for
non-financial staff, which has now completed two full cycles with great success in terms
of both the number of people enrolling and participant satisfaction.

In addition to these programmes we have created specific formats to tackle issues of strategic
interest, such as Hydrogen and Biogas, based around webinars with internationally renowned
experts. We have grouped these webinars together under the title Network Learning, and they
allow for direct interaction between employees and the people leading the webinar, since they
are presented live.

Another innovative format was the LideRa Programme, a Leadership Development and People
Management programme that was attended by 48 of the Company’s managers, included the
Management Committee. This used blended methodology (online workshops and teaching via
live virtual classrooms) to continue building leadership skills aimed at facilitating the more
efficient management and direction of teams using techniques such as Coaching, Feedback,
Situational Leadership, etc.

Finally, the Company offered different kinds of training by combining face-to-face classes with
streaming via virtual classrooms, with a view to enhancing the training of teams in matters
relating to their working duties and new projects.

e VNG (Vehicular Natural Gas) Service Stations: theoretical training on the maintenance
and operation of VNG facilities in the form of virtual classes, with practical sessions held
at gas refilling stations throughout Spain for 45 people.

e Photovoltaics: training in the markets, the sector, infrastructure, etc., including visits to
a photovoltaic plant.

e Emergency Home Assistance: training for duty staff.

HOURS OF TRAINING BY PROFESSIONAL

CATEGORY
2021

Management team 2,100.50
Mana.gt.ers, experts, and 3,966.00
technicians
Operational support and sales 604.90
personnel
Total 6,671.40
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TRAINING

ACTIVITIES Participants Hours

2020 2021 2020 2021
Corporate School 1147 121 1115 133
Skills School 2 51 28 230.4
Languages and
Communication 224 7 2,483 77
School
Office Systems
and Data Security 7 129 66 387
School
Technical School 53 446 1,629 4644
Leadership and
Team 4 48 100 1200
Management
Total 1,437 802 5,421 6,671

N2 Acciones Formativas Realizadas
Indicador Indicador
Total 2021 Total 2020

g s
N2 AF(Ud) (ud) (ud) (/em;)l;;do) (/em;()l:id()) Variacién

Total 119 58 0,16 0,3417 113%

N2 Horas Formacion impartidas

Total 2021 Total 2020 BT Indicador
(H) ) (/empleado) (/empleado) Variacién
2020 2021

Total 417 691 1,9079 1,1974 -37%

N2 Trabajadores Formados

Total 2021 Total 2020 Indicador Indicador
N® Trabajadores Formados( Ud ) (/empleado)  (/empleado) Variacion
(N2 empl ) (N2 empl) 2020 o

Total 201 459 1,2682 0,5772 -54%

N2 Horas Formacién impartidas (H)

4.6 Equality
GRI 103, 405

Redexis is firmly committed to equal opportunities for all its employees, suppliers, and
contractors, together with the promotion of diversity and the rejection of any form of
aggression, harassment or different treatment due to gender, race, age, etc.

That is why, on 19 March 2013, it introduced its Code of Ethics and Conduct based on these
principles, which includes a commitment to business ethics and transparency, thus guaranteeing
the ethical behaviour of all the people who form part of the Redexis community. This Code sets
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out the values and good practices that should guide the organisation and that affect all
professionals in the performance of their duties. It establishes a series of applicable corporate
regulations for all employees which are available on the Intranet and which ensure the principles
of equality and diversity:

e Regulation GOB 02: Reporting allegedly irregular incidents.

e SIS 01: Use of email and IT systems in situations of harassment.

e Regulation GOB 13: Prevention and action protocol in situations of harassment. The
purpose of this regulation is to prevent harassment in the workplace and, in the event
that such a situation arises, to define the criteria for action.

Redexis also has a Diversity and Equality Policy, through which the Company makes a
commitment to promote equality and diversity and support a corporate culture in which talent
is valued. It recognises that the professionals who make up the organisation may have different
origins and experiences that could contribute valuable knowledge and seeks to prevent any form
of discrimination. This Policy applies to all areas of the Company and is mandatory for all
professional personnel, taking on particular importance during the personnel selection and
hiring processes. Redexis is thus committed to treating all people with respect and dignity,
guaranteeing inclusive, understanding, and supportive working environments where everyone
can carry out the tasks with which they are entrusted. Likewise, the Company undertakes not to
exercise or tolerate any act of discrimination, including harassment based on gender, sexual
orientation, marital status, employment status, race, disability, nationality, religion, belief, age
or any other circumstance. In this way it is determined that the selection of personnel for their
engagement, promotion, training, or any other benefit will be decided on the basis of their
individual skills and abilities and based on their merits.

The following are just some of the measures adopted by Redexis during 2021 to ensure universal
integration and access for people with disabilities:

e The direct engagement of people with registered disabilities.

e The signing of an agreement with the company llunion Retail y Comercializacion
S.A.U., which is certified as a Special Employment Centre and which is active in the
business of supplying office and stationery supplies and consumables, printing and
graphic artwork, and corporate, institutional, advertising, and promotional gifts.

e The signing of an agreement with the company INTEGRA, which is certified as a
Special Employment Centre and which provides reception services at the
Company’s offices in Palma de Mallorca and Murcia.

As a result of these two agreements, Redexis has been awarded a certificate of exceptionality,
and the Company complies with the alternative measures set out in Royal Legislative Decree 1
of 29 November 2013, which approved the Consolidated Text of the General Act on the rights
of people with disabilities and their social inclusion.

The Company also has an Equality Plan which determines that the presence of women is
encouraged during the selection and hiring of personnel, especially in areas where they are less
represented, and it encourages the professional development of women and their promotion
to positions of greater responsibility within the Company. One of its principles is to ensure equal
opportunities and eliminate any gender bias from the Company's remuneration policies,
promoting a culture based on equal treatment both internally and externally.
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The Company is responsible for introducing a gender perspective in its treatment of
occupational health, promoting equal opportunities in the prevention of occupational risk and
establishing protection measures, assistance, support and information for victims of gender
violence.

With the aim of achieving equality, Redexis takes care to ensure the work and family conciliation
of all its employees by establishing a series of measures:

e Broad flexibility in the times that workers begin their working day.

e The possibility of working flexible hours based on their weekly calculation.

e Making December 24 and 31 non-working days.

e The establishment of a summer timetable from the last week in June to the first week
in September, along with the working day prior to the start of Holy Week and the days
prior to December 24 and 31.

e An allowance of 16 hours per year added to annual holidays for personal matters and
family needs, for all employees who require them.

e The reduction of travel and work trips through the development of technology that
allows such trips to be replaced using communications and videoconferencing systems.

e An improvement in employees’ rights to change their timetables if they care for
dependents or are victims of gender violence or terrorism.

e The grant of assistance with the payment of day-care for the sons and daughters of
Redexis employees.

To ensure compliance with these plans and policies and to combat any irregular behaviour,
discrimination, or harassment, Redexis has made internal and external reporting channels
available to all the parties involved. Any employee or person related to the Company can use
these channels to express their concerns, even anonymously.

5. Our commitment to ensuring respect for human rights
GRI 103, 102-16, 102-17, 412-1, 412-2, 412-3.

The Redexis Code of Ethics, which sets out the Company’s commitment to the principles of
business ethics and transparency in all the areas in which it operates, establishes a set of
principles and guidelines for conduct aimed at ensuring ethical and responsible behaviour
among all of the professionals who work for the Redexis Group as they perform their duties. This
code of ethics has been approved by the Board of Directors. The code aims to define the values
and good practices that should govern the Company’s behaviour as a whole, as well as the
behaviour of all the people who are directly and indirectly linked to Redexis, during the
performance of their duties and in their professional relationships.

One of the key elements of Redexis’s corporate culture is the transparency and integrity with
which it engages in its business. As a result, a number of different internal regulations have been
approved to develop the Code of Ethics and convey the importance of these values to its
employees:

e Regulation GOB 02: Reporting allegedly irregular incidents.

e Regulation GOB 06: Institutional hospitality.

e Regulation GOB 07: Relations with members of public administrations.

e Regulation GOB 09: Collaborative agreements with public sector organisations.
e Regulation GOB 12: Meetings with public organisations and authorities.
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e Regulation GOB 13: Prevention and action protocol in situations of harassment.

e Regulation GOB 08: Prevention of money laundering, terrorist financing, bribery and
corruption.

e Regulation EXP 01: Verification of compliance with tax and Social Security obligations.

Redexis has a Human Rights Policy, through which it undertakes to respect Human Rights in
every phase of its activity, making them a fundamental part of its own responsibilities. Through
this Policy, the Company seeks to ensure the protection of Human Rights, both among its
employees and among other Stakeholders. It is based on the UN Declaration of Human Rights
and is committed to the different regulations that apply to human rights, all of which form an
integral part of this Policy:

e The United Nations Universal Declaration of Human Rights.

e The United Nations Global Compact.

e The United Nations International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights.

e The United Nations International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights.

e The Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development Guidelines for
Multinational Enterprises.

e The fundamental conventions of the International Labour Organisation.

e The United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child.

e The United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities.

e The United Nations Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination against
Women.

e The principles of freedom of expression and privacy of the Global Network Initiative.

e The 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development.

Redexis’'s commitment to Human Rights is reflected in all its business operations, with the aim
of generating a positive impact and sustainable growth in all the regions and territories in which
the Company operates. All interested parties are informed of the Company’s efforts each year
in its Annual Report and its Sustainability Report.

The Redexis Group also follows a procedure for the authorisation, monitoring and appraisal of
its suppliers, the purpose of which is to ensure that any third party that supplies the Company
with goods or services is qualified in accordance with Redexis’s own standards in respect of
transparency and business ethics, health and safety, quality and the environment.

In 2018, as part of its commitment to transparency and due care, Redexis created an
Appointments and Remuneration Committee and an Audit and Risk Committee within the
Board of Directors, despite the fact that there is no legal requirement in this regard. Redexis also
complies with all the legislation and regulations currently in force in Spain in respect of human
rights.

Redexis has been a member of the United Nations Global Compact since 2014, thus committing
itself to supporting this international project through its activities, and the Company actively
participates in the events, webinars and initiatives promoted by this association.

Redexis has its own internal and external complaints channel through which complaints,
reports or claims relating to allegedly irregular incidents can be submitted. To this end, where
necessary, the appropriate disciplinary measures may be adopted as a result of the complaint
submitted, in addition to the issue being referred to public bodies that have the necessary
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authority to investigate the facts, if the event is of special significance. No complaint was
received during the course of 2021 through either the internal or the external channel.

In addition, each time an internal regulation is approved, a message is sent via the Company’s
internal communications system as a preventive measure, informing everyone of their
obligation to comply with the new regulation in question. All internal regulations are available
to employees on the Intranet. In addition, if employees have any questions or queries about
these regulations they can contact the legal department.

Employees also have access to a number of courses relating to the applicable regulations via the
Redexis Campus.

6. Our commitment to the fight against corruption and bribery
GRI 103, 102-16, 102-17, 205-1, 205-2, 205-3.

From a Corporate Governance perspective, the company aims to continue make advances and
to take all the necessary actions relating to good governance. To this end, the internal
regulations and procedures necessary for these actions to be implemented within the Group
have been approved.

In this regard, Redexis has a Code of Ethics which provides a physical example of one of the aims
of its strategy, namely the consolidation of a culture of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) in
Redexis’s corporate practices. This ethical code sets out the Company's commitment to the
principles of business ethics and transparency in all the areas in which it operates, establishing
a set of principles and guidelines aimed at ensuring ethical and responsible behaviour by all
Redexis Group employees in the performance of their duties. This Code determines the values
and good practices that must govern business conduct and the behaviour of all the people
directly or indirectly linked to Redexis. The Redexis Code of Ethics also promotes the company's
commitment to the principles of business ethics and transparency in all the areas in which it
operates, establishing a set of principles and guidelines aimed at ensuring ethical and
responsible behaviour by all Redexis employees in the performance of their duties.

To this end, one of the fundamental keystones of Redexis’s corporate culture is transparency
and integrity in the operation of its business activities. For this reason, a number of internal
regulations have been approved to convey the importance of these values to the Company’s
employees, notable among which are the following:

e Regulation GOB 08, on the prevention of money laundering, terrorist financing, bribery
and corruption.

e Regulation GOB 02, procedure for the notification of allegedly irregular incidents.

e Regulation GOB 06, on institutional hospitality.

e Regulation GOB 07, on relations with members of Public Administrations.

e Regulation GOB 10, on the Prevention of Situations of Market Abuse.

Among the above regulations, it is worth highlighting the “Regulation for the prevention of
Money Laundering, terrorist financing, bribery and corruption”, the general aim of which is to
develop a framework for the action to be taken by the Redexis companies within the general
sphere of crime prevention and, in particular, to prevent any potential risk of bribery and
corruption in deals carried out through third parties. No cases of corruption were reported
during 2021.
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In addition, Redexis has approved a risk management and monitoring policy, in order to
establish the basic principles and general framework for action to manage the risks faced by
Redexis, guiding and directing the set of strategic, organisational and operational actions that
allow the Board of Directors to strengthen compliance with the organisation's objectives, within
a framework of rigor and excellence oriented towards safety and service in the development of
its activities.

The “Redexis Campus” offers employees a range of courses relating to the Company’s internal
regulations, and content has been developed to allow them to continue to advance in their
professional development. Particularly notable among the courses that employees have had
access to are the course on the Code of Conduct and the course on the procedure for reporting
allegedly irregular incidents.

Communication and transparency form an important part of the company's strategy to achieve
its objectives in the area of corporate governance. All employees are informed about the
approval of the different internal regulations as well as being able to consult them at any time
on the Redexis Intranet.

7. Our commitment to sustainable development
GRI 103, 203-1, 204-1.

The Paris Agreement was signed in 2015 under the auspices of the United Nations, establishing
measures to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and building the necessary way forward to
combat climate change globally in accordance with a common model. 197 nations were united
for the first time in a common cause to combat climate change, reduce emissions, adapt to the
effects of climate change, cooperate and focus their efforts on developing countries, thus
establishing a new global scenario in the fight against climate change. With the signing of the
Paris Agreement, the aim is to obtain a global response to the threat of climate change,
establishing clear, achievable and defined objectives, such as keeping the increase in global
temperatures throughout this century below 22C with respect to pre-industrial levels, and trying
to limit this increase to no more than 1.52C. As part of this same scenario, the 2030 Agenda for
Sustainable Development was signed by the members of the United Nations with the aim of
tackling the social, economic and environmental challenges that the world is currently facing
and placing people, the planet, prosperity and peace centre-stage, under the motto "leaving no
one behind". The 2030 Agenda includes 17 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) that are
universal and apply equally to developed and developing countries.

As a comprehensive energy infrastructure company, Redexis plays a central role in the
communities in which it operates, and their sustainable development is a fundamental objective
of its strategy. Since 2014, it has been a member of the United Nations Global Compact Spanish
Network, and it is therefore committed to achieving the Compact’s sustainable objectives. It
thus contributes to the consolidation of this global project through its activities and contributes
to the SDGs that constitute the 2030 Agenda.

To mark the 6th anniversary of the 2030 Agenda with its 17 Sustainable Development Goals
(SDGs), Redexis took part in the #apoyamoslosODS campaign to achieve wider awareness of the
United Nations Goals, in collaboration with the Global Compact Spanish Network. The aim of
this campaign is to help increase knowledge and awareness of the SDGs in strategic areas as part
of the Company’s commitment to take action to support these goals.
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Throughout 2021, Redexis has contributed to SDGs 1, 3 and 4 in respect of social inclusion, SDG
9 in respect of economic growth and SDGs 7, 11 and 13 in the area of environmental protection,
along with SDG 17 in respect of the creation of alliances.

DIMENSION SDG 2021 ACTIONS

T e Donation of 10,000 euros by the Redexis Foundation to La
Fbbid Palma City Council to provide emergency social aid following
the eruption of the Cumbre Vieja volcano.

e Invitation to not-for-profit organisations to apply for the
Redexis Foundation’s 1st Linea de Ayuda, for the
development of projects to improve energy efficiency and
a_;’i\ quality of life for people with disabilities, particularly during
v .
childhood and adolescence.
e Introduction of the psychosocial and wellness action plan for
Redexis employees.

Social Inclusion

e Financial assistance from the Redexis Foundation for the 2nd
Edition of the Aragon Hydrogen Foundation Awards for
Doctoral Theses and Master’s and Bachelor’s Degree Course
Dissertations.

e Donation of 2,000 euros to the Cante de las Minas
Foundation for the staging of an event in Murcia.

o Development of innovative Artificial Intelligence tools with
Economic SEm, new algorithms to improve business efficiency and optimise
Growth & network deployment.
e Expansion and growth of natural gas in the industrial sector
as an efficient and sustainable alternative to fossil fuels, thus
allowing for both energy and financial savings.

e Redexis maintains an agreement with CEPSA for the
expansion of VNG, investing 60 million euros to create the
largest network of vehicular natural gas filling stations in
Spain.

e Alliance with CEPSA to deploy the first network of service
stations generating renewable energy in Europe. The
Agreement provides for the installation of photovoltaic
panels at CEPSA’s entire network of service stations in Spain
and Portugal by 2023.

Environmental
Protection

e Commitment to transparency, communication, and
stakeholder groups through the publication of annual
reports, sustainability reports and NFIS.
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e Registration of the calculation of the Company’s Scope 1 and
Scope 2 Carbon Footprint, with a commitment to reduce
emissions.

e Participation in initiatives such as Green Hysland, HIGGS,
Ocean H2, Hydrogenizing BCN and the pioneering injection of
biomethane in Spain in collaboration with Galivi Solar.

o Agreements and alliances with the leading players on the
national and international energy map: GASNAM, Spanish
Hydrogen Foundation, Appa Renovables and the Aragdn and
Extremadura Energy Cluster, among others.

e Collaboration with sporting and cultural organisations:
Teatro Real, Cuevas FC Almeria, UCAM Murcia CB, Asociacion
Deportiva Mérida SAD

L~ re

Alliances

As evidence of its performance in terms of ESG (Environmental Social Governance), a number of
international sustainability indices have recognised Redexis for its actions and initiatives in this
area. The Company has received a five star rating from GRESB for the third consecutive year,
the highest possible accolade, awarding it 91 points out of 100, with scores higher than the
average achieved by the companies studied and other companies in the sector, thus
demonstrating Redexis’s consistency and commitment in terms of sustainability. The Company
increased the score it achieved in the previous year by 9 points, thus placing it in the Top 20%
of the Benchmark. GRESB is an international Sustainability index that evaluates and rates the
work done by more than 500 funds and assets from different sectors to promote sustainable
development under a global standard in environmental, social, and corporate governance
matters. This ranking provides data that is standardised and validated by the capital markets,
making it a worldwide reference for measuring the performance of companies in terms of
sustainability.

In 2021, Redexis was also once again rated as “robust” in the sustainability and CSR index
prepared by Vigeo Eiris, a leading international CSR assessment company, with scores that were
higher than the sector average in a range of sustainability indicators. These bodies certify
Redexis’s commitment to the development of a socially and environmentally responsible
business.

The European Union includes the fight to combat climate change among its main strategies, with
goals that are closely aligned with those of the Paris Agreement, and it has established ambitious
policies with the aim of making Europe the first carbon neutral continent by 2050. It has
developed the European Green Deal a package of ambitious measures that seek to reduce
emissions, focus on innovation projects, and conserve the environment and biodiversity. The
Green Deal is the European Union's road map to the development of a sustainable economy on
the continent: with no emissions, a sustainable use of resources and without leaving anyone
behind.

The changing times in which the sector is currently immersed, together with the EU's
decarbonisation goal under the 2030 Agenda, are leading to the proliferation of renewable
energies and the promotion of more sustainable alternatives. In this regard, Redexis is working
resolutely on the development of new, cleaner and cheaper forms of energy, with the aim of
reducing emissions and achieving a more sustainable planet, contributing to the reduction of
emissions, creating jobs, and reducing emissions of both gases and particles.
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Energy transition is one of the greatest challenges we currently face, both as a society and a
company, and natural gas plays an essential role in this process, due to its low emissions. For
certain industries that need high levels of power and heat, gas is essential in order for them to
continue to operate. Because it is an affordable form of energy, it also makes these industries
more competitive by having a direct impact on their production costs. In this regard, we would
particularly mention the following new businesses:

Natural Gas

Natural gas is an efficient alternative that makes it possible to reduce emissions in sectors as
important as heavy mobility and industry, in addition to achieving financial savings in customer
bills. In its commitment to achieving a carbon neutral economy, and as an infrastructure
operator, Redexis introduced the following initiatives over the course of 2021:

¢ Implementation of the Vortex System at the LNG plant in Singilienza: This is a
pioneering project at one of the Company’s LNG plants in Singlienza (Guadalajara),
which has developed a new thermal treatment for reheating natural gas, thus reducing
its environmental impact.

e Extension of networks and new customers, businesses and industries connecting to
natural gas: These included Pedrera de Denia Hospital in Alicante, the town of Huércal
in Almeria, la Tovasa plant in Casa Ibafez, Albacete, the town of Guadix in Granada, the
Oleoenergia plant in Jaén, the Baublock production plant in El Puerto de Santa Maria,
Cadiz, the town of Serdn in Almeria, the Promenade in Ibiza, the Recreational Marina in
Ibiza, the llla Plana residential development and the Son Servera municipal facilities in
Mallorca.

e Training days and seminars on Natural Gas: During 2021, the Company took part in
training courses on natural gas led by officers from the fire services of Teruel,
Calamocha, Montalban and Alcaiiiz, from Teruel Provincial Council. It also participated
in a Seminar given by the Aragon Fire Officer Academy entitled “Management of
Emergencies with Natural Gas”. Redexis was also involved in drills at the LNG plants in
Ronda and Yecla (Murcia), and it worked with the Provincial Government of Castilla-La
Mancha to organise training for fire officers on hazardous merchandise and liquid gases
at the Company’s plant in Yepes (Toledo).

Vehicular natural gas (VNG)

Vehicular natural gas, i.e. the gas used as a fuel for vehicles, is a clean, economical and
sustainable alternative for mobility that is enjoying serious growth thanks to the boost given by
companies like Redexis, which considers its development essential and invests great efforts in
its achievement.

VNG is a revolutionary energy both for society and for companies that are increasingly
concerned about the environment. Redexis is promoting its development through the creation
of gas filling stations distributed throughout Spain and the signing of agreements with large
companies in the sector such as CEPSA, Seat and Fiat. At the present time, Redexis has 25 gas
filling stations open in the regions of Murcia, Madrid, the Balearic Islands, Aragdn, Castilla-Ledn,
Extremadura y Castilla La Mancha. By 2022, the Company plans to continue the deployment of
gas filling stations nationwide.

Specifically, during 2021 the Company opened a gas filling station in Calvia which supplies the
Moventis fleet in the Balearic Islands, along with the infrastructure necessary to supply natural
gas to a fleet of 100 buses belonging to the Palma Municipal Transport Company. In addition, as
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part of the strategic agreement that Redexis maintains with CEPSA, filling stations have been
opened in Trujillo (Caceres), Castillejo de Iniesta (Cuenca), Getafe (Madrid) and Martin de Yeltes
(Salamanca). This year also saw the opening to the public of Redexis’s gas filling station that
supplies the fleet of public buses in Calvia, meaning that CNG can now also be sold to people
driving private cars, trucks, coaches and vans.

Photovoltaic solar energy

As a promoter of renewable and sustainable forms of energy, Redexis is developing solutions
based on photovoltaic solar energy, an efficient and environmentally friendly product for both
private families and industries that provides control over energy production and offers cheaper
consumption costs.

During the final quarter of the year, Redexis and CEPSA jointly announced the opening of the
first global photovoltaic energy network at filling stations, which involves the installation of
photovoltaic panels across CEPSA’s entire network of filling stations in Spain and Portugal by
2023, a pioneering project at an international level. Throughout 2021, Redexis has implemented
these photovoltaic installations in 112 service stations. The panels will supply the filling stations
with electricity during the day and feed any surplus into the distribution network. To complete
this project, more than 40,000 high-technology photovoltaic panels will be used, with the
capacity to produce more than 32,800 MWh per year, equivalent to the annual energy
consumption of 11,000 households. The generation of this renewable energy will prevent the
annual emission of 11,500 tonnes of CO2, equivalent to planting 6,000 trees. This will help
contribute to Sustainable Development Goals 7 (affordable and clean energy) and 13 (climate
action).

During 2021, the Company experienced accelerated growth in the solar photovoltaic self-
consumption market. Redexis has connected up 3.3MWp of new capacity in photovoltaic solar
energy.

The Company has also strengthened the sustainability of the Panorama Group, with the
installation of 564 photovoltaic panels on the roof of the Panorama factory, in addition to
increasing its own sustainability with the installation of self-consumption photovoltaic panels at
the Redexis Offices in Palma de Mallorca (Balearic Islands).

Biomethane

Biomethane is a clean gas that is produced from renewable sources and is completely equivalent
to natural gas. It is obtained from biogas using an “upgrading” purification process which
improves the percentage of methane in the mixture. Among the benefits offered by Biomethane
is the fact that it strengthens the circular economy by taking advantage of waste and
transforming it into energy, combined with the support provided by the implementation of rural
development projects in crop and livestock farming environments. Redexis is promoting
innovative initiatives for the production of biomethane and its injection into its own natural gas
networks, in collaboration with governmental authorities, technologists and organic waste
management companies.

During 2021, the company began a pioneering renewables project for the injection of
biomethane into the natural gas networks following the signing of an agreement with Galivi
Solar. This project will consist of injecting biomethane from the production plan to the natural
gas infrastructure in the city of Lorca, in the Province of Murcia.

55



For its part, the Redexis Foundation is heavily engaged in work to explain biomethane to
administrative authorities and legislative bodies, and it has presented its second publication on
energy-related issues: “Biomethane, the key to a sustainable energy model”. This details the
current situation as regards this energy vector, in line with the Road Map published by the
Government, and it outlines the huge capacity offered by both Spain, and by Redexis as a
company, to become leading actors in the production, transportation and storage of
biomethane.

Hydrogen

Renewable gases are going to play a key role in energy transition. The Company is firmly
committed to the development of hydrogen, an energy vector capable of uniting the electricity
and gas sectors and allowing great penetration by renewable energies in the Spanish energy
matrix, since it is capable of storing the surplus resulting from wind and photovoltaic production.

Redexis plays an active role in a number of hydrogen projects such as Power to Green Hydrogen
Mallorca, which is handling the deployment of a fully integrated and functioning renewable
hydrogen ecosystem on the island of Mallorca; Higgs, which is studying the injection of different
amounts of hydrogen into the natural gas infrastructure; the integration of a fuel cell in the MRS
for one of its gas pipelines in Zaragoza, which is the first integration of this type to be carried
out in Spain; OceanH2, for the analysis and design of technologies for the transportation and
supply of green hydrogen produced offshore; and an agreement with ABEI Energy to collaborate
on the development of infrastructure for the production, transportation, distribution and end
supply of renewable hydrogen; ComputaMeh, “Dynamic computer modelling of methane-
hydrogen mixtures in natural gas transportation networks”, to study the way in which mixtures
of natural gas and hydrogen behave in existing infrastructure; Hydrogenizing BCN, the aim of
which is to implement a truly green hydrogen economy in Barcelona; Ready4H2, to support the
development of the hydrogen market in the European Union; and DesireH2, an alliance with Air
Liquide to study the deployment of up to 100 hydrogen filling stations in Spain by 2030. In
addition, during 2021 the Company signed the protocol for the deployment of the so-called
Green Hydrogen Strategy in the Murcia Region, which will provide a road map for speeding up
implementation in the Region.

Renewable energy

After signing an agreement with Iberdrola, Redexis has also started to use renewable energy in
its more than 360 facilities, including offices, natural gas transmission positions, LNG and LPG
plants and metering and regulation stations, which will use electricity from 100% renewable
sources, with an estimated consumption of 1.84GWh. This agreement will remain in force for
two years and includes a Guarantee of 100% Renewable Origin for all electricity supplied, thus
guaranteeing that the company consumes only green energy. This will help to prevent an
estimated 100 tonnes of CO2 emissions over the coming year, equivalent to the CO2 absorbed
by a forest of more than 200 trees. These figures have been audited in accordance with the UNE-
EN ISO Standard 14064-1: 2012 on Greenhouse Gases, and the Carbon Footprint has been
registered with the Ministry for Ecological Transition.

Our social commitment
Redexis is strongly committed to local development and job creation in the regions in which it
operates, developing digital solutions.

The savings, convenience and reduction in emissions that the use of natural gas entails when
compared with other conventional energies represents an important contribution by Redexis
towards the service and industrial sectors, as well as towards public administrations. Thanks to
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its gas supply, the Company helps numerous companies and institutions to be more competitive,
allowing savings on their bills of between 20% and 50%. This can also be seen in the service
sector, since many hotels, educational centres, residences, hospitals, hospitality establishments,
sports centres and authorities, among others, enjoy much lower bills thanks to their use of
natural gas, while also contributing to the reduction of emissions and enjoying greater
competitiveness. As regards the industrial sector, Redexis helps a large number of industries to
improve their production processes through access to gas, an important element in support of
economic growth, competitiveness, and job creation.

Redexis is strongly committed to the economic development of the regions in which it operates
and seeks to create employment by hiring local service providers and their supporting
enterprises. The business activities engaged in by Redexis involve the creation of more than
3,000 direct and indirect jobs, with the resulting social contribution that this represents for all
the territories in which it operates.

Through the Company’s different regional departments, constant dialogue is maintained with
the autonomous, local or island administrations, as well as with the relevant actors in these
territories.

The Company works to boost the economy of the territories in which it operates, making great
efforts to guarantee security of supply, employment and the improvement of the quality of life
of the inhabitants of those areas, devoting a portion of its profits to social investments. To do
this, it generates employment in these areas and makes its purchases and investments locally,
while at the same time maintaining a firm commitment to safeguarding the environment.

In 2021, Redexis participated in the Global Compact Spanish Network’s Initiatives with
Principles campaign, offering visibility to the sustainability actions it engages in. It also took part
in the SDG Partners Week, publishing materials on social networks to raise awareness of this
global initiative. The Company also encouraged all its employees to participate in “UN Day”, to
celebrate the 75th anniversary of the United Nations and the 20th anniversary of the Global
Compact, with particular emphasis on the SDGs and their publication.

Redexis remains in continuous contact and collaboration with the institutions, companies and
other agents that work in the sector, maintaining a fluid and constant dialogue. The Company
seeks transparent collaboration and cooperation agreements, participating in the disclosure of
information and in projects and initiatives that favour the welfare and progress of the different
communities. It actively collaborates with different associations such as:

e The Spanish Gas Association’s Committee for Safety and Sustainable Development

e Gasnam: an association that promotes the use of natural gas and renewable gas,
particularly in relation to mobility. In this connection it has set up a Hydrogen Working
Group, which Redexis coordinates, working to promote hydrogen as a fuel.

e Spanish Hydrogen Association: this seeks to promote hydrogen technologies and their
uses, promoting their use in industrial and commercial applications.

e Spanish Hydrogen Foundation: this seeks to develop projects in the field of hydrogen
and fuel cell technologies.

e AEBIG: to publicise and promote the development of biogas.

e Aragon and Extremadura Energy Cluster

e Madrid Energy Foundation

e National Confederation of Installers and Fluids Associations: to promote natural gas
infrastructure and facilitate the management of the activities performed by installers.
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Redexis has agreements with important companies in the sector to develop more sustainable
forms of energy such as its alliance with CEPSA to develop gas filling stations throughout the
country, the agreements with Seat and Fiat to promote the sale of vehicles powered by natural
gas and the agreement with FECE to help attract new natural gas customers.

In addition to these agreements, during 2021 Redexis took part in the GetHyGA initiative for the
deployment of hydrogen projects in Aragdn, and it became a new partner and collaborator with
the Association of Installation and Energy Sector Businesses.

As a key player in the gas sector and as a promoter of other forms of energy, the Company
participated in events and forums throughout 2021, such as the such as Agora del Economista,
as an official sponsor; the breakfast organised by Periddico de Aragon; the Sala de Calderas
Private Plan in the Community of Madrid; the “Green hydrogen: the key to decarbonising the
economy” event, organised by Expansion; the presentation of the results of the Think Tank
organised by Sedigas; the RENMAD Hydrogen event; the 2021 Sedigas Annual Meeting;
GASNAM'’s Green Gas Mobility congress; the 2nd Funseam Cycle on the Circular Economy; the
31st CONAIF Congress; the 1st Andalusian Installers Congress and Fair, COFIAN 2021; the
dialogue on Photovoltaic Solar Energy, organised by Servimedia and sponsored by Redexis; the
‘SDG Digital-Energy Meetings’ organised by Ideal; the Balearic Islands Government’s Round
Table on Combatting Energy Poverty; the technical seminar entitled ‘The Challenges of Self-
Consumption’ at Genera 2021; the APPA Renewables 5th National Congress on Renewable
Energies; the ‘Electricity and Consumers Market’ organised by Murcia’s General Department
for Consumption and Tradecraft; and the 2nd National Self-Consumption Congress organised
by APPA Renewables. Finally, Redexis participated in the Special Seismic Risk Emergency Plan
in Castilla-La Mancha (SISMICAM), in the town of Helli, Albacete.

Thanks to its sponsorships and official collaborations, the Company maintains its commitment
to participate in the social, sporting and financial development of the towns in which it operates.
During 2021, Redexis announced sponsorship agreements with Sala Zaragoza, the women's
football team Asociacion Deportiva Mérida, UCAM Murcia CB, Cuevas Club de Futbol de
Almeria and the 3rd Company Run, organised by La Verdad.

Redexis Foundation

The Redexis Foundation (Fundacion Redexis) was founded in 2019 and entered in the Register
of Foundations on 20 January 2020. The Foundation’s aim is to serve as an agent for energy
transition and to promote the social projects engaged in by Redexis. The purpose of the
Foundation is to promote technological innovation and the development of social, charitable,
welfare, educational and cultural works.

One of its main objectives is to ensure the development and well-being of the people who live
in the territories in which Redexis operates, always bearing in mind the Company’s contribution
to sustainable development and a clean economy. By promoting technological innovation in its
social support and assistance activities, which extend across the spheres of education, culture
and sports, the Redexis Foundation, affirms its commitment to the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals.

During the 2021 financial year, the Redexis Foundation was recognised as a ‘Collaborator’ by
Zaragoza Food Bank. This recognition was awarded in gratitude for the assistance provided to
the Autonomous Community of Aragdn in order to mitigate the effects of the coronavirus. The
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Redexis Foundation donated 25,000 euros for the purchase of sanitary items and protective
equipment.

In line with its commitment to transparency, the Redexis Foundation published its 2020 Annual
Activity Report, in which it gave an account of the social, cultural, informative, environmental
and collaborative action taken by the Foundation over the course of the year.

During 2021, the Redexis Foundation made a public offer of assistance for social and aid
projects, in order to support projects that contributed to a better quality of life for vulnerable
groups, offering up to twenty-five thousand euros (€25,000) for the development of projects for
the improvement of energy efficiency in the regions of Aragdn, the Balearic Islands, Murcia,
Madrid, Castilla La Mancha, Castilla y Ledn, Extremadura and Andalusia.

The 1st Redexis Foundation Aid Line supported charitable projects by five associations: Ahinco
Conil (Cadiz), Ajudisle (Seville), Asprodeme (Cadiz), the Mérida-Badajoz Diocesan Charity
(Mérida) and Dislexia Hellin (Hellin), which implemented initiatives in Andalusia, Extremadura
and Castilla-La Mancha, regions in which Redexis supplies its services. The aid supplied by the
Redexis Foundation will be allocated to the following charitable projects:

e Ahinco Conil (Cadiz, Andalusia), an organisation that supports people with disabilities.
Aid will be used to fit out leisure facilities and promote occupational training and jobs
among users of the centre.

e Ajudisle (Seville, Andalusia), aimed at people with physical and/or psychological
disorders. This aid will be used to replace lighting systems at the facility in order to
improve energy efficiency and achieve savings in energy bills.

e Asprodeme (Cadiz, Andalusia), an association that supports people with intellectual
disabilities. Aid will be used to create theoretical and practical training and job
orientation activities.

e Mérida Diocesan Charity (Badajoz, Extremadura), an organisation dedicated to
providing support for people in a situation of social exclusion. Aid will be used to change
the gas equipment at its premises in order to improve energy efficiency in the building.

e Dislexia Hellin (Albacete, Castilla-La Mancha), an association that supports people with
dyslexia. Aid will be used to create workshops to improve the autonomy and life balance
of people with dyslexia.

The crisis caused by the volcanic eruption on the island of La Palma in 2021 led the Spanish
Government to declare the island a disaster zone. The Redexis Foundation announced that it
was donating ten thousand euros to La Palma City Council in order to help with the most urgent
needs of everyone who had been affected by the eruption of the Cumbre Vieja volcano.

One of the main fields in which the Redexis Foundation operates is the development,
stimulation, and promotion of culture. In this connection, the Foundation has signed a
collaboration agreement with the Teatro Real Foundation. Through this collaboration, over the
course of 2021 the Redexis Foundation provided support for the founding principles of the
Teatro Real Foundation, including the programming and management of musical, literary and
choreographic activities. The Teatro Real is considered the leading dramatic and musical arts
institution in Spain, a national figurehead for the performing arts and one of Spain’s most
important cultural institutions. The Foundation has also worked with Flamenco Real, one of the
Teatro Real’s dependent organisations that is devoted to showcasing Flamenco and other kinds
of dance and underlining its importance history as part of Spanish culture.

59



In its commitment to culture, the Redexis Foundation also provided support throughout 2021
for the Cante de las Minas Foundation with a donation of €2,000. Its collaboration with this
institution is an indication of its commitment to culture and provided support for the return of
live audiences to the “International Cante de las Minas Festival”, which celebrated its 60th
anniversary by bringing together some of the most revered artists from the world of Flamenco.

Another mission of the Redexis Foundation is to act as an important agent for energy transition,
and the work that it has devoted to this issue, which is central to its own activities, have resulted
in the preparation of its second report on the subject of energy, this time focusing on
biomethane: “Biomethane, the key to a sustainable energy model”. This provides an account
of the current situation relating to biomethane in Spain, the associated projects that are being
developed and those that are planned for the future, the regulations that are currently in place
in Spain and the position that is being taken by the different countries around the world with
regard to this energy vector. The report’s publication will coincide with the approval by the
Spanish government of the Biomethane Road Map.

With its presentation of this report, the Foundation is working particularly hard to provide
information on biomethane for institutions, administrations and legislative bodies, underlining
Spain’s great capacity to become a leading actor in terms of the production, transmission and
storage of biomethane. The Company already has the necessary infrastructure to transport this
energy vector, which would need little or no extra investment, and it is willing to develop a large
renewable gas-based economy to achieve the emission reduction targets set out in the 2030
Agenda.

Similarly, the Redexis Foundation has provided financial assistance for the 2nd Edition of the
Aragon Hydrogen Foundation Awards for Doctoral Theses and Master’s and Bachelor’'s Degree
Course Dissertations, with the aim of encouraging research into the subject of hydrogen as an
energy vector. Specifically, the Redexis Foundation sponsored the “2021 Redexis Foundation™-
Aragon Hydrogen Foundation Award” for the best Doctoral Thesis.

In 2021, the Redexis Foundation also worked with the Association for the recovery of Oliete’s
abandoned olive trees, whose mission is to conserve olive groves as part of the country’s natural
heritage and promote teaching on environmental and rural issues. As part of this work, the
Foundation distributed company products that assisted in the recovery of the 100,000 olive
trees that had been abandoned in Oliete (Teruel), at the same time as helping to generate a
valuable sustainable economic resource in a depopulated part of the country.

8. Our supply chain

GRI 103, 102-9, 308-1, 414-1, 414-2.

Redexis works with a large volume of procurements and a large number of suppliers, which
means that its selection processes must guarantee equal opportunities and free competition
while always seeking the highest quality in its contracted services.

Since 2020, Redexis has followed a Supplier approval, monitoring and evaluation policy, the
purpose of which is to establish the procedure for approving, monitoring and evaluating
Redexis’s suppliers, contractors and collaborators, define the criteria to be followed and assign
the responsibilities that are to apply during this process. The aim is to ensure that any third party
that supplies goods or services is qualified in accordance with Redexis’s own standards of
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transparency and business ethics, health and safety, quality and the environment. This Policy
includes a Code of Conduct for Suppliers which deals with issues relating to:

e Labourrights

e Combatting bribery and corruption

e Confidentiality

e Health and Safety

e The Environment

e Compliance with the RG Code of Ethics.

The Company applies a Procurement Policy that encourages competition and the search for
added value, paying particular attention to ensuring that suppliers and contractors comply with
health and safety, environmental and social criteria. For Redexis, working with suppliers that
have the same commitment as the Company in social and environmental matters is essential
to ensure the achievement of its sustainable development goals. That is why Redexis carries out
an appraisal and monitoring process through which it studies and monitors the suppliers with
whom it works. In order to ensure the responsible management of its supply chain, Redexis
incorporates occupational health and safety, social and environmental targets when entering
into agreements with suppliers. The Company's general contracting conditions include a section
on environmental protection and, when an invitation to tender is issued, internal regulation
DOC-14: “Environmental, Occupational Health and Safety and Energy Responsibility of Suppliers
and Contractors" is always included. The approval procedure also includes a Supplier Code of
Ethics, which includes a section that is solely dedicated to issues associated with employment
law, combatting corruption and bribery, health and safety, the environment, etc. For a supplier
to work with Redexis, it is essential that they comply with the DOC-14 internal regulation.

The Company has a Registry database (RePro, external supplier classification system) for Spain,
in accordance with Act 9 of 9 November 2017, on contracting procedures in the water, energy,
transmission, and postal services. Redexis relies on this Registry both for the approval of
suppliers and for monitoring their documentation and certifications. This reduces risk, costs and
compliance problems in procurement. To verify compliance with the contracting terms and
conditions, and with a view to detecting actions that can be corrected, audits are carried out on
suppliers with a higher procurement volume, and any non-conformities detected result in
changes that the supplier must resolve within the established period. 16% of Redexis’s suppliers
with a turnover of more than one hundred thousand euros have been audited by Achilles Repro,
and all of these suppliers passed the audit.

Redexis tries to improve its procurement management model in order to guarantee the
maximum possible objectivity when hiring and ensure the highest quality services. Selection
processes are fundamentally important, and they seek to guarantee equal opportunities and
free competition. The Company minimises corporate, technical, environmental, and health and
safety risk throughout its supply chain. The selection process encompasses everything from
identification of the Company’s needs through to receipt of the service, establishing positive
discrimination parameters such as the acquisition of energy that is guaranteed to come from
renewable sources and the hiring of suppliers that can show special employment centre
certification.

During the coronavirus pandemic, Redexis has created support facilities for suppliers and
contractors, with the aim of ensuring that they are able to continue to engage in their business
activities with financial security and flexibility. To this end, travel expenses have been covered,
material has been purchased and payments have been advanced, in order to provide liquidity.
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9. Our commitment to users and customers
GRI 103, GRI 416-1, GRI 418-1

Redexis is committed to transparency in communicating with and informing the market, and it
strives to ensure open and constructive communication with all the parties involved, studying
and creating mechanisms for dialogue and mutual understanding.

Stakeholders Communication channels

o Corporate website (www.redexisgas.es)
e Call Centre
e Control Centre
e Falcon LPG invoice portal
o Meter reading website
* “Yoleo gas” app and IVR readings
e Employee Portal (Intranet)
e Training platform (Redexis Campus)
o Internal complaints channel
o Redexis Commitment Mailbox
e Prevention of Occupational and Environmental Risk Mailbox
o Internal platform for the Management of Energy, the
Employees Environment and Workplace Health and Safety (GEMASST),
containing all the information and documentation relating to the
internal management system.
o Healthy Mailbox
o Wellness Platform
e COVID-19 information Mailbox
o Mailbox for equality issues
e Corporate website Investors
o Investor mailbox: investor.relations@redexis.es Personal
Financial Community contact with contact with shareholders, investors, analysts,
rating agencies and financial institutions
e Reports and notes on the Company’s activities
e Supplier Portal
Collaborators and Suppliers e Annual conventions
e RePro (Achilles)
e Personal contact with bodies belong to the different regulatory
areas (CNMC, the Ministry, regional and local organisations, etc.)
e Reports and notes on the Company’s activities
Public Administrations and o Notifications, requirements, and responses exchanged with
Regulatory Bodies different regulatory bodies
e Consultations/procedures with different national, regional, and
local regulatory bodies
e Technical Manager of the Gas System
e Corporate website (www.redexis.es)
e Corporate communication mailbox
o Press releases
e Information meetings (interviews)
o Institutional meetings
e Corporate and institutional events
o Membership of corporate, sector, educational and cultural
organisations

Users and customers

Community
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e Participation in conferences, forums, and seminars
e Sponsorships in the municipalities in which the Company
operates

With a view to increasing bilateral communications with users and customers, during the last
quarter of 2021 Redexis carried out a survey to ascertain satisfaction among users and
customers who have recently contracted natural gas services and those who have engaged
some other kind of service.

This survey successfully gauged the opinions of customers and users, showed customers that
their opinion was important to the company, and gathered information that would allow the
Company to identify and implement plans for improvement.

The survey was carried out between 29 November and 2 December 2021, and it was directed
at:

e Redexis customers who had recently contracted natural gas services.

e Redexis customers who had contracted the Piped LPG service.

e Redexis customers who had contracted the Redexis Household service.

e Redexis customers who were subject to a regular inspection during 2021.

The customer and user helpline model is basically structured via 3 channels:

e Customer helpline
e Emergency helpline, available 24/7
e Website

With a view to guaranteeing the safety of all the people involved in the supply chain, Redexis
has several communication centres. All personnel, both internal and those from collaborating
companies, must have the necessary appropriate training and knowledge to guarantee their
safety at the Company's facilities.

Guaranteeing the safety of consumers and society in general is essential for Redexis, which
possesses modern infrastructure that allows it to offer excellent safety ratios. The transmission
gas pipelines are constructed from steel pipes, all of which are equipped with a highly resistant
polyethylene outer coating that protects them against corrosion and extends their working life.
Redexis subjects its infrastructure to a series of preventive, predictive and continuous
improvement measures, as indicated in its asset integrity management plans. In addition, the
Company has a remote cathodic protection management system to monitor and control this
protection.

The Redexis control centre, located in Zaragoza, has up-to-date information on the training of
all the people who access the facilities, which allows it to maintain permanent surveillance over
their access. The Company makes an Emergency Call Centre available to all users connected to
its distribution networks, with a 24/7 service that is in permanent contact with the Control
Centre, which receives information and makes a preliminary classification of consumer
emergencies at its reception facilities. This Call Centre also receives messages from other
emergency services (police, firefighters, 112, etc.) and immediately passes them on to the
Control Centre, which manages the resolution of any incident and the safety of the facility in
question.
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Among other measures, Redexis has an internal standard for dealing with distribution notices.
The Warning Service is a permanent service created to respond to telephone calls relating to
incidents in the gas supply or gas equipment (whether owned by the distributor company or the
user) and to manage, coordinate and resolve these incidents to the extent that this is within the
power of a gas distribution company. Each month, the internal and external notices received by
our call centre are compiled, and classified on the basis of whether or not our contractor has
detected a leak during their visit.

The Control Centre’s SCADA system uses a variety of sensors, control units and communication
equipment installed in the field to collect the measurements and status of the different
parameters that define how the Company’s main installed equipment is operating in real time,
thus safeguarding the health and safety of consumers. Contact information for both the
Telephone Call Centre and the Control Centre is available to all personnel, both Redexis’s own
staff and those working outside the Company, who may detect some kind of anomaly in the
equipment.

The response that is to be given to any incident is set out in internal action procedures and
protocols. Regular drills are carried out involving all the Company resources assigned to these
kinds of actions in order to ensure the best possible response in the event of a real emergency.

As regards complaints from users and customers, these are managed from 3 areas:

e Natural gas distribution
e Marketing and distribution of LPG
e Added value services

Redexis processes the claims that are received through its external complaints channel. Any
claims received through this channel relate to the provision of gas services provided by Redexis.
In general terms, the communications that arrive via this channel are associated with users who
wish to change the time scheduled for the regular inspection of their gas installation, supply
cuts, billing issues, readings, etc. Given that this is not the channel charged with actually
resolving these issues, once received they are forwarded to the Business Cycle department,
which analyses the complaint, report or claim and in turn forwards it:

e Tothe Customer Helpline, when the communication in question refers to issues relating
to queries or claims about billing and readings.

e To the Utilisation Department, when communications refer to the inspection of
equipment.

e Tothe Systems Department, when communications relate to incidents with the website.

Once the complaint, report or claim has been resolved, these units report this to the Business
Cycle department, and the legal services department, the division that receives these
communications via the complaints channel.

The details of all of pending claims are sent to these divisions each week for management,
classified by area and management level. Similarly, a quarterly report is sent to the CNMC, using
a format designed by the CNMC itself, confirming the volume of claims, their type and the time
required for their resolution. For example, in Third Party Network Access, which accounts for
approximately 88% of all customers, the complaints system is created in a standardised way for
all sellers and distributors. In other words, the categories and sub-categories have been created
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by the CNMC, and Redexis adheres to them. The main entry channel (more than 95%) is the
SCTD industry tool, the Transmission-Distribution Communication System, and all messages and
the response circuit are designed at industry level. These quarterly reports are used by the
regulator to monitor the evolution of claims in the natural gas sector, and it generates its own
reports and tables which are broken down by distributor, seller, majority rate, etc.

Itis a continuous objective of the Business Cycle department to monitor and maintain the level
of claims, in order to keep them at a very low percentage. During 2021, a total of 67,990
complaints or claims were received, of which 98.73% were resolved during the year.

Redexis has a Telephone Call Centre offering a 24/7 service, which receives calls and makes a
preliminary classification of consumer emergencies at its reception facilities. The Call Centre also
receives reports from other emergency services, such as the police, firefighters, etc., and it
immediately informs the Control Centre.

In its commitment to offer focused services that are adapted to consumer needs, in 2021 the
Company launched the digital brand anidia alongside its website and social channels. During the
course of the year, this project engaged in commercial campaigns such as “Estado de Ahorro”
and “Internet a todo Gas” in the Almeria and Murcia regions, as part of the plan to extend the
benefits of natural gas to all end customers.

10. Our commitment to transparency: Tax information
GRI 201-1, 201-4

The taxes paid by organisations represent one of their contributions to economic and social
development and the maintenance of public responsibility in the country in which they operate.
Against this background, compliance with current tax legislation always forms part of the
principles that inspire the Company’s corporate responsibility.

The tax burden is one of the main costs that the Group must face, as well as being an area in
which the diversity of possible interpretations of the applicable regulations is likely to generate
uncertainties.

Therefore, considering both its public and corporate interests, Redexis has developed a Fiscal
Policy approved by its Board of Directors, that consists of complying with the following principles
in the fulfilment of its tax obligations and in its relations with the tax authorities:

e Compliance with current tax legislation: pay the taxes required under the legislation in
force, adopting a reasonable interpretation of this legislation at all times while trying to
avoid inefficiencies and undue tax costs for Redexis as a result of this interpretation.

e Renouncing the following actions: performing operations or structures that only pursue
a tax advantage, structuring operations that are artificial in nature or that do not relate
to the Company's own activity, or making use of non-transparent structures in order to
reduce its tax or burden, or making investments in or through territories classified as tax
havens.

e Transparency from the bodies involved in Redexis’s tax management vis-a-vis third
parties (shareholders, clients, suppliers, employees, regulatory bodies, etc.) regarding
the tax principles described in this report.

e Full collaboration with the Tax Authorities in their verification activities relating both to
Redexis and third parties, maintaining relationships based on good faith, cooperation,
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professionalism and reciprocity, notwithstanding any legitimate controversies that may
arise when defending the interests of the Company and its Group.

To ensure compliance with the Company's Fiscal Policy, the Board of Directors and its Audit and
Risk Committee are assisted by the Chief Financial Officer, who implements this Policy through
the appropriate operational tax procedures and processes.

The Chief Financial Officer is assisted by the Fiscal Officer, who advises and instructs the different
departments regularly on fiscal matters, including tax returns and reports, ensuring full
compliance with the Fiscal Policy and the applicable operational tax procedures and processes.

In this regard, at the end of the 2021 fiscal year, the Company has initiated the drafting of a
Procedure for management and control of the Group's tax risks, which develops its Tax Policy
and complements the Group's risk management and control system.

Together with its Annual Report and Annual Accounts, Redexis regularly prepares and publishes
its management report, which presents a detailed list of the operations the Company has
performed during the financial year and sets out the Company's future plans, in addition to
describing the work it has carried out in the area of research and development. This report can
be accessed by all interested parties via the Company's website, along with the rest of Redexis’s
corporate documents.

In addition, both the Company and the Group to which it belongs will adopt the necessary
mechanisms to guarantee the monitoring of and compliance with tax regulations and the
principles set out above, ensuring that they have sufficient and suitably qualified external or
internal material and human resources. In this connection, the Company always relies on
external advice from recognised firms in the field, whenever it deems this appropriate.

Redexis’s total tax contribution amounted to €12.3M in 2021. The following table shows a
breakdown of the Company’s operating earnings and revenues for the fiscal year, in addition to
its total income, accounting results before and after taxes and the amount of subsidies received,
limited to Spain, since this is the only country in which Redexis operates:
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2021

2020
Operating result 79.351,05 72.833,40
Spain 79.351,05 72.833,40
Result for the year 38.108,18 -6.814,51
Spain 38.108,18 -6.814,51
Total income 261.919,51 240.807,89
Spain 261.919,51 240.807,89
Book income before taxes 50.384,13 29.516,11
Spain 50.384,13 29.516,11
Accrued corporation tax -12.275,95 -36.330,62
Spain -12.275,95 -36.330,62
Corporation tax paid -6.527,98| -4.311,89
Spain -6.527,98 -4.311,89
Subsidies received
Pre-financing of HIGGS project 199.865,00
Vortex project 85.532,46
35% AutoERM project: CDTI *doc* 45.823,73
331.221,19

Movements Grants 2,021

65% AutoERM Proyect: CDTI 85.101,21

Cancellation of debt CDTI IDI-20190418 -104.739,95
Proyect AutoERM: CDTI

PROY VORTEX CDTi (AJ5)

PROY OCEANH?2 (AJ9) 12.227,88

PROY GREEN HYSLAND (AJ8) 720.000,00

Total 817.329,09 | -104.739,95
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Appendix I: List of contents required in Non-Financial Information

Statements under Spanish Act 11/2018

List of contents from Act 11/2018

Contents of Redexis’s Non-
Financial Information
Statement

Reference

reporting

framework

valuation

The business relationships, products or services that
may have negative effects in these areas, and how
the group manages these risks, with an explanation
of the procedures used to detect and evaluate them
in accordance with the national, European or
international reference frameworks used for each
subject

Information on the impacts that have been
detected, with a breakdown of these impacts,
particularly as regards the main risks in the short,
medium, and long term

market factors and trends

2. Risk management

GRI 102-29
GRI 103

Corporate environment 1. Our Business Model GRI 102-1 to
Corporate environment, GRI 102-4 Pages 2-3
organisation and structure and GRI 102-5

Organisation and structure markets in which the Company GRI 102-7
operates.

Markets in which the Company operates GRI 102-6

. 1. Our Business Model Targets | GRI 102-14
Targets and strategies and strategies GRI 102-15 Pages 4-5
Main factors and trends that may affect its future 1. Our Business Model Main GRI 102-15 Pages 5-8

Pages 8-12

Key indicators for non-financial results that are
relevant in terms of the Company’s specific business
activities, where they meet the criteria for
comparability, importance, relevance and reliability.
The key indicators for non-financial results must be
applied to each of the sections contained in the
non-financial information statement

Policies

Use as a reference for the
different GRI standards for
each relevant issue, in order to
be able to compare results.

The policies that the Group applies, which include
the diligence procedures applied for the
identification, evaluation, prevention and mitigation
of risks and significant impacts, verification and
control, along with the measures that have been
adopted.

GRI 103

Page 12

General




Detailed information on the current and
foreseeable effects of the company's activities on
the environment and, where applicable, health and
safety, environmental evaluation or certification,

3. Our commitment to the

the resources devoted to environmental risk environment GRI 103-1 Pages 12-16
prevention, application of the principle of caution,
the amount of provision and guarantees relating to
environmental risk
Pollution
Measures to prevent, reduce or repair carbon GRI 305-1
emissions that seriously affect the environment, . GRI 305-2
. - . ! 3. Our commitment to the
taking account of any form of air pollution that is environment 3.1 Pollution GRI 305-4 Pages 16-17
specific to a particular activity. Including noise and ’ GRI 305-5
light pollution GRI 305-7
Circular economy and waste prevention and
management
3. Our commitment to the
Measures for prevention, recycling and re-use, environment
other forms of waste recovery and disposal. Actions | 3.2 Circular economy, and GRI 306-2 Pages 17-18
to combat food waste waste prevention and
management
Sustainable use of resources
Water consumption and water supply in accordance
Consumption of raw materials and the measures 3. 0_“" commitment to the GRI 302-2
taken to use them more efficiently environment GRI 302-3 Pages 18-19
3.3 Sustainable use of GRI 302-4 ages
Direct and indirect energy consumption, measures | resources GRI 302-5
taken to improve energy efficiency and the use of
renewable energies
Climate change
Important factors in the greenhouse gas emissions
generated as a result of the company's activities,
including the use of the goods and services it
produces
. GRI 305-1
3. Our commitment to the
Measures taken to adapt to the consequences of environment GRI 305-2 Pages 19-23
climate change 3.4 Cli h GRI 305-3
.4 Climate change GRI 305-5
The reduction targets established voluntarily in the
medium and long term to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions, and the means implemented for this
purpose
Protection of biodiversity
Measures taken to preserve or restore biodiversity |3 gur commitment to the GRI 304-1
R GRI 304-2 Page 23
environment
- . . . - . GRI 304-3
Impacts caused by activities or operations in 3.5 Protection of biodiversity | o, 50,/
protected areas
Policies
The policies that the Group applies, which include GRI 103 page 24

the diligence procedures applied for the
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identification, evaluation, prevention and mitigation
of risks and significant impacts, verification and
control, along with the measures that have been
adopted.

Employment

Total number and distribution of employees by
gender, age, country, and professional classification

Total number and distribution of types de
employment contracts, average annual number of
permanent contracts, temporary contracts and
part-time contracts by gender, age and professional
classification, number of dismissals by gender, age
and professional classification.

4.0 it tt GRI 103
Average salaries and their evolution, broken down - Qur commitment to GRI 102-8
by gender, age and professional classification or employees GRI 405-1 Pages 24-27
equal value 4.1 Employment GRI 405-2
Salary gap, payment for jobs involving performing
the same or average tasks for the company, average
payments for directors and managers, including
variable payments, allowances, compensation,
payment into long-term savings pension systems
and any other amount received, broken down by
gender, implementation of disconnection from
work policies, employees with disabilities
Work organisation
Organisation of working time
Absenteeism rate (hours) 4. Our commitment to GRI 103
employees GRI 403-2 Pages 27-28
Measures designed to facilitate the enjoyment of 4.2 Work organisation
work/family reconciliation and encourage the
responsible use of these measures by both parents
Health and Safety
Health and Safety conditions in the workplace GRI 103
. GRI 403-2
4. Our commitment to
. . . . . GRI 403-3
Occupational accidents, in particular their employees GRI 403-4 Pages 28-35
frequency and severity, as well as occupational 4.3 Health and Safety i
. GRI 403-9
ilinesses, broken down by gender
GRI 403-10
Social relations
Organisation social dialogue, including procedures
for informing, consulting and negotiating with staff
. GRI 103
4. Our commitment to GRI 402-1
Percentage of employees covered by collective employees g
b . b . GRI 102-41 Pages 35-39
argaining agreement, by country 4.4 Employment relations
GRI 403-1
The overall balance of the collective agreements GRI 403-4
signed, particularly in the field of health and safety
in the workplace
Training
o . o 4. Our commitment to GRI 103
Policies implemented in the area of training employees GRI 205-2 bares 35.40
4.5 Training GRI 404-1 g
Total number of hours’ training by professional GRI 404-2
category GRI 404-3
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Universal access for people with disabilities

Equality

Measures adopted to promote equality of
treatment and opportunity between men and
women

Equality Plans (Chapter lll of Spanish Act 3 of 22
March 2007, on the Effective Equality of Women
and Men)

Measures adopted to promote employment,
protocols against sexual harassment and
harassment on grounds of sex, integration, and
universal accessibility for people with disabilities

Policy against all types of discrimination and, where
applicable, policy on the management of diversity

4. Our commitment to
employees
4.6 Equality

GRI 103
GRI 405

Pages 40-42

Policies

The policies that the Group applies, which include
the diligence procedures applied for the
identification, evaluation, prevention and mitigation
of risks and significant impacts, verification and
control, along with the measures that have been
adopted.

GRI 103

Page 42

General

Application of due diligence procedures in matters
of human rights

Prevention of the risk of violating human rights and,
where applicable, measures for the mitigation,
management and repair of any potential abuses
committed

Complaints about cases involving human rights
violations

Promotion of and compliance with the provisions
set out in the principle agreements of the
International Labour Organisation with regard to
respect for the freedom of association and the right
to collective negotiation

The elimination of discrimination in employment
and the workplace

The elimination of forced or compulsory labour

The effective abolition of child labour

Policies

5. Our commitment to
ensuring respect for human
rights

GRI 103
GRI 102-16
GRI 102-17
GRI 412-1
GRI 412-2
GRI 412-3

Pages 42-44

The policies that the Group applies, which include
the diligence procedures applied for the
identification, evaluation, prevention and mitigation
of risks and significant impacts, verification and

GRI 103

Page 44
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control, along with the measures that have been
adopted.

General
Measures adopted to prevent corruption and gﬁ: 18;16
bribery 6. Our commitment to the GRI 102-17
Measures to combat money laundering fight against corruption and GRI 205-1 Pages 44-45
Contributions to foundations and not-for-profit bribery GRI 205-2
entities GRI 205-3
Policies
The policies that the Group applies, which include
the diligence procedures applied for the
|der.1t|f|cat|on., e\./a?luatlc.)n, preventu.)r? an.d mitigation GRI 103 Page 45
of risks and significant impacts, verification and
control, along with the measures that have been
adopted.
General
The company’s commitment to sustainable
development
The impact of the company's activity on local jobs
and development
The impact of the company's activity on local towns GRI'103
and cities and the territory in general 7. Our commitment to GRI203-1
. GRI 204-1 Pages 45-52
sustainable development
The relationships maintained with agents from the GRI 413-1
local communities and the types of dialogue GRI 413-2
engaged in with these agents
Association and sponsorship activities
Subcontracting and suppliers
Inclusion of social, gender equality and
environmental issues in purchasing policy GRI 103
GRI 102-9
Con.sideration of the Co.rm?any’? social and 8. Our supply chain GRI 308-1 Pages 52-53
environmental responsibility with regard to GRI 414-1
suppliers and subcontractors GRI414-2
Supervision and audit systems and their results
Consumers
Measures to ensure consumer health and safety GRI 103
9. Our commitment to users GRI 416-1 Pages 53-56
S deal with lai d clai and customers &
yste}ms to dea \I.VIt any c.omp aints and claims GRI 418-1
received and their resolution
Tax information
] . 10. Our commitment to GRI 201-1
The profits obtained country by country transparency GRI 201-4 Pages 56-58
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Taxes paid on profits and public subsidies received
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